
TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE 
TOWN COUNCIL MEETING 

THURSDAY, JANUARY 19, 2023, 2:00 PM 
2nd FLOOR CONFERENCE ROOM, MOUNTAIN VILLAGE TOWN HALL 

455 MOUNTAIN VILLAGE BLVD, MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, COLORADO 
AGENDA REVISED 

https://us06web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_iekOzWTmRe69CFDP8DSfYA 
Please note that times are approximate and subject to change. 

Time Min Presenter Type 
1. 2:00 Call to Order 

2. 2:00 5 Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items 
3. 2:05 5 Broady Swearing In Oath of Office for Municipal Judge Dennis Friedrich 

4. 2:10 5 Johnston Action 

Consent Agenda: 
All matters in the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by 
the Town Council and will be enacted with a single vote. There will 
be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is deemed 
necessary, that item should be removed from the Consent Agenda 
and considered separately: 

a. Consideration of Approval of the December 8, 2022 Town
Council Meeting Minutes

b. Consideration of Approval of the January 4, 2023 Special
Town Council Meeting Minutes

5. 2:15 10 
Johnston 

         A Benitez 
Action 

Quasi-Judicial 

Liquor License Authority: 
a. Consideration of Re-Certification of the Mountain Village

Promotional Association and Common Consumption Area

6. 2:25 10 Lemley 
Informational 

Action 

Finance: 
a. Presentation of the December 31, 2022 Business &

Government Activity Report (BAGAR)
b. Consideration of Approval of the November 30, 2022

Financials

7. 2:35 15 

McConaughy 
Ward 

Haynes 
Wisor 

Action 

Mountain Village Housing Authority: 
a. Second Reading, Public Hearing and Council Vote on an

Ordinance Conveyance of Lot 644 from the Town of
Mountain Village to the Town of Mountain Village Housing
Authority

b. Consideration of a Resolution Expressing the Intent of the
Issuer to be Reimbursed for Certain Expenses Relating to
the Acquisition of Property in Ilium for the Purpose of
Residential Workforce Housing

8. 2:50 30 
Haynes 
Wisor 

Work Session Discussion Regarding the Lot 644 Deed Restriction Framework and 
Lottery Priority 

9. 3:20 20 Walters Informational Community Forestry Program Update and State of the Forest 
Report 

10. 3:40 5 Ward 
Action 

Quasi-Judicial 

Consideration of  Resolution Approving a Conditional Use Permit for 
a Driveway on Lot OSP 18A The Applicant has Requested that this 
Item be Continued to the February 16, 2023 Town Council Meeting 

11. 3:45 5 
Haynes 
Ward 

Action 
Consideration of a Resolution for a Major Subdivision to Replat 
Portions of Property Between Lot 109R and OS-3-BR-2 To be 
Continued to the March 16, 2023 Town Council Meeting 

12. 3:50 90 
Applicant 

Ward 
Action 

Quasi-Judicial 

First Reading, Setting of a Public Hearing and Council Vote on an 
Ordinance Regarding a Major Planned Unit Development (PUD) 
Amendment to the Formerly Named Mountain Village Hotel PUD, to 



Haynes Consider Amendments to the Existing PUD for Lot 109R for a 
Mixed-Use Hotel/Resort Development Including Plaza, Commercial, 
Hotel and Residential Use with a Maximum Height Request up to 
96’8” Continued from June 16, 2022, August 18, 2022 and 
November 17, 2022 

13. 5:20 15   Dinner 

14. 5:35 20 
Applicant 
Haynes 

Action 
Quasi-Judicial 

First Reading, Setting of a Public Hearing and Council Vote on an 
Ordinance Regarding a Rezone of Portions of Town Owned Village 
Center Active Open Space (OS-3-BR2) to 109R PUD, and 109R 
PUD to Village Center Active Open Space (OS-3- BR2) Consistent 
with CDC Section 17.4.9 

15. 5:55 15 
Wise 

Latcham 
Kalyk 

Informational 
Staff Report: 

a. Economic Development and Sustainability 
i. Telluride Conference Center Seasonal Update 

16. 6:10 20 Town Council Informational 

Council Boards and Commissions Updates: 
        1. Telluride Tourism Board - Berry 
        2. Colorado Flights Alliance - Gilbride 
        3. Transportation & Parking – Mogenson/Duprey 
        4. Budget & Finance Committee – Gilbride/Duprey/ 

Mogenson 
        5.   Gondola Committee – Caton/Berry/Prohaska 
        6.   Colorado Communities for Climate Action – Berry 
        7. San Miguel Authority for Regional Transportation (SMART) 

– Berry/Prohaska/Mogenson 
        8. Telluride Historical Museum – Prohaska 
        9.   Alliance for Inclusion – Prohaska 
      10.   Green Team Committee- Berry/Prohaska 
      11.   Business Development Advisory Committee – 

Caton/Duprey 
      12.   San Miguel Watershed Coalition – Prohaska 
      13.   Telluride Mountain Village Owners Association   

Governance Auxiliary Committee – Duprey 
      14.   Wastewater Committee – Duprey/Mogenson 
      15.   Mayor’s Update – Benitez 

17. 6:30 5  Informational Other Business 

18. 6:35 110  Legal 

Executive Session for the Purpose of: 
a. Conference with the Town Attorney for the Purpose of 

Receiving Legal Advice on Specific Legal Questions, to 
Determine Positions Relative to Matters that may be 
Subject to Negotiations Developing Strategy for 
Negotiations and/or Instructing Negotiators, In Connection 
With the Acquisition of Approximately 55 Acres Known as 
the Alexander Parcel Pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6- 
402(4)(a), (b), and (e) 

b. Conference with the Town Attorney for the Purpose of 
Receiving Legal Advice on Specific Legal Questions, to 
Determine Positions Relative to Matters that may be 
Subject to Negotiations Developing Strategy for 
Negotiations and/or Instructing Negotiators, In Connection 
With the Wastewater Treatment Plant Pursuant to C.R.S. 
24-6-402(4)(b) and (e) 

c. Conference with the Town Attorney for the Purpose of 
Receiving Legal Advice on Specific Legal Questions, to 
Determine Positions Relative to Matters that may be 
Subject to Negotiations Developing Strategy for 



 
Individuals with disabilities needing auxiliary aid(s) may request assistance by contacting Town Hall at 970-369-6429 or email: 

mvclerk@mtnvillage.org. A minimum notice of 48 hours is required so arrangements can be made to locate requested auxiliary aid(s). 
https://bit.ly/WatchMVMeetings 

 
Register in advance for this webinar: 

 
https://us06web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_iekOzWTmRe69CFDP8DSfYA 

 
 After registering, you will receive a confirmation email containing information about joining the webinar 

 
Zoom participation in public meetings is being offered as a courtesy, however technical difficulties can happen and the Town 

bears no responsibility for issues that could prevent individuals from participating remotely. Physical presence in Council 
chambers is recommended for those wishing to make public comments or participate in public hearings. 

 
Public Comment Policy: 

• All public commenters must sign in on the public comment sign in sheet and indicate which item(s) they intend to give 
public comment on  

• Speakers shall wait to be recognized by the Mayor and shall give public comment at the public comment microphone 
when recognized by the Mayor   

• Speakers shall state their full name and affiliation with the Town of Mountain Village if any 
• Speakers shall be limited to three minutes with no aggregating of time through the representation of additional people   
• Speakers shall refrain from personal attacks and shall keep comments to that of a civil tone   
• No presentation of materials through the AV system shall be allowed for non-agendized speakers 
• Written materials must be submitted 48 hours prior to the meeting date to be included in the meeting packet and of 

record.  Written comment submitted within 48 hours will be accepted, but shall not be included in the packet or be 
deemed of record  

Negotiations and/or Instructing Negotiators, In Connection 
the Telluride Conference Center Pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6- 
402(4)(b) and (e) 

d. Conference with the Town Attorney for the Purpose of 
Receiving Legal Advice on Specific Legal Questions, to 
Determine Positions Relative to Matters that may be 
Subject to Negotiations Developing Strategy for 
Negotiations and/or Instructing Negotiators, In Connection 
With the Acquisition of Land Pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6- 
402(4)(a), (b), and (e) 

19. 8:25    Adjourn 

mailto:mvclerk@mtnvillage.org
https://bit.ly/WatchMVMeetings
https://us06web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_iekOzWTmRe69CFDP8DSfYA


TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE 
MINUTES OF THE DECEMBER 8, 2022 
REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL MEETING 

DRAFT 
  Agenda Item 4a 

The meeting of the Town Council was called to order by Mayor Laila Benitez at 2:00 p.m. on Thursday, 
December 8, 2022. The meeting was held in person and with virtual access provided through Zoom. 

Attendance: 

The following Town Council members were present and acting: 
Laila Benitez, Mayor 
Dan Caton, Mayor Pro Tem 
Harvey Mogenson  
Marti Prohaska 
Jack Gilbride 
Pete Duprey (via Zoom) 
Patrick Berry 

Also in attendance were: 
Paul Wisor, Town Manager  Sean DeLand 
Michelle Haynes, Assistant Town Manager Kiera Skinner 
Susan Johnston, Town Clerk Mike Foster 
Kim Schooley, Deputy Town Clerk Garret Smith 
David McConaughy, Town Attorney Elly Schaefer 
Lizbeth Lemley, Finance Director Heather Widlund 
Julie Vergari, Assistant Finance Director John Bennett 
Chris Broady, Police Chief Kenny Maenpa 
Adam Menter, Police Officer Jason Zendeh Del 
Amy Ward, Community Development Director Anne Reissner 
Kathrine Warren, Public Information Officer Jason Criado 
JD Wise, Economic Development & Sustainability Director Yvette Rauff 
Lauren Kirn, Environmental Efficiencies & Grant Coordinator Patrick Latcham 
Jaime Holmes, HR Director Stephanie Fanos 
Connor Reilly, VCA Manager Chris Hawkins 
Jodi Miller, Office Manager/Evidence Custodian Ronald Whitcomb 
Matt Moir, Deputy Police Chief Ryan Dohnal 
Erica Moir, Police Officer Tom Richards 
Jim Soukup, Chief Technology Officer David Averill 
Molly Norton, Community Engagement Coordinator John Miller 
Lindsay Niehaus, HR Coordinator Victor Toce 
Claire Perez, Planner  Cheryl Miller 
Lauren Tyler, GIS Administrator Rick Greubel 
Kate Burns, Controller Amy H. 
Jim Loebe, Transit & Recreation Director Tyler Gibbs 
Chris Paulk Chad Horning 
Kevin Younger Stefanie Solomon 
Luke Weidner Max Kay 
Bryan Woody Chris Neylan 
Sam Barnes John Pandolfo 
Jolana Vanek Art Bonavoglia 



Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items (2)  
There was no public comment. 
 
Swearing in and Introduction of: (3) 

a. Officer Peter Menter 
Police Chief Chris Broady introduced Officer Peter Menter. Mayor Benitez swore in Officer Menter. 

 
Telluride Tourism Board (TTB) Marketing Update (4) 
Telluride Tourism Board Executive Director Kiera Skinner presented. Council discussion ensued. 
 
Consideration of the Village Court Apartments Phase IV West Building Floor Plan, Cost and 
Considerations (5) 
Triumph Development West representatives Mike Foster and Garret Smith and Town Manager Paul Wisor 
presented. The Mayor opened a public hearing. Public comment was received from Chad Horning, Chris 
Neylan, Bryan Woody, Luke Weidner, Sam Barnes, and Katie Adams. The Mayor closed the public hearing. 
Council discussion ensued. On a MOTION by Marti Prohaska and seconded by Dan Caton, Council voted 
6-1 (with Harvey Mogenson dissenting the floor plan only) to approve the separate floor plan scenario 
between building E and building W and giving the Town Manager authority to release funds to continue 
with the project. 
 
Mountain Village Housing Authority: (6) 
Consideration on First Reading of an Ordinance Conveyance of Lot 644 from the Town of 
Mountain Village to the Town of Mountain Village Housing Authority 
Town Attorney David McConaughy, Assistant Town Manager Michelle Haynes, and Paul Wisor presented. 
Council discussion ensued. On a MOTION by Harvey Mogenson and seconded by Patrick Berry, Council 
voted 7-0 to approve on first reading an Ordinance conveyance of Lot 644 to the Mountain Village Housing 
Authority consistent with Home Rule Charter Section 11.5 and set the second reading, public hearing and 
final Council vote for the January 19, 2023 Regular Town Council meeting.  
 
Consideration of Approval of a Resolution to Adopt Amendments to the 2011 Town of Mountain 
Village Comprehensive Plan Legislative (7) 
MIG Project Manager Elly Schaefer and Michelle Haynes presented. Council discussion ensued. The Mayor 
opened a public hearing. Public comment was received from Chad Horning, Stephanie Fanos, Chris 
Hawkins, Luke Weidner, Cheryl Miller, and Patrick Latcham. The Mayor closed the public hearing. On a 
MOTION by Patrick Berry and seconded by Jack Gilbride, Council voted unanimously to adopt a 
Resolution adopting amendments to the 2011 Town of Mountain Village Comprehensive Plan with the 
addition of a developer banner on the cover.  
 
Council took a break from 4:02 to 4:15 p.m. 
 
911 Emergency Response, Mapping, Communication and Readdressing in Mountain Village (8) 
Michelle Haynes, Community Development Director Amy Ward, San Miguel County GIS Director Heather 
Widlund, and Chris Broady presented. Council discussion ensued. Council consensus was in favor of 
moving forward with the project. 
 
Consent Agenda: 
All matters in the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the Town Council and will be 
enacted with a single vote. There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is 
deemed necessary, that item should be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered 
separately: (9) 

a. Consideration of Approval of the November 17, 2022 Regular Town Council Meeting 
Minutes 

Town Clerk Susan Johnston presented. Council discussion ensued. On a MOTION by Dan Caton and 
seconded by Patrick Berry, Council voted unanimously to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. 

 
 



Consideration of Appointment: (10) 
Susan Johnston presented. 

a. Business Development Advisory Committee (BDAC) – Two Merchant Seats 
On a MOTION by Marti Prohaska and seconded by Harvey Mogenson, Council voted unanimously to 
appoint Ryan Dohnal and Bryan Thames as the Mountain Village Merchant Representatives to the Business 
Development Advisory Committee for one-year terms.  

b. Ethics Commission – One Alternate Seat 
On a MOTION by Dan Caton and seconded by Patrick Berry, Council voted unanimously to appoint Mike 
Weist to the alternate seat on the Ethics Commission for a two-year term. 
 
Consideration of Appointment: (11) 

a. Public Arts Commission (PAC) – One Staff Representative Replacing Zoe Dohnal 
Susan Johnston presented. On a MOTION by Dan Caton and seconded by Marti Prohaska, Council voted 
unanimously to appoint JD Wise as the staff representative of the Public Arts Commission with a term 
expiring August of 2026. 
 
Town Council Acting as the Board of Directors for the Dissolved Mountain Village Metro District: 
(13) 
On a MOTION by Dan Caton and seconded by Marti Prohaska, Council voted unanimously to convene as 
the Mountain Village Metro District. 
 
Finance Director Lizbeth Lemley and Assistant Director Julie Vergari presented. 

a. Consideration of a Resolution Adopting the 2023 Mountain Village Metro District Budget 
Council discussion ensued. On a MOTION by Harvey Mogenson and seconded by Dan Caton, Council 
voted unanimously to adopt a Resolution adopting the 2023 Mountain Village Metro District Budget. 

b. Consideration of a Resolution Appropriating Sums of Money for 2023 
Council discussion ensued. On a MOTION by Dan Caton and seconded by Jack Gilbride, Council voted 
unanimously to adopt a Resolution appropriating sums of money for 2023. 

c. Consideration of a Resolution Revising the 2022 Budget 
Council discussion ensued. On a MOTION by Patrick Berry and seconded by Jack Gilbride, Council voted 
unanimously to adopt a Resolution revising the 2022 budget. 

d. Consideration of a Resolution Re-Appropriating Sums of Money for 2022 
Council discussion ensued. On a MOTION by Jack Gilbride and seconded by Harvey Mogenson, Council 
voted unanimously to adopt a Resolution re-appropriating sums of money for 2022. 

e. Consideration of a Resolution Setting the Mill Levy for 2022 to be Collected in 2023 
Council discussion ensued. On a MOTION by Patrick Berry and seconded by Dan Caton, Council voted 
unanimously to adopt a Resolution setting the mill levy for 2022 to be collected in 2023. 
 
On a MOTION by Jack Gilbride and seconded by Harvey Mogenson, Council voted unanimously to re-
convene as the Mountain Village Town Council. 
 
Finance: (14) 
Lizbeth Lemley and Julie Vergari presented. 

a. Presentation of the November 30, 2022 Business & Government Activity Report (BaGAR) 
b. Second Reading, Public Hearing and Council Vote on an Ordinance of the Town Levying 

Property Taxes for the Year 2022 to be Collected in 2023 
The Mayor opened the public hearing. No public comment was received. The Mayor closed the public 
hearing. Council discussion ensued. On a MOTION by Marti Prohaska and seconded by Harvey 
Mogenson, Council voted 7-0 to adopt an Ordinance of the town levying property taxes for the year 2022 to 
be collected in 2023 beginning January 1st. 

c. Second Reading, Public Hearing and Council Vote on an Ordinance Adopting the 2023 
Budget and Revising the 2022 Budget  

The Mayor opened the public hearing. No public comment was received.  The Mayor closed the public 
hearing. Council discussion ensued. On a MOTION by Marti Prohaska and seconded by Patrick Berry, 
Council voted 7-0 to adopt an Ordinance adopting the 2023 budget and revising the 2022 budget. 
 



Council moved to agenda item 16. 
 
Telluride Regional Airport Authority (TRAA) Bi-Annual Report (15) 
Telluride Regional Airport FBO Manager Kenny Maenpa presented. Council discussion ensued.  
 
Council moved to agenda item 18. 

 
Council Boards and Commissions Updates: (16) 

1. Telluride Tourism Board – Berry 
2. Colorado Flights Alliance – Gilbride 
3. Transportation & Parking – Mogenson/Duprey 
4. Budget & Finance Committee – Gilbride/Duprey/Mogenson 
5. Gondola Committee – Caton/Berry/Prohaska 
6. Colorado Communities for Climate Action – Berry 
7. San Miguel Authority for Regional Transportation (SMART) – Berry/Prohaska/Mogenson 
8. Telluride Historical Museum – Prohaska 
9. Alliance for Inclusion - Prohaska 
10. Green Team Committee – Berry/Prohaska 
11. Business Development Advisory Committee – Caton/Duprey 
12. San Miguel Watershed Coalition – Prohaska 
13. Telluride Mountain Village Owners Association Governance Auxiliary Committee – Duprey 
14. Wastewater Committee – Duprey/Mogenson 
15. Mayor’s Update – Benitez  

 
Other Business (17) 
Paul Wisor shared that due to Environmental Efficiencies & Grant Coordinator Lauren Kirn’s efforts, this 
region has the highest recycle rate in greater Colorado.  
 
Council moved to agenda item 15. 
 
Executive Session for the Purpose of: (18) 

a. Conference with the Town Attorney for the Purpose of Receiving Legal Advice on Specific 
Legal Questions, to Determine Positions Relative to Matters that may be Subject to 
Negotiations Developing Strategy for Negotiations and/or Instructing Negotiators, In 
Connection With Scythian LTD, Cloud 9 Investments, LLC and Cloud 9 Land Holdings, 
LLC v. the Town of Mountain Village, Colorado, The Town of Mountain Village Town 
Council, Colorado; Tiara Telluride, LLC; Vault Management, Pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-
402(4)(a), (b), and (e) 

b. Conference with the Town Attorney for the Purpose of Receiving Legal Advice on Specific 
Legal Questions, to Determine Positions Relative to Matters that may be Subject to 
Negotiations Developing Strategy for Negotiations and/or Instructing Negotiators, and to 
Discuss the Purchase or Acquisition of Real Property, Pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-402(4)(a), (b), 
and (e) 

c. Conference with the Town Attorney for the Purpose of Determining Positions Relative to 
Matters that may be Subject to Negotiations; Developing Strategy for Negotiations; and 
Instructing Negotiators Related to Affordable Housing Pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-402(4)(e) 

d. Discussion of Personnel Matters for Which the Employee has Consented: Town Manager 
Review, Pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-402(4)(f) 

On a MOTION by Jack Gilbride and seconded by Harvey Mogenson, Council voted unanimously to move 
into Executive Session for the purpose of: 

a. Conference with the Town Attorney for the purpose of receiving legal advice on specific legal 
questions, to determine positions relative to matters that may be subject to negotiations, developing 
strategy for negotiations and/or instructing negotiators, in connection with Scythian LTD, Cloud 9 
Investments, LLC and Cloud 9 Land Holdings, LLC v. the Town of Mountain Village, Colorado, 



the Town of Mountain Village Town Council, Colorado; Tiara Telluride, LLC; Vault Management, 
pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-402(4)(a), (b), and (e)  

b. Conference with the Town Attorney for the purpose of receiving legal advice on specific legal 
questions, to determine positions relative to matters that may be subject to negotiations, developing 
strategy for negotiations and/or instructing negotiators, and to discuss the purchase or acquisition of 
real property, pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-402(4)(a), (b), and (e) 

c. Conference with the Town Attorney for the purpose of determining positions relative to matters 
that may be subject to negotiations; developing strategy for negotiations; and instructing negotiators 
related to affordable housing pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-402(4)(e) 

d. Discussion of personnel matters for which the employee has consented: Town Manager review, 
pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-402(4)(f) 

at 5:10 p.m. 
 
There being no further business Council voted unanimously to adjourn the meeting. 

 
Respectfully prepared,        Respectfully submitted, 
 
  
Kim Schooley         Susan Johnston  
Deputy Town Clerk        Town Clerk 



TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE 
MINUTES OF THE JANUARY 4, 2023 

SPECIAL TOWN COUNCIL MEETING 
DRAFT 

  Agenda Item 4b 

The meeting of the Town Council was called to order by Mayor Laila Benitez at 4:00 p.m. on Wednesday, 
January 4, 2023. The meeting was held in person and with virtual access provided through Zoom. 

Attendance: 

The following Town Council members were present and acting: 
Laila Benitez, Mayor 
Dan Caton, Mayor Pro Tem 
Harvey Mogenson  
Marti Prohaska 
Jack Gilbride (via Zoom) 
Pete Duprey 

The following Town Council members were absent: 
Patrick Berry 

Also in attendance were: 
Paul Wisor, Town Manager (via Zoom) Sean DeLand 
Susan Johnston, Town Clerk 
Kim Schooley, Deputy Town Clerk 
David McConaughy, Town Attorney (via Zoom) 

Executive Session for the Purpose of: (2) 
a. Conference with the Town Attorney for the Purpose of Receiving Legal Advice on Specific

Legal Questions, to Determine Positions Relative to Matters that may be Subject to
Negotiations, Developing Strategy for Negotiations and/or Instructing Negotiators, In
Connection With the Acquisition of Land Pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-402(4)(a), (b), and (e)

On a MOTION by Dan Caton and seconded by Pete Duprey, Council voted unanimously to move into 
Executive Session for the purpose of: 

a. Conference with the Town Attorney for the purpose of receiving legal advice on specific legal
questions, to determine positions relative to matters that may be subject to negotiations, developing
strategy for negotiations and/or instructing negotiators, in connection with the acquisition of land
pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-402(4)(a), (b), and (e)

at 4:01 p.m. 

There being no further business, on a MOTION by Harvey Mogenson and seconded by Jack Gilbride, 
Council voted unanimously to adjourn the meeting at 4:52 p.m. 

Respectfully prepared, Respectfully submitted, 

Kim Schooley   Susan Johnston 
Deputy Town Clerk Town Clerk 



Town of Mountain Village 

Date: 1/19/2023 
To: Town Council, Acting as the Liquor Licensing Authority (LLA) 
From: Susan Johnston, Town Clerk 
RE: Local Liquor Licensing Authority Matters for the January 19th    Meeting 

Consideration of Re-certification of the Mountain Village Promotional Association and Common 
Consumption Area 

All required documentation and fees have been received.  The packet has been reviewed by the following 
departments: Clerks, Legal and Police with no adverse findings although staff has asked the applicant to 
provide a more comprehensive security plan. The following condition is recommended regarding the 
insurance certificate: 

• Applicant shall provide an updated insurance certificate to the Clerk’s Office by June 1, 2023 to
show coverage for the remainder of the 2023 calendar year

Staff recommendation: Motion to approve the re-certification of the Mountain Village Promotional 
Association and Common Consumption Area with the above noted conditions. 

Agenda Item 5



1 | P a g e  
 

TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE 

PROMOTIONAL ASSOCIATION/ COMMON CONSUMPTION AREA 
CERTIFICATION RENEWAL REQUEST 
 

Promotional Association Name (exactly as it appears on incorporation documents): 

Description of Common Consumption Area Boundaries: 

Mailing Address of Promotional Association: 

Primary Contact: 

Primary Contact Phone Number: 

Primary Contact Email Address: 

 

 

The following must accompany this Promotional Association/Common Consumption Area Certification Request: 

 $250 for Annual Renewal Fee 

 Copy of Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws 

 List of all Directors and Officers of the Promotional Association 

 List of all the licensed premises in the Promotional Association 

 List of any changes from the original certification 

 Detailed map of the Common Consumption Area including: 

o Location of physical barriers 

o Entrances and exits 

o Location of attached licensed premises 

o Identify licensed premises adjacent to but not attached to the Common Consumption Area 

o Approximate location of security personnel 

 Written detailed description of Security Arrangements with the Common Consumption Area  

 A list of dates and hours of operation of the Common Consumption Area for upcoming calendar year 

 Documentation showing possession of the Common Consumption Area 

 List of Attached Licenses listing the following information: State Liquor License number, list of any past liquor 

violations, and copy of any operational agreements 

 Documentation of the reasonable requirements of the neighborhood, the desires of the adult inhabitants as 

evidenced by petitions, remonstrances or otherwise. 

 Insurance Certificate of General Liability and Liquor Liability naming the Town of Mountain Village as an 

additional insured 

 



2 | P a g e

TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE 

PROMOTIONAL ASSOCIATION/ COMMON CONSUMPTION AREA 
CERTIFICATION RENEWAL REQUEST 

Please mark below which days and hours the Common Consumption Area will be open and 

operational. NOON TO 9PM, 365 DAYS PER YEAR

Mondays Tuesdays Wednesdays Thursdays Fridays Saturdays Sundays 

January 

February 

March 

April 

May 

June 

July 

August 

September 

October 

November 

December 

Report to the Town Clerk any deviation from this schedule at least fifteen (15) days prior to the proposed new date and time. 

TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE 



PROMOTIONAL ASSOCIATION/ COMMON CONSUMPTION AREA 
CERTIFICATION RENEWAL REQUEST 

CERTIFICATION OF APPLICANT 

I hereby certify that the information contained in this certification request and all attachments is true, correct, 

and complete to the best of my knowledge and that it is my responsibility and the responsibility of my agents/ 

employees and Board of Directors to comply with all applicable local and state laws, rules, and regulations as 

they relate to the serving, selling and distribution of alcohol beverages. 

Date / 

Max Adam Singer, MVPA President 

Title 

REPORT AND APPROVAL OF THE LOCAL LIQUOR LICENSING AUTHORITY 

Susan Johnston

Town Clerk 

Town of Mountain Village 

TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE 

Date 

PROMOTIONAL ASSOCIATION/ COMMON CONSUMPTION AREA 

3IPa g e

Authorized Signature 



4 | P a g e  
 

CERTIFICATION RENEWAL REQUEST 
 
 

 

PROMOTIONAL ASSOCIATION/ COMMON CONSUMPTION AREA GENERAL GUIDELINES: 
 

 The size of Common Consumption Area is to be contained wholly within an Entertainment District which 

has been defined by the Mountain Village Municipal Code; 

 Common Consumption Areas are to be clearly delineated using physical barriers to close the area to 

motor vehicle traffic and limit pedestrian access; 

 Alcohol beverages sold or served within the Common Consumption Area shall be served in a container 

that is no larger than 16 ounces, is disposable and contains the name of the vendor in at least 24 point 

font type; 

 Proof of Needs and Desires of the Neighborhood is required as evidenced by petitions, written 

testimony, verbal testimony at the public hearing, letters of support, etc., and shall be submitted at least 

eight days prior to the scheduled public hearing. If a petition is chosen as one method of proving the 

neighborhood needs and desires, the applicant must use petitions approved by the Town Clerk's Office; 

 

Revisions and amendments to this original application for Common Consumption Area 

 Designation shall be reported to the Mountain Village Liquor Licensing Authority and approved using the 

same procedures under which this original request for certification was made; 

 Application for attachment of a licensed establishment to an already certified Common Consumption 

Area shall include an authorization from the Certified Promotional Association, the name of the 

representative from the licensed establishment that will be serving on the Board of Directors, and an 

amended map depicting the licensed establishments that are adjacent to but not attached to the 

Common Consumption Area; 

 The Mountain Village Liquor Licensing Authority shall consider the merits of the application for a 

Promotional Association of a Common Consumption Area and may refuse to certify or may decertify a 

Promotional Association if the Association: 1) Fails to submit the annual report as required by January 

31st of each year; 2) Fails to establish that the licensed premises and Common Consumption Area can be 

operated without violating the State or local Liquor Codes or creating a safety risk to the neighborhood; 

3) Fails to have at least two licensed establishments attached to the Common Consumption Area; 4) 

Fails to obtain or maintain a properly endorsed general liability and liquor liability insurance policy that 

is reasonably acceptable to the Mountain Village Liquor Licensing Authority and names the Town of 

Mountain Village as an additional insured; 5) Fails to demonstrate that the use is compatible with the 

reasonable requirements of the neighborhood or the desires of the adult inhabitants; or 6) Is in violation 

of 12-47-909, Colorado Revised Statutes, as may be amended from time to time, related to Common 

Consumption Area operations 

 Application for Recertification of a Promotional Association must be made by January 31 of each year 

 



Document must be filed electronically. 
Paper documents are not accepted. 
Fees & fonns are subject to change. 
For more infonnation or to print copies 

''''' 
Colorado Secretary of State 
Date and Time: 04/02/2014 10:42 PM 
ID Number: 20141221775 

Document number: 20141221775 
Amount Paid: $50.00 

of filed documents, visit www.sos.state.co.us. 

ABOvl, SPACE FOR OfflCI' USE ONLY 

Articles of Incorporation for a Nonprofit Corporation 
filed pursuant to§ 7-122-101 and§ 7-122-102 ofthe Colorado Revised Statutes (C.R.S.) 

1. The domestic entity name for 
the nonprofit corporation is Mountain Village Promotional Association 

(Caution: The use of certain terms or abbreviations are restricted by law. Read instructions jar more information.) 

2. The principal office address of the nonprofit corporation's initial principal office is 

Street address 113 Lost Creek Lane, Suite A 
(Su-eel number and name) 

Mountain Village co 81435 
(City) (State) (ZIP/Postal Code) 

United States 
(Province - if applicable) (Country) 

Mailing address 
(leave blank if same as street address) (Street number and name or Post Office Box information) 

(City) (Stale) (ZIP/Postal Code) 

(Province - if applicable) (Country) 

3. The registered agent name and registered agent address of the nonprofit corporation's initial registered agent 
are 

Name 
(ifan individual) Solomon Joseph 

---------
A. 

(Las 1) (First) (Middle) 

OR 

(ifan entity) 
(Caution: Do not provide both an individual and an efllity name.) 

Street address 227 West Pacific Avenue, Suite A 
(Street number and name) 

Telluride co 81435 
(City) (State) (ZIP Code) 

ARTINC_NPC Page I of3 Rev. 2/12/2013 



Mailing address PO Box 1748 
(leave blank if same as street address) (S1ree1 number and name or Pos1 Office Box i,iformalion) 

Telluride co 81435 
----------

(Cit}) (State) (ZIP Code) 

(The Jo/lawing sta1ement is adopted by marking 1he box.) 

Ii] The person appointed as registered agent above has consented to being so appointed. 

4. The true name and mailing address of the incorporator are 

Name 
(ifan individual) Joseph 

----------
Solomon A. 

(Last) (First) (Middle) (Sujfvc) 

OR 

(if an entity) 
(Caution: Do no/ provide both an individual and an entity name.) 

Mailing address PO Box 1748 
(Street number and name or Post Office Box in/ormalion) 

Telluride co 81435 
(City) U £Sto1f)S (ZIP/Postal Code) 

nitea tates 
(Province - if applicable) (Country) 

(If the following statement applies. adop1 the statement by marking the box and include an attachment.) 

D The corporation has one or more additional incorporators and the name and mailing address of each 
additional incorporator are stated in an attachment. 

5. (/fthefollowing statemem applies. adop11he starement by marking 1he bvx.) 

[Z] The nonprofit corporation will have voting members. 

6. Provisions regarding the distribution of assets on dissolution: 

Upon dissolution, after payment of all liabilities, the assets are to be distributed to the Members of the corporation in 
accordance with their Membership interests. 

ARTINC_NPC Page 2 of3 Rev.2/12/2013 



;. 

7. (ff the following statement applies, adopt the statement by marking /he box and include an attachment.) 

0 This document contains additional infonnation as provided by law. 

8. (Caution: Leqve blank if 1he documenl does no/ have a delayed ejfeclive date. Stating a delayed effective date has 
significant legal consequences. Read instructions before entering a date.) 

(fjthefollowing statement applies. adopt the statement by entering a dale and. if applicable. time using the required format.) 

The delayed effective date and, if applicable, time of this document is/are 
(mmlddlyyyy hour:minu/e ani·'pm) 

Notice: 

Causing this document to be delivered to the Secretary of State for filing shall constitute the affinnation or 
acknowledgment of each individual causing such delivery, under penalties of perjury, that the document is the 
individual's act and deed, or that the individual in good faith believes the document is the act and deed of the 
person on whose behalf the individual is causing the document to be delivered for filing, taken in confonnity 
with the requirements of part 3 of article 90 of title 7, C.R.S., the constituent documents, and the organic 
statutes, and that the individual in good faith believes the facts stated in the document are true and the 
document complies with the requirements of that Part, the constituent documents, and the organic statutes. 
This perjury notice applies to each individual who causes this document to be delivered to the Secretary of 
State, whether or not such individual is named in the document as one who has caused it to be delivered. 

9. The true name and mailing address of the individual causing the document to be delivered for filing are 

Solomon Joseph A. 
----------

(Ulsl) (Firs/) 
227 West Pacific Avenue, Suite A 

(Middle) (Suffix) 

PO Box 1 f~s' number and name or Pos/ Office Box informalion) 

Telluride co 81435 
(City} (S1a1e) (Zf Pl Postal Code) 

United States . 
(Province - if applicable} (Coumry) 

(Jf lhe Jo/lawing s1a1emen1 applies, adopt 1he s1a1emen1 by marking lhe bo:x and include an a/fachmenl.) 

0 This document contains the true name and mailing address of one or more additional individuals 
causing the document to be delivered for filing. 

Disclaimer: 

This fonn/cover sheet, and any related instructions, are not intended to provide legal, business or tax advice, 
and are furnished without representation or warranty. While this form/cover sheet is believed to satisfy 
minimum legal requirements as of its revision date, compliance with applicable law, as the same may be 
amended from time to time, remains the responsibility of the user of this form/cover sheet. Questions should 
be addressed to the user's legal, business or tax advisor(s). 

ARTINC_NPC Page 3 of 3 Rev. 2/12/2013 



Mountain Village Promotional Association, a Colorado nonprofit corporation 
Bylaws 

Article I 
Purpose 

The purpose of the Mowitain Village Promotional Association, a Colorado nonprofit 
corporation (the "Corporation' ) is to serve as a promotional association to be certified by the 
Town of Mountain Village (the "Town") pursuant to C.R.S. sec. 12-47-301(1 I) and as more fully 
described in Town Ordinance No. 2012-03 (the "Ordinance ). As set forth in the Ordinance the 
Town has created an ntertainment District and established application procedures, fees and 
hours of operation for common consumption areas, to be managed by the certified promotional 
association. 

Article 2 
Principal Office 

The current principal office of Mowitain Village Promotional Association a Colorado 
nonprofit corporation (the "Corporation ') is located at: 

1 I 3 Lost Creek Lane, Suite A 
Mountain Village, Colorado 81435 

The principal office may be changed by the Board of.Directors. 

Article 3 
Board of Directors 

Section 1. Board Number and Qualifications. The Board of the Corporation must includ 
at a minimum, all liquor license holders who choose to participate in the Promotional 
Association. If a liquor license holder within Mountain Village initially chooses not to 
participate in the Promotional Association and then later decides to participate, they must be 
added to the board of directors. At the option of the members, there may also be di rectors elected 
who are not liquor license holders. 

A Director must be a current Town of Mountain Village business owner, or if the 
business is a business entity, a duly appointed representative of such entity actively engaged in 
the business. Directors shall serve a term of three (3) years. Directors may be elected for 
successive terms. Initial terms may be staggered so as to provide for continuity in management. 
The initial Directors and their terms shall be: 

Name 
tephen Roth - TSO 

Adam Singer - Poachers Pub 

Initial Term 
3 years 
2 years 

Mountain Village Promotional Association I B la s p. 1 of 4 



Todd Gehrke - Hotel Madeline 
Stefano Canclini - La Piazza 
Tom Richards - Telluride Conference Center 
Greg Pope - TMVOA 

1 year 
3 years 
3 years 
3 years 

Section 2. Vacancies. Vacancies on the Board of Directors may be filled for the unexpired 
term of the predecessor in office by a majority vote of the remaining Directors at any meeting of 
the Board of Directors. A vacancy created by an increase in the number of Directors may be 
filled for a tenn of office continuing only until the next election of Directors. 

Section 3. Power and Duties of the Directors. The Board of Directors shall have control 
and general management of the affairs, property and business of the Corporation and, subject to 
these Bylaws, may adopt such rules and regulations for that purpose and for the conduct of its 
meetings as the Board of Directors may deem proper. The powers shall include but not be limited 
to the appointment and removal of the officers of the Corporation. 

Section 4. Election of Directors. The election of Directors shall be at the annual meeting 
of the Board. The Board shall by majority vote elect Directors. 

Article 4 
Meetings of Directors 

Section 1. Meetings. Regular and special meetings of the Board Directors shall be held on 
at least two (2) but no more than thirty (30) days written notice to the Directors. Directors may 
waive notice as provided in C.R.S. sec. 7-128-204. Agendas for meetings of the Board shall be 
made reasonably available for examination by the members or their representatives. 

Section 2. Quorum and Voting. A quorum of the Board of Directors consists of a majority 
of the number of Directors in office immediately before the meeting begins. The affirmative vote 
of a majority of Directors present is the act of the Board of Directors unless the vote of a greater 
number of Directors is required by law. 

Section 3. Proxies. Votes of Directors may be cast in person or by proxy. A Director may 
only appoint another Director to act pursuant to such Director 's proxy. Every proxy must be in 
the form approved by the Board of Directors and must be executed in writing by the Director or 
such Director's duly authorized attorney-in-fact. No proxy shall be valid after the expiration of 
eleven months from the date of its execution, and every proxy shall automatically cease at such 
time as the Director granting the proxy no longer qualifies as a Director for which vote the proxy 
was given. 

Section 4. Action Without Meeting. Any action required or permitted to be taken at a 
Board of Directors' meeting may be taken without a meeting in compliance with C.R.S. sec. 7-
128-202. 

Mountain Vi llage Promotional Association / Bylaws p. 2 of 4 



Article 5 
Officers and Duties 

Section 1. Officers. The officers of the Corporation shall consist of ( 1) a president. (2) a 
vice president, (3) a secretary, (4) other officers as determined by the Board. Any two or more 
offices may be held by the same person, except the offices of president and secretary. The offices 
of president, vice president and secretary shall be members of the Board. Officers shall be elected 
by the Members at the annual. A vacancy in any office may be appointed by the Board of 
Directors at any regular or special meeting called for that purpose. 

Section 2. President. The president shall preside at all meetings of the members and the 
Board of Directors and may have any other powers and duties as may be conferred by the Board 
of Directors. The president shall, subject to the direction and supervision of the Board of 
Directors, be the chief executive officer of the Corporation and shall have general and active 
control of its affairs and business and general supervision of its officers, agents and employees. 
The president shall have the authority to sign all contracts and other instruments on behalf of the 
Corporation, as approved by the Board of Directors from time to time. 

Section 3. Vice President. The vice president shall have the duties that the Board of 
Directors or the president may delegate to them from time to time. In the absence of tbe president 
or the pre ident' s inability to act, the duties and powers of the office sha11 be performed and 
exercised by a vice president. 

Section 4. Secretary. The secretary shall have the responsibility for the preparation and 
maintenance of minutes of the Directors' and members' meetings and other records and 
information required to be kept by the Corporation and for authenticating records of the 
Corporation. The secretary shall perform all duties usually incident to the office of the secretary 
those duties specified in these Bylaws, and other duties that may from time to time be delegated 
by the Board of Directors. 

Section 6. Other. The Board of Director may appoint such other officers as it deems 
prudent and necessary, including a Corporation Executive Director and/or CEO. The Board may 
assign such reasonable duties to such officers as the Board may establish by resolution. 

Article 6 
Memberships 

Section 1. Members. Members of the Corporation shall be business owners in the Town 
of Mountain Village or, in the event the business is a business entity., a duly appointed 
representative of such entity. Members shall have voting rights with respect to election of 
Directors. Members shall not have voting righ1s with respect to budget approval and other 
matters. 

Section 2. Meetings. Regular and special meetings of the members shall be held on at 
least ten 00) but no more than sixty (60) days written notice to the members, as more fuJly 

Mountain Village Promotional Association/ Bylaws p. 3 of 4 



described in C.R.S. sec. 7-127-104. Members may waive notice as provided in C.R.S. sec. 7-
127-105. 

Section 3. Action Without Meeting. Any action required or permitted to be taken at a 
members' meeting may be taken without a meeting in compliance with C.R.S . sec. 7-127-107 or 
by written ballot pursuant to CR.S. sec. 7-127-109. 

Article 7 
udget and Fiscal Year 

Section I. Budget. The Board of Directors shall, prior to the beginning of any fiscal year, 
adopt a budget which shall include: (a) the estimated operating costs and expenses and proposed 
capital expenditures which will be chargeable to the Corporation to fulfill its obligations; (b) the 
estimated income and other funds which will be received by the Corporation; and (c) the 
estimated total amounts required to be raised by member dues to cover such costs, expenses and 
capital expenditures of the orporation and to provide a reasonable reserve. Prior to adopting a 
budget for each fiscal year, the Board of Directors shall call a meeting of the members and 
provide notice of the time and place thereof to all members at least ten ( l 0) but no more than 
fifty (50) days prior to such meeting. After issuance of notice of meeting the Board of Directors 
shall make copies of the proposed budget available to all interested members. At such meeting, 
members shall have the right to be heard concerning the budget· however, the Board of Directors 
shall retain the sole power to approve the budget. 

Section 2. Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the orporation shal1 be from January 1st 
through December 31st of each year. 

Article 8 
Amendment of Bylaws 

The Board of Directors may amend these Bylaws at any time to add, change, or delete a 
provision in compliance with C.R.S. sec. 7-130-201 et seq. lf any amendments require member 
approval pursuant to such statutes, such member approval shall be obtained. 

/ Adopted by the Board of Directors at their first duly organized meeting on 
L/1'-/ , 2014. 

~f/~~OTr/ 

Mountain Village Promotional Association / Bylaws p. 4 of 4 



Mountain Village Promotional Association 
Directors and Officers 

 
 
President:   Adam Singer 

Poachers Pub 
 
Vice President:  Bryan Woody 
   Madeline Hotel & Residences 
 
Secretary:  Luke Weidner 
   TSG (Siam’s Talay, Crazy Elk, Pick, Tomboy Tavern, Plaza Lounge) 
 
Director:  Anton Benitez 
   Telluride Mountain Village Owners Association 
 
Director:  Joanna Smith 
   Telluride Distilling Company 
 
Director:  Mary Ann Slezak 
   Telluride Coffee Company 
 
Director:  Erica Jurecki 
   Tracks Café & Bar 
 
Director:  Tommy Thatcher 
   Telluride Brewing Company 
 
Director:  Tony Kalyk 
   Telluride Conference Center 
 
Director:  Winston Kelly 
   Communion Wine Bar 

 
 

  



List of Licensed Premises & State Liquor License Numbers

Licensed Premises in Promotional Association State Liquor License # Liquor Violations Operational Agrmnts Square Footage Location
Telski (Crazy Elk, Tomboy Tavern, Pick, Siam Talay, Plaza Lounge) 40919590001 N/A N/A 8,474 Heritage Plaza & Sunset Plaza
Telluride Conference Center 03-00972 N/A N/A 9,000 Conference Center Plaza
Poachers Pub 24934470000 N/A N/A 1,370 Sunset Plaza
Hotel Madeline 42970090000 N/A N/A 4,360 Heritage Plaza  
Telluride Distilling Company 03-03224 N/A N/A 2,170 Conference Center Plaza
Tracks Café and Bar 15-42422-0000 One in 2000 N/A 1,846 Heritage Plaza
Telluride Coffee Company 03-12618 N/A N/A 600 Heritage Plaza
Telluride Brewing Company 25-59705-0002 N/A N/A 1,450 Heritage Plaza
Communion Wine Bar 03-16837 N/A N/A 1,603 Conference Center Plaza
Total Square Feet of Licensed Premises 30,873

Licensed Premises not in Promotional Association Location
La Piazza / La Pizzeria Sunset Plaza
Franz Klammer Heritage Plaza

Participating Non-Liquor Licensed Establishments in the Promotional 
Association Location
Boot Doctors Heritage Plaza
Burton Heritage Plaza
Christy Sports (Both Locations) Heritage Plaza
Heritage Apparel Heritage Plaza
Mountain Adventure Equipment Sunset Plaza
North Face Heritage Plaza
Rinkevich Gallery Conference Center Plaza
Shake N Dog Heritage Plaza
Sothebys Heritage Plaza
TASP - (both locations) Sunset Plaza
The Telluride Room Heritage Plaza
Telluride Properties Sunset Plaza
Telluride Real Estate Corp Heritage Plaza
Telluride Sports (both locations) Heritage Plaza
Telluride Elevated Heritage Plaza
TMVOA Sunset Plaza
TSG Ski Valet / Slopeside Lockers Heritage Plaza
TSG Ticket Office (excluding the Children's Center/Nursery) Heritage Plaza
Wagner Custom Skis Conference Center Plaza
Neve Reflection Plaza
The Resort Store Gondola Plaza

Non-Liquor Licensed Premises NOT in the Promotional Association Location
Wells Fargo Conference Center Plaza
Starbucks Reflection Plaza
Black Tie Ski Rentals Conference Center Plaza



Mountain Village Promotional Association 

Expanded Common Consumption Area Application 

January 2023 

 

TMV Requirement #5: List any changes from the 2022 re-certification: 

The Village Table is no longer occupying its customary space in conference center plaza. The space is 
currently vacant but remains on the CCA map as a placeholder. 

The MVPA Board of Directors will monitor security. 

Joanna Smith has replaced Abbott Smith on the Board of Directors.  



Mountain Village Promotional Association 

Expanded Common Consumption Area Application 

January 2023 

 

TMV Requirement #6: Detailed Map (see included maps) 

Comments: 

• Location of Physical Barriers: These are no longer required per TMV 
• Entrances and Exits: Shown on map 
• Location of attached licensed premises: Shown on map 
• Licensed premises adjacent to but not attached: The Peaks and Lumiere 
• Location of Security Personnel: Roaming done by TSG Security Department 
• Signs & Bollards defining the CCA are present at all times 



NO
 U

PH
IL

L

WESTERMERE

GRANITA

VILLAGE
POND

PRIVATE
PARKING

SHORT-TERM
PARKING

NORTH VILLAGE
CENTER PARKING

CH
ON

DO
LA

 / 
LIF

T 1
 (W

IN
TE

R 
ON

LY
)

FREE GONDOLA  > GONDOLA PARKING GARAGE

FR
EE

 G
ON

DO
LA

VIL
LA

GE
 EX

PR
ES

S /
 LI

FT
 4 

(W
INT

ER
 ON

LY)

MOUNTAIN VILLAGE BOULEVARD

LOST CREEK LANE

MOUNTAIN VILLA
GE BOULEVARD

HERITAGE
PARKING
GARAGE

SUNNY RIDGE LANE

ASPEN
RIDGE

DRIVE

MOUNTAIN VILLAGE BOULEVARD

SUNSET
PLAZA

HERITAGE
PLAZA

FRANZ KLAMMER 
LODGE

CLUB RED

TELLURIDE
CONFERENCE

CENTER

GONDOLA, BOULEVARD & TRAIL TO:
   MOUNTAIN LODGE TELLURIDE,
      GONDOLA PARKING GARAGE, 
         TOWN HALL

REFLECTION
PLAZA

COUNTRY CLUB DRIVE

NEVE SPORTS

 LA PIAZZA

INN AT
LOST CREEK

LUMIÈRE

THE PEAKS RESORT & SPA

1

2

2

3

4

5
11

14

12
13

6

8
9

1 2

37

3

4

18

19

5

6
7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

14

15

15

16
10

17

TO
VALLEY
FLOOR

TO
BOOMERANG

TRAIL

TO
JURASSIC

TRAIL

TRAILHEAD

BOULEVARD
TRAIL

MOUNTAIN VILLAGE CENTER

COMMON
CONSUMPTION
AREA SUMMER

LEGEND: 
COMMON CONSUMPTION AREA (CCA)
CCA ESTABLISHMENTS
PARTICIPATING LIQUOR LICENSED
ESTABLISHMENTS

1  Crazy Elk Pizza
2  Hotel Madeline & Residences
3  Poachers Pub
4  Siam’s Talay Grill
5  The Pick
6  Tomboy Tavern
7  Telluride Coffee Company 
8  Telluride Distilling Company 
9  Telluride Ski & Golf Club House
10  Tracks
11  Placeholder for Future Restaurant
12  Telluride Conference Center
13  Telluride Brewing Company
14  Communion Wine Bar

1  Boot Doctors & Paragon Outdoors
2  Burton 
3  Christy Sports (BOTH LOCATIONS) 

4  Heritage Apparel
5  Mountain Adventure Equipment 
6  Shake N Dog Grub Shack
7  Slopeside Lockers
8  Sotheby’s
9  Telluride Elevated
10  The Telluride Room

11  Telluride Real Estate Corp
12  TSG Ticket & Pass Office
 (excluding the Children’s Center/Nursery)

13  Telluride Properties
14  Telluride Sports (BOTH LOCATIONS)

15  Telluride Adaptive Sports Program   
 (BOTH LOCATIONS)

16  The North Face 
17  TMVOA  
18  Wagner Custom Skis
19  Rinkevich Gallery

PARTICIPATING CCA ESTABLISHMENTSPARTICIPATING LIQUOR LICENSED 
ESTABLISHMENTS

NO OUTSIDE ALCOHOL ALLOWED WITHIN THE COMMON CONSUMPTION AREA

common consumption area
Enjoy your drink responsibly

SEVEN DAYS PER WEEK, NOON TO 9PM

• The CCA encompasses Heritage Plaza, Sunset Plaza and Village Pond Plaza.

• Alcoholic beverages purchased from one licensed liquor establishment in approved 
 disposable cups will only be permitted in the CCA and cannot be brought into another 
 liquor establishment.

• Reflection Plaza is licensed to Madeline Hotel & Residences therefore only alcoholic 
 beverages from the Madeline Hotel & Residences can be consumed in that plaza.

• People with an alcoholic beverage from an approved establishment are not permitted 
 to cross any roadways.

Common Consumption Area (CCA) overview

---

e 



NO
 U

PH
IL

L

WESTERMERE

GRANITA

VILLAGE
POND

PRIVATE
PARKING

SHORT-TERM
PARKING

NORTH VILLAGE
CENTER PARKING

CH
ON

DO
LA

 / 
LIF

T 1
 (W

IN
TE

R 
ON

LY
)

FREE GONDOLA  > GONDOLA PARKING GARAGE

FR
EE

 G
ON

DO
LA

VIL
LA

GE
 EX

PR
ES

S /
 LI

FT
 4 

(W
INT

ER
 ON

LY)

MOUNTAIN VILLAGE BOULEVARD

LOST CREEK LANE

MOUNTAIN VILLA
GE BOULEVARD

HERITAGE
PARKING
GARAGE

SUNNY RIDGE LANE

ASPEN
RIDGE

DRIVE

MOUNTAIN VILLAGE BOULEVARD

SUNSET
PLAZA

HERITAGE
PLAZA

FRANZ KLAMMER 
LODGE

CLUB RED

TELLURIDE
CONFERENCE

CENTER

GONDOLA, BOULEVARD & TRAIL TO:
   MOUNTAIN LODGE TELLURIDE,
      GONDOLA PARKING GARAGE, 
         TOWN HALL

REFLECTION
PLAZA

COUNTRY CLUB DRIVE

NEVE SPORTS

 LA PIAZZA

INN AT
LOST CREEK

LUMIÈRE

THE PEAKS RESORT & SPA

1

2

2

3

4

5
11

12
13

6

8
9

1 2

37

3

4

18

19

5

6
7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

14

15

15

16
10

17

14

WINTER

TO
VALLEY
FLOOR

TO
BOOMERANG

TRAIL

TO
JURASSIC

TRAIL

TRAILHEAD

BOULEVARD
TRAIL

MOUNTAIN VILLAGE CENTER

COMMON
CONSUMPTION
AREA

LEGEND: 
COMMON CONSUMPTION AREA (CCA)
CCA ESTABLISHMENTS
PARTICIPATING LIQUOR LICENSED
ESTABLISHMENTS

1  Crazy Elk Pizza
2  Hotel Madeline & Residences
3  Poachers Pub
4  Siam’s Talay Grill
5  The Pick
6  Tomboy Tavern
7  Telluride Coffee Company 
8  Telluride Distilling Company 
9  Telluride Ski & Golf Club House
10  Tracks
11  Placeholder for Future Restaurant
12  Telluride Conference Center
13  Telluride Brewing Company
14  Communion Wine Bar

1  Boot Doctors & Paragon Outdoors
2  Burton 
3  Christy Sports (BOTH LOCATIONS) 

4  Heritage Apparel
5  Mountain Adventure Equipment 
6  Shake N Dog Grub Shack
7  Slopeside Lockers
8  Sotheby’s
9  Telluride Elevated
10  The Telluride Room

11  Telluride Real Estate Corp
12  TSG Ticket & Pass Office
 (excluding the Children’s Center/Nursery)

13  Telluride Properties
14  Telluride Sports (BOTH LOCATIONS)

15  Telluride Adaptive Sports Program   
 (BOTH LOCATIONS) 
16  The North Face 
17  TMVOA  
18  Wagner Custom Skis
19  Rinkevich Gallery

PARTICIPATING CCA ESTABLISHMENTSPARTICIPATING LIQUOR LICENSED 
ESTABLISHMENTS

NO OUTSIDE ALCOHOL ALLOWED WITHIN THE COMMON CONSUMPTION AREA

common consumption area
Enjoy your drink responsibly

SEVEN DAYS PER WEEK, NOON TO 9PM

• The CCA encompasses Heritage Plaza, Sunset Plaza and Village Pond Plaza.

• Alcoholic beverages purchased from one licensed liquor establishment in approved 
 disposable cups will only be permitted in the CCA and cannot be brought into another 
 liquor establishment.

• Reflection Plaza is licensed to Madeline Hotel & Residences therefore only alcoholic 
 beverages from the Madeline Hotel & Residences can be consumed in that plaza.

• People with an alcoholic beverage from an approved establishment are not permitted 
 to cross any roadways.

Common Consumption Area (CCA) overview

---
I 

••• • . ::::, 



 
Mountain Village Promotional Association 

2023 Common Consumption Area Security Plan 
 
 

The purpose of this document is to outline the security procedures for the common 
consumption area in Mountain Village Core. 
 
Liquor license holders participating in the common consumption area for 2023 are; Hotel 
Madeline, Poachers Pub, Tracks Café & Bar, Telluride Coffee Company, Telluride Distilling 
Company, Telluride Brewing Company and TSG (Crazy Elk, Tomboy Tavern, The Pick, 
Siam’s Talay, Telluride Conference Center).   
 
Daily Security Monitoring: 

 
Staff of the 11 liquor license holders participating in the Common Consumption area will be 
responsible for daily monitoring of the common consumption area. Each establishment has a 
boundary directly adjacent to their establishment for which they are responsible for 
monitoring during normal hours of operation. Staff will educate guests in a friendly manner 
and if any violators become belligerent or overly intoxicated the police will be contacted to 
intervene. For some of the outlying areas such as Village Pond Plaza and when establishments 
are not open, staff will assist with monitoring.  
 
In the event that the Town has any concerns with operations, the Town may require all of the 
managers for the participating liquor license holders to meet with the Town in order to discuss 
and refine the security procedures as necessary to address these concerns.    
 
Special Events (Sunset Concerts, 4th of July, Closing Day, etc.): 
 
MVPA will hire the necessary security staff to include 2-6 roaming security personnel to 
cover the common consumption area. The Mountain Village Promotional Association Board 
of Directors will oversee the security crew. The primary point of contact for the Town will be 
the MVPA Board President. This person will meet with the Town’s chief of police or his 
designee as needed to go over any potential issues and security concerns with the common 
consumption area.   
 
The MVPA has standard operating procedures/standard talking points so that each security 
personnel will be delivering a consistent message when the common consumption area is in 
effect.    
 
All security personnel shall wear a shirt clearly identifying such person as security personnel 
for the common consumption area.  
 
Special Event Schedule: 
 

• Responsible individual shall meet with the security personnel to go over 
responsibilities or when there are staffing changes.   

• Roaming monitoring of the area will begin at one hour prior to the event and will 
include informing guests of the common consumption area rules. 



• Monitoring will continue until one hour past the event at which time a sweep of the 
area will occur to ensure that all alcoholic beverages have been disposed of in trash 
receptacles.  
 

Security Plan and Training: 
 

• Special event security staff will be provided with security vests and will be given a list 
of Standard Operating Procedures  

• All security personnel will complete the server and seller training program (TIPS or 
ServSafe) established by the Director of the Liquor Enforcement Division of Revenue. 

• When appropriate, security staff will check coolers/bags to ensure no alcoholic 
beverages are brought into the Common Consumption Area and will be responsible 
for ensuring that no alcoholic beverages leave the Common Consumption Area.   

• When necessary, recycling and trash cans shall be available at all entrance and exit 
points. 

• IDs will be checked at the point-of-sale by staff members of each participating 
licensed establishment. 

• Each licensed establishment will be responsible for ensuring that no alcoholic 
beverages from another establishment are brought into their licensed area. 

• Each licensed establishment will use a disposable cup with its logo for patrons who 
wish to take a beverage out into the common consumption area. 

• Per the recommendation of the insurance carrier, the Mountain Village Promotional 
Association will agree to comply with the loss control recommendation to post the 
drinking age limit in the common consumption area.  

• If open displays of intoxication occur, the security personnel will contact the police at 
the Town of Mountain Village and/or call 911 if there are any life and death 
emergencies. 

 
Barriers and Signage: 
 

• The boundary of the Common Consumption Area will be defined using natural 
barriers, bollards and core pedestrian areas only (no vehicular traffic areas will be 
included). 

• Signage will be posted at all entrances to the Common Consumption Area stating “no 
outside alcohol allowed” on one side and “no alcohol beyond this point” on the other 
side. 

• Signage will match the current wayfinding program for the Town of Mountain 
Village. 

 
 
 
 
         

 

 

 



MOUNT AlN VILLAGE PROMOTIONAL ASSOCIATION 
PLAZA LICENSE AGREEMENT 

This License Agreement (the "License Agreement") is made, effective as of the 31 day of January 
2017, (the "Effective Date"'), between the Mountain Village Promotional Association, a Colorado nonprofit 
corporation. ("Licensee'') and the Town of Mountain Village, a home-rule municipality and political 
subdivision of the State of Colorado (the ·'Town"}. Licensee and the Town may be collectively referred to 
herein <1S the '·Parties'' or individually referred to herein as ··Party". 

RECITALS 

I. Licensee is promotional association, as defined by C.R.S. 12-47-103(24.5); which has been certified 
by the Town to operate a common consumption area as defined by C.R.S. 12-47-103(6.6). 

2. Licensee applied and received approval from the Town for the certification as a promotional 
association and Common Consumption Area. a portion of which is located on Town owned Open 
Space Tract OS-3X (the "Plaza"} as depicted on Exhibit ;, A" attached hereto (the ··Town Plaza 
Area"). 

3. The Town desires to grant, and Licensee desires to accept. the license described below for purposes 
of allowing Licensee to (i) conduct and liquor operations in conformance with Licensees approval of 
a common consumption area in, on, and over the Town Plaza Area, alt as further set forth below. 

In consideration of the covenants and agreements set forth herein, and other good and valuable 
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which hereby are acknowledged and accepted, Licensee and the 
Town hereby agree as follows: 

I . GRANT OF LICENSE. The Town hereby grants Licensee a license over the Town Plaza Area, as 
follows: 

a. Licensee shall be pennitted to have a common consumption area in accordance with Licensees 
approval of such common consumption area on the dates listed in the approval of such common 
consumption area and dates added pursuant to requirements of the approval of the common 
consumption area. 

b. Licensee shall be permitted to place barriers, trash cans and other infrastructure as required by 
the approval of the common consumption area in order to operate the common consumption area. 

c. Licensee shall be allowed to pennit the consumption of alcoho'I on the Town Plaza Area 
including, in connection with its approvaJ for the common consumption area, subject to 
applicable Town and/or other governmental laws, ordinances, and/or regulations. 

2. TERM. This License Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall tenninate on January 
30, 2019, unless terminated earlier pursuant to Paragraph 8 below (the "Term'"). This License 
Agreement shall automatically renew for additional one year tenns upon the successful recertification of 
the promotional association and common consumption area. 

- 1 -



3. LOCATION. 

a. Licensee shall use signage. fencing and/or other physical markers/landmarks to designate the 
boundaries of the common consumption area in accordance with Licensee's approval of the 
common consumption area and shall comply with all security requirements of such approval. 
Such signage, fencing and or other physical markers, and other personal property of Licensee 
shall be removed immediately at the conclusion of each approved event. 

a. The Licensee shall ensure that no alcohol is sold, served or taken outside of the common 
consumption area. 

b. Licensee shall use and maintain the Town Plaza Area and common consumption area in 
accordance with all applicable health and safety laws, ordinances, and/or regulations for the 
protection of all users of the common consumption area and Town Plaza Area. 

c. Licensee shall ensure that adequate trash and recycling receptacles are placed in the common 
consumption area for each event. 

5. MAINTENANCP., 

a. Licensee agrees to repair and/or replace any damage to any portion of the Town Plaza Area only 
to the extent any damages shall be caused by or in connection with Licensee's use thereof, 
(including, without limitation, the placement any personal property on the Town Plaza Area). All 
costs for such repair or replacement, and all work perfonned in connection therewith, shall be the 
responsibility of the Licensee. The Town, in its sole reasonable discretion, shall determine when 
the Town Plaza Area is in need of repair or replacement due to the activities of Licensee and/or 
its customers in the Town Plaza Area. 

b. Licensee shall clean the Town Plaza Area by removing debris, trash, sweeping and washing 
down the Town Plaza Area after each event. 

6. lNOEMNIFlCA TION. The Licensee agrees to indemnify, defend and hold hannless the Town and its 
agents and employees from and against all actual claims, actions, causes of action, demands, judgments, 
reasonable costs and expenses, and all damages of every kind and nature (exclusive of punitive 
damages) incurred by and on behalf of any person or other legal entity whatsoever, predicated upon 
injury to or death of any person or loss of or damage to property of whatever ownership, including the 
parties to this License Agreement and their agents and employees, arising out of or connected with, in 
any manner. directly or indirectly, the Licensee' s operation and its use of the Town Plaza Area. 

7. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. 

a. Licensee shall carry general liability insurance covering all, and liquor operations permitted 
pursuant to the License in an amount no less than $1 ,000,000;00 for a single occurrence and 
$1 ,000,000.00 in the aggregate, with the Town as a named insured on such policy. Licensee shall 
be required to provide to the Town a "Certificate of Insurance" evidencing such coverage for the 
Term of this License Agreement. 

• 2 • 



b. The general liability insurance policy and the ·'Certificate of Insurance'1 must be effective for the 
Term of the License Agreement, commencing as of the Effective Date. 

c. The Licensee shall cease all operations on the Town Plaza Area and common consumption area 
immediately upon cancellation the insurance coverage required pursuant to this Paragraph 7, in 
accordance with any notice of cancellation received by Licensee. 

8. TERMINATION. 

a. Should any Party to this License Agreement faH to perform its obligations hereunder in strict 
compliance with the terms, covenants and conditions of this License Agreement, or otherwise 
default in the perfonnance of any obligations contained in this License Agreement, the non
defaulting Party shall provide written notice to the defaulting Party of such default or breach 
("Notice of Default''). If the defaulting Party has failed to cure or reasonably commence curing 
said default or breach within 10 business days after such Notice of Default is provided (an 
··Uncured Default"), the non•defaulting Party thereafter shall have the right to terminate this 
License Agreement, effective immediately upon providing the defaulting Party with written 
notice of such termination. In addition, in the event of an Uncured Default on behalf of 
Licensee, the Town shall have the right to partially terminate this License Agreement (in lieu of 
full tennination) by revoking any specific right granted to Licensee, without limitation, removing 
any portion of the Outside Seating Areas from the License. 

b. In addition to, and separate from, the tennination provisions set forth in Paragraph 8 a. above, 
this License Agreement may be terminated, as follows: 

1. In the event that the promotional association or common consumption area is decertified 
or is not re-certified on an annual basis this License Agreement shall be automatically 
terminated. 

c. Upon any termination of this License Agreement, Licensee shall restore the Town Plaza Area to 
their origina·I condition existing prior to the Effective Date, less normal wear and tear. Any 
personal property of Licensee placed temporarily on the Town Plaza Areas pursuant to the 
License shall be removed at the end of the Tenn at Licensee's so1e cost and expense. 

d. The Town shall have the right to terminate this License Agreement for convenience at the 
Town ' s sole discretion and without penalty by giving Licensee thirty (30) days written notice of 
termination for convenience. 

9. HOURS OF OPERATION. 

a. Alcohol shall only be permitted in the Town Plaza Areas and common consumption areas during 
those hours as approved by the Town in the Licensees approval of the promotionaJ association 
and common consumption area. 

10. LICENSE FEES. 

a . To be paid by the Licensee: 
i. During the term of this License Agreement, the Licensee shall post a $500.00 cash 

performance bond to assure full compliance with the terms hereof (the "Performance 
Bond"'). The Performance Bond may be applied to any unpaid fines or charges 
outstanding for more than 45 days at any time during the Term. The Performance Bond 



shall be refunded 30 days after the expiration and/or tennination of this License 
Agreement; provided however, that the Town shall be entitled to retain the Performance 
Bond for an additional 45 days to secure the obligations of any unresolved pending action 
remaining at the end of this 30 day period. 

ii. The Licensee shall bear all costs and expenses related to the construction and/or 
maintenance of any utility and other amenities needed by Licensee in connection with the 
exercise of it rights pursuant to the License. 

iii. The Licensee shall bear all costs for any and all improvements to the Plaza Unit. both 
within and surrounding the Town Plaza Areas, which are reasonably required by the 
Town, pursuant to applicable health and safety laws, ordinances, and/or regulations, to 
limit hazards or dangers and provide for the safe operation of the common consumption 
area Town Plaza Areas. 

b. By the Town: 
i. The Town shall not be required to make any improvements to the Town Plaza Areas, or 

expend any money for the benefit of the Licensee, 

I 1. ADDITLONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS. 

a. The Licensee sha!! comply with e!! applicable !oca!, state and federal ru!es, regu!atlons and !ews. 
b. In the event of any legal action between the parties with respect to this· License Agreement and 

the license herein granted, the prevailing party in any such action shall be entitled to recover 
their costs incurred therein, including reasonable attorneys fees. 

c. Licensee may not assign, sublet, or transfer this License Agreement, or any portion thereof 
without the Town's prior written approval. 

d. This License Agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement between the panies and 
supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, and agreements, whether written or oral. 

12. NOTICE. All notices, demands or writings required or pennitted to be given hereunder, shall be 
deemed to have been fully given or made or sent when made in writing and delivered either by (i) hand 
delivery; {ii) facsimile transmission; (iii) electronic mail; or (iv) commercial overnight courier that 
guarantees next day delivery and provides a receipt, so long as these are addressed and/or delivered to 
the Party as follows (with the understanding that the mailing addresses, email addresses or fax numbers 
below may be changed by sending written notice to each Party notifying the Party of the change). 

If to Licensee: (With a copy to): 
Mountain Village Promotional 
Association 



lfto the Town: 
Kim Montgomery, Town Manager 
Town of Mountain Village 
455 Mountain Village Blvd., Suite A 
Mountain Village, CO 81435 
Email: kmontgomery@mtnvillage.org 
Phone: (970) 728-8000 

(With a copy to): 
James Mahoney, Esq. 
J. David Reed P.C. 
1 04 7 South I 51 Street 
Montrose, CO 81401 
Emaif: jmahoney@jdreedlaw.com 
Phone: (970) 249-3806 

(Signature Pages Follow) 

- 5 -



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the pa1ties hereto have executed this Agreement, effective as of the Effective Date, 

!)CENSEE: 

Mountain Village Promotion¾~)"'ociation,/ Colorn o nonprofit corporation: 

By: , 1/11 /fl l ,/ 7c_ 
Adam Singer, F'/ • ~t 

TOWN: 

TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE. 
a Colorado home-rule municipality 
and political subdivision of the state of Colorado 

Kim Montgomery, Tnw 

Approved as to Form: 

James 
Mahoney 

Digitally signed by James Mahoney 
ON: cn=James Mahoney, o=J. David 
Reed,P.C, ou, 
emall=JmahoneY@)dreedlaw.com. 
c=US 
Date: 201 7.04,17 13 ;25:20 -06'00' ---------

Jim Mahoney, Town Attorney 

6 



MOUNTAIN VILLAGE PROMOTIONAL ASSOCIATION 
TSG OPEN SPACE LICENSE AGREEMENT 

/] This License Agreement (the '•License Agreement") is made, effective as of the5~ day of 
(/_u~e. . 20 19 (the _"Eff:~t~ve Date"), between the Mountain Village Promotional_ A~soci~ti~n~ a Colorado 

nonprofit corporation, (" L icensee") and TSO SKI & GOLF, LLC, a Delaware limited hab1hty company 
("TSG"). Licensee and TSO may be collectively referred to herein as the "Parties" or individually referred 
to herein as "Party". 

RECITALS 

\. Licensee is promotional association, as defined by C.R.S. 12-47- 103(24.5); which has been 
certified by the Town of Mountain Village ("Town") to operate a common consumption area as 
defined by C.R.S. 12-47-1 03(6.6). 

2. Licensee applied and received approval from Town for the certification as a promotional 
association and Common Consumption Area, a portion of which is located on TSO owned Open 
Space Tract OS-3CR ("TSG Open Space Tract") as depicted on Exhibit "A-1 " attached hereto. 
The Town approved common consumption area is shown on Exhibit "A-2" attached hereto. 

3. TSG desires to grant, and Licensee desires to accept, the license described below for purposes 
of allowing Licensee to conduct liquor operations in conformance with Licensee's approval of 
a common consumption area in, on, and over the TSG Open Space Tract, all as further set forth 
below. 

In consideration of the covenants and agreements set forth herein, and other good and valuable 
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which hereby are acknowledged and accepted, Licensee and 
TSG hereby agree as follows: 

1. GRANT OF LICENSE. TSG hereby grants Licensee a license over the TSG Open Space Tract, as 
follows: 

a. Licensee shall be permitted to have a common consumption area in accordance with 
Licensee's Town approval of such common consumption area on the dates and hours listed 
in the approval of such common consumption area, set forth below under Dates and Hours 
of Operation. 

b. Licensee shall be permitted to place barriers, trash cans and other infrastructme as required 
by the approval of the common consumption area in order to operate the common 
consumption area. 

c. Licensee shall be allowed to permit the consumption of alcohol on the TSG Open Space 
Tract, in connection with its approval for the common consumption area, subject to 
applicable Town and/or other governmental laws, ordinances, and/or regulations. 

2. TERM. This License Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall terminate on 
October 21, 20 19, unless terminated earlier pursuant to Paragraph 8 below (the "Term"). This 
License Agreement shall automatically renew for two additional one year terms (each a separate 
"Renewal Term") upon the successful recertification of the promotional association and common 
consumption area. 

- 1 . 



3. LOCATION. 

a. Licensee shall use signage, fencing and/or other physical markers/landmarks to designate 
the boundaries of the common consumption area in accordance with Licensee's approval of 
the common consumption area and shall comply with all security requirements of such 
approval. Such signage, fencing and or other physical markers, and other personal property 
of Licensee shall be removed immediately at the conclusion of each approved event. 

4. DATES AND HOURS OF OPERATION. 

a. Alcohol shall only be permitted in the common consumption area, including TSG's open 
space areas within the common consumption area, during those hours as approved in the 
Licensee's approval of the promotional ac;sociation and common consumption area. 

b. These dates and hours include every day, seven days a week, from Noon to 9 pm, from June 
15 through October 20 during the Term and any Renewal Term. 

c. For informational purposes, and because these events will require additional security, special 
events already booked throughout the 2019 Term are listed in Exhibit B, attached hereto. 

d. Licensee agrees it will shut down the common consumption area upon the Town's request 
for any specific date wherein the Town is supporting an event where the common 
consumption area is not needed or desired. 

a. The Licensee shall ensure that no alcohol is sold, served or taken outside of the common 
consumption area. 

b. Licensee shall use and maintain the TSG Open Space Tract and common consumption area 
in accordance with all applicable health and safety laws, ordinances, and/or regulations for 
the protection of all users of the common consumption area and TSG Open Space Tract. 

c. Licensee shall ensure that adequate trash and recycling receptacles are placed in the common 
consumption area for each event. 

6. MAINTENANCE. 

a. Licensee shall at its sole cost and expense: ( 1) incur all costs associated with the promotional 
association, common consumption area and all events licensed under this Agreement; (2) 
minimize disturbance to the natural condition of the surface area of the TSG Open Space 
Tract; and (3) promptly cause any disturbance of the natural condition of the surface area of 
the TSG Open Space Tract to be reseeded, recontoured and reconstructed as may be 
necessary to return such area as nearly as practical to its condition prior to the event. This 
maintenance obligation includes the placement of any personal property on the TSG Open 
Space Tract. All costs for such repair or replacement, and all work performed in connection 
therewith, shall be the responsibility of the Licensee. TSG, in its sole reasonable discretion, 
shall determine when the TSG Open Space Tract is in need of repair or replacement due to 
the activities of Licensee and/or its customers in the TSO Open Space Tract. 

b. Licensee shall clean the TSO Open Space Tract by removing debris and trash after each 
event. 

. 2 -



7. INDEMNIFICATION. The Licensee agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless TSG and its 
agents and employees from and against all actual claims, actions, causes of action, demands, 
judgments, reasonable costs and expenses, and all damages of every kind and nature, including 
attorney's fees, incurred by and on behalf of any person or other legal entity whatsoever, predicated 
upon injury to or death of any person or loss of or damage to property of whatever ownership, 
including the parties to this License Agreement and their agents and employees, arising out of or 
connected with, in any manner, directly or indirectly, the Licensee's operation and its use of the 
TSG Open Space Tract. 

8. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. 

a. Licensee shall carry general liability insurance covering all, and liquor operations permitted 
pursuant to the License in an amount no less than $1,000,000.00 for a single occurrence and 
$ I ,000,000.00 in the aggregate, with TSG as a named insured on such policy. Licensee shall 
be required to provide to the TSO a acertificate of Insurance" evidencing such coverage for 
the Term of this License Agreement. 

b. The general liability insurance policy and the "CerJifi.cate of Insurance" must be effective 
for the Tenn of the License Agreement, commencing as of the Effective Date. 

c. The Licensee shall cease all operations on the TSO Open Space Tract and common 
consumption area immediately upon cancellation of the insurance coverage required 
pursuant to this Paragraph 7, in accordance with any notice of cancellation received by 
Licensee. 

9. TERMINATION. 

a. Should any Party to this License Agreement fail to perform its obligations hereunder in strict 
compliance with the terms, covenants and conditions of this License Agreement, or 
otherwise default in the performance of any obligations contained in this License Agreement, 
the non-defaulting Party shall provide written notice to the defaulting Party of such default 
or breach ("Notice of Default''). If the defaulting Party has failed to cure or reasonably 
commence curing said default or breach within l 0 business days after such Notice of Default 
is provided (an "Uncured Dcfaulf'), the non-defaulting Party thereafter shall have the right 
to terminate this License Agreement, effective immediately upon providing the defaulting 
Party with written notice of such termination. 

b. In addition to, and separate from, the termination provisions set forth in Paragraph 8 a. above, 
this License Agreement may be terminated, as follows: 

i. In the event that the promotional association or common consumption area is 
decertified or is not re-certified on an annual basis this License Agreement shall be 
automatically terminated. 

c. Upon any termination of this License Agreement, Licensee shall restore the TSG Open 
Space Tract to their original condition existing prior to the Effective Date, less nonnal wear 
and tear. Any personal property of Licensee placed temporarily on the TSG Open Space 
Tract pursuant to the License shall be removed at the end of the Term at Licensee's sole cost 
and expense. 

d. Either party shall have the right to terminate this License Agreement for convenience at the 
party's sole discretion and without penalty by giving the other party sixty (60) days written 
notice of termination for convenience. 



10. ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS. 

a. The Licensee shall comply with all applicable local, state and federal rules, regulations and 
laws. 

b. In the event of any legal action between the parties with respect to this License Agreement 
and the license herein granted, the prevailing party in any such action shall be entitled to 
recover their costs incurred therein, including reasonable attorney's fees. 

c. Licensee may not assign, sublet, or transfer this License Agreement, or any portion thereof 
without TSG's prior written approval. 

d. This License Agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement between the parties 
and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, and agreements, whether written or 
oral. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts. 

11. NOTICE. All notices, demands or writings required or permitted to be given hereunder, shall be 
deemed to have been fully given or made or sent when made in writing and delivered either by (i) 
hand delivery; (ii) facsimile transmission; (iii) electronic mail; or (iv) commercial overnight courier 
that guarantees next day delivery and provides a receipt, so long as these are addressed and/or 
delivered to the Party as follows (with the understanding that the mailing addresses, email addresses 
or fax numbers below may be changed by sending written notice to each Party notifying the Party 
of the change). 

If to Licensee: 
Adam Singer 
Mountain Village Promotional Association 
113 Lost Creek Lane, St A 
Mountain Village, CO 81435 
Email: SRoth@tellurideskiresort.com 
Phone: (970) 728-7314 

Ifto the TSG: 
Bill Jensen, CEOTSG Ski & Golf 
620 Mountain Village Blvd. 
Mountain Village, CO 81435 
Email: bjensen@tellurideskiresort.com 

{With a copy to): 
Heidi Stenhammer 
TMVOA 
113 Lost Creek Lane, Suite A 
Mountain Village, CO 81435 
Email: sara@tmvoa.org 
Phone: (970) 728-1904 x7 

(With a copy to): 
Stefanie Solomon, Esq. 
TSG Ski & Golf 
620 Mountain Village Blvd 
Mountain Village, CO 81435 
Email: ssolomon@tellurideskiresort.com 
Phone: (970) 728-7318 

- 4 -



1Signa111res 011 next /)(1.'-',C:J 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the pa11ies hereto have executed this Agreement, effective as of the Effective 
Date. 

LICENSEE: 

Mountain)W,lf ge ~njnotion ~ssociation, a Colorado nonprofit corporation: 

By: f /'/_ ~ 
Adam Singer, Pr 

TSG SKI & GOLF, LLC 
a ~limit~d liab~ity comp_an_ y __ 

By: _ \\--=-~ --~-----
Bill Jensen, CEO 

- 5. 



Exhibit A 

~ I . I . . ~ • 
' I !l .... > • 

~ ----- ,; . ' . 

. 6 . 



Exhibit A 

- 6 -



 

 
2023 Calendar - Tentative

 
 
Date Event Location Time 

6/14 Firstgrass concert Sunset Plaza 5-8 

6/21 Wed Sunset Concert Series Sunset Plaza 
 

6-8 

6/22 Thurs Sunset Concert Series Sunset Plaza 6-8 

6/28 Wed Sunset Concert Series Sunset Plaza 6-8 

6/29 Thurs Sunset Concert Series Sunset Plaza 6-8 

 
7/3 & 7/4 
Mon & Tues 

Red, White & Blues 
Celebration 

All Plazas 1-8 

7/5 Wed Sunset Concert Series Sunset Plaza 6-8 
7/6 Thurs Sunset Concert Series Sunset Plaza 6-8 
7/12 Wed Sunset Concert Series Sunset Plaza 6-8 
7/13 Thurs Sunset Concert Series Sunset Plaza 6-8 
7/19 Wed Sunset Concert Series Sunset Plaza 6-8 
7/20 Thurs Sunset Concert Series Sunset Plaza 6-8 
7/26 Wed Sunset Concert Series Sunset Plaza 6-8 
7/27 Thurs Sunset Concert Series Sunset Plaza 6-8 

 
8/3 Wed Sunset Concert Series Sunset Plaza 6-8 

8/4 Thurs Sunset Concert Series Sunset Plaza 6-8 

8/10 Wed Sunset Concert Series Sunset Plaza 6-8 

8/5 Thurs Sunset Concert Series Sunset Plaza 6-8 



 
Notes: 

• There will not be a Ride Fest concert 
• Red, White and Blues will be on 7/3 and 7/4 and followed by a regular Wednesday concert on 7/5. 



ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

INSR ADDL SUBR
LTR INSD WVD

PRODUCER CONTACT
NAME:

FAXPHONE
(A/C, No):(A/C, No, Ext):

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER A :

INSURED INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

POLICY NUMBER POLICY EFF POLICY EXPTYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

EACH OCCURRENCE $
DAMAGE TO RENTEDCLAIMS-MADE OCCUR $PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $
PRO-POLICY LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGGJECT 

OTHER: $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

$(Ea accident)
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $
OWNED SCHEDULED

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $AUTOS ONLY AUTOS
HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE

$AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY (Per accident)

$

OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE
CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

DED RETENTION $
PER OTH-
STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMITDESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

Y / N
N / A

(Mandatory in NH)

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE    EXPIRATION    DATE    THEREOF,    NOTICE   WILL   BE   DELIVERED   IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

THIS  IS  TO  CERTIFY  THAT  THE  POLICIES  OF  INSURANCE  LISTED  BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.    NOTWITHSTANDING  ANY  REQUIREMENT,  TERM  OR  CONDITION  OF  ANY  CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE  MAY  BE  ISSUED  OR  MAY  PERTAIN,  THE  INSURANCE  AFFORDED  BY  THE  POLICIES  DESCRIBED  HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

THIS  CERTIFICATE  IS  ISSUED  AS  A  MATTER  OF  INFORMATION  ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE  DOES  NOT  AFFIRMATIVELY  OR  NEGATIVELY  AMEND,  EXTEND  OR  ALTER  THE  COVERAGE  AFFORDED  BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.    THIS  CERTIFICATE  OF  INSURANCE  DOES  NOT  CONSTITUTE  A  CONTRACT  BETWEEN  THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT:    If  the  certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If  SUBROGATION  IS  WAIVED,  subject  to  the  terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.ACORD 25 (2016/03)

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

$

$

$

$

$

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

6/29/2022

22543

Mountain Village Promotional Association
113 Lost Creek Lane Ste A
Mountain Village, CO 81435

A 1,000,000

X CP3308544 7/16/2022 7/16/2023 300,000

1,000,000
2,000,000
2,000,000

HOST LIQUOR Included

1,000,000A
CU3308545 7/16/2022 7/16/2023 1,000,000

10,000

Town of Mountain Village is listed as additional insured with regards to general liability.

Town of Mountain Village
455 Mountain Village Blvd. Suite A
Mountain Village, CO 81435

TELLMOU-04 KATIES

Home Loan & Investment Company
205 North 4th Street
Grand Junction, CO 81501

Matthew L.  Hall

matth@hlic.com

Secura Insurance Company

X
X

X

X

X

ACORD" 
I ~ 

I 

~ 

□ □ 
~ 

~ 

~ □ □ 
~ 

~ ~ 

~ ~ 

~ ~ 

~ H 
I I 

I I I 

□ 

I 



MONTH
Monthly 
Change YTD MONTH

Monthly 
Change YTD Variance Variance %

TV Residential Subscribers 0 0 6 0 (6) -100.0%

Fiber Video * 639 (5) 610 79 29 4.8%

TV Bulk Subscribers 567 0 567 (5) 0 0.0%

Fiber Commercial * 30 0 20 0 10 50.0%

TV Inactive Subscribers 5 (2) 13 (11) (8) -61.5%

Cable Modem Residential Cable Modem Subscribers 542 (36) 688 (6) (146) -21.2%

Cable Modem Business Net Service Subscribers 24 1 30 1 (6) -20.0%

Cable Modem Hospitality Subscribers 218 0 269 0 (51) -19.0%

Dark Fiber Transport 4 0 8 0 (4) -50.0%

Fiber Hospitality Subscribers 8 0 8 0 0 0.0%

Fiber Residential Subscribers 698 26 500 53 198 39.6%

Phone Subscribers 41 (1) 48 (1) (7) -14.58%

Occupancy Rate    % 99.09% 0.00% 98.86% 99.55% 0.00% 99.63% -0.77% -0.8%

# Vacated Units  2 0 34 3 0 27 7 25.9%

# Work Orders Completed  28 11 233 9 (3) 174 59 33.9%

# on Waiting List      178 (11) 222 (5) (44) -19.8%

Service Calls 538 (229) 10,648 766 (415) 11,675 (1,027) -8.8%

Truck Rolls 85 (340) 4,855 164 (373) 5,062 (207) -4.1%

Snow Fall        Inches 26 10 148 63 62 265 (117) -44.2%

Snow Removal - Streets & Prkg Lots  Hours 619 359 3,319 938 846 3,500 (181) -5.2%

Roadway Maintenance      Hours 3 (45) 2,227 8 (271) 2,565 (338) -13.2%

Water Billed Consumption       Gal. 39,236,000 9,984,000 222,248,000 43,794,000 21,488,000 227,681,000 (5,433,000) -2.4%

Sewage Treatment       Gal. na NA 78,115,000 6,131,000 2,711,000 120,016,000 (41,901,000) -34.9%

# Infants Actual Occupancy 4.83 (0.17) 2.77 (5.71) 2.06 74.4%

# Toddlers Actual Occupancy 9.00 (2.47) 6.01 (3.99) 2.99 49.8%

# Preschoolers Actual Occupancy 8.83 (0.88) 9.54 (3.65) (0.71) -7.4%

GPG Parking Utilization (% of total # of spaces occupied) 64.9% 46.00% 46.4% 62.00% 43.20% 44.8% 1.6% 3.6%

HPG Parking Utilization (% of total # of spaces occupied) 69.2% 47.20% 44.8% 64.60% 50.60% 44.0% 0.8% 1.8%

Parking Utilization (% of total # of spaces occupied) 63.5% 38.80% 49.3% 64.40% 40.60% 46.8% 2.5% 5.3%

Bus Routes   # of Passengers 5,435 1,596 58,306 2,766 466 36,158 22,148 61.3%

Paid Parking Revenues $44,501 $31,349 $557,944 $44,690 $23,068 $445,059 $112,885 25.4%

FT Year Round Head Count 87 2 81 0 6 7.4%

Seasonal Head Count (FT & PT) 1 0 1 1 0 0.0%

PT Year Round Head Count 12 0 14 0 (2) -14.3%

Gondola FT YR, Seasonal, PT YR Head Count 52 (1) 54 (4) (2) -3.7%

Total Employees 151 0 157 (3) (6) -3.8%

Gondola Overtime Paid      Hours 598 227 3,890 239 (1) 3,617 273 7.5%

Other Employee Overtime Paid      236 51 1,357 98 (79) 836 521 62.3%

# New Hires Total New Hires 4 (16) 93 5 (9) 62 31 50.0%

# Terminations 3 2 72 5 (4) 66 6 9.1%

# Workmen Comp Claims 0 (2) 13 0 0 11 2 18.2%

Workmen Comp Claims Costs $0 ($49,842) $59,251 $0 $0 $23,527 $35,724 151.8%

Town Hosted Meetings 5 0 80 6 0 62 18 29.0%

Email Correspondence Sent 10 (7) 230 18 (4) 224 6 2.7%

E-mail List # 8,400 106 8,163 (30) 237 2.9%

Ready-Op Subscribers 2,111 8 2,075 13 36 1.7%

News Articles 31 18 253 27 6 284 (31) -10.9%

Press Releases Sent 5 4 50 1 (3) 43 7 16.3%

Gondola  # of Passengers 320,492 260,190 3,061,591 276,019 224,486 2,805,713 255,878 9.1%

Chondola  # of Passengers 29,303 29,303 122,170 29,522 29,522 114,949 7,221 6.3%

RETA fees collected by TMVOA 458,285$     (361,615)$      13,147,143$   1,415,400$    475,822$    17,057,535$   ($3,910,392) -22.9%

Communications & Business Development

Public Works Sewage information unavailable at time of publishing.

Business and Government Activity Report

For the month ending: December 31st
2022 2021 YTD or MTD Variance

Activity
Cable/Internet *Fiber Video was transitioned over from TV Residential Subscribers over the course of the 2021 calendar year

Village Court Apartments

Child Development Fund

Transportation and Parking 2022 Parking revenues include $118,566 for special event parking, not contracted in 2021

Human Resources 

Part Time EE's:   Council (7), Judge (1), Child Care (7), IT Tech Help (1), Police Reserves (4) MARRS: 7 employees  Seasonal EE's:  Gondola Ops and Plaza 
Services  New Hires:  1 Police Officer,  3 Seasonal Gondola Ops   Terms: 1 Building Inspector, 1 Broadband Anaylst, 1 Seasonal Gondola Ops (1 took another 
job in the area, 1 wasn't a good fit, 1 personal/family reasons)

Gondola and RETA

Agenda Item 6aA
 

" 



MONTH
Monthly 
Change YTD MONTH

Monthly 
Change YTD Variance Variance %

Business and Government Activity Report

For the month ending: December 31st
2022 2021 YTD or MTD Variance

Activity
Cable/Internet *Fiber Video was transitioned over from TV Residential Subscribers over the course of the 2021 calendar year

Calls for Service # 329 251 4,301 546 198 5,676 (1,375) -24.2%

Investigations # 20 12 153 17 9 159 (6) -3.8%

Alarms # 8 (6) 156 13 (1) 189 (33) -17.5%

Arrests # 4 2 20 0 0 10 10 100.0%

Summons # 2 1 27 1 (1) 14 13 92.9%

Traffic Contacts # 14 8 55 0 (3) 116 (61) -52.6%

Traffic Tickets Written   # 2 2 9 0 (2) 14 (5) -35.7%

Parking Tickets Written      # 431 192 3,903 651 325 4,731 (828) -17.5%

Administrative Dismissals     # 1 (1) 45 5 2 55 (10) -18.2%

Community Development Revenues $178,800 ($43,821) $2,165,710 $28,730 ($263,208) $2,455,004 ($289,294) -11.8%

# Permits Issued        17 (28) 338 32 (31) 466 (128) -27.5%

Valuation of Mtn Village Remodel/New/Additions Permits $1,813,247 ($3,328,888) $73,806,042 $304,900 ($8,347,150) $77,849,009 ($4,042,967) -5.2%

Valuation Mtn Village Electric/Plumbing/Other Permits $246,461 $147,692 $4,506,163 $59,034 ($124,970) $4,570,621 ($64,458) -1.4%

Valuation Telluride Electric/Plumbing Permits $234,047 ($120,868) $3,896,877 $202,805 ($719,531) $4,339,373 ($442,496) -10.2%

# Inspections Completed           376 (121) 4,463 408 (210) 4,350 113 2.6%

# Design Review/Zoning Agenda Items   7 (6) 243 19 9 167 76 45.5%

# Staff  Review Approvals 25 (13) 510 13 (32) 616 (106) -17.2%

Snow Removal  Plaza                 Hours 360 219 1,310 410 375 1,299 12 0.9%

Plaza Maintenance  Hours 791 505 6,129 521 133 6,654 (525) -7.9%

Lawn Care  Hours 0 0 1,149 0 (88) 1,014 136 13.4%

Plant Care  Hours 0 (30) 2,089 15 (5) 3,808 (1,719) -45.1%

Irrigation  Hours 0 0 537 0 0 869 (332) -38.2%

TMV Trash Collection  Hours 107 20 1,223 89 25 1,256 (33) -2.6%

Christmas Decorations  Hours 241 NA 2,050 127 (400) 1,763 287 16.3%

Residential Refuse Pound 69,118 NA 1,165,831 52,987 NA 941,871 223,960 23.8%

Residential Recycle Pound 25,353 NA 438,962 19,778 NA 357,444 81,518 22.8%

Diversion Rate % 26.84% NA 27.35% 27.18% NA 27.51% -0.16% -0.6%

# Preventive Maintenance Performed 17 (1) 208 22 4 222 (14) -6.3%

# Repairs Completed              34 2 333 39 10 296 37 12.5%

Special Projects 3 2 24 2 1 18 6 33.3%

# Roadside Assists 0 0 6 1 1 3 3 100.0%

# Other Business Licenses Issued 22 1 1,205 19 (4) 1,277 (72) -5.6%

# Privately Licensed Rentals 1 (3) 116 6 5 102 14 13.7%

# Property Management Licensed Rentals 11 6 480 4 1 478 2 0.4%

# Unique VRBO Property Advertisements Listings for MV 613 0 512 0 101 19.7%

% of Paperless Billing Customers 63.02% -1.08% 56.96% 0.89% 6.1% 10.7%

# of TMV AR Bills Processed 2,369 71 27,679 2,207 38 26,369 1310 5.0%

$557,186 57.4% $534,617 76.7% $19,380 50.0%

359,175        37.0% 140,950        20.2% 14,948           38.6%

11,921         1.2% 8,199           1.2% 1,324             3.4% Other Statistics
1,008           0.1% 6,361           0.9% -                     0.0% Population (estimated) 1,434

41,283         4.3% 6,759           1.0% 3,109             8.0% (Active) Registered Voters 873

970,573$      100.0% 696,886$      100.0% 38,761$         100.0% Assessed Property Valuation 326,965,182

$3,100 23.5% 1,114,283$   64.8% ($324,413) 21.5%

3,973           30.1% 519,046        30.2% 114,375         -7.6%

522              4.0% 21,966         1.3% (426,461)        28.2%

14                0.1% 7,383           0.4% (880,940)        58.3%

5,571           42.3% 56,722         3.3% 5,148             -0.3%

$13,180 100.0% 1,719,400$   100.0% (1,512,291)$   100.0%

Police

Building/Planning

Plaza Services Refuse and recycle statistics come from an outside source and are not always available at the time of publishing

60+ Days

Vehicle Maintenance

Finance 
Business License totals include zero fee licenses created for sales tax remittances only, but licensees that come through the state system have been 
eliminated.

Accounts Receivable 

TMV Operating Receivables 
(includes Gondola funding)

Utilities - Broadband and 
Water/Sewer

VCA - Village Court 
Apartments

Current

30+ Days

90+ Days

over 120 days

Total

Other Billings - CDF, 
Construction Parking

Total

Change Since Last Month -
Increase (Decrease) in AR 

Current

30+ Days

60+ Days

90+ Days

over 120 days

Total All AR

A
 

" 

1
---1

----

1
---1

----

~
 

t2.lm
 
~
 

~
 

~
 

f:E
--lm

 
I@

@
 

1-
1-

1 
~
 

---+
---+

---~
---



Memorandum  

To: Town Council 
From: Lizbeth Lemley, Julie Vergari  
Date: January 13, 2023 
Re: Town of Mountain Village Financial Statements through November 2022 

 Mountain Village Financials Statements through November 2022 

General Fund Summary 
The November financial statements as presented reflect the 2022 revised budget approved in December 2022.  
Also included are 2021, 2020 and 2019 actuals for comparison.   

As of November 30, 2022, general fund revenues of $16.0 million exceeded budget by nearly $3.3 Million or 26%.  
Revenues surpassed 2021, 2020 and 2019 revenues by 16%, 50% and 48% respectively.  These increases continue 
to be the result of significant growth in sales tax collections.  Sales taxes collected through this period were 38% 
over original budget (4.5% over the revised budget) and 30% over 2021 collections.   

General Fund operating expenditures through November totaled $9.5 million and were $943,405 or 9% under 
budget.  We continued to see savings in personnel expenditures due to unfilled positions as well as savings due to 
delays in completion of budgeted projects as a result of labor and supply chain issues.  Additional discussion of 
these variances is included on the General Fund Revenue and Expenditure Report in this packet. 

Year to date, the General Fund Revenue and Expenditure report reflects a surplus of $2.5 million and unreserved 
fund balance of $12.8 million. 

Transfers to other funds include: 

Fund This Month YTD Budget YTD Actual Budget Variance
Capital Projects Fund  (From GF) 32,492$      1,137,000$    1,074,489$   (62,511) 
Child Development Fund   36,579$      195,546$       251,849$     56,303 
Conference Center Subsidy 30,327$      309,981$       257,113$     (52,868) 
Affordable Housing Development Fund 
(Monthly Sales Tax Allocation) 24,637$      923,712$       888,030$     (35,682) 
Vehicle & Equipment Acquisition Fund  71,693$      376,750$       333,518$     (43,232) 

Agenda Item 6b



Income transfers from other funds include: 
 

Fund This Month YTD Budget YTD Actual Budget Variance
Overhead allocation from Broadband, W/S, 
Gondola, VCA and Parking Services 3,589$        620,886$       625,559$     4,673                    
*Tourism Fund 2,467$        100,814$       100,035$     (778)                      

Debt Service Fund (Specific Ownership 
Taxes) 1,828$        22,917$         19,873$       (3,044)                   

*This transfer is comprised of  administrative fees, interest, and penalties collected.

 
 

Vehicle and Equipment Acquisition Fund – No Fund Income Statement Attached 
The sale of 5 shuttle vehicles and other auctioned vehicles has been recorded. A Plaza Sweeper was 
purchased, the vehicle maintenance shop scanner was updated, a new police car was purchased, the 
purchase of a building maintenance vehicle was made, and the Bobcat leases were paid. 
 
Capital Projects Fund – No Fund Income Statement Attached 
There has been $37,308 spent to date for safety improvements and $1,525,227 has been spent on the 
maintenance shop remodel. 
 
Historical Museum Fund – No Fund Income Statement Attached 
$108,460 in property taxes were collected and $106,284 has been tendered to the historical museum. The 
county treasurer retained $2,176 in treasurer’s fees.  
 
Mortgage Assistance Fund – No Fund Income Statement Attached 
A note of $44,000 was repaid and an appreciation share of $17,025 was received through this period. 
 
Sales Tax 
Sales taxes of $7.9 million are 30.3% over 2021 through this period and are over the revised budget 4.5%.  
 

 
 

 

Reta il 
18% 

9,000,000.00 

8,000,000.00 

7,000,000.00 

6,000,000 .00 

5,000,000.00 

4,000,000.00 

3,000,000.00 

2,000,000.00 

1,000,000.00 

0.00 

20n YTD Taxes by Category 

Unclassified 
6% 

Restaurant/Bar 
24% 

Lo dg ing 
46% 

Sales Tax by Category 2017-2022 

9,000,000.00 

8,000,000 .00 

7,000,000 .00 

6,000,000.00 

5,000,000.00 

4,000,000.00 

3,000,000 .00 

2,000,000 .00 

1,000,000.00 

0.00 
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 

■ Restaurant/Bar ■ Lodging ■ Ra ail ■ Utiities ■ Unclassified 

Sales Tax Collections 2017-2022 by Category 

--Restaurant/Ber 

--Lodging 

--Raail 

--Uti ities 

--U nclassffied 

--Total 

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 



November November November November November November 2022-2021 2022-2017
4.5% Tax 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 % change % change

Restaurant/Bar 12,220.98       16,247.15   8,040.58     18,347.92   19,806.49   19,040.35   -3.87% 55.80%
Lodging 21,427.55       19,713.23   16,286.96   43,237.13   80,507.19   63,594.90   -21.01% 196.79%
Retail 16,282.60 35,567.64 51,105.28 63,671.05 69,749.58 80,040.13 14.75% 391.57%
Utilities 17,427.10       21,392.90   18,795.23   17,480.34   19,527.77   25,474.76   30.45% 46.18%
Unclassified 10,199.13       15,579.06   14,028.85   15,672.87   23,421.36   28,540.50   21.86% 179.83%
Total 77,557.36 108,499.98 108,256.90 158,409.31 213,012.39 216,690.64 1.73% 179.39%

YTD YTD YTD YTD YTD YTD 2022-2021 2022-2017
4.5% Tax 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 % change % change

Restaurant/Bar 829,542.49 876,381.60 980,416.47 783,383.50 1,082,826.91 1,395,560.76 28.88% 68.23%
Lodging 1,614,673.51 1,760,998.55 1,989,138.91 1,922,812.45 3,150,724.75 3,878,697.53 23.10% 140.22%
Retail 653,241.79 694,952.22 854,979.48 886,840.00 1,289,983.37 1,677,537.47 30.04% 156.80%
Utilities 211,438.83 198,603.45 212,694.09 185,582.68 192,003.52 220,763.69 14.98% 4.41%
Unclassified 202,891.59 225,221.04 265,956.64 253,708.78 368,061.05 752,629.07 104.48% 270.95%
Total 3,511,788.21 3,756,156.86 4,303,185.59 4,032,327.41 6,083,599.60 7,925,188.52 30.27% 125.67%

Tax Collection Summary

 
 

 
Tourism Fund 
Business license fees of $381,833 are over budget (5.4%). Penalties of $27,211 were collected and transferred 
to the General Fund. 
 
2022 restaurant taxes totaling $619,931 have been collected and $607,532 has been tendered to the airline 
guarantee program. $3.44 million in lodging taxes have been collected and $1.68 million has been tendered to 
the airline guarantee program.  
 
Lodging taxes are over prior year by 27% and restaurant taxes are over prior year by 28.8%. 
   

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2021 2022 Budget
Activity         

(4%)
Activity         

(4%)
 Activity           

(4%)
 Activity           

(4%)
 Activity           

(4%)
Var % Budget (1)  Var %

January 273,707           300,246             325,337          271,887                511,382          88.09% 339,727          33.57%
February 262,096           310,947             334,936          358,584                681,869          90.16% 448,589          34.21%
March 322,588           401,256             212,698          476,051                734,926          54.38% 595,982          18.91%
April 18,205             17,822              855                40,874                  32,912            -19.48% 50,899           -54.65%
May 18,134             24,335              784                51,474                  81,767            58.85% 64,353           21.30%
June 137,760           139,428             55,426            229,731                242,622          5.61% 288,248          -18.81%
July 170,730           196,062             242,927          412,650                372,962          -9.62% 514,333          -37.90%
August 136,080           160,993             226,805          336,701                296,556          -11.92% 422,056          -42.32%
September 171,040           158,287             173,096          323,713                303,890          -6.12% 406,197          -33.67%
October 34,696             46,789              94,985            133,675                123,756          -7.42% 167,649          -35.47%
November 17,307             14,761              38,597            71,435                  55,744            -21.97% 89,094           -59.83%
December 283,658           295,803             266,888          548,178                -                    -100.00% 683,144          NA
Total 1,846,001      2,066,729        1,973,334     3,254,951           3,438,386      5.64% 4,070,268     -18.38%
Tax Base 46,150,032    51,668,223      49,333,357   81,373,770         85,959,653    101,756,700 

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2021 2022 Budget
Activity       

(2%)
Activity       

(2%)
 Activity (2%)  Activity (2%)   Activity 

(2%) 
Var % Budget (1)  Var %

January 57,188             62,864              73,576            45,706                  76,624            67.65% 56,728           25.97%
February 63,140             66,720              76,476            59,659                  104,748          75.58% 74,046           29.31%
March 75,202             87,671              50,565            82,463                  126,092          52.91% 102,350          18.83%
April 7,119               7,364                85                  5,733                    4,195              -26.82% 7,115             -69.61%
May 4,838               4,299                553                6,196                    5,901              -4.75% 7,690             -30.31%
June 39,048             38,614              9,040              55,645                  60,810            9.28% 68,990           -13.45%
July 46,603             60,113              37,654            66,892                  74,492            11.36% 83,023           -11.45%
August 39,031             44,673              37,777            61,744                  67,110            8.69% 76,634           -14.19%
September 36,920             42,922              32,718            62,772                  64,352            2.52% 77,473           -20.39%
October 12,695             17,657              19,674            25,593                  27,132            6.01% 31,580           -16.40%
November 7,221               3,503                8,215              8,777                    8,475              -3.43% 10,783           -27.23%
December 53,383             57,178              39,959            72,532                  -                    -100.00% 87,318           NA
Total 442,390         493,579           386,293        553,712              619,931         11.96% 683,729        -10.29%
Tax Base 22,119,524    24,678,936      19,314,627   27,685,593         30,996,543    34,186,450   

Town of Mountain Village Colorado Lodging Tax Summary

Town of Mountain Village Colorado Restaurant/Bar Tax Summary

 



Town of Mountain Village Monthly Revenue and Expenditure Report
November 2022

2021 2020 2019

 Actual YTD 
 Budget 

YTD 
 Budget 

Variance  
Budget 

Variance 
 Annual 
Budget 

 Budget 
Balance  Actual YTD  Actual YTD  Actual YTD 

($) (%)

Revenues
Charges for Services 662,745$             383,547$         279,198$     72.79% 532,571$            (130,174)$        713,534$           280,096$           344,283$           
Contributions 86,546                 118,895           (32,349)        -27.21% 173,340              86,794              80,002               145,915             37,412               
Fines and Forfeits 84,298                 10,571             73,727         697.45% 89,526                5,228                2,898                 67,100               9,889                 
Interest Income 145,247               92,705             52,542         56.68% 289,000              143,753            (37,020)              181,096             257,960             
Intergovernmental 394,469               351,357           43,112         12.27% 386,310              (8,159)              502,415             453,171             535,171             
Licenses and Permits 613,592               402,151           211,441       52.58% 508,900              (104,692)          637,071             364,127             404,511             
Miscellaneous Revenues 127,750               50,872             76,878         151.12% 96,214                (31,536)            243,874             139,265             74,087               
Taxes and Assessments 13,858,953          11,267,161      2,591,792    23.00% 14,664,074         805,121            11,678,405        9,009,879          9,123,804          

Total Revenues 15,973,600          12,677,259      3,296,341    26.00% 16,739,935         766,335            13,821,179        10,640,649        10,787,117        

Operating Expenses
Legislation & Council 136,318               123,385           12,933         10.48% 141,201              4,883                103,353             59,563               69,662               
Town Manager 381,587               415,255           (33,668)        -8.11% 452,870              71,283              358,171             272,909             240,093             
Town Clerk's Office 267,589               310,973           (43,384)        -13.95% 344,768              77,179              262,751             303,794             351,267             
Finance 1,012,627            1,012,704        (77)               -0.01% 1,123,709           111,082            875,057             822,107             763,079             
Technical 439,627               499,541           (59,914)        -11.99% 548,211              108,584            344,198             390,230             351,931             
Human Resources 415,506               423,515           (8,009)          -1.89% 465,134              49,628              314,199             321,603             296,334             
Town Attorney 383,073               462,418           (79,345)        -17.16% 552,776              169,703            209,229             297,366             400,546             
Communications and Business Development 464,215               500,336           (36,121)        -7.22% 545,821              81,606              448,671             904,213             475,107             
Municipal Court 33,197                 34,270             (1,073)          -3.13% 37,439                4,242                22,542               27,052               26,604               
Police Department 952,613               1,014,039        (61,426)        -6.06% 1,174,694           222,081            905,507             858,515             857,234             
Community Services 42,297                 58,540             (16,243)        -27.75% 63,933                21,636              52,087               45,774               48,256               
Community Grants and Contributions 133,650               133,650           -                   0.00% 133,650              (1)                     112,338             110,745             114,863             
Roads and Bridges 974,850               1,073,955        (99,105)        -9.23% 1,191,036           216,186            889,511             695,386             995,847             
Vehicle Maintenance 461,532               462,577           (1,045)          -0.23% 522,740              61,208              410,780             365,824             391,135             
Municipal Bus 253,802               283,213           (29,411)        -10.38% 308,353              54,551              204,631             274,400             217,820             
Employee Shuttle -                           -                      -                   NA -                         -                       28,324               38,095               45,425               
Parks & Recreation 453,141               492,657           (39,516)        -8.02% 562,220              109,079            389,870             333,367             406,584             
Plaza Services 1,256,699            1,454,081        (197,382)      -13.57% 1,675,041           418,342            1,165,385          1,038,100          1,155,424          
Public Refuse Removal 59,118                 61,032             (1,914)          -3.14% 68,299                9,181                57,489               53,426               58,336               
Building/Facility Maintenance 272,394               259,113           13,281         5.13% 362,282              89,888              237,315             211,130             171,716             
Building Division 402,899               502,254           (99,355)        -19.78% 570,919              168,020            411,277             292,605             236,958             
Housing Division Office 53,730                 131,742           (78,012)        -59.22% 171,476              117,746            60,292               19,612               19,305               
Planning and Zoning Division 643,146               727,765           (84,619)        -11.63% 955,968              312,822            483,015             235,318             307,418             
Contingency -                           -                      -                   NA 95,000                95,000              -                         -                         -                         

Total Operating Expenses 9,493,610            10,437,015      (943,405)      -9.04% 12,067,541         2,573,931         8,345,992          7,971,134          8,000,944          

Surplus / Deficit 6,479,990            2,240,244        4,239,746    189.25% 4,672,394           (1,807,596)       5,475,187          2,669,515          2,786,173          

Capital Outlay 1,996,876            2,223,417        (226,541)      -10.19% 2,421,000           424,124            226,182             21,041               235,925             

Surplus / Deficit 4,483,114            16,827             4,466,287    26542.44% 2,251,394           (2,231,720)       5,249,005          2,648,474          2,550,248          

Other Sources and Uses
Sale of Assets 558                      -                      558              NA -                         (558)                 -                         2,500                 12,496               
Insurance Claim Proceeds 11,449                 -                      11,449         NA -                         (11,449)            13,410               -                         -                         
Transfer (To) From Affordable Housing (888,030)              (923,712)         35,682         -3.86% (1,007,686)         (119,656)          (675,222)            (448,056)            (478,734)            
Transfer (To) From Affordable Housing-Other -                           -                      -                   NA (53,500)              (53,500)            -                         -                         -                         
Transfer (To) From Broadband -                           -                      -                   NA (209,020)            (209,020)          -                         -                         -                         
Transfer (To) From Child Development (204,722)              (195,546)         (9,176)          4.69% (217,732)            (13,010)            (125,497)            (95,689)              (90,452)              
Transfer (To) From Capital Projects (1,074,489)           (1,137,000)      62,511         -5.50% (1,137,000)         (62,511)            (66,801)              (51,701)              (20,426)              
Transfer (To) From Debt Service 19,873                 22,917             (3,044)          -13.28% 25,000                5,127                22,312               (668,905)            24,890               
Transfer (To) From Overhead Allocation 625,559               620,886           4,673           0.75% 625,469              (90)                   564,006             562,296             583,636             
Transfer (To) From Parking Services -                           -                      -                   NA -                         -                       -                         -                         -                         
Transfer (To) From Conference Center (257,113)              (309,981)         52,868         -17.06% (314,565)            (57,452)            (233,360)            (211,666)            (197,239)            
Transfer (To) From Tourism 100,035               100,814           (778)             -0.77% 337,084              237,049            87,140               61,557               16,218               
Transfer (To) From Vehicle/Equipment (333,518)              (376,750)         43,232         -11.47% (376,750)            (43,232)            (273,973)            (62,447)              (105,767)            
Transfer (To) From Water/Sewer -                           -                      -                   NA -                         -                       -                         -                         -                         

Total Other Sources and Uses (2,000,398)           (2,198,372)      197,975       -9.01% (2,328,700)         (328,302)          (687,985)            (912,111)            (255,378)            

Surplus / Deficit 2,482,716$          (2,181,545)$    4,664,262$  -213.81% (77,306)$            (2,560,022)$     4,561,020$        1,736,363$        2,294,870$        

General Fund

2022



2021 2020 2019

 Actual YTD 
 Budget 

YTD 
 Budget 

Variance  
Budget 

Variance 
 Annual 
Budget 

 Budget 
Balance  Actual YTD  Actual YTD  Actual YTD 

($) (%)General Fund

2022

Beginning Fund Balance Components Actual YTD Annual Budget
Emergency Reserve 4,223,639$          4,223,639$         
Unreserved 10,295,985          11,525,733         

Beginning Fund Balance 14,519,624$        15,749,372$       

YTD Ending Fund Balance Components
Emergency Reserve 4,223,639$          4,223,639$         
Unreserved 12,778,701          11,448,427         

Ending Fund Balance 17,002,340$           15,672,066$       

Revenues

Top Ten Budget Variances 

Over Budget

Building/Facility Maintenance - $13,281 Over budget in boiler maintenance, maintenance on the new Prospect Plaza space, and Plaza repairs.

Under Budget
Plaza Services -  $197,382  Under budget in personnel costs, Covid related expenses, landscape/irrigation R&M, paver/planter repair.  

Road & Bridge - $99,105 Under budget in personnel costs and paving repairs.
Planning and Zoning - $84,619  Under budget in personnel costs, forestry management expenses, and printing & binding fees. 
Town Attorney - $79,345 Under budget in legal expenses.
Housing Office - $78,012 Under budget in personnel costs, marketing and professional services.
Police Department - $61,426 Under budget in personnel and software costs.
Technical - $59,914 Under budget in personnel costs, software and support expenses.

Charges for Services - Development DRB and planning fees of $424,150 exceed budget by $193,300 year to date but are trailing prior year $59,000.  

Licenses & Permits -  Construction permits are over budget by $114,300 or 63%.  Other permit revenue is over budget by $26,700.  Construction parking fees through this period 
have been strong, coming in $16,500 over budget.  

Taxes & Assessments - 99% of the annual budget for property taxes has been collected.  Specific Ownership taxes are over budget $16,700and are $4,900 less than prior year.    
Sales tax is 38% over original budget.  Construction use tax collections are 35% over budget but 9% under last years collections.  

Intergovernmental - Intergovernmental revenues are over budget in Road & Bridge taxes by $35,000.

Building Division - $99,355 Under budget  due to solar and environmental incentives.

Fines & Forfeitures - Fines are over budget due to a significant building fine. 
Investment Income - Investment income is increasing due to increasing interest rates, and is over the annual budget by $52,500. 

Contributions - TMVOA roof rebate contributions and environmental services contributions have been received.  

Miscellaneous Revenues - Plaza and vending carts rents are over budget $23,000. This is mainly due to the new Oak Street Lease. A large donation to the Police Department was 
made and is in this category.

Legislation & Council - $12,933 Over budget due to appraisal fees and travel/training expenses offset by personnel savings in group and workers compensation insurance.



Town of Mountain Village Monthly Revenue and Expenditure Report
November 2022

2021 2020 2019
 Actual 
YTD 

 Budget 
YTD 

 Budget 
Variance  

Budget 
Variance 

 Annual 
Budget 

 Budget 
Balance 

 Actual 
YTD 

 Actual 
YTD 

 Actual 
YTD 

($) (%)
Tourism Fund

Revenues
Business License Fees 368,833$      350,029$      18,804$        5.37% 362,500$      (6,333)$           345,962$     322,714$     318,498$     
Lodging Taxes - Condos/Homes 2,360,962     2,327,922     33,040           1.42% 2,780,569     419,607           1,845,758    1,019,105    946,092       
Lodging Taxes - Hotels 1,077,424     1,059,608     17,816           1.68% 1,289,700     212,276           857,950       684,206       820,899       
Lodging Taxes - Prior Year 5,430             4,042             1,389             34.36% 4,042             (1,389)             6,678           3,286           5,311           
Penalties and Interest 31,026           21,000           10,026           47.74% 24,000           (7,026)             16,114         12,148         8,489           
Restaurant Taxes 619,226        596,411        22,815           3.83% 683,729        64,503             480,529       346,249       435,901       
Restaurant Taxes - Prior Year 2,832             2,707             125                4.62% 2,707             (125)                 84                1,103           1,779           

Total Revenues 4,465,733     4,361,719     104,015        2.38% 5,147,246     681,513           3,553,074    2,388,811    2,536,969    

Tourism Funding
Additional Funding -                    -                    -                    NA -                    -                       -                   -                   46,719         
General Operating Expense -                    -                    -                    NA 118,161        118,161           -                   -                   -                   
Airline Guaranty Funding 2,297,087     2,249,006     48,081           2.14% 2,669,119     372,033           1,799,090    1,176,637    1,297,354    
Marketing Funding 1,246,957     801,436        445,521        55.59% 1,500,000     253,043           -                   -                   -                   
MTI Funding -                    -                    -                    NA -                    -                       1,666,845    1,148,117    1,176,678    

Total Tourism Funding 3,544,044     3,050,442     493,602        16.18% 4,287,280     743,236           3,465,934    2,324,754    2,520,751    

Surplus / Deficit 921,689        1,311,277     (389,588)       -29.71% 859,966        (61,723)           87,140         64,057         16,218         

Administrative Fees
Audit Fees 2,500             2,500             -                    0.00% 2,500             -                       -                   2,500           -                   

Total Administrative Fees 2,500             2,500             -                    0.00% 2,500             -                       -                   2,500           -                   

Surplus / Deficit 919,189        857,466        (389,588)       -45.43% 857,466        (61,723)           87,140         61,557         16,218         

Other Sources and Uses
Transfer (To) From Other Funds (100,035)       (100,814)       778                -0.77% (337,084)       (237,049)         (87,140)        (61,557)        (16,218)        

Total Other Sources and Uses (100,035)       (100,814)       778                -0.77% (337,084)       (237,049)         (87,140)        (61,557)        (16,218)        

Surplus / Deficit 819,154        756,652        -                    520,382        (298,772)         -                   -                   -                   

Beginning Fund Balance -                    -                    -                    -                   -                   -                   

Ending Fund Balance 819,154$      756,652$      520,382$      -$                 -$                 -$                 

2022



November 2022
2021 2020 2019

 Actual YTD  Budget YTD 
 Budget 

Variance  
Budget 

Variance 
 Annual 
Budget 

 Budget 
Balance  Actual YTD  Actual YTD  Actual YTD 

($) (%)
Parking Services Fund

Revenues
Fines and Forfeits 46,770               35,724               11,046               30.92% 45,000               (1,770)                44,369               20,995               45,065               
Gondola Parking Garage 120,871             102,000             18,871               18.50% 110,000             (10,871)              121,378             109,581             86,739               
Heritage Parking Garage 229,018             219,904             9,114                 4.14% 230,000             982                    235,897             202,151             219,630             
Parking in Lieu Buyouts 62,500               -                         62,500               NA 62,500               -                         13,000               130,000             -                         
Parking Meter Revenues 33,100               26,773               6,327                 23.63% 30,000               (3,100)                33,414               20,544               22,607               
Parking Permits 11,555               10,518               1,037                 9.86% 12,000               445                    9,685                 7,450                 9,380                 
EV Station Revenues 1,373                 -                         1,373                 NA 1,500                 127                    -                         -                         -                         
Grant Revenues -                         -                         -                         NA 18,000               18,000               -                         -                         -                         
Special Event Parking 118,566             -                         118,566             NA 140,000             21,434               -                         -                         135,833             

Total Revenues 623,753             394,919             228,834             57.94% 649,000             25,247               457,743             490,721             519,254             

Operating Expenses
Other Operating Expenses 67,517               67,000               517                    0.77% 80,159               12,642               13,274               12,507               104,689             
Personnel Expenses 86,755               135,883             (49,128)              -36.15% 157,438             70,683               125,921             111,064             119,031             
Gondola Parking Garage 42,826               62,987               (20,161)              -32.01% 90,734               47,908               83,077               39,030               52,991               
Surface Lots 69,915               65,900               4,015                 6.09% 65,900               (4,015)                12,307               18,655               20,405               
Heritage Parking Garage 81,279               90,437               (9,158)                -10.13% 99,130               17,851               99,560               71,848               69,560               
Meadows Parking 1,000                 917                    83                      9.05% 1,000                 -                         1,000                 1,000                 1,016                 

Total Operating Expenses 349,292             423,124             (73,832)              -17.45% 494,361             145,069             335,139             254,104             367,692             

Surplus / Deficit 274,461             154,639             302,666             195.72% 154,639             (119,822)            122,604             236,617             151,562             

Capital
Capital 429,092             430,000             (908)                   -0.21% 452,600             23,508               14,961               5,415                 94,266               

Surplus / Deficit (154,631)            (275,361)            303,574             -110.25% (297,961)            (143,330)            107,643             231,202             57,296               

Other Sources and Uses
Sale of Assets -                         -                         -                         NA -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         
Insurance Proceeds -                         -                         -                         NA -                         -                         15,345               -                         -                         
Overhead Allocation (39,519)              (50,365)              10,846               -21.53% (50,365)              (10,846)              (28,869)              (33,620)              (41,337)              
Transfer (To) From General Fund -                         -                         -                         NA -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         

Total Other Sources and Uses (39,519)              (50,365)              10,846               -21.53% (50,365)              (10,846)              (13,524)              (33,620)              (41,337)              

Surplus / Deficit (194,150)$          (325,726)$          -$                       0.00% (348,326)$          (154,176)$          94,119$             197,582$           15,959$             

Beginning Fund Balance 521,492$           451,037$           70,455$             
Ending Fund Balance 327,342$           125,311$           202,031$           

 

2022

Parking revenues are over budget $228,834. HPG revenues are over budget 4.1% and under prior year 3%.  Parking meter (surface lots) revenues are over budget 23.63% and under prior year 2%.  GPG is 
over budget 18.5% and under prior year by less than 1%.  This is due in part to the timing of the purchase of bulk valet tickets. Parking fines are over budget and prior year. General expenses are under 
budget in personnel costs.  GPG is under budget due to supplies and asphalt repair.  Surface lots are over budget in general maintenance. HPG has budget savings in tech support, credit card processing fees, 
and maintenance. Capital costs are for EV charging station expenditures, Bobcat leases, HPG security cameras, and GPG deck resurfacing and consulting for the proposed expansion. The 2022 transfer to 
the General Fund is $39,519, which is the overhead allocation. 



Town of Mountain Village Monthly Revenue and Expenditure Report
November 2022

2021 2020 2019

 Actual YTD 
 Budget 

YTD 
 Budget 

Variance  
Budget 

Variance 
 Annual 
Budget 

 Budget 
Balance  Actual YTD  Actual YTD  Actual YTD 

($) (%)
Gondola Fund

Revenues
Event Operations Funding 11,220$           -$                    11,220$           NA -$                    (11,220)$          -$                         6,831$                 6,262$                 
Event Operations Funding - TOT 36,000             36,000             -                      0.00% 36,000             -                      -                           -                          -                          
Operations Grant Funding 196,148           196,148           -                      0.00% 196,148           -                      2,390,781            1,098,251            580,770               
Capital/MR&R Grant Funding 44,004             44,004             -                      0.00% 44,004             -                      179,009               -                          141,241               
Insurance Proceeds -                      -                      -                      NA -                      -                      6,122                   -                          -                          
Miscellaneous Revenues 95                    -                      95                    NA -                      (95)                  -                           788                     204                     
Sale of Assets -                      -                      -                      NA -                      -                      -                           -                          -                          
Van Rider Revenues 3,316               -                      3,316               NA 4,300               984                  -                           -                          -                          
TSG 1% Lift Sales 208,487           200,000           8,487               4.24% 244,899           36,412             179,491               146,951               183,520               
TMVOA Operating Contributions 3,637,232        3,719,213        (81,981)            -2.20% 4,417,138        779,906           1,118,914            2,307,983            2,623,490            
TMVOA Capital/MR&R Contributions 263,018           249,959           13,059             5.22% 249,959           (13,059)            474,170               139,809               952,892               

Total Revenues 4,399,520        4,445,324        (45,804)            -1.03% 5,192,448        792,928           4,348,487            3,700,613            4,488,379            

Operating Expenses
Overhead Allocation Transfer 32,359             50,417             (18,058)            -35.82% 55,000             22,641             28,013                 28,951                 37,628                 
MAARS 58,834             69,133             (10,299)            -14.90% 79,417             20,583             59,227                 61,711                 62,168                 
Chondola 138,198           182,624           (44,426)            -24.33% 197,624           59,426             131,095               116,799               134,752               
Grant Success Fees -                      -                      -                      NA -                      -                      -                           -                          27,001                 
Operations 2,090,542        2,083,924        6,618               0.32% 2,437,607        347,065           1,852,615            1,734,879            1,596,972            
Maintenance 1,351,406        1,336,475        14,931             1.12% 1,528,283        176,877           1,228,847            1,255,059            1,133,287            
FGOA 421,159           428,788           (7,629)              -1.78% 480,554           59,395             395,511               363,405               402,438               
Major Repairs and Replacements 223,822           273,016           (49,194)            -18.02% 273,016           49,194             253,979               139,235               1,071,245            
Contingency -                      -                      -                      NA 120,000           120,000           -                           -                          -                          

Total Operating Expenses 4,316,320        4,424,377        (108,057)          -2.44% 5,171,501        855,181           3,949,287            3,700,039            4,465,491            

Surplus / Deficit 83,200             20,947             62,253             297.19% 20,947             (62,253)            58,706                 574                     34,688                 

Capital
Capital Outlay 83,200             20,947             62,253             297.19% 20,947             (62,253)            399,200               574                     22,888                 

Surplus / Deficit -$                    -$                    -$                    NA -$                    -$                    -$                         -$                        11,800$               

 
 

2022

The gondola fund expenditures are $108,057 under budget.  MARRS operating expenditures are under budget with savings primarily in worker's compensation insurance expense 
and wages.  Chondola expenses are under budget due mainly to operations personnel costs, utilities, and the terminal rebuild project. Gondola operations is under budget in 
worker's compensation and Covid related expenses but is over budget in personnel costs.  Maintenance is under budget with savings in worker's compensation but over in contract 
labor and salaries and wages.  FGOA costs are under budget mainly in legal and shuttle expenses. MR&R expenditures were for cabin refurbs, window buffing, and station 
upgrades and is over budget due to bull wheel replacement. Capital expense was for grant funded conveyor and driveline rebuilds and a vehicle.



Town of Mountain Village Monthly Revenue and Expenditure Report
November 2022

2021 2020 2019
 Actual 
YTD 

 Budget 
YTD 

 Budget 
Variance  

Budget 
Variance 

 Annual 
Budget 

 Budget 
Balance 

 Actual 
YTD 

 Actual 
YTD 

 Actual 
YTD 

($) (%)
Child Development Fund

Revenues
Infant Care Fees 47,976$          48,217$          (241)                -0.50% 52,600$          4,624$            64,806$          46,988$          -$                    
Toddler Care Fees 101,530          92,433            9,097              9.84% 100,836          (694)                103,683          88,983            242,499          
Preschool Fees 116,119          126,453          (10,334)           -8.17% 137,949          21,830            123,955          102,358          178,456          
Fundraising Revenues - Infant 700                 3,550              (2,850)             -80.28% 3,550              2,850              -                      -                      -                      
Fundraising Revenues - Preschool 1,500              5,000              (3,500)             -70.00% 5,000              3,500              -                      -                      650                 
Fundraising Revenues - Toddler 1,700              8,450              (6,750)             -79.88% 8,450              6,750              -                      150                 265                 
Grant Revenues - Infant 15,000            23,250            (8,250)             -35.48% 30,000            15,000            49,291            38,567            -                      
Grant Revenues - Preschool 20,600            25,600            (5,000)             -19.53% 25,600            5,000              34,017            30,543            36,693            
Grant Revenues - Toddler 35,600            31,600            4,000              12.66% 31,600            (4,000)             49,550            48,170            60,363            
COEC Funds - Infant -                      -                      -                      NA -                      -                      -                      15,000            -                      
COEC Funds - Toddler -                      -                      -                      NA -                      -                      -                      15,000            -                      
Other Grant Funding 324,928          340,600          (15,672)           -4.60% 340,600          15,672            -                      -                      -                      

Total Revenues 665,653          705,153          (39,500)           -5.60% 736,185          70,532            425,302          385,759          518,926          

Operating Expenses
Toddler Care Other Expense 46,534            43,235            3,299              7.63% 43,235            (3,299)             34,561            42,986            83,126            
Toddler Care Personnel Expense 163,061          176,254          (13,193)           -7.49% 192,277          29,216            222,635          205,219          323,633          
Infant Care Other Expense 21,814            18,692            3,122              16.70% 20,910            (904)                22,220            12,993            -                      
Infant Care Personnel Expense 115,464          131,041          (15,577)           -11.89% 142,954          27,490            111,321          88,917            -                      
Preschool Other Expense 44,303            35,943            8,360              23.26% 44,922            619                 39,260            30,784            51,474            
Preschool Personnel Expense 154,271          154,934          (663)                -0.43% 169,019          14,748            120,802          100,549          151,145          

Total Operating Expenses 545,447          560,099          (14,652)           -2.62% 613,317          67,870            550,799          481,448          609,378          

Surplus / Deficit 120,206          145,054          (24,848)           -17.13% 122,868          2,662              (125,497)         (95,689)           (90,452)           

Capital
Capital Outlay 324,928          340,600          (15,672)           -4.60% 340,600          15,672            -                      -                      -                      

Total Capital 324,928          340,600          (15,672)           -4.60% 340,600          15,672            -                      -                      -                      

Surplus / Deficit (204,722)         (195,546)         (9,176)             4.69% (217,732)         (125,497)         (95,689)           (90,452)           

Other Sources and Uses
Contributions -                      -                      -                      NA -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
Transfer (To) From General Fund 204,722          195,546          (9,176)             -4.69% 217,732          13,010            125,497          95,689            90,452            

Total Other Sources and Uses 204,722          195,546          (9,176)             -4.69% 217,732          13,010            125,497          95,689            90,452            

Surplus / Deficit -$                    -$                    -$                    NA -$                    13,010$          -$                    -$                    -$                    

2022

Child Development revenues are $23,828 under budget.  Child care fees are under projections due in part to continued illness related closures.  Operating expenses are $14,652 
under budget primarily due to being understaffed as well as closures, and scholarships provided to families have been less than budgeted. The program has required funding of 
$204,722 from the General Fund in 2022.  Capital outlay is for the facility remodel and is funded by ARPA grant monies.



Town of Mountain Village Monthly Revenue and Expenditure Report
November 2022

2021 2020 2019

 Actual YTD  Budget YTD 
 Budget 

Variance  
Budget 

Variance 
 Annual 
Budget 

 Budget 
Balance  Actual YTD  Actual YTD  Actual YTD 

($) (%)
Water & Sewer Fund

Revenues
Mountain Village Water and Sewer 3,266,423$          3,114,889$          151,534$             4.86% 3,459,145$          192,722$             2,918,945$          2,787,879$          2,595,589$          
Other Revenues 11,040                 8,060                   2,980                   36.97% 8,650                   (2,390)                  11,799                 16,213                 9,399                   
Ski Ranches Water 323,613               292,735               30,878                 10.55% 318,378               (5,235)                  266,249               243,092               177,982               
Skyfield Water 23,242                 29,480                 (6,238)                  -21.16% 37,544                 14,302                 21,626                 19,409                 32,433                 

Total Revenues 3,624,318            3,445,164            179,154               5.20% 3,823,717            199,399               3,218,619            3,066,593            2,815,403            

Operating Expenses
Mountain Village Sewer 517,158               693,551               (176,393)              -25.43% 718,551               201,393               607,483               516,043               442,017               
Mountain Village Water 960,690               988,788               (28,098)                -2.84% 1,124,742            164,052               1,092,715            868,945               843,130               
Ski Ranches Water 33,626                 38,215                 (4,589)                  -12.01% 47,941                 14,315                 22,846                 27,284                 24,983                 
Contingency -                          -                          -                          NA 35,000                 35,000                 -                          -                          -                          

Total Operating Expenses 1,511,474            1,720,554            (209,080)              -12.15% 1,926,234            414,760               1,723,044            1,412,272            1,310,130            

Surplus / Deficit 2,112,844            1,724,610            388,234               22.51% 1,897,483            (215,361)              1,495,575            1,654,321            1,505,273            

Capital
Capital Outlay 344,255               1,741,670            (1,397,415)           -80.23% 2,519,338            2,175,083            552,419               357,811               765,356               

Surplus / Deficit 1,768,589            (17,060)                1,785,649            -10466.88% (621,855)              (2,390,444)           943,156               1,296,510            739,917               

Other Sources and Uses
Overhead Allocation Transfer (196,244)              (196,244)              -                          0.00% (196,244)              -                          (187,305)              (174,511)              (170,976)              
Mountain Village Tap Fees 132,984               100,000               32,984                 32.98% 100,000               (32,984)                215,840               33,680                 112,829               
Grants -                          -                          -                          NA -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          
Ski Ranches Tap Fees 5,150                   5,000                   150                      3.00% 5,000                   (150)                     -                          -                          6,000                   
Skyfield Tap Fees -                          2,000                   (2,000)                  -100.00% 2,000                   2,000                   -                          -                          -                          
Sale of Assets -                          -                          -                          NA -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          
Transfer (To) From General Fund -                          -                          -                          NA -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          

Total Other Sources and Uses (58,110)                (89,244)                31,134                 -34.89% (89,244)                (31,134)                28,535                 (140,831)              (52,147)                

Surplus / Deficit 1,710,479$          (106,304)$            1,816,783$          -1709.04% (711,099)$            (2,421,578)$         971,691$             1,155,679$          687,770$             

Beginning (Available) Fund Balance 6,467,477$          6,692,459$          (224,982)$            
Ending (Available) Fund Balance 8,177,956$          6,586,155$          1,591,801$          

2022

Mountain Village water revenues are over budget in irrigation, excess usage and snowmaking fees. Ski Ranch water is over budget due to excess water fees. Other revenues are over budget in 
maintenance and inspection fees.  Skyfield revenues are under budget 21.16% due to excess water fees coming in under budget.  Sewer expenditures are under budget 25.43% due to the timing of TOT 
invoices.  Mountain Village water expenses are under budget in personnel expenses, legal, and R&M, which offset overages in electricity due to snowmaking earlier in the year.  Ski Ranch operations are 
under budget because of repairs, water sample analysis, and general maintenance.  Capital costs are for Ski Ranches, regional sewer shared expenses, new equipment, and costs related to the new Yellow 
Brick Road well. 



Town of Mountain Village Monthly Revenue and Expenditure Report
November 2022

2021 2020 2019

 Actual YTD 
 Budget 

YTD 
 Budget 

Variance  
Budget 

Variance 
 Annual 
Budget 

 Budget 
Balance  Actual YTD  Actual YTD  Actual YTD 

($) (%)
Broadband Fund

Revenues
Cable TV User Fees 533,102$          559,439$          (26,337)$          -4.71% 580,037$          46,935$            803,315$          896,960$          911,813$          
Internet User Fees 1,329,855         1,338,902         (9,047)              -0.68% 1,448,298         118,443            1,211,054         1,057,789         1,017,244         
Other Revenues 17,715              18,500              (785)                 -4.24% 19,473              2,833                25,953              46,164              42,851              
Phone Service Fees 16,640              17,482              (842)                 -4.82% 19,071              1,356                25,065              32,735              37,540              

Total Revenues 1,897,312         1,934,323         (37,011)            -1.91% 2,066,879         169,567            2,065,387         2,033,648         2,009,448         

Operating Expenses
Cable TV Direct Costs 373,033            373,654            (621)                 -0.17% 407,623            34,590              701,953            729,852            770,358            
Phone Service Costs 13,459              13,389              70                     0.52% 14,606              1,147                15,389              17,794              20,549              
Internet Direct Costs 239,944            237,165            2,779                1.17% 263,669            23,725              147,473            182,091            214,152            
Broadband Operations 672,246            733,419            (61,173)            -8.34% 986,998            314,752            777,817            647,813            532,129            
Contingency -                        -                        -                        NA 3,000                3,000                -                        -                        -                        

Total Operating Expenses 1,298,682         1,357,627         (58,945)            -4.34% 1,675,896         377,214            1,642,632         1,577,550         1,537,188         

Surplus / Deficit 598,630            576,696            21,935              3.80% 390,983            (207,647)          422,755            456,098            472,260            

Capital
Capital Outlay 301,867            335,525            (33,658)            -10.03% 430,000            128,133            825,664            1,931,835         924,491            

Surplus / Deficit 296,763            241,171            55,593              23.05% (39,017)            (335,780)          (402,909)          (1,475,737)       (452,231)           

Other Sources and Uses -                        
Sale of Assets -                        -                        -                        NA -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        
Transfer from General Fund -                        -                        -                        NA 209,020            209,020            -                        -                        -                        
Transfer (To) From General Fund -                        -                        -                        NA -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        
Overhead Allocation Transfer (170,740)          (170,740)          -                        0.00% (170,740)          -                        (171,145)          (177,250)          (170,736)           

Total Other Sources and Uses (170,740)          (170,740)          -                        0.00% 38,280              209,020            (171,145)          (177,250)          (170,736)           

Surplus / Deficit 126,023$          70,431$            55,593$            78.93% (737)$               (126,760)$        (574,054)$        (1,652,987)$     (622,967)$         

2022

Fiber Video revenues are under budget 4.7%, accounts are being phased in as installs are completed.  Internet revenues are slightly under budget by .7%.   Broadband operating 
expenses are under budget in personnel costs, tech support, and maintenance but over in ONT and Roku purchases.  Capital expenses are for the fiber project, equipment, and 
software upgrades.



Town of Mountain Village Monthly Revenue and Expenditure Report
November 2022

2021 2020 2019
 Actual 
YTD 

 Budget 
YTD 

 Budget 
Variance  

Budget 
Variance 

 Annual 
Budget 

 Budget 
Balance  Actual YTD  Actual YTD  Actual YTD 

($) (%)
Telluride Conference Center Fund

Revenues
Beverage Revenues -$                  -$                 -$                  NA -$                    -$                  -$                       -$                      -$                      
Catering Revenues -                    -                    -                    NA -                      -                    -                         -                        -                        
Facility Rental -                    -                    -                    NA -                      -                    -                         -                        -                        
Operating/Other Revenues -                    -                    -                    NA -                      -                    -                         -                        -                        

Total Revenues -                    -                    -                    NA -                      -                    -                         -                        -                        

Operating Expenses
General Operations 39,676          45,833          (6,157)           -13.43% 50,000            10,324          -                         4,600                -                        
Administration 106,857        144,148        (37,291)         -25.87% 144,565          37,708          119,478             107,066            90,768              
Marketing 100,000        100,000        -                    0.00% 100,000          -                    100,000             100,000            100,000            
Contingency -                    -                    -                    NA -                      -                    -                         -                        -                        

Total Operating Expenses 246,533        289,981        (43,448)         -14.98% 294,565          48,032          219,478             211,666            190,768            

Surplus / Deficit (246,533)       (289,981)      43,448          -14.98% (294,565)         (48,032)         (219,478)           (211,666)          (190,768)          

Capital Outlay/ Major R&R 10,580          20,000          (9,420)           -47.10% 20,000            9,420            13,882               -                        6,471                

Surplus / Deficit (257,113)       (309,981)      52,868          -17.06% (314,565)         (57,452)         (233,360)           (211,666)          (197,239)          
-                    

Other Sources and Uses
Damage Receipts -                    -                    -                    NA -                      -                    -                         -                        -                        
Insurance Proceeds -                    -                    -                    NA -                      -                    -                         -                        -                        
Sale of Assets -                    -                    -                    NA -                      -                    -                         -                        -                        
Transfer (To) From General Fund 257,113        309,981        (52,868)         -17.06% 314,565          57,452          233,360             211,666            197,239            
Overhead Allocation Transfer -                    -                    -                    NA -                      -                    -                         -                        -                        

Total Other Sources and Uses 257,113        309,981        (52,868)         -17.06% 314,565          57,452          233,360             211,666            197,239            

Surplus / Deficit -$                  -$                 -$                  NA -$                    -$                  -$                       -$                      -$                      

Expenses for the year are HOA dues, evaluation fee retainer, boiler repairs, and contracted marketing $'s.

2022



Town of Mountain Village Monthly Revenue and Expenditure Report
November 2022

2021 2020 2019
 Actual 
YTD 

 Budget 
YTD 

 Budget 
Variance  

Budget 
Variance 

 Annual 
Budget 

 Budget 
Balance  Actual YTD  Actual YTD  Actual YTD 

($) (%)
Affordable  Housing Development Fund

Revenues
Contributions -$                  -$                  -$                  NA -$                    -$                    -$                      -$                      -$                      
Grant Proceeds -                    -                    -                    NA -                      -                      -                        -                        -                        
Rental Income 41,906          45,173          (3,267)           -7.23% 49,280            7,374              31,490              32,094              27,544              
Housing Application Fees 7,470            2,300            5,170            224.78% 2,300              (5,170)             -                        -                        -                        
Sales Proceeds -                    -                    -                    NA -                      -                      -                        -                        -                        

Total Revenues 49,376          47,473          1,903            4.01% 51,580            2,204              31,490              32,094              27,544              

Operating Expenses
Leased Properties 3,780            3,780            -                    0.00% 3,780              -                      20,790              19,200              18,929              
Operating Expenses -                    -                    -                    NA -                      -                      -                        74                     487                   
Norwood Property 63,337          77,917          (14,580)         -18.71% 85,001            21,664            -                        -                        -                        
Lot 644 106,351        107,000        (649)              -0.61% 1,079,314       -                      -                        -                        -                        
Prospect Unit 17,574          49,642          (32,068)         -64.60% 54,155            36,581            11,957              7,172                14,261              
Future Housing/Density Bank 500,259        600,000        (99,741)         -16.62% 655,000          154,741          16,086              16,475              14,580              
RHA Funding -                    -                    -                    NA -                      -                      92,625              92,625              92,625              
Purchase/Resale Units -                    -                    -                    NA -                      -                      22,549              -                        -                        

Total Operating Expenses 691,301        838,339        (147,038)       -17.54% 1,877,250       212,986          164,007            135,546            140,882            

Surplus / Deficit (641,925)       (790,866)       (148,941)       18.83% (1,825,670)      (210,782)         (132,517)           (103,452)           (113,338)           

Other Sources and Uses
Transfer (To) From MAP -                    -                    -                    NA -                      -                      (11,429)             -                        (60,000)             
Gain or Loss on Sale of Assets -                    -                    -                    NA -                      -                      14,705              (10,000)             (5,486)               
Transfer (To) From General Fund - Sales Tax 888,030        923,712        (35,682)         -3.86% 1,007,686       119,656          675,222            448,056            478,734            
Transfer (To) From VCA -                    -                    -                    NA (1,388,378)      (1,388,378)      -                        -                        -                        
Transfer (To) From General Fund (Other) -                    -                    -                    NA 53,500            53,500            -                        -                        -                        

Total Other Sources and Uses 888,030        923,712        (35,682)         -3.86% (327,192)         (1,215,222)      678,498            438,056            413,248            

Surplus / Deficit 246,105$      132,846$      (113,259)$     -85.26% (2,152,862)$    (1,426,004)$    545,981$           334,604$           299,910$           

Beginning Fund Equity Balance 3,127,655$   2,120,294$   1,007,361$   
Ending Equity Fund Balance 3,373,760$   2,253,140$   1,120,620$   

2022

Rental income is under budget due to the main house in Norwood September through November. Expenses consist of HOA dues, Lot 644 expenses, general legal costs, Norwood 
property expenses, lease payments for a rental unit, and maintenance and utilities on town owned properties. 



Town of Mountain Village Monthly Revenue and Expenditure Report
November 2022

2021 2020 2019
Actual Budget Budget Budget Annual Budget

Village Court Apartments YTD YTD Var ($) Var (%) Budget Balance
Operating Revenues
  Rental Income 2,086,555$             2,125,024$             (38,469)$                -1.81% 2,270,102$             183,547$                1,983,694$             1,920,003$             2,093,471$             
  Other Operating Income 78,810                    109,548                  (30,738)                  -28.06% 118,060                  39,250                    80,873                    115,233                  112,159                  
    Total Operating Revenue 2,165,365               2,234,572               (69,207)                  -3.10% 2,388,162               222,797                  2,064,567               2,035,236               2,205,629               

Operating Expenses
  Office Operations 179,052                  210,542                  (31,490)                  -14.96% 232,648                  53,596                    184,010                  150,263                  175,940                  
  General and Administrative 131,488                  135,022                  (3,534)                    -2.62% 139,029                  7,541                      132,088                  146,785                  106,159                  
  Utilities 295,258                  294,578                  680                        0.23% 321,171                  25,913                    290,555                  349,738                  367,398                  
  Repair and Maintenance 474,081                  567,729                  (93,648)                  -16.50% 600,104                  126,023                  505,724                  481,721                  367,708                  
  Major Repairs and Replacement 66,240                    145,900                  (79,660)                  -54.60% 195,500                  129,260                  112,137                  160,039                  248,256                  
  Contingency -                             -                             -                             NA 14,500                    14,500                    -                             -                             -                             
    Total Operating Expenses 1,146,119               1,353,771               (207,652)                -15.34% 1,502,952               356,833                  1,224,514               1,288,546               1,265,461               

Surplus / (Deficit) After Operations 1,019,246               880,801                  138,445                  16% 885,210                  (134,036)                840,053                  746,690                  940,168                  

Non-Operating (Income) / Expense
  Investment Earning -                             (36)                         36                          -100.00% (50)                         (50)                         (20)                         (1,376)                    (7,411)                    
  Debt Service, Interest 281,530                  281,530                  -                             0.00% 345,198                  63,668                    335,317                  369,833                  286,675                  
  Debt Service, Fees (Cost of Issuance) 350                        -                             350                        NA -                             (350)                       933,833                  418,441                  1,925                      
  Debt Service, Principal 310,000                  443,079                  (133,079)                -30.04% 443,079                  133,079                  (15,000)                  -                             -                             
    Total Non-Operating (Income) / Expense 591,880                  724,573                  132,693                  18.31% 788,227                  196,347                  1,254,130               786,898                  281,189                  

Surplus / (Deficit) Before Capital 427,366                  156,228                  (330,383)                -211.47% 96,983                    (330,383)                (414,077)                (40,208)                  658,979                  
 

  Capital Spending 194,630                  200,000                  5,370                      2.69% 988,000                  793,370                  12,971                    11,105                    392,850                  

Surplus / (Deficit) 232,736                  (43,772)                  276,508                  -631.70% (891,017)                (1,123,753)             (427,048)                (51,313)                  266,129                  

Other Sources / (Uses)
Transfer (To)/From General Fund (153,120)                (153,120)                -                             0.00% (153,120)                -                             (145,466)                (147,964)                (162,959)                
New Loan Proceeds -                             -                             -                             NA -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             
Sale of Assets -                             -                             -                             NA -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             
Grant Revenues -                             -                             -                             NA -                             -                             93,259                    175,837                  -                             
Transfer From AHDF -                             -                             -                             NA 1,388,378               1,388,378               -                             -                             -                             
    Total Other Sources / (Uses) (153,120)                (153,120)                -                             0.00% 1,235,258               1,388,378               (52,207)                  27,873                    (162,959)                

Surplus / (Deficit) 79,616                    (196,892)                276,508                  -140.44% 344,241                  264,625                  (479,255)                (23,440)                  103,170                  

2022

Actual Actual Actual

Rent revenues are under budget 1.8%.  Rent revenues exceed 2021 revenues by 7% due to the 2021 rent waiver and increased rents being phased in as leases are renewed.  Other revenues are under budget 28.1% due mainly 
to miscellaneous revenues.  Office operations are under budget 15% primarily due to personnel expenses coming in under budget, including travel and training.  General and administrative is under budget mainly in legal 
expenses but also events/promotions and janitorial expenses.  Utilities are in line with budget. The savings in electricity have been offset by overages in water/sewer and waste disposal.  Maintenance is under budget 16.5% 
due to employee expenses coming in under budget, as well as supplies, and no roof snow removal for the season.  MR&R expenses include carpet replacement and appliance and hot water heater replacements.  Capital 
expenditures consist of soft costs related to Phase IV.



Town of Mountain Village Monthly Revenue and Expenditure Report
November 2022

2021 2020 2019

 Actual YTD  Budget YTD 
 Budget 

Variance  
Budget 

Variance 
 Annual 
Budget 

 Budget 
Balance  Actual YTD  Actual YTD  Actual YTD 

($) (%)
Debt Service Fund
Revenues

Abatements -$                         -$                      -$                      NA -$                        -$                      -$                             -$                             -$                             
Contributions 205,800                205,800            -                        0.00% 205,800               -                        206,000                    199,600                    203,200                    
Miscellaneous Revenue -                           -                        -                        NA -                          -                        -                               -                               -                               
Property Taxes 478,041                477,688            353                   0.07% 477,760               (281)                  461,309                    532,311                    550,730                    
Reserve/Capital/Liquidity Interest 774                       1,832                (1,058)               -57.75% 2,000                   1,226                371                           1,877                        4,910                        
Specific Ownership Taxes 19,873                  22,917              (3,044)               -13.28% 25,000                 5,127                22,312                      22,528                      24,890                      

Total Revenues 704,488                708,237            (3,749)               -0.53% 710,560               6,072                689,992                    756,316                    783,731                    

Debt Service
2001/2011 Bonds - Gondola - Paid by contributions from TMVOA and TSG

2001/2011 Bond Issue - Interest 70,800                  70,800              -                        0.00% 70,800                 -                        76,000                      79,600                      83,200                      
2001/2011 Bond Issue - Principal 135,000                135,000            -                        0.00% 135,000               -                        130,000                    120,000                    120,000                    

2006/2014/2020 Bonds - Heritage Parking -                        
2014 Bond Issue - Interest 122,635                116,841            5,794                4.96% 116,841               (5,794)               144,032                    137,213                    250,725                    
2014 Bond Issue - Principal 345,000                345,000            -                        0.00% 345,000               -                        295,000                    285,000                    285,000                    

Total Debt Service 673,435                667,641            5,794                0.87% 667,641               (5,794)               645,032                    621,813                    738,925                    

Surplus / (Deficit) 31,053                  40,596              (9,543)               -23.51% 42,919                 11,866              44,960                      134,503                    44,806                      
-                        

Operating Expenses
Administrative Fees 1,995                    3,015                (1,020)               -33.83% 3,182                   1,187                1,770                        2,289                        2,256                        
County Treasurer Collection Fees 14,311                  14,729              (418)                  -2.84% 14,732                 421                   13,877                      16,012                      16,564                      

Total Operating Expenses 16,306                  17,744              (1,438)               -8.10% 17,914                 1,608                15,647                      18,301                      18,820                      

Surplus / (Deficit) 14,747                  22,852              (8,105)               -35.47% 25,005                 10,258              29,313                      116,202                    25,985                      

Other Sources and Uses
Transfer (To) From General Fund (19,873)                 (22,917)             3,044                -13.28% (25,000)               (5,127)               (22,312)                     668,905                    (24,890)                     
Transfer (To) From Other Funds -                           -                        -                        NA -                          -                        -                               -                               -                               
Payment to Refunding Bonds Escrow -                           -                        -                        NA -                          -                        -                               (80,712)                     -                               
Proceeds From Bond Issuance -                           -                        -                        NA -                          -                        -                               -                               -                               

Total Other Sources and Uses (19,873)                 (22,917)             3,044                -13.28% (25,000)               (5,127)               (22,312)                     588,193                    (24,890)                     

Surplus / (Deficit) (5,126)$            (65)$              (5,061)$         5$                    5,131$          7,001$                 704,395$             1,095$                 

Beginning Fund Balance 351,594$          369,490$      (17,896)$       
Ending Fund Balance 346,468$          369,425$      (22,957)$       

2022



OFFICE OF THE TOWN MANAGER 
455 Mountain Village Blvd. 

Mountain Village, CO 81435 
(970) 417-6976

TO: Mountain Village Housing Authority 

FROM: Amy Ward, Housing Director, Michelle Haynes, Assistant Town Manager & Paul 
 Wisor, Town Manager  

FOR: January 19, 2023 

DATE: January 13, 2023 

RE: Consideration on Second Reading of an Ordinance Conveyance of Lot 644 from 
the Town of Mountain Village to the Town of Mountain Village Housing Authority 
consistent with the Home Rule Charter Section 11.5, the Sale of Town Real 
Estate  

____________________________________________________________________ 
OVERVIEW 
The Town of Mountain Village has owned Lot 644 since approximately 2011 when the town 
receive it as part of the Mountain Village Hotel PUD, in exchange for town owned village center 
active open space land that was replat into the 109R PUD development.   

The Town of Mountain Village received final design approval to construct 29 condominiums on 
the property by the Design Review Board at the November 3, 2022 regular DRB meeting. The 
Town intends to begin construction this spring and is working with our development partner, 
Triumph Development West. 

The Town of Mountain Village intends to convey the property to the Mountain Village Housing 
Authority (MVHA) so that the administration of the development, the deed restriction and the 
lottery will fall under the umbrella of the Mountain Village Housing authority. The MVHA also 
owns other properties that were either built by or managed by the Mountain Village Housing 
Authority like Village Court Apartments (operated and owned), and Coyote Court (developed by 
MV the housing authority).   

Consistent with the Home Rule Charter, Section 11.5, the town may sell or dispose of real 
property in the use for public purposes by ordinance. 

There were no changes from first reading of an ordinance which occurred on December 8, 
2022. 

ATTACHMENTS 
• Ordinance

o bargain and sale deed
MOTION 
I move to approve on second reading of an ordinance conveyance of Lot 644 to the Mountain 
Village Housing Authority consistent with Home Rule Charter Section 11.5. 

/mbh 

Agenda Item 7a



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-__ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, 
COLORADO CONVEYING LOT 644 TO THE MOUNTAIN VILLAGE HOUSING AUTHORITY 

 
WHEREAS, the Town of Mountain Village (“Town”) is a home rule municipality duly organized and 

existing under Article XX of the Colorado Constitution and the Town of Mountain Village Home Rule Charter of 
1995, as amended (“Charter”); and 

WHEREAS, the Town owns certain real property in the Town of Mountain Village, San Miguel County, 
Colorado known as Lot 644 (the “Property”) according to the plat recorded as Reception No. 261214; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 11.5 of the Charter, the Town may sell municipally-owned real property 
in use for public purposes by ordinance of the Town Council; and 

WHERAS, to facilitate development of the Property for affordable housing, the Town Council desires to 
convey the Property to the Mountain Village Housing Authority (“Housing Authority”) as set forth below. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF MOUNTAIN 
VILLAGE, COLORADO, as follows: 

Section 1. Recitals.  The above recitals are hereby incorporated as findings of the Town Council in support of the 
enactment of this Ordinance.   
 
Section 2. Conveyance.  The Town Council, on behalf of the Town, hereby conveys the Property to the Housing 
Authority by Bargain and Sale Deed, attached hereto as Exhibit A. 
 
Section 3. Severability.  If any portion of this Ordinance is found to be void or ineffective, it shall be deemed severed 
from this Ordinance and the remaining provisions shall remain valid and in full force and effect. 

Section 4. Safety Clause.  The Town Council hereby finds, determines, and declares that this Ordinance is 
promulgated under the general police power of the Town, that it is promulgated for the health, safety, and welfare 
of the public, and that this Ordinance is necessary for the preservation of health and safety and for the protection of 
public convenience and welfare.  The Town Council further determines that the Ordinance bears a rational relation 
to the proper legislative object sought to be obtained. 

Section 5. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective on____________, 2023 and shall be recorded in 
the official records of the Town kept for that purpose and shall be authenticated by the signatures of the Mayor and 
the Town Clerk.  

Section 6. Public Hearing.  A public hearing on this Ordinance was held on the ___ day of __________, 2023 in 
the Town Council Chambers, Town Hall, 455 Mountain Village Blvd., Mountain Village, Colorado 81435.  

Section 6. Publication. The Town Clerk or Deputy Town Clerk shall post and publish notice of this Ordinance as 
required by Article V, Section 5.9 of the Charter. 

  



INTRODUCED, READ, AND REFERRED to public hearing before the Town Council of the Town of 
Mountain Village, Colorado on the ___ day of ___________, 2022 

 
TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE: 

 
 
 
 

 
TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, COLORADO, 
A HOME-RULE MUNICIPALITY 

 
 
 

By:  
Laila Benitez, Mayor

ATTEST: 
 
 

 
Susan Johnston, Town Clerk 
 
HEARD AND FINALLY ADOPTED by the Town Council of the Town of Mountain Village, Colorado this 
___ day of __________, 2023 
 

TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE:  
TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, COLORADO, 
A HOME-RULE MUNICIPALITY 
 
 
 
By:   

Laila Benitez, Mayor
 
ATTEST: 
 
 

 
Susan Johnston, Town Clerk 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 

 
David McConaughy, Town Attorney 



I, Susan Johnston, the duly qualified and acting Town Clerk of the Town of Mountain Village, Colorado 
(“Town") do hereby certify that: 
 

1. The attached copy of Ordinance No. 2023-__ (“Ordinance") is a true, correct, and complete copy thereof. 
 

2. The Ordinance was introduced, read by title, approved on first reading and referred to public hearing by 
the Town Council the Town (“Council”) at a regular meeting held at Town Hall, 455 Mountain Village 
Blvd., Mountain Village, Colorado, on __________, 2022, by the affirmative vote of a quorum of the 
Town Council as follows: 
 

Council Member Name “Yes” “No” Absent Abstain 
Laila Benitez, Mayor     
Dan Caton, Mayor Pro-Tem     
Marti Prohaska     
Harvey Mogenson     
Patrick Berry     
Peter Duprey     
Jack Gilbride     

 
3. After the Council’s approval of the first reading of the Ordinance, notice of the public hearing, containing 

the date, time and location of the public hearing and a description of the subject matter of the proposed 
Ordinance was posted and published in the Telluride Daily Planet, a newspaper of general circulation in 
the Town, on ____________, 2022 in accordance with Section 5.2(d) of the Town of Mountain Village 
Home Rule Charter. 

 
4. A public hearing on the Ordinance was held by the Town Council at a regular meeting of the Town 

Council held at Town Hall, 455 Mountain Village Blvd., Mountain Village, Colorado, on ____________, 
2023. At the public hearing, the Ordinance was considered, read by title, and approved without 
amendment by the Town Council, by the affirmative vote of a quorum of the Town Council as follows: 
 

Council Member Name “Yes” “No” Absent Abstain 
Laila Benitez, Mayor     
Dan Caton, Mayor Pro-Tem     
Marti Prohaska     
Harvey Mogenson     
Patrick Berry     
Peter Duprey     
Jack Gilbride     

 
5. The Ordinance has been signed by the Mayor, sealed with the Town seal, attested by me as Town Clerk, 

and duly numbered and recorded in the official records of the Town. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the Town this  ___ day of 
__________, 2023. 
 
 

 
Susan Johnston, Town Clerk 
(SEAL) 
 
  



EXHIBIT A 
 
After Recording, Mail to: 
Garfield & Hecht, P.C. 
910 Grand Ave., Suite 201 
Glenwood Springs, CO 81601 
Attn: David McConaughy, Esq. 
 

Space Above Reserved for County Recorder’s Use 
 

BARGAIN AND SALE DEED 
 

THIS BARGAIN AND SALE DEED, effective as of ______________, 2023, between Town 
of Mountain Village, a Colorado home rule municipality (“Grantor”), and Mountain Village Housing 
Authority (“Grantee”), a Colorado corporate body organized under C.R.S. §§ 29-4-201, et seq.   

 
WITNESSETH, that the Grantor, for good and valuable consideration of One Dollar ($1.00), 

and other good and sufficient consideration, Grantor hereby sells and conveys to Grantee all of 
Grantor’s right, title, and interest in, to, upon and over certain real property in the Town of Mountain 
Village, San Miguel County, Colorado known as Lot 644 (the “Property”) according to the plat 
recorded as Reception No. 261214. 

 
 TO HAVE AND TO HOLD, the same, together with all and singular the appurtenances and 
privileges thereunto belonging or in anywise thereunto appertaining, and all the estate, right, title, 
interest and claim whatsoever, of the Grantor, either in law or in equity, to the only property use, benefit 
and behoof of the Grantee.   
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantor has caused this deed to be duly executed as of the ____ 
day of _____________, 2023.  
       
      Town of Mountain Village, Colorado 
 
 
      By:__________________________ 
      Name: 
      Title: 
 
STATE OF COLORADO ) 
    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF SAN MIGUEL ) 
 
 Acknowledged before me this ____ day of _________________, 2023, by ____________ as 
____________ of Town of Mountain Village, Colorado.  
 
 Witness my hand and official seal.  My commission expires: _________________. 
 
 
       _________________________________ 
       Notary Public 
 



1 

AGENDA ITEM #7B 
TOWN MANAGER 

 455 Mountain Village Blvd. 
Mountain Village, CO 81435 

(970) 729-2654

TO: Mountain Village Town Council 

FROM: Paul Wisor, Town Manager 

DATE: January 12, 2023 

RE: Ilium Reimbursement Resolution 

Executive Summary: Staff seeks Council approval of a resolution to use future tax-exempt bond 
or loan proceeds to reimburse the Town for costs associated with the proposed Ilium project 
that are incurred prior to the issuance of such bond or loan. 

Overview 
In August 2022, the Town entered into a contract to purchase 55 acres of land located in Ilium.  
Subject to continued due diligence, the Town intends to build deed restricted workforce housing 
on the property.  It is anticipated the Town would secure tax-exempt financing to finance the 
acquisition of the property and associated capital expenditures to develop workforce housing.  

Under federal tax law, governmental entities are generally prohibited from reimbursing 
themselves for expenses incurred prior to the issuance of tax-exempt debt.  However, a 
governmental body may adopt a resolution prior to the issuance of debt, and on the basis of that 
reimbursement resolution use tax-exempt proceed to reimburse pre-issuance expenditures.  

Resolution  
The Resolution meets the requirements of Treasury Regulation §1.150-2, and would permit the 
Town to reimburse itself for eligible expenses that have been incurred to date in connection with 
the proposed development of the Ilium property as well as any expenses incurred prior to the 
issuance of tax-exempt debt.  

Nothing in the Resolution obligates the Town to move forward with the Ilium acquisition or 
development.  

Proposed Motion 

I move to approve the resolution expressing the intent of Mountain Village Housing Authority to 
be reimbursed for certain expenses relating to the acquisition of property in Iium for the purpose 
of residential workforce housing. 



 

 

STATE OF COLORADO ) 
 ) 
COUNTY OF SAN MIGUEL ) SS. 
 ) 
TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE ) 
HOUSING AUTHORITY ) 

The Board of Commissioners (the “Board”) of the Town of Mountain 
Village Housing Authority, San Miguel County, Colorado (the “Authority”), met in regular 
session, in full conformity with law and the rules of the Authority, at 455 Mountain Village 
Boulevard, Suite A in the Town of Mountain Village, being the regular meeting place of the 
Board, on Thursday, January 19, 2023, at the hour of 2:00 p.m.  Upon roll call, the following 
were found to be present, in person or by telephone, constituting a quorum: 

Present:   
 Chair: Laila Benitez 
 Vice Chair: Dan Caton 
 Commission Members Patrick Berry 
  Peter Duprey 
  Jack Gilbride 
  Harvey Mogenson 
  Marti Prohaska 
   
Absent:   
   
   
There were also present:  
   
 Town Manager Paul Wisor 
   

 

constituting all the members of the Board. 

Thereupon, the following proceedings, among others, were had and taken: 

Commissioner ______________ introduced in typewritten form a 
resolution, which resolution was thereupon read by title, copies thereof having been distributed 
to all members of the Board and to those members of the public in attendance, and which 
resolution is as follows: 

 



 
 

2 
 

 

 
RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF MOUNTAIN 
VILLAGE HOUSING AUTHORITY, EXPRESSING THE 
INTENT OF THE ISSUER TO BE REIMBURSED FOR 
CERTAIN EXPENSES RELATING TO THE ACQUISITION 
OF PROPERTY IN ILLIUM FOR THE PURPOSE OF 
RESIDENTIAL WORKFORCE HOUSING. 

 
WHEREAS, the Town of Mountain Village Housing Authority, a public body 

corporate and politic of the State of Colorado (the “Issuer”), is authorized and empowered by the 
provisions of the Housing Authorities Law, being Part 2 of Article 4 of Title 29, Colorado 
Revised Statutes (the “Act”), as from time to time supplemented and amended, to issue revenue 
bonds, notes or other obligations for the purpose of providing residential housing that 
substantially benefits persons and families of low income; and 

WHEREAS, the members of the Town Council (the “Town Council”) of the 
Town of Mountain Village, Colorado, duly organized and existing as a home rule town under 
Article XX of the State Constitution and under its home rule charter, have been duly elected or 
appointed and qualified; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council has provided that in accordance with the Act, the 
members of the Town Council shall ex officio be appointed the Commissioners of the Board of 
Commissioners of the Issuer (the “Board”); and 

WHEREAS, the Board has determined that it is in the best interest of the Issuer 
and public interest and necessity to finance the acquisition of approximately 55-acres of property 
in Illium for the purpose of developing, constructing and equipping residential workforce 
housing (the “Project”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Issuer has determined that it is in the best interest of the Issuer 

to finance the Project through either: (i) the execution and delivery of Bonds; or (ii) by any other 
means legally available to the Issuer; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board has determined that it is necessary to make capital 

expenditures to acquire and construct the Project prior to the time that the Issuer arranges for the 
specific financing of such Project; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is the Issuer’s reasonable expectation that when such financing 

occurs, the capital expenditures will be reimbursed with the proceeds of the financing; and 
 
WHEREAS, in order to comply with the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code 

of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), it is the Issuer’s desire that this resolution shall constitute the 
“official intent” of the Board to reimburse such capital expenditures within the meaning of 
Treasury Regulation §1.150-2. 



 
 

3 
 

 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 

COMMISSIONERS OF THE TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE HOUSING 
AUTHORITY: 

 
Section 1. All action (not inconsistent with the provisions of this resolution) 

heretofore taken by the Board and the officers, employees and agents of the Issuer directed 
toward the Bonds and the Project is hereby ratified, approved and confirmed. 

 
Section 2. The Issuer intends to finance approximately $8,000,000 to pay the 

costs of the Project, including the reimbursement of certain costs incurred by the Issuer prior to 
the receipt of any proceeds of a financing, upon terms acceptable to the Issuer, as authorized in a 
resolution to be hereafter adopted and to take all further action which is necessary or desirable in 
connection therewith. 

 
Section 3. The officers, employees and agents of the Issuer shall take all 

action necessary or reasonably required to carry out, give effect to and consummate the 
transactions contemplated hereby and shall take all action necessary or desirable to finance the 
Project and to otherwise carry out the transactions contemplated by the resolution. 

 
Section 4. The officers and employees of the Issuer are hereby authorized and 

directed to take all action necessary or appropriate to effectuate the provision of this resolution. 
 
Section 5. The Issuer shall not use reimbursed moneys for purposes 

prohibited by Treasury Regulation §1.150-2(h). 
 
Section 6. This resolution is intended to be a declaration of “official intent” to 

reimburse expenditures within the meaning of Treasury Regulation §1.150-2. 
 
Section 7. If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this resolution 

shall for any reason be held invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of such 
section, paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of this 
resolution. 

 
Section 8. All acts, orders and resolutions of the Issuer, and parts thereof, 

inconsistent with this resolution be, and the same hereby are, repealed to the extent only of  such 
inconsistency. This repealer shall not be construed to revive any act, order or resolution, or part 
thereof, heretofore repealed. 

 
Section 9. The resolution shall in full force and effect upon its passage and 

approval. 



 
 

4 
 

 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this January 19, 2023. 

 

TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE 
HOUSING AUTHORITY  

 
 
 

  
(SEAL)          Chair of the Board of Commissioners 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      
Vice Chair of the Board of Commissioners 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
55746138.1 



1 

AGENDA ITEM #8 
TOWN MANAGER 

 455 Mountain Village Blvd. 
Mountain Village, CO 81435 

(970) 729-2654

TO: Mountain Village Town Council 

FROM: Paul Wisor, Town Manager; Michelle Haynes, Assistant Town Manager 

DATE: January 12, 2023 

RE: Lot 644 Deed Restriction Discussion 

Executive Summary: In November 2022, the Town of Mountain Village, along with its 
development partner, Triumph Development West, received final DRB approval for the 
development of deed restricted housing on Town-owned Lot 644.  It is anticipated that all Lot 
644 units will be for sale units.  The memo sets forth items for Council to consider it creating the 
deed restriction to be placed on the Lot 644 units.  No Council action is requested as a deed 
restriction reflecting comments made by Council at the January meeting will be presented to 
Council at its February meeting.  Staff is also seeking input on a potential lottery process for the 
sale of the Lot 644 units. 

Overview 
In November 2022 the Town of Mountain Village, along with its development partner, Triumph 
Development West, received final DRB approval for the development of deed restricted housing 
on Town-owned Lot 644.  As approved, Lot 644 consists of 29 units ranging from 1-3 bedrooms, 
for a total of 65 beds.  It is anticipated that all Lot 644 units will be for sale units.   

In order to assure the development of Lot 644 provides housing for working locals and remains 
affordable, the Town will place a deed restriction on all the units to be sold.  A draft deed 
restriction is attached hereto as Exhibit A.  While most deed restrictions share the same 
general characteristics, it is important to note that deed restrictions can vary greatly as individual 
deed restrictions reflect the goals and priorities of the community in which the deed restricted 
property is located.  

This memo sets forth items for Council to consider in creating the deed restriction to be placed 
on the Lot 644 units.  It is important to note the items for consideration do not follow the deed 
restriction as read from beginning to end.  Rather, it highlights terms and provisions that 
become relevant through the lifecycle of a unit – purchase, ownership, sale.  

Town staff is seeking feedback from Council with respect to these provisions so that it can 
present a revised draft to Council at its February meeting.  

Deed Restriction Provisions Overview 
Our recommendations hope to achieve continuity with other deed restrictions in the region but 
also maintain a streamlined process that both benefits the owner as well as the Mountain 
Village Housing Authority to administer. Currently all deed restrictions define the boundary as 
the R-1 School District. 



 

2 
 

 
Deed Restriction Provisions 
Qualified Buyer/Owner (Section 2(i)) – The draft deed restriction defines a Qualified Buyer as an 
individual who is a Qualified Owner.  A Qualified Owner is “an individual who works an average 
of thirty (30) hours or more per week at a business within the R1 school district boundary in San 
Miguel County, Colorado that holds a valid and current business license, pays sales taxes or is 
otherwise generally recognized as a legitimate business, and who does not hold any interest in 
any other developed residential property or dwelling unit within San Miguel County, Colorado.”  
It should be noted the definition provides those thirty hours can be aggregated, meaning a 
person who works 60 hours over six months would also qualify.    
 
This definition tracks with the definition used in other Mountain Village deed restrictions.  For Lot 
644, Council should consider the following: 
 

• Is thirty hours a week sufficient for a single individual to qualify for ownership  
• Should an individual qualify if they work 60 hours over six months? 
• Is the R-1 school district the correct boundary for qualification? 
• Should the definition be expanded to accommodate remote workers? 
• Is a Qualified Owner prohibited from owning other property within San Miguel County? 

 
More broadly, through the Comprehensive Plan process as well as public meetings conducted 
in connection with Lot 644, the Town has received significant comment regarding who should be 
eligible to own Lot 644 units.  Many businesses have expressed interest in purchasing units and 
then renting them to their employees.  Other members of the community have indicated the 
units should be owner occupied in order to help maintain a cohesive sense of community within 
Lot 644 and throughout the Meadows.  Council should consider whether Qualified Owner should 
include businesses. If qualified businesses are included, then Council should consider whether 
qualified business should besubject to the same regulations as qualified individuals.  
Specifically, that businesses would be prohibited from owning another home within the same 
boundary as determined by Council. 
 
Occupancy (Section 3) – On the topic of owner occupancy, the current draft of the deed 
restriction requires at least one Qualified Owner to occupy the units as their Principal Place of 
Residence.  A Qualified Owner must reside within the unit for at least nine months out of the 
year.   
 

• Is nine months an appropriate amount of time? 
 
 
Rental (Sections 2(j); 7) – The current draft of the deed restriction permits a Qualified Owner to 
a Qualified Tenant.  A Qualified Tenant must, like a Qualified Owner, must work 30 hours within 
San Miguel (or aggregate 60 hour weeks for six months).  Allowing qualified tenants provides 
some flexibility for an owner and is allowed regionally in areas such as Lawson Hill. 
 

• Should rentals be permitted? 
• How long (or short) should leases with a Qualified Tenant run? 

 
Resale (Section 2(b)) – The deed restriction sets forth a relatively restrictive Maximum Resale 
Price of 1.5% per annum of the original purchase price.  This cap can be raised in the event the 
current Qualified Owner makes Town-approved capital improvements to the unit.  
 



 

3 
 

• The current Mountain Village deed restriction has no cap.  Council could consider this 
option.  However, with no cap, some deed restricted units in the Meadows are currently 
selling for $800 per square foot, which is making it unaffordable for the individuals for 
whom the units were intended.  

• Increase the cap to something higher.  This may allow Qualified Owners to realize a 
greater appreciation on their investment.  

• Tie the purchase price to an index to allow for a Qualified Owner to keep pace with 
economic trends while preventing prices from increasing beyond the reach of future 
buyers.  

 

Transfer Fees (Section 4(d) – Many municipalities fund the administration of the deed restriction 
program through the collection of fees upon the transfer of a deed restricted unit.  Council 
should consider whether such fees should be collected, of if the benefit of such fees is 
outweighed by the resulting increase in the sale price of the deed restricted unit.  

Relatedly, realtor fees (typically 6% of the purchase price) can increase the overall cost of the 
unit.  Council could consider designating the Housing Authority to essentially serve as the 
transfer agent for all units, thus reducing or eliminating realtor fees.  
 
Lottery 
 
There are many approaches to take for the initial sale of deed restricted units – first come, first 
served; evaluation of individual applications; and lottery, among others.  Staff proposes, with 
Council’s consent, the Town utilize a lottery system.  The region is used to a lottery system and 
there is already well established guidelines that the Town can emulate. The lottery would 
generally function as follow: 
 

• Administer by the Town 
• Interested purchasers would need to be pre-qualified both pursuant to the deed 

restriction and including evidence of pre-qualification from a bank 
• Points can be assigned based on the following factors: 

o Employment with the Town 
o Employment with essential services (fire, police, teacher, wastewater) 
o Residence within Mountain Village 

• Either individuals with the highest points get to select units, or there is an actually lottery 
with balls allocated to an individual based on the number of points.  

• Lottery would be held for each type of unit (three bedroom; two bedroom, etc).  
 
 

In advance of the lottery the Town would build out an information web page and hold a meetings 
to educate the community on how to fill out the applications, timelines and to answer questions.



 

4 
 

Exhibit A 



 

 2768570.1  1 
 

EMPLOYEE HOUSING DEED RESTRICTION 
RESIDENTIAL DWELLING UNITS, LOT 644, MOUNTAIN VILLAGE 

THIS EMPLOYEE DEED RESTRICTION (the "Deed Restriction") is entered into this 
_______ day of _______________, 202_ (the "Effective Date") by and between TOWN OF 
MOUNTAIN VILLAGE HOUSING AUTHORITY, a Colorado corporate body organized under 
C.R.S. §§ 29-4-201, et seq., with an address of _____________________, Mountain Village, 
Colorado 81435 (the "MVHA"), and _____________________, an individual with an address of 
_______________________ ("Buyer") (each individually a "Party" and collectively the "Parties"). 

WHEREAS, the MVHA owns certain real property in the Town of Mountain Village (the 
“Town”), San Miguel County, Colorado known as Lot 644 (the "Property"), according to the plat 
recorded as Reception No. 261214, and has developed the Property as an employee housing 
project; 

WHEREAS, the MVHA is selling the Property to Buyer and desires to restrict the 
occupancy, use and resale of the Property pursuant to the terms and conditions herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants 
contained herein, the sufficiency of which is mutually acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 

COVENANTS 

1. Property.  The Property is hereby burdened with the covenants and restrictions specified 
in this Deed Restriction, which the Buyer shall record against the Property at its expense.   

2. Definitions.  For purposes of this Deed Restriction, the following terms shall have the 
following meanings: 

a. Guidelines means the current version of the 2022 Affordable Housing Guidelines 
adopted by the MVHA, as amended from time to time.   

b. Maximum Resale Price (Determined by annualized CPI or flat annual value of 4%, 
whichever is lower) means the Purchase Price paid by the last Qualified Buyer plus: an increase 
of 1.5% per annum of such Purchase Price (prorated at the rate of 1/12 for each whole month) from 
the date of Owner's purchase of the Property to the date of the Owner's execution of the listing 
contract, such percentage increase to not be compounded annually; and the value of Permitted 
Capital Improvements. 

c. Non-Qualified Owner means any person who acquires an ownership interest in the 
Property who is not a Qualified Owner. 

d. Owner means any person who acquires an ownership interest in the Property, 
including without limitation Qualified Owners, Non-Qualified Owners and Inheriting Owners.   

e. Permitted Capital Improvements means those improvements to the Property 
performed by the current Owner as described in the Guidelines, which shall qualify for inclusion 



 

 2768570.1  2 
 

within the calculation of Maximum Resale Price if the Owner furnishes the MVHA with the 
following information: 

i. Original or duplicate receipts to verify the actual costs expended by the Owner for 
the Permitted Capital Improvements; 

ii. Affidavit verifying the receipts are valid and correct receipts tendered at the time 
of purchase; and 

iii. True and correct copies of any building permit or certificate of occupancy required 
to be issued by the Town for the Permitted Capital Improvements. 

f. Principal Place of Residence means the home or place in which one’s habitation is 
fixed and to which one has a present intention of returning after a departure or absence there from.  
In determining what is a Principal Place of Residence, the MVHA shall consider the following:  
business pursuits, employment, income sources, residence for income or other tax purposes, age, 
marital status, residence of parents, spouse and children if any, location of personal and real 
property, and motor vehicle registration. 

g. Purchase Price means all consideration paid by a Qualified Buyer for the Property 
but excludes: any proration amounts, taxes, costs and expenses of obtaining financing; costs of 
furnishings or personal property; lenders' fees; title insurance fees; closing cost; inspection fees; 
and real estate purchase or sales commission(s).  

h. Qualified Buyer means a person who, upon purchase of the Property, will be a 
Qualified Owner.  

i. Qualified Owner means an Owner who is an individual who works an average of 
thirty (30) hours or more per week at a business within the R1 school district boundary in San 
Miguel County, Colorado that holds a valid and current business license, pays sales taxes or is 
otherwise generally recognized as a legitimate business, and who does not hold any interest in any 
other developed residential property or dwelling unit within San Miguel County, Colorado. For 
example, if an individual worked sixty (60) hours per week for one half of the year at such a 
business in San Miguel County, Colorado and worked elsewhere for the other half of the year, 
such person would constitute a Qualified Owner. A Qualified Owner also includes an individual 
who was a Qualified Owner when the individual purchased the Property, but then retires while 
owning the Property and is sixty (60) years of age or older at the time of retirement, and who, for 
the five (5) years immediately prior to retirement, worked an average of thirty (30) hours or more 
per week at a business in San Miguel County, Colorado that holds a valid and current business 
license, pays sales taxes or is otherwise generally recognized as a legitimate business.   

j. Qualified Tenant means an individual who works an average of thirty (30) hours or 
more per week at a business in San Miguel County, Colorado that holds a valid and current 
business license, or pays sales taxes, or is otherwise generally recognized as a legitimate business.  
For example, if an individual worked sixty (60) hours per week for one half of the year at such a 
business in San Miguel County, Colorado and worked elsewhere for the other half of the year, 
such person would constitute a Qualified Tenant. 



 

 2768570.1  3 
 

k. Transfer means any sale, conveyance, assignment or transfer, voluntary or 
involuntary, of any interest in the Property, including without limitation a fee simple interest, a 
joint tenancy interest, a life estate, a leasehold interest and an interest evidenced by any contract 
by which possession of the Property is transferred and an Owner retains title; provided, however, 
that the lease of a room or rooms within the Property to a Qualified Tenant in accordance with this 
Deed Restriction shall not constitute a Transfer.   

3. Occupancy Restrictions.   

a. The Property shall be continuously occupied by at least one (1) Qualified Owner as 
their principal place of residence. 

b. The Qualified Owner may lease a room or rooms in the Property to one (1) or more 
Qualified Tenants, provided that the Qualified Owner still occupies the Property as their principal 
place of residence.   

c. No business activity shall occur on or in the Property, other than as permitted within 
the zone district applicable to the Property. 

d. If a Qualified Owner ceases to occupy the Property as their principal place of 
residence, the Property shall be transferred pursuant to Section 4 hereof. An Owner shall be 
deemed to have changed their domicile by: becoming a resident elsewhere; accepting permanent 
employment outside of San Miguel County, Colorado; or residing in the Property for fewer than 
nine (9) months per calendar year. 

e.   If at any time a Qualified Owner also owns any interest alone or in conjunction with 
others in any developed residential property or dwelling unit located in San Miguel County, 
Colorado, the Qualified Owner shall immediately list said other property or unit for sale to sell the 
Qualified Owner's interest in such property at a sales price comparable to like units or properties 
in the area in which the property or dwelling unit is located. If said other property or unit(s) has 
not been sold by the Qualified Owner within one hundred twenty (120) days of its listing, the 
Qualified Owner shall immediately contact the MVHA to Transfer the Property pursuant to 
Section 4 hereof. It is understood and agreed that, in the case of a Qualified Owner whose business 
is the construction and sale of residential properties or the purchase and sale of such properties, 
the properties that constitute inventory in the business shall not constitute other developed 
residential property or dwelling unit as those terms are used in this Section. 

f. No later than February 1st of each year, the Owner shall submit one (1) copy of a 
sworn affidavit, on a form provided by the MVHA, verifying that the Property is occupied in 
accordance with this Deed Restriction and the Guidelines. 

4. Transfer.   

a. Every Transfer shall be made in accordance with this Section.   

b. The Owner shall first notify the MVHA that the Owner wishes to Transfer the 
Property. The MVHA shall have the first option to purchase the Property.   



 

 2768570.1  4 
 

c. Should the MVHA determine not to purchase the Property, the MVHA shall list the 
Property for sale in accordance with the Guidelines and shall thereafter select a Qualified Buyer 
pursuant to the Guidelines.   

d. The Property shall be transferred only to the MVHA or a Qualified Buyer and shall 
not be sold for more than the Maximum Resale Price, which shall be determined by the MVHA in 
accordance with this Deed Restriction and the Guidelines. The date of closing shall be determined 
by the MVHA in consultation with the Owner and the Qualified Buyer.   

e. Prior to or at closing, the Owner shall pay the MVHA a nonrefundable listing fee 
equal to 2% of the Maximum Resale Price. The MVHA may instruct the title company to pay said 
fees to the MVHA out of the funds held for the Owner at the closing.   

d. At closing, the Qualified Buyer shall execute, in a form satisfactory to the MVHA 
and for recording with the San Miguel County Clerk and Recorder, a document acknowledging 
this Deed Restriction and expressly agreeing to be bound by it. 

5. Effect of Transfer to a Non-Qualified Owner.   

a. If for any reason the Property is transferred to a Non-Qualified Owner, the Non-
Qualified Owner shall immediately contact the MVHA to Transfer the Property pursuant to 
Section 4 hereof.   

b. The Non-Qualified Owner shall execute any and all documents necessary for the 
Transfer. 

c. A Non-Qualified Owner shall not:  occupy the Property; rent any part of the 
Property; engage in any business activity in the Property; or Transfer the Property except in 
accordance with this Deed Restriction. 

d. The MVHA shall have the right and option to purchase the Property, exercisable 
within a period of fifteen (15) days after receipt of notice pursuant to Subsection a. hereof, and if 
the MVHA exercises its right and option, the MVHA shall purchase the Property from the Non-
Qualified Owner for a price equal to 95% of the Maximum Resale Price, or the appraised market 
value, whichever is less.   

6. Transfer by Devise or Inheritance.   

a. If a Transfer occurs by devise or inheritance due to death of an Owner, the personal 
representative of the Owner's estate or the person inheriting the Property (the "Inheriting Owner") 
shall provide written notice to the MVHA within thirty (30) days of the date of death. 

b. If the Inheriting Owner is a Qualified Owner, they shall provide the MVHA with 
documentation proving their status as such, and the MVHA may determine if the Inheriting Owner 
is in fact a Qualified Owner. If the Inheriting Owner fails to provide the required documentation, 
they shall be deemed a Non-Qualified Owner. If the Inheriting Owner is a Qualified Owner, they 
shall succeed to the Qualified Owner's interest and obligations under this Deed Restriction. 



 

 2768570.1  5 
 

c. If the Inheriting Owner is a Non-Qualified Owner, the Inheriting Owner shall 
contact the MVHA to Transfer the Property pursuant to Section 4 hereof.   

7. Rental.  Nothing in this Section shall preclude a Qualified Owner from sharing occupancy 
of the Property with other Qualified Tenants on a rental basis, provided that the Qualified Owner 
continues to comply with this Deed Restriction. Leases of less than thirty (30) days or more than 
six (6) months are prohibited, provided that a Qualified Tenant may renew a six (6) month lease 
without limitation.   

8. Breach. 

a. It shall be a breach of this Deed Restriction for an Owner, Qualified Buyer or 
Qualified Tenant to violate any provision of this Deed Restriction, or to default in payment or other 
obligations due to be performed under a promissory note secured by a first deed of trust 
encumbering the Property.   

b. If the MVHA has reasonable cause to believe that an Owner, Qualified Buyer or 
Qualified Tenant is violating this Deed Restriction, the MVHA may inspect the Property between 
the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, after providing the Owner or 
Inheriting Owner with twenty-four (24) hours’ written notice. This Deed Restriction shall 
constitute permission to enter the Property during such times upon such notice. 

c. If the MVHA discovers a violation of this Deed Restriction, the MVHA shall notify 
the Owner, Qualified Buyer or Qualified Tenant of the violation and allow fifteen (15) days to 
cure.   

9. Remedies.   

a. Any Transfer in violation of this Deed Restriction shall be wholly null and void and 
shall confer no title whatsoever upon the purported buyer. Each and every Transfer, for all 
purposes, shall be deemed to include and incorporate by this reference the covenants contained in 
this Deed Restriction, even if the Transfer documents fail to reference this Deed Restriction. 

b. The MVHA may pursue all available remedies for violations of this Deed 
Restriction, including without limitation specific performance or a mandatory injunction requiring 
a Transfer of the Property, with the costs of such Transfer to be paid out of the proceeds of the 
sale. 

c. Upon request by the MVHA, each Owner authorizes the holder of any mortgage or 
deed of trust against the Property to disclose to the Town if any payments due are delinquent and 
the duration and amount of such delinquency. 

d. Any violation of this Deed Restriction shall cause the Maximum Resale Price to 
freeze and remain fixed until the date such violation is fully cured. 

e. In addition to the specific remedies set forth herein, the MVHA shall have all other 
remedies available at law or equity, and the exercise of one remedy shall not preclude the exercise 
of any other remedy.   



 

 2768570.1  6 
 

10. Foreclosure.   

a. An Owner shall notify the MVHA, in writing, of any notification received from a 
lender of past due payments or defaults in payments or other obligations within five (5) days of 
receipt of such notification. 

b. An Owner shall immediately notify the MVHA, in writing, of any notice of 
foreclosure under the first deed of trust or any other subordinate security interest in the Property, 
or when any payment on any indebtedness encumbering the Property is required to avoid 
foreclosure of the first deed of trust or other subordinate security interest in the Property.    

c. Within sixty (60) days after receipt of any notice described herein, the MVHA may 
(but shall not be obligated to) proceed to make any payment required to avoid foreclosure. Upon 
making any such payment, the MVHA shall place a lien on the Property in the amount paid to cure 
the default and avoid foreclosure, including all fees and costs resulting from such foreclosure.    

d. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Deed Restriction, in the event of a 
foreclosure, acceptance of a deed-in-lieu of foreclosure, or assignment, this Deed Restriction shall 
remain in full force and effect.  

e. The MVHA shall have thirty (30) days after issuance of the public trustee’s deed 
or the acceptance of a deed in lieu of foreclosure by the holder in which to purchase by tendering 
to the holder, in cash or certified funds, an amount equal to the redemption price which would have 
been required of the borrower or any person who might be liable upon a deficiency on the last day 
of the statutory redemption period(s) and any additional reasonable costs incurred by the holder 
related to the foreclosure. 

11. Miscellaneous. 

a. Modification.  This Deed Restriction may only be modified by subsequent written 
agreement of the Parties. 

b. Integration.  This Deed Restriction and any attached exhibits constitute the entire 
agreement between Buyer and the MVHA, superseding all prior oral or written communications.   

c. Binding Effect.  This Deed Restriction shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit 
of the Parties and their respective heirs, successors and assigns. 

d. Severability.  If any provision of this Deed Restriction is determined to be void by 
a court of competent jurisdiction, such determination shall not affect any other provision hereof, 
and all of the other provisions shall remain in full force and effect.   

e. Governing Law and Venue.  This Deed Restriction shall be governed by the laws 
of the State of Colorado, and any legal action concerning the provisions hereof shall be brought in 
San Miguel County, Colorado. 



 

 2768570.1  7 
 

f. Assignment.  There shall be no transfer or assignment of any of the rights or 
obligations of Buyer under this Deed Restriction without the prior written approval of the MVHA. 

g. Third Parties.  There are no intended third-party beneficiaries to this Deed 
Restriction. 

h. No Joint Venture.  Notwithstanding any provision hereof, the MVHA shall never 
be a joint venture in any private entity or activity which participates in this Deed Restriction, and 
the MVHA shall never be liable or responsible for any debt or obligation of any participant in this 
Deed Restriction.   

i. Notice.  Any notice under this Deed Restriction shall be in writing, and shall be 
deemed sufficient when directly presented or sent pre-paid, first-class United States Mail to the 
Party at the address set forth on the first page of this Deed Restriction. 

j. Recording.  This Deed Restriction shall be recorded with the San Miguel County 
Clerk and Recorder. The benefits and obligations of the Parties under this Deed Restriction shall 
run with the land, and shall be binding on any subsequent holder of an interest in the Property. 

k. Savings Clause.  If any of the terms, covenants, conditions, restrictions, uses, 
limitations, obligations or options created by this Deed Restriction are held to be unlawful or void 
for violation of:  the rule against perpetuities or some analogous statutory provision; the rule 
restricting restraints on alienation; or any other statutory or common law rules imposing like or 
similar time limits, then such provision shall continue only for the period of the lives of the current 
duly elected and seated members of the Mountain Village Town Council, their now living 
descendants, if any, and the survivor of them, plus twenty-one (21) years. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Deed Restriction as of the 
Effective Date. 

TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, 
COLORADO 

 
________________________________  
Laila Benitez, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________ 
Susan Johnston, Town Clerk 

BUYER 
 

By: ________________________________ 
 
STATE OF COLORADO ) 
    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF SAN MIGUEL ) 
 



 

 2768570.1  8 
 

The foregoing instrument was subscribed, sworn to and acknowledged before me this ___ 
day of ___________________, 201_, by ________________, as the owner of the Property located 
at ______________________Mountain Village, Colorado  81435. 
 

Witness my hand and official seal. ______________________________ 
Notary Public 

(S E A L) 
 

My commission expires:  



 PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 
DEPARTMENT 

455 Mountain Village Blvd. 
Mountain Village, CO 81435 

(970) 728-1392

Agenda Item No. 9 
____________________________________________________________________________  
TO: Town Council  

FROM:  Amy Ward, Planning and Community Housing Program Director 
 Rodney Walters, Town Forester / GIS Assistant 

FOR: Town Council Regular Meeting; January 19, 2023 
DATE: January 10, 2023  

RE: Community Forestry Program Update and State of Forest Report 
___________________________________________________________________________ 

Attachments: 

Exhibit A: Mountain Village Forest Management Plan, 2014 (Bangert) 
< https://mtnvillage.exavault.com/share/view/3aop7-euqye94b > 

Exhibit B: Town of Mountain Village – Forest Type and Conditions Report, 2022 (Sibold) 
< https://mtnvillage.exavault.com/share/view/3aoqa-4n8a4x4c > 

Exhibit C: Colorado State Forest: Adaptive Silviculture for Climate Change (ASCC webpage information) 
< https://forestadaptation.org/adapt/demonstration-projects/colorado-state-forest-

adaptive-silviculture-climate-change-
ascc#:~:text=The%20Colorado%20State%20Forest%20is,across%20the%20U.S.%20and%20Canada > 

Executive Summary: In July 2022, Rodney Walters began his new position as the Town of 
Mountain Village (TMV) Town Forester/GIS Assistant.  Two goals of the new forester position 
were initiated during the remainder of 2022:  1. the maintenance of the current components 
of the TMV Forestry Program and 2. the production and sustainment of a data based TMV 
Strategic Forest Management Plan.  The Town Forester is updating the Council to describe 
how the current components of the TMV Forestry Program were maintained during the 
second half of 2022 and to communicate what actions have been taken so far in a 4-step 
process to produce a Strategic TMV Forest Management Plan.  The Town Forester will be 
asking the council what method they would prefer, in step 2 of the plan, to gather community 
stakeholder feedback for the development of TMV Forestry Program’s strategic goals.  
Additionally, the forester will answer any Council questions about what has been learned so 
far in step 1, “what do we have?” based on a preliminary assessment by Dr. Sibold and other 
informational sources regarding TMV’s community forest(s).   

https://mtnvillage.exavault.com/share/view/3aop7-euqye94b
https://mtnvillage.exavault.com/share/view/3aoqa-4n8a4x4c
https://forestadaptation.org/adapt/demonstration-projects/colorado-state-forest-adaptive-silviculture-climate-change-ascc#:%7E:text=The%20Colorado%20State%20Forest%20is,across%20the%20U.S.%20and%20Canada
https://forestadaptation.org/adapt/demonstration-projects/colorado-state-forest-adaptive-silviculture-climate-change-ascc#:%7E:text=The%20Colorado%20State%20Forest%20is,across%20the%20U.S.%20and%20Canada
https://forestadaptation.org/adapt/demonstration-projects/colorado-state-forest-adaptive-silviculture-climate-change-ascc#:%7E:text=The%20Colorado%20State%20Forest%20is,across%20the%20U.S.%20and%20Canada


Mountain Village Community Forestry Program 

 

Introduction and Forestry Program Overview 

     Rodney Walters (Town Forester/GIS assistant) started working full time as the Town Forester 
on July 25th, 2022 and has been operating within two initial goals: 
 

1. Maintain the current components of the Mountain Village Forestry Program 
2. Produce and sustain a data based Strategic Mountain Village Forest Management 

Plan that incorporates the vision and goals of the Mountain Village community and 
facilitates high-quality management of the Town of Mountain Village’s tree and 
forest resources.   
 

     During the past two decades southwest Colorado has experienced warmer and dryer 
conditions than in the past 1200 years, the forests of the Upper San Miguel (USM) watershed 
experienced three substantial droughts accompanied by an extended period of unseasonable 
warm weather.  The result was substantial aspen drought mortalities, beetle and other insect 
outbreaks, significant amounts of sub-alpine fir die-off, and a buildup of standing dead and 
forest floor fuels that will increase the likelihood of fire intensity if a wildfire should occur.  
Extreme conditions are likely to become more of a normal state as we move through the next 
thirty to forty years (Sibold 2022). 

     The primary goal for the TMV's forestry program outlined in the Community Development 
Code provides the directive to "...preserve and maintain a healthy forest ecosystem and 
landscape while also protecting buildings from wildfire" (TMV 2020).  There are several 
challenges associated with these principal goals.  We are entering a time where a forestry 
buzzword for the American Southwest is "conversion", which means many forest systems are 
changing in species composition or, in some cases, from forest vegetation cover types to non-
forest vegetation cover types.  “Natural resources are among our most valuable assets and are 
worthy of protection and stewardship.  Mountain ‘Village’s forests need to be managed to 
address contemporary and emerging issues including forest health, wildfire, loss of scenic 
vistas, and aesthetic values, ongoing and potential bark beetle outbreaks, habitat diversity for 
wildlife, watershed health, carbon sequestration, and potential climate change” (Bangert 2014).  
To meet the stated TMV goals above, active management of TMV's forest will be required to 
successfully maintain forest health, prevent wildfire, and help facilitate the inevitable forest 
migration transformation that has begun within the USM watershed area (Sibold 2022).  This 
transformation has been stated by Dr. Sibold and other scientists as having already started and 
it is anticipated to accelerate over the next 40 years (The Northern Institute of Applied Climate 
Science 2022).   



     A strategic approach is needed to achieve the Town's forestry goals over time.  An effective 
strategic process will:  
 

1. Gather fact-based data to generate high-quality forest assessments 
2. Engage the community and its partners to formulate a vision and objectives 
3. Apply resources to complete objectives through the completion of ongoing field 

work projects 
4. Engage in an ongoing program assessment process to facilitate and adaptive 

capability to the strategic approach 
 

The sustainment of a long-term, ongoing forest management approach will be a challenge. 
However, the Town of Mountain Village is up to the task of achieving its environmental and 
forestry goals. 
 
Mountain Village Forestry Program Accomplishments, 2022: 

     Historically, the Town of Mountain Village Forestry Program has consisted of 5 main areas of 
focus:  

1. Town Woodlot and Tree Removal Permitting 
2. Wildfire Mitigation Defensive Space Incentive Program 
3. Cedar Shake Incentive Program 
4. Regional Wildfire Mitigation Engagement 
5. Forest Health Activities 

Specific 2022 details on each of the above program areas.  

1. The Mountain Village woodlot and tree removal permitting:  

     The woodlot program has been very successful and has helped to reduce greenhouse gas 
and overall emissions.  Staff has continued to work with contractors to utilize the wood lot to 
reduce overall project costs for residents.  Contractor agreements were updated for 2022 and 
onsite signage helps ensure compliance with woodlot regulations.  Within the forester’s 
oversight, contractors and other woodlot users have demonstrated an excellent level of 
stewardship and respect in following the rules and keeping the woodlot neat, tidy, and 
functional.  Wood from thinning projects, that would otherwise be transported to the landfill or 
to private wood yards, has been made available to Mountain Village residents and regional 
firewood users.  The woodlot has become a valued community resource. 

     The Town requires tree removal permits be issued by the Town Forester for any proposed 
tree removals.  The overall number of tree removal permits issued in 2022 was 167 permits 
(Table 1).  



Table 1. Tree permits 
Year 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 (July – December) 
Tree Permits Issued 137  104   97   84  101          167 

     The primary reasons for tree removals requests included dead, diseased, and hazardous 
trees.  Tree removals for wildfire mitigation is becoming a very high priority for property 
owners because insurance companies are increasingly concerned with wildfire risks and have 
begun increasing rates and/or compelling property owners to harden their properties from 
wildfire to be able to maintain their insurance coverages.   
 

     As a result of beetle infestations effecting several tree species and high rates of tree 
mortalities continue to be a trend in Mountain Village, particularly among the subalpine fir 
trees.  The town continues to waive the fee for trees that are deemed hazardous, dead, or 
dying.  Tree removal permit fees are required for larger projects that involve more staff 
participation at a prescribed hourly rate of $75 per hour for staff time.   
 

     In addition to tree permitting, the forester position also provides pre and post development 
plan referral reviews for landscaping and fire mitigation plans, issues tree removal guidance for 
new construction and additions, delivers follow up inspections for new construction to verify 
that the landscaping meets requirements for wildfire protection, and offers site visits for 
homeowners. 
 
2. Wildfire Mitigation Defensive Space Incentive Program 

     Due to insurability issues and increasing interest in wildfire risk mitigation, the Defensive 
Space Incentive Program is currently in very high demand.  During 2022, twenty-four (24) 
Wildfire Mitigation, Defensive Space Program assessments were conducted on private 
properties, resulting in the completion of fifteen (15) Defensive Space projects.  Several other 
projects are in various stages in the process of completion.  There are an additional eleven (11) 
requests for Defensive Space Program assessments on a wait list.  These requests are being 
facilitated at a rate of about one (1) assessment per week.  The Town of Mountain Village, 
working in conjunction the Town of Mountain Village owners Association (TMVOA) in this 50/50 
cost share program, provides up to $10,000 per property for this important work to occur.  The 
goal is to continue to work at a pace of assessing approximately one property per week to 
provide resources to help Mountain Village property owners mitigate their properties from 
potential wildfire effects.  The assignment of firefighting assets for property or neighborhood 
defense in a process known as “structural triage”, is most often determined by how well areas 
have been made safe enough for firefighters to operate and by how likely infrastructure may be 
saved.  Wildfire defensive space mitigation projects and home hardening measures improve a 
structure’s likelihood of surviving a wildfire and advances the primary criterion for assigning 



firefighting assets to specific locations (Colorado State Forest Service 2012).  In real terms, 
Defensive Space Incentive Program projects are helping our community to become safer with 
the completion of each project.   

3. Cedar Shake Incentive Program 

     The single most effective step that can be taken to protect properties from wildfire is to 
ensure that cedar shake roofing is replaced with UL Class A fire rated roofing assemblies that 
have been certified by a testing agency to be effective against severe fires (Colorado State 
Forest Service 2012).  During 2022, we processed twenty-six (28), cedar shake building permits 
as part of the incentive program with a total waived permit value of $127,996.55 with a 
$3,412,104.47 valuation.  The replacement of cedar shake roofs is helping properties to be 
insurable and provides our community with much needed protection from potential wildfire.  

4. Regional Wildfire Mitigation Engagement 

     The Town of Mountain Village recognizes that engagement and participation with regional 
agencies is a critical component in the mitigation of potential wildfire effects for the 
community.  Wildfires are indiscriminate as they cross all boundaries and property lines.  As 
such, is important that regional community members engage and participate to do their part to 
help prevent forest fires and plan to complete projects that minimize the effects of fire when 
they do occur.    

     During 2022, Mountain Village engaged as a participating partner in the process of updating 
San Miguel County’s Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) and the San Miguel County All 
Hazard Mitigation Plan.  Mountain Village staff and the forester participated in meetings with 
the West Region Wildfire Council collaborative and are reaching out to other organizations and 
agencies including: Telluride Fire District; Telski; the US Forest Service, Norwood Ranger 
District; the Colorado State Forest Service; Upper San Miguel Watershed Coalition; and others 
to become more informed and to participate as a community member in addressing wildfire 
risks.  The goal is to facilitate partnerships in obtaining resources for mutually beneficial, 
meaningful, and effective planning efforts and field projects that will help Mountain Village 
mitigate the effects of potential wildfires and keep our community safe.  

5. Forest Health Projects and Activities 

Generally, forest health and fire mitigation objectives can be achieved simultaneously.  
This is because regeneration and thinning projects both improve forest health and reduce 
negative effects of wildfire.  It is recommended that forest regeneration field projects that 
range in an accumulative scope and scale large enough to be effective be implemented in a 
phased approach over time.  To be effective over time, this method would require ongoing 



phased fieldwork.  This approach, by necessity, would involve partnering with private 
landowners and organizations such as the Town of Mountain Village Owners Association and 
private property owners for the treatment of strategically important areas, such as Lawson 
Overlook, private properties on TMV’s southern border, private properties on the slopes locate 
on the southside of Mountain Village Blvd, the northern and southern TMV trail system areas, 
and the privately owned downslope areas surrounding the northern TMV border slope and top 
of slope areas.   

The Forest health management program involves annual forest health management 
projects on Town of Mountain Village-owned parcels.  These projects are important for helping 
to reduce tree risks, improving forest health, reducing fuel loads, and for setting an example of 
attentive stewardship within our community.  During 2022, five forestry field projects were 
conducted to reduce tree risks and improve forest health:  

• Upper Benchmark Road - Storm damage cleanup 
• Lower Benchmark Road – Right-of-Way hazard tree abatement  
• Mountain Village Lot OS 16 (between Benchmark Drive & Wilson Peak Drive) – 

Dead tree hazard mitigation and forest floor fuels cleanup 
• Dead tree hazard mitigation on Mountain Village Boulevard, near Aspen Ridge 

Dr.  
• Mountain Village Lot 650 – Disease abatement (removal of 10 diseased Douglas 

fir trees) and dead aspen hazard removals over the new Mountain Village Shop 
building  

In addition, MCH (3-methyl-2-Cyclohexen-1-one) bubble packets, were purchased for the 
purpose of treating forest stands that contain Douglas fir trees with this Douglas fir and spruce 
trees.  MCH is a naturally occurring anti-aggregation pheromone that repels Douglas-fir beetles. 

Produce and sustain a data based Strategic Mountain Village Forest Management Plan:  

     Ultimately, forest health and fire mitigation goals should be determined by science-based 
data and the vision of the Mountain Village Community.  To achieve this, a long-term approach 
should establish a Forest Management Plan that produces the effective and sustainable 
achievement of the desired level of forest health and wildfire protection.  The Colorado State 
Forest Service is engaged in testing silvicultural approaches to forest health adaptation 
(Adaptive Silviculture for Climate Chance – ACC, 2022) that are already producing strategies and 
recommendations for spruce-fir forest management.  These tests are already providing a range 
of forestry practices and methods that may prove to be very useful for the Town of Mountain 
Village. 

For an effective and sustainable Mountain Village Forestry Program to occur, it is 
imperative that a Strategic Mountain Village Forest Management Plan be developed.  This plan 



will incorporate the vision and goals of the Mountain Village community and facilitates high-
quality management of the Town of Mountain Village’s tree and forest resources.  Effective 
strategic community forest management plans involve four primary components:  

1. Science based data and analyses to determine what we have.   
 

2. A community vision and goal setting process to determine what results we want.   
 

3. Application of resources and short-term plans to complete field projects to meet 
established objectives on a scope and scale that produces effective results over time. 
 

4. An ongoing review process that evaluates if strategic goals are being achieved and 
allows for adaptive management by providing opportunities for adjustments to the 
ever-changing distinctiveness of natural systems, social based goals, and economic 
realities.   

Preliminary Data and Analyses 

During the second half of 2022, two sets of preliminary data-based analyses have been 
produced.  The town forester utilized an online web-based tool from the Colorado Forest Atlas 
website to generate a report (10-18-2022) for the Mountain Village area.  This report utilizes 
satellite-based data and US Forest Service automated analytics to produce maps, graphs, and 
charts the visually show wildfire related products that indicate geographically based factors 
such as Wildfire Risk ratings, Fire Intensity scales, Wildland Urban Interface Risks ratings and 
more (CO-WRAP 2020).   Although this report is both compelling and helpful, it does have 
notable limitations, such as the 30-meter pixel size of the satellite data (which produces 
distortions) and the age of the data itself, which is up to five years old.   

A second preliminary data-based set of analyses was conducted by Dr. Sibold who was hired 
by the town of Mountain Village this past summer to conduct a 2022 Mountain Village Forest 
Assessment (Sibold 2022).  The resulting Town of Mountain Village - Forest Type and Conditions 
Report embodies the benefit of up-to-date field observations and measurements as an 
enhancement to the 30-meter pixel sized satellite data, which has been interpreted by Dr. 
Sibold, a leading forest health and wildfire expert.  Although this information is helpful and 
does contain sound generalized recommendations, Dr. Sibold himself expressed that he faced 
challenges in effectively producing accurate vegetation maps that show forest health and forest 
fuel conditions at a level of accuracy that is needed to create high quality forest health and fire 
modeling maps at a scale that is most relevant for the Town of Mountain Village.    

High Quality Data and Analyses 

As a result of the limitations of the preliminary analyses and based on Dr. Sibold’s 
recommendation, a fly over to generate LIDAR data was contracted and scheduled for June 
2023.  This data will provide Town of Mountain Village with highly accurate data that shows 



terrain slope, forest floor fuels, the diameter and crown of every individual tree, and the health 
of the trees as measure by infrared spectral analysis.  This data will allow the generation of 
state-of-the-art fire behavior models based on various scenarios and conditions.  It will also 
identify, to a high level of accuracy, the species composition and health of the forest trees.   
This information will be utilized to produce a set of products that will allow recommendations 
to be made with a high level of confidence.  This will help Mountain Village pinpoint treatment 
areas that will produce the most effective results in maintaining forest health and wildfire 
safety.   

The Town Forester’s goal is to assess the data and analyses that will be delivered and 
engage TMV stakeholders during the remainder of 2023 to establish forestry and wildfire 
mitigation goals for the Town of Mountain Village.  This engagement and feedback from 
representatives of the TMV’s community will help direct the development of a Town of 
Mountain Village Strategic Forest Management Plan.  During the interim, field projects will 
continue to be conducted according to best understandings of priority until a longer term, 
comprehensive strategic process is able to be implemented.   This multi-pronged approach will 
ensure that import forestry work continues and will also help increase the effectiveness of 
future operations over time by introducing an informed strategic process that boosts the 
efficacy of field projects through the provision of data based, adaptive management of TMVs 
community forests.    

References  

1. Bangert D (2014) Mountain Village Forest Management Plan. Mountain Village, CO 
 

2. Colorado State Forest Service (2012) Protecting Your Home from Wildfire: Creating Wildfire-Defensible 
Zones: Quick Guide Series, Fire 2021-1. Fort Collins, CO  
 

3. Colorado Wildfire Risk Assessment Summary Report-CO-WRAP (2020) TMV Firerisk 2020. Generated from 
the Colorado Forest Atlas – Applications. https://coloradoforestatlas.org/  Colorado State Forest Service. 
Colorado State University, Fort Collins, CO.  Accessed 7 Oct, 2022 
 

4. Sibold J (2022) Town of Mountain Village – Forest Type and Conditions Report. Fort Collins, CO 

 
5. The Northern Institute of Applied Climate Science (2022) Colorado State Forest: Adaptive Silviculture for 

Climate Change (ASCC). In Climate Change Response Framework. 
https://forestadaptation.org/adapt/demonstration-projects/colorado-state-forest-adaptive-silviculture-
climate-change-
ascc#ascc#:~:text=The%20Colorado%20State%20Forest%20is,across%20the%20U.S.%20and%20Canada.  
Accessed 12 Dec 2022 
 

6. Town of Mountain Village-TMV (2020) Community Development Code, Title 17 of the Town of Mountain 
Village Municipal Code. Town of Mountain Village, CO 

https://coloradoforestatlas.org/
https://forestadaptation.org/adapt/demonstration-projects/colorado-state-forest-adaptive-silviculture-climate-change-ascc#ascc
https://forestadaptation.org/adapt/demonstration-projects/colorado-state-forest-adaptive-silviculture-climate-change-ascc#ascc
https://forestadaptation.org/adapt/demonstration-projects/colorado-state-forest-adaptive-silviculture-climate-change-ascc#ascc


Program Update and  
State of  the  Forest 
Report

Rodney Walters – TMV Forester

Mountain
Village
Community 
Forestry
Program  

Photo Credit: University of Colorado Boulder



Slide Topics
TMV Forestry Program, State of  Forest 
Overview

Forestry Program Achievements, 2022

Goal: Produce & Sustain a Strategic Mountain 
Village Forest Management Plan

Summary

TMV FORESTRY PROGRAM UPDATE 
AND STATE OF THE  FOREST REPORT

January 2023



The State of  the Forest Overview
The state of  the TMV forests is changing.  The warmer and dryer temperatures 
experienced over the past two decades is likely to become the norm.  This will 
result in widespread tree mortalities, beetle and other insect outbreaks, increased 
occurrences of  new tree pathogens, and the continuing buildup of  standing dead 
and forest floor fuels.  It will result in forest migration and species composition 
changes (Sibold).

2023 TMV FORESTRY PROGRAM UPDATE AND  STATE OF THE  FOREST REPORT 3



TMV Forestry Program Achievements, 2022
a

1. Woodlot & Tree Removal Permits

• The TMV Woodlot (Continued Success)

• Total Tree Permits Issued = 167
Year 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 

Tree Permits 
Issued

137 104 97 84 101 167

2. Wildfire Defensive Space Mitigation Incentive Program
• Completed Defensive Space Program Projects = 15

3. Cedar Shake Roof Replacement Incentive Program
• Cedar Shake Program: 28 permits issued, $127,997 waved fees , 

$3,412,104 valuation
Photo Credit: Wisegmund,
Wikimedia Commons



TMV Forestry Program Achievements, 2022 
4. Regional Wildfire Mitigation Engagement

• Participation in updating San Miguel County’s Community Wildfire Protection 

Plan (CWPP) and the County’s All Hazard Mitigation Plan

• Involvement & Engagement with the West Region Wildfire Council collaborative

• Reaching out and having conversations with local & regional organizations

o Telluride Fire District

o US Forest Service

o Upper San Miguel Watershed Coalition 

o Colorado State Forest Service

- Future Opportunities Include: Firewise (recognition), 

Fire Adapted Colorado (FACO) (recognition), and/or TMV specific CWPP 



TMV Forestry Program Achievements, 2022
5. Forest Health Projects and Activities

• 2022 Forest Type &Conditions Report, Dr. Sibold assessment)

• Upper benchmark Road - Storm damage cleanup

• Lower Benchmark Road – Right-of-Way hazard tree abatement 

• Mountain  Village Lot OS 16 (between Benchmark Drive & Wilson 
Peak Drive) – Hazard tree mitigation & ground fuels cleanup

• Hazard tree abatement on Mountain Village Boulevard , near 
Aspen Ridge Dr. 

• Mountain Village Lot 650 – 10 Disease abatement (10 diseased 
Douglas fir trees)  & dead aspen hazard removals over the new 
Mountain Village Shop building 

• MCH repellent bubble caps ordered for Douglas-fir beetle 
treatment of Douglas fir stands this coming spring

Photo Credit: 
Thomas Morse



Goal

Produce and sustain a science-based Strategic 
Mountain Village Forest Management Plan

January 2023
TMV FORESTRY PROGRAM UPDATE 

AND STATE OF THE  FOREST REPORT 7



TMV Strategic, Forest Management Plan
How we get there

EFFECTIVE 
ANALYSES
Science Based Data and 
Analyses to Determine 
What We Have
 Forest Type and 

Conditions Report 2022 
(Sibold)

 TMV Firerisk, CO. 
Wildfire Risk Summary 
Report (CO-WRAP) 

 LIDAR Flight & 
Analyses (2023) & other 
future Assessment 
products

ESTABLISH 
COMMUNITY GOALS
Engage Community 
Stakeholders to 
Recommend Goals

 Assemble a group of  
representative 
community members 
to formulate a vision, 
investigate options, & 
provide consensus-
based strategic 
objectives 

ASSESS 
PROGRESS
Perform Iterative 
Reviews to Determine if  
Strategic Goals are being 
Achieved

 Opportunity to make 
adjustments & adapt 
to changing nature 
of  ecosystems, 
evolving social goals, 
& economic realities 
(sustainable progress)

January 2023 8
TMV FORESTRY PROGRAM UPDATE 

AND STATE OF THE  FOREST REPORT

DECIDE HOW TO 
ACHIEVE GOALS 
& MOBILIZE

Apply Resources and 
Initiate Field Projects

 Design resource 
and annual work 
plans to 
successfully 
achieve established 
strategic  
objectives



Next Step:
Establish Community Goals

REPRESENTATIVE SET OF TMV 
STAKEHOLDERS 
• Town Council Member?

• TMV Staff

• Telluride Fire District (Chief  Bennett)

• TMVOA Representative(s)

• DRB Member

• HOA  Leaders

• Private landowners (Genesee, Telski, Others?)

• Single Family Homeowner Representative?

• Regional Forestry Experts 

• Others?

COMMUNITY FEEDBACK

• What method to engage stakeholders & 
receive feedback about community goals?
o Work Group 
o Task Force
o Committee
o Workshop
o Survey
o Other?

• Proposed Timeframe: 4 meetings over 8 
months?   Commence fall of  2023

January 2023 TMV FORESTRY PROGRAM UPDATE AND  STATE OF THE  FOREST REPORT
9



Summary
TMV’s forests are changing.  Warmer and dryer 
conditions are likely to persist and intensify causing 
widespread tree mortalities, insect outbreaks, 
increased occurrences of  new tree pathogens, and the 
buildup of  standing dead and down forest floor fuels.  
This will result in species composition changes and 
forest migration in and around the Town of  Mountain 
Village (Sibold).

These evolving conditions present challenges to the 
maintenance of  healthy forests. However, the Town 
of  Mountain Village is up to the task of  achieving its 
environmental and forestry goals.  By developing a 
strategic approach that facilitates adaptation forest 
health strategies, we may foster the development of  
healthy and sustainable community forests that 
demonstrates resiliency during an era of  changing 
conditions. 

2023

TMV FORESTRY PROGRAM UPDATE AND  STATE OF THE  FOREST REPORT
10



Thank you

Rodney Walters

rwalters@mtnvillage.com

(970) 369 - 8603

January 2023
TMV FORESTRY PROGRAM UPDATE 

AND STATE OF THE  FOREST REPORT 11



Colorado State Forest: Adaptive Silviculture for Climate Change (ASCC)

Spruce/subalpine forest stand type with budworm and beetle kill damage



How We Get There:
Strategic Mountain Village Forest Management Plan

I. Effective Analyses (What do we have?) – High Productivity 
Forest (Exhibiting signs of decline

Town of Mountain Village Forest Type and Conditions Report 
(Dr. Jason Sibold,  2022)
 Declining overall forest health

 2 Decades of Hotter & Dryer Conditions (likely to become the norm)
 Drought stress induced tree mortalities
 Drought stress as a predisposing agent for pathogens & disease complexes

o Sudden Aspen Decline (SAD) –
o * Spruce budworm
o * Western balsam bark beetle 
o * Douglas-fir bark beetle
o Western balsam bark beetle 
o ***Spruce beetle

 Increasing standing dead & downed tree fuel loads

Photo credit: R. Andrus Photo Credit: Gilpin County Extension



I. Analyses (What do we have?)
Town of Mountain Village Forest Type and Conditions Report  
(Dr. Jason Sibold 2022)

• Forest Stand Types 
 Aspen – Drought losses of 25-50% of large canopy trees caused a pulse of 

new regeneration that made the stands more resilient (ungulate browse is 
an issue) 

o Recommendation - Thin stand and protect saplings from ungulates
- Monitor aspen for aspen bark beetle developments

 Aspen/Conifer (lower, north side stands contain many Douglas fir) –
Ungulate browse is reducing aspen regeneration and spruce budworm has 
significantly impacted the Douglas fir and subalpine fir trees.  Subalpine fir 
are being heavily defoliated.  Western balsam beetle is having scattered 
effects on subalpine fir.
o Recommendation - Promote aspen, Englemann spruce, Douglas fir and

aspen regeneration & their recruitment into the 
canopy

- Remove standing dead and down.  Thin conifers for  
crown separation



I. Analyses (What do we have?)
Town of Mountain Village Forest Type and Conditions Report – Dr. Jason Sibold, 2022

• Forest Stand Types (continued)
• Englemann spruce/subalpine fir (conifer) forests - The least healthy of the stand types, 

approximately 250-300 in age (near the end of the natural 350-year fire regime cycle) 
dominating the higher elevation forests in TMV.  They have proportionally greater numbers 
of subalpine fir.  The spruce trees are the healthiest tree species, while the subalpine fir 
trees are the least healthy.  The spruce are showing a greater resilience to spruce budworm 
where the subalpine fire are being heavily defoliated by the same insect.  A majority of the 
subalpine may not survive the spruce budworm outbreak, which is creating large quantities 
of dead and down fuels.  A potential outbreak of spruce beetles could kill the remaining 
spruce trees. 

 Recommendations - Remove heavily diseased trees and excessive 
fuels

- Treat management actions as experiments to 
refine management options and facilitate 
more spruce regeneration

- Thin to increase the health of stands, favoring 
spruce



Vegetation Cover Types in TMV
I. Analyses (What do we have?)

spruce-
fir
3,057
acres

urban
669
acres Aspen

1622
acres

Conifer-
Hardwood
720
acres

3500 

"'"" 

!.•JIJU 

720 

,., ,.., .. - ■ n 

0 .0 % 

203 2.9 % 

0.1 % 

8 0.1 % 

91 1.3 % The Vegetation map describes 
60 0.9 % the general vegetation and 
18 0.3 % landcover types across the state 

0 of Colorado. In the Colorado 
46 WRA, the Vegetation dataset is 

197 used to support the 
33 development of the Surface 

3,057 44.4 % Fuels, Canopy Cover, Canopy 
669 9 .7 % Stand Height, Canopy Base 
113 1.6 % Height, and Canopy Bulk Densi 

Hardwood 1,622 23.6 % datasets. 

Conifer-Hardwood 720 10.5 % 

0 0 % 0.5 Miles 

Barren 41 0.6 % I 

Total 6 ,884 100 % 



subalpine fir habitat range - American Conifer Society



Beetle killed subalpine fir

Photo Credit: 
Colorado State 
Forest Service



An example of a healthy 
Engelmann spruce-subalpine 
fir forest, a stand replacement 
fire regime forest, with a 
structure similar to Westside 
old growth forests. Photo by 
Robert Van Pelt



Pseudotsuga menziesii subsp. glauca (Rocky Mountain Douglas-fir) forest

Photo Credit: Wikimedia commons 



I. Analyses (What do we have?)
Damaging Insects:
Spruce Budworm: Causes defoliation and stress (subalpine fir & Doug fir),

weakens trees & sets them up for secondary pest attacks

Regeneration thinning is the long-term solution (remove understory trees      
Even aged management systems!  - mimics stand replacement fires

Western Balsam Bark Beetle: Attack stressed fir and kills fir trees
Regeneration thinning reduces stand susceptibility 

(destroy slash & remove infested trees)

Douglas fir Beetle: Attack stressed Douglas fir and causes tree death
(breed in felled, injured, & diseased trees - Remove threatened, infested, & blow down trees)

Reduce stand density (Regeneration thinning) 
(apply antiaggregating pheromone – MCH packets 



The Importance of Forest Management 
“It is important to remember that western spruce budworm is a native
insect in Colorado’s forest ecosystems and part of an ever-changing forest.
However, 

the potential negative impacts of natural disturbances, such as
this defoliator and other insects and diseases, can be reduced through
proactive forest management.

Colorado’s forests provide clean air and water, wildlife habitat, worldclass
recreational opportunities, wood products, and unparalleled scenery.
These benefits contribute to quality of life and are vital to state and local
economies.  

Without careful management of forest resources, these assets
and community safety are at risk. It is critical to proactively manage
forests and for landowners and communities to remain informed about
threats to their forests, to ensure healthy, resilient forests for present and
future generations”  (Colorado State Forest Service, FM 2016-2).



Photo Credit: 
Sun Valley Blog

Beetle killed 
subalpine fir



Photo: US Forest Service

Ariael photo of Black Canyon in the Manti-La Sal National Forest shows dead spruce beetle killed spruce trees in 2019. 





Photo Credit: Upper Arkansas Water Conservation District



Photo Credit: Colorado state forest service



Photo Credit: David Powell, US Forest Service (retired)

Mature spruce/fir type  forest (some aspen present) following partial cutting, southern CO, Rio Grand NF



Photo Credit:
Tahoe Forest 
Restoration 
Partnership

Example of a 
well-
maintained 
pine/sprucer 
forest 



Photo Credit: Susan McDougall

Healthy subalpine fir stand with 
regeneration 

An excellent management 
practice on this site would 
involve simple thinning of the 
saplings to maintain crown 
separation 



I. Analyses (What do we have?)
Naturally Occurring Wildfire
Wildfire is a naturally occurring phenomenon that a critical component of regeneration and 
forest health in some forest stand types present in TMV (spruce/fir and ponderosa pine). 

Suppression of wildfire causes fuel load buildup and degradation of forest stand health.  

In Urban Wildland Interface areas (where controlled burns are not possible), defensive 
space is critical and even-aged management systems and thinning mimics stand 
replacement fires and produces forest stand regeneration 

To maintain wildfire safety, the recommendations are 
to reduce standing dead and down fuel loads and thin 
our forests to keep them healthy



Photo Credit: Christian Roberts-Olsen



I. Analyses (What do we have?)

TMV is rated medium for ignition density. This represents 
the likelihood of a wildfire starting based on historical 
ignition patterns  



I. Analyses (What do we have?)

Wildfire 
Potential 
– Annual 

Burn 
Probability

TMV Burn Probability Map
Colorado Wildfire Assessment Portal(CO-WRAP), 
2022

Non-Burnable 119 1.8 % 
Annual probability of any 

Very Low 1 ,900 28.8 % location burning due to a 
Very LOW-LOW 2 ,048 31.1 % wildfire. Fire models 

calculated from 3.2 
Low 2,381 36.1 % million fires under high 

Low-Moderate 141 2.1 % or extreme conditions for 
10 hour fire simulation 

Moderate 0 0 % durations (30m cells). 
Moderate-High 0 0 % The stochastic (Monte 

High 0 0 % 
Carlo) wildfire simulation 
method was applied. 

Higll-Ve1y High 0 0 % 

0 0.13 0 .25 0.5 Miles 



Wildfire Potential – Surface Fuels
I. Analyses (What do we have?)

Acres 

light
load,
dry
climate
timber-
grass-
shrub
2,001
acres

very
high
load
dry 
climate
timber-
shrub
2,556
acres

low
load
broadleaf
litter
220
acres

moderate
load
conifer 
litter
972
acres

TMV Surface Fuels
(CO-WRAP), 2022

Sr,o,.'1oe 0 

AolicullUle 0 

Waiet 18 

Barren 1S4 

Shon, ~..e, cry dlma!e Qi'a!:S 211 

GR2 Low load. cry cimate grass 140 

GR3 Low load. •eryoo,r..e, tuTiid ~e ~ 0 

GR4 Modetate load, dry timate g,ass 34 

GR l GTlO,OOOftefem,on 7 

GR2 GT 10,000 fi e!evalfon 8 

GSl Low load, cry dima!e grass~ 122 

GS2 Modefate load, dry cimate grass·slral 161 

GSl GT 10,000 ft ~oo 0 

SHl Low load, ayeimala $l'ilJII 10 

Stl 2 Modetare load. cry amare slvub 6S 

SH3 Moderate load, lurid dima!e shrub 0 

SH5 Higll load, humid dima.le shw 

SH7 Very hi9h loi!d, dry dim;i1e m.ib 0 

SH7 Oak Slvubland v.,thout c:llangn 36 

ru 1 Light load, dryclnwe timbef~ 2,001 

ru2 Moderate load, hYmid clim,ue limber-::lvub 0 

- TU5 Very tqi load, dry dirnale limber-sllw 2,556 

Tl.I Low load, compact CQll'fer l er 0 

Tl2 LOW load, lltOatlHI ~l!t 220 

TL3 Mooelate load. oonifer lmef 9n 

Tl.4 Small downed logs 0 

Higll load, cooife.- lnler 0 

Mode<ate load, broadleaf itte!I 

Latge doY.ned logs 0 

Long-needle •aeiJ 41 

r .• 
.I I .......... 

.i. :...-
I ·• I 
■ ■ 

1 17 
154 140 

0 0 11 0 

161 
U2 

34 7 8 o 10 

only for surface fire 
potential {Canopy fire 
potential is computed 
hrough a separate but 

linked process). 

65 
0 4 0 



Wildland Urban Interface Risks

I. Analyses (What do we have?)

Wildland Urban Interface (WUI),
Risk Index – Potential Impacts on People & Their 
Homes (CO-WRAP), 2022

WUII Risk Class Acres Percent 

-1 (Least Negative llmpact) 93 

-2 917 

-3 1 0 14 

-4 118 

-5 110 

-6 60 

53 

-8 167 

WI.II R.ls• hKlclf • R..ita: 
potential frnp.aCU Of a 
wiklfireM~eandtheir 
P'lomei. TM- ke'I' ln i,ut WlJI, 
~ housing density 
(hovsa ~ rolO'll)I$ 
combined wiU, typi(:.11.1 Dallllf! 
left911'1to teprHenl 
potential lfflpacts. Map 
shows whert1 potenHal 
Imp.id to homa ;md people 
art- Ukdy to o«ur. 



Severe VVildfire 
Co.nditio 

Fu,el~ '\Ve.atber and 
Topograph 

w I Di aster Se uence 

Extre1ue Burni1 12 Reside.ntia l Fires 
Co dtitions 

Hi,gh fir,e in tensitie 
and growth ra te:s 

, ...... 
Highly lgn1ta bl 
hom,e:s r ,e:sulCs in 

I 
Glva• 

---------- ll:Hltlon _________ _ 
GJ:veo 

bWDI! 

Fi refigb ti11312 
Resources 

Overwhelmed by 
w ildfire and 

igniting ho:m 

~ 
Reduoed .a d ,oft,en 

non-eris lien t 

...... 
WUI Fir,e Dis,a, ter 

umerou totaU 
destroy d h ,ome:s 

Figure 49. Th Vw'lJ di<;a.ster sequeDC be.gins with o,ve:rwhelmin ..-.'lldfire conditions 
imultaioeous igni:in ,g mmierom hcnies. HlDldreds to tbal and. of homes exposed , flW!DeS 

...... 

an.d firebrands ov :rwbehn tructure p-otectnn. Note bov.·e.1ver dia.t [ 6re disas1er depend Bi 

hi.sb)y ignitable banes (up:.per right x.). [£ ignition resi!.tant hCJl'.lle.S do not ign1e , hen 
fire, ei-s c.an effe :iv ly p rot t baoles. Th inevitable wildfire cur without disa.str 
residential destnictnn 

Page fr mmile, Cany · · · · s, 1 

, f Agri::ut 
esea:rcb . Re~ed 

v, 



Wildfire Behavior -Flame Length
I. Analyses (What do we have?)

Expected Flame Length Characteristics for TMV 
(Based of Fuels, Topography, & Weather)
(CO-WRAP), 2022

If a wildfire were to occur in the Town of Mountain 
Village, large portions of the
Town could expect high (8-12 foot), very high (12-25 
foot), or extreme flame lengths (25 + feet). 



Wildfire Potential - Extreme WeatherI. Analyses (What do we have?)

Likely Fire Types During Extreme Weather 
(CO-WRAP), 2022 (if a wildfire were to occur)

Surface Fire – Spreads through 
surface fuels (grass, forest 
litter, slash, other dead or live 
vegetation 

Passive Canopy Fire – type of 
canopy fire where the crowns 
of individual trees or small 
groups of trees burn, but solid 
flaming of the canopy cannot 
cannot be maintained except 
for short periods

Active Canopy Fire – Crown fire 
where the entire fuel complex 
(canopy) is involved in flame, 
but the crowning phase 
remains dependent on heat 
release from surface fuel for 
continued spread

Surf ace Fh·e 

Passive cai~1opy Fire 

AcUve ca1ITTopy Fire 

1.}67 
I 

1 775 

46.3 Vo 

26.8 Vo 

26.91 Vo 



Wildfire Potential – Intensity Scale

I. Analyses (What do we have?)

Fire Intensity Scale
CO-WRAP), 2022

Class 1, Lowest intensity: Very small 
discontinuous flames, less than 1 foot in 
length; very low rate of spread. Easy to 
suppress by firefighters 

Class 2, Low: Small flames, less than 2 feet; 
very short-range spotting. Fires are easy to 
suppress by trained firefighters with 
protective equipment/specialized tools

Class 4, High: Flames up to 30 feet; short to 
medium range spotting.  Direct attack by 
firefighters their equipment ineffective. 
Indirect attack may be effective.  Significant 
potential of harm or damage to life and 
property

Class 3, Moderate:  Up t 8-foot flames; short 
range spotting. Trained firefighters find 
these difficult to suppress without aircraft or 
engines, but dozer and plows are generally 
effective.  Increasing potential of harm or 
damage to life and property

Class 5, Highest Intensity: Flames up to 150 
feet; profuse short-range spotting, frequent 
long-range spotting; strong fire induced 
winds.  Indirect attack marginally effective.  
Great potential of harm or damage to life 
and property

If a wildfire were to occur in the 
Town of Mountain Village, large 
portions of the Town could expect 
Moderate, Moderate to High 
Intensity, and Highest Intensity 
wildfire. 



Wildfire Behavior – Suppression Difficulty
I. Analyses (What do we have?)

Suppression Difficulty Rating for TMV 
(CO-WRAP), 2022

SDR Class Acres Per,c,ent 

No Limita~ions 

Sliigtlt 

Slight to Moderate 

Moderate 

Moderate to s ·gnificam 

s ·gnmcam 

Siignificant to severe 

severe 

330 

304 

264 

2 ,018 

1 ,53'9 

323 

1007 
' 

204 

4 .8% 

4.4% 

3 .9% 

29.4 % 

22.4% 

4 .7% 

14.7 % 

3 .0% 

875 12.7 % 



Agenda Item No. 10    
PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 

 DEPARTMENT 
455 Mountain Village Blvd. 

Mountain Village, CO 81435 
 (970) 369-8250 

 
              
 
TO:  Mountain Village Town Council 
   
FROM: Amy Ward, Community Development Director 
 
FOR:  Town Council Meeting; January 19, 2023 
 
DATE:  January 13, 2023 
 
RE: Consideration of Resolution Approving a Conditional Use Permit for a Driveway on 

Lot OSP 18A, pursuant to CDC Section 17.4.14. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: Staff is requesting a continuation of the Consideration of Resolution Approving 
a Conditional Use Permit for a Driveway on Lot OSP 18A. The memo is being provided not to 
open the public hearing but solely for the purpose of the Town Council providing a motion to 
continue to the Regular February 16, 2023 meeting date.  
 
Town Council also has the ability to table the item, which would require the applicant to re-notice 
the project at a time in the future. 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: I move to continue, the Consideration of Resolution Approving a 
Conditional Use Permit for a Driveway on Lot OSP 18A to the Regular Town Council Meeting on 
February 16, 2023.  

 
/AW 



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
PLANNING DIVISION 

455 Mountain Village Blvd. 
Mountain Village, CO 81435 

(970) 728-1392

TO: Town of Mountain Village Town Council 

FROM: Michelle Haynes, Assistant Town Manager 

FOR: January 19, 2023   

DATE: January 10, 2023 

RE: Consideration of a Resolution Regarding a Major Subdivision application to replat 
portions of OS-3BR-2 into Lot 109R and a portion of Lot 109R into OS-3BR-2, 
along with a small right of way dedication to the Mountain Village Boulevard, 
resulting in a net increase to OS-3BR-2, Village Center active open space of 84 
square feet, decrease of Lot 109R of 175 square feet and 77 square feet 
dedicated to Mountain Village Boulevard, Active Open Space right of way that 
consists of an existing portion of the bridge – to be continued to the March 16, 
2023 regular meeting 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

PROJECT OVERVIEW 

RECOMMENDED CONTINUANCE MEMO 
I move to continue consideration of a Resolution Regarding a Major Subdivision application to 
replat portions of OS-3BR-2 into Lot 109R and a portion of Lot 109R into OS-3BR-2, along with 
a small right of way dedication to the Mountain Village Boulevard, resulting in a net increase to 
OS-3BR-2, Village Center active open space of 84 square feet, decrease of Lot 109R of 175 
square feet and 77 square feet dedicated to Mountain Village Boulevard, Active Open Space 
right of way that consists of an existing portion of the bridge to the March 16, 2023 Regular 
Town Council meeting. 

/mbh 

This item was public noticed to be heard at the January 19, 2023 meeting.  Staff 
recommends the major subdivision resolution be considered with the anticipated second 
reading of the PUD ordinance and second reading of the rezone related to the major 
subdivision ordinance, both recommended to be continued to the March 16, 2023 regular 
meeting.  

Agenda Item 11



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
PLANNING DIVISION 

455 Mountain Village Blvd. 
Mountain Village, CO 81435 

(970) 728-1392

TO: Mountain Village Town Council 

FROM: Michelle Haynes, Assistant Town Manager and Amy Ward, Community 
Development Director 

FOR: Public Hearing on January 19, 2023 continued from November 17, 2022, August 
18, 2022 and from the June 16, 2022 Town Council meetings.  

DATE: January 8, 2023 

RE: First Reading of an Ordinance Considering a Major Planned Unit Development 
Amendment to the Lot 109R Planned Unit Development, commonly called the 
Mountain Village Hotel, by Tiara Telluride, LLC  

____________________________________________________________________________ 

PROJECT OVERVIEW 

Legal Description:  Lot 109R, Town of Mountain Village according to the Plat recorded on  
March 18, 2011 in Plat Book 1 at Page 4455, Reception No. 416994, County of San Miguel, 
State of Colorado 

Lot OS-3BR-2, A Tract Of Land Lying In The SE Quarter Of Section 34 T43n R9w NMPM San 
Miguel County Colorado Described As Follows Tract OS 3BR2 Town Of Mountain Village Pl Bk 
1 Pg 4455 Recpt 416994 March 18 2011 Cont 1.969 Acres Mol 

The applicant requests a Major PUD Amendment to the 109R Planned Unit Development, 
formerly known as the Mountain Village Hotel PUD first approved in 2010, but subsequently 
received three PUD amendments to extend the approval to September of 2023. The 
amendment contemplates minor adjustments to the density and significant design changes. 
The applicant is no longer requesting any additional height over the existing 
approved PUD. A letter of intent has been provided by a luxury hotel brand called The Six 
Senses. The project will also include public plaza improvements, public bathrooms, a 
market, two retail spaces, fine dining, a bar and a conference/wedding space on the 6th 
floor. The application also contemplates a re-orientation and reconstruction of the Town 
owned trash facility, with use by applicant of this facility to house a portion of their required 
snowmelt boilers. The application also contemplates a replat to adjust boundaries around 
the property with the Town of Mountain Village, Village Center active open space property, 
Town Council has consented to the replat application. The use elements consist of 50 
guaranteed hot beds, 20 condominiums, 31 lodge units, 2 employee condominiums and 18 
employee dormitories, as well as hotel amenity spaces and public commercial areas as 
identified above. 

Agenda Item 12



Address:  628, 632,636, 638, 642 Mountain Village Blvd  - To be readdressed with 
redevelopment 
Owner/Applicant:  Tiara Telluride, LLC 
Agent:  Ankur Patel & Matt Shear 
Zoning:  Village Center Zone District, Village 
Center Active Open Space 
Proposed Zoning: Planned Unit 
Development (PUD)  
Existing Use:  Vacant, used for temporary 
surface parking 
Approved Use Pursuant to PUD 
Development Agreement:  66 efficiency 
lodge units; 38 lodge units, 20 condominium 
units, one employee apartment and 20,164 
sq. ft. of commercial space. 
Proposed Use: 50 efficiency lodge units, 18 
lodge units, 20 condominium units, 31 lodge 
units, 18 dormitory units, 2 employee 
apartments and approximately 26,468 square 
feet of commercial space.   
Site Area:  .825 acres proposed to change to 
.821 via a major subdivision application 

Adjacent Land Uses: 
• North:  See Forever, Village 

      Center 
• South:  Village Center, mixed use 
• East: Multi-Family and Single 

Family, vacant 
• West:  Peaks, Village Center 

RECORD DOCUMENTS 
• Town of Mountain Village Community

Development Code (as amended)
• Town of Mountain Village Home Rule

Charter (as amended)
• 2011 Town of Mountain Village

Comprehensive Plan

ATTACHMENTS 
Please note, attachments are indicated by the date received 
by Town staff, the dates listed on the individual documents 
themselves don’t accurately reflect the existence of multiple 
versions that show the same date 

1. Staff Exhibit Overview of the 109R Major PUD Amendment staff memo
2. Draft Ordinance (Draft development agreement to be provided at next hearing)
3. Application Cover sheet received 1.10.23
4. Applicant design narrative received 1.10.23
5. Design Variations Narrative received 1.10.23
6. Applicant Architectural Drawings

a. Design Docs received 1.10.23
b. Construction Mitigation received 1.10.23

Shirana
Westermere

109R 
109R 

Shirana

Westermere
 

Shirana

Westermere



c. Glass specification received 1.10.23
d. Traffic Study received 1.10.23
e. Gas Regulator Exhibit received 1.10.23
f. Switchgear Location Exhibit received 1.10.23
g. Existing Conditions Survey received 1.10.23
h. Model Link https://autode.sk/3GrT1tR

7. Existing Conditions ISP, on file with the planning department.
8. December 1, 2022 Design Review Board Packet
9. Design Review Board approved minutes with conditions of approval from December 1, 

2022
10. Town provided questions dated 1.2.23
11. Applicant supplement response to questions dated 1.2.23
12. Town staff referral meeting notes dated 1.03.23 (no applicant narrative responses 

provided)
13. Town provided questions dated 1.10.23
14. Applicant supplement response to questions dated 1.10.23
15. Staff Exhibit – 2010 v. 2023 PUD comparison, draft
16. Staff Exhibit – List of legal documents and timing triggers, draft
17. Staff Exhibit – Meeting History
18. Geotechnical report dated 8.04.22
19. Density certificate #27
20. Original PUD Agreement and associated documents found at the following link
21. Referral Comments
22. Public Comments

a. Cheryl
b. Grey
c. Shirana HOA
d. Elinoff
e. Kadin
f. Connor

OVERVIEW FROM JUNE TO JANUARY OF 2023 
It’s important to review the nine elements expressed as critical to the application when last 
discussed with Town Council in June and August of 2022. Most concerns were satisfied.  

1. Council stated the mass and height is an issue
The applicant revised their plans to address mass and scale. They are no longer asking for
additional height over the original approved PUD

2. Town Council states that moving lodging and efficiency lodge to a Class 1 for rezoning is not
doable in our community.
The applicant is no longer asking for this consideration.

3. Town Council states concern about mitigation payment being grouped for a reduction over
2.5 million for it is not feasible. The expense of Community Funds cannot be bypassed.
The applicant no longer requests a reduction in fees.

4. Town Council recommends working with staff to review and negotiate use or transfer of
public lands.
Staff initiated a zoom with the applicants on August 9, 2022 to discuss this specific concern
related to the major subdivision application as conceptually shown and also use of town
village center open space for hotel related uses and consideration for such use. The
Applicants intend to explain the subdivision request in more detail and the applicant and
Council can discuss consideration.  Staff asked for the applicants to identify all areas of

https://autode.sk/3GrT1tR
https://mtnvillage.exavault.com/p/Lot%20109R%20Approved%20PUD%20Dev%20Agmt%20and%20Design%20Docs%20(2010%20with%20extensions%20approved)
https://townofmountainvillage.com/site/assets/files/40104/december_1-_2022_design_review_board_meeting_packet.pdf
https://mtnvillage.exavault.com/p/Town%20Council%20109R%20Final%20Design%2C%20Major%20Subdivision%20and%20Rezone%20Documents%20shared%20on%20website%20/Original%20PUD%20approval%20docs%20109R


town property to be used either temporarily, permanently or via a requested encroachment 
agreement to better quantify this request.  Staff requested an exhibit to illustrate all possible 
use of town owned property, either permanently, via revocable encroachment or temporary.  
The applicants indicated an encroachment exhibit would be provided after first reading.  An 
exhibit is critical to council’s understanding of use of town property.  

5. Town Council requires conducting a traffic, circulation study and an impact study
The applicant provided a traffic circulation study. The uses shown on OS-3BR-2 are
significant.  This includes a recommendation of one way clockwise traffic inclusive of the
town’s SMART bus for circulation.

6. Town Council states from previous discussion that that going by 2010 LUO will not be
feasible and will have to follow Community Development Code.
The applicants agrees to this and have removed all requests to consider any prior LUO
provision to the extent they have been identified in the prior PUD. The applicant only
remaining request is to continue to honor the original PUD agreement allowance for 1
parking space per 1,000 square feet of commercial square footage. This was approved by
the PUD Agreement as a variation in 2010, and would be seen as a variation to the CDC
today.

7. Town Council states that public benefit in volume of variances will need to be reconsidered.
The applicant requests continue to change with each submittal. A better evaluation of the
variations and benefits will be better described, and as identified with this submittal later in
the memo.

8. Town Council proposes that submitting a new PUD will be a quicker, more straight forward
process.
The applicant has chosen to continue with amending the original PUD.

9. Town Council raises concern on the negative impact from removing parking
The current proposal shows 22 public parking spaces, a reduction of the 48 shown in the
originally approved PUD

DESIGN REVIEW BOARD 
The Design Review Board provided final design review with 31 conditions on December 1, 
2022.  The record packet is hyperlinked as part of this packet. 

JANUARY 19, 2023 FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE OVERVIEW 
Staff reviewed the PUD amendment submittal for this meeting, and followed up with the 
applicant regarding staff’s review, referral comments and additional questions (see exhibits 10-
14) A supplement was provided to staff on 1.10.23 which precipitated more questions.
Responses were provided by the applicant (see exhibits 10-14)

The ordinance remains in draft form and a development agreement is not provided because 
there were too many outstanding, substantive questions that have not been either answered to 
the satisfaction of the town, or simple disagreements that need to be agreed to prior to 
producing an ordinance, a development agreement and the associated necessary legal 
instruments. Due to limited time (responses were still being provided 24 hours before packet 
deadline), staff will summarize the high-level issues here to be discussed by Town Council. 

1. The Proposed Draft PUD Amendment Development Agreement
The applicant note that the 4th PUD amendment would replace and supersede the original
PUD agreement; however, they also rely upon sections and language from the 2010
document which his confusing.

2. Use of Town Property



In June and August Town Council asked the applicants to substantiate use of town property.  
As part of staff’s comments to the applicant in response to this submittal, staff asked for an 
exhibit that shows all use of town property both permanent and temporary. The applicant did 
provide an exhibit of encroachments into the road right of way, as it relates to construction 
mitigation which we have captured as part of this review. The applicants responded that they 
would provide this after the first reading hearing.  Given we have been asking for this 
information since June, and clarity regarding use of town property is important for Town 
Council in order to evaluate the application, lack of an exhibit leaves Town Council lacking in 
understanding this application. 

3. Evolving changes in monetary values and requests related to public benefits,
variations and public improvements.
• No explanation has been provided as to why the trash shed, that does not include

construction of the boilers/room increased from $750,000 to $1,200,000 except for
construction costs.

• Westermere improvements were noted as $250,000 reduced to $75,000
• All public improvement costs are increasing, specifically snowmelt.  Public Improvement

costs estimates are typically provided by an engineer or cost estimator.  These costs keep
escalating and are not easy to substantiate.  A small exhibit that depicts the area of
snowmelt of question could be helpful to better understand costs and locations referenced.

• A request for long term use (greater than 6 months) for condominiums and lodge units is a
significant request to introduce, absent reference in the applications at the other three
continued hearings before Town Council.

• Ownership and maintenance of the restroom, parking, boilers and stormwater and sewer
running within the building remain unresolved. (See #6 below for more discussion around
the boiler room).

• The deed restriction that runs with the employee units was not understood by the
applicants and this matter is unresolved.

• Better articulate and manage construction staging on town property (crane and other
items)

• An additional new request is for a possible parking payment in lieu of up to five parking
spaces at a rate of $100,000 a piece.  The applicants indicated they may need more
structural beams in the garage as they formulate construction drawings which could
diminish parking. They agreed to not have this reduction affect either public parking or
deed restricted parking.

4. Design Review Board approval with 31 conditions
The thirty-one conditions of the final design approval are primarily conditions that staff will be
assuring are satisfied prior to issuance of a building permit. Given this design review is part of
a PUD, staff has concerns that to conform to those conditions, new unanticipated issues
could arise that could trigger minor or major PUD amendments.

5. Drawing and representation inconsistencies
Reducing conflicting information in the submitted materials is critical. For example, a service
parking space is shown on some documents south of the trash enclosure and absent from
others.  A drawing plan set sheet indicates that the restaurants will be open all year long;
however, the applicant elsewhere indicated this is something they will not commit to.
Conflicts in submittal and record documents lead to confusion down the road which can lead
to legal challenges.  A clean and clear submittal and record is critical to any project’s
success.



Second, the applicants submit revise materials, but do not redate those materials so it is 
difficult for staff to understand which version to provide and can only track this by submission 
dates. This creates a lack of clarity for staff, the applicant and public.  

6. Ownership and maintenance of the boiler room found in the trash shed.
The applicants indicated a need to have a boiler room in the trash shed to serve roughly
30,000 square feet of snowmelt of town owned property OS-3BR-2.  Staff comments related
to ownership and maintenance of snowmelt in the Village Center has remained clear since
the first memo went to the DRB in May of 2022.  Section 17.3.4.H.7 Required Improvements
for Adjacent Public Areas is a CDC code section that makes clear it is the obligation of a
developer in the Village Center to pay for snowmelt and maintain town plaza areas.  The
applicant with this application indicated although they understand this, they do not want to do
it. The Town has first hand experienced all iterations of managing snowmelt systems in the
Village Center: full obligation and maintenance, shared obligations and maintenance and
developer obligation and maintenance.  There is meaning and value to the town to adhere to
our regulations so that the burden of cost and maintenance does not fall to the town.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends this application be continued to the March 16, 2023 regular Town Council 
meeting after providing feedback to the application on the major talking points listed above.  To 
have a clean, clear and agreed upon PUD benefits both parties.  More time is needed to 
achieve that end.  

For an overview of the PUD to date, recognizing there could still be changes, please see exhibit 
1. which is an overview of the following categories related to the overall PUD to date.

a. Density and Use
b. Parking
c. Design Review, Variations and Specific Approvals
d. CDC Variations
e. Restated public benefits
f. Major Subdivision and Subdivision Improvements/Public Improvements

PUD AMENDMENT CRITERIA FOR REVIEW 
Staff will list the criteria for review but weigh in on the criteria when the application is more 
complete. A PUD amendment is subject to the same criteria for review as a new PUD. 

Criteria for Decision. 
1. The proposed PUD is in general conformity with the policies, principles and standards set

forth in the Comprehensive Plan;

Village Center [Comprehensive Plan] Subarea Goals
• Develop additional spa and restaurant spaces designed to fit the needs of each hotbed

project
• Prioritize pedestrian circulation to and within Mountain Village Center
• Integrate deed restricted dorm units into future hotbed projects
• Provide a coordinated, combined development plan between multiple property owners

on Parcel D Pond Lots, Parcel E Le Chamonix, Parcel F Lot 161-CR and Parcel G
Gondola Station to maximize the number of hotbed units, attract a significant flagship
hotel operator and provide enhanced retail, restaurant, open space and recreational
amenities

• Provide direct, year-round, at-grade pedestrian connection for all hotbed projects in
Mountain Village Center by sidewalks and appropriate dark-sky lighting

https://mountainvillage.municipal.codes/MVMC/17.3.4


• Develop an improved wayfinding program specifically to direct visitors to key activity
centers such as Mountain Village Center

2. The proposed PUD is consistent with the underlying zone district and zoning designations
on the site or to be applied to the site unless the PUD is proposing a variation to such
standards;

3. The development proposed for the PUD represents a creative approach to the development,
use of land and related facilities to produce a better development than would otherwise be
possible and will provide amenities for residents of the PUD and the public in general;

4. The proposed PUD is consistent with and furthers the PUD purposes and intent;

The PUD Purpose and Intent is to found at 17.4.12.A.1-6.
The purpose and intent of the Planned Unit Development (“PUD”) Regulations is to:
1. Permit variations from the strict application of certain standards of the CDC in order to

allow for flexibility, creativity and innovation in land use planning and project design;
2. Allow for a creative planning approach to the development and use of land and related

physical facilities to produce a better development;
3. Provide for community benefits;
4. Promote and implement the Comprehensive Plan;
5. Promote more efficient use of land, public facilities and governmental services; and
6. Encourage integrated planning in order to achieve the above purposes.

5. The PUD meets the PUD general standards;

PUD General Standards are found at 17.4.12.I. which includes and is not limited to the
following requirements:

Sub 5. Rezone. The development must rezone to the PUD Zone District which is a rezoning
process, that does not require a separate application but does require the PUD Major PUD
amendment to be approved by Ordinance. Staff note: The development will be rezoned to
Planned Unit Development.

Sub.7. Density. Recognizes that a density transfer does not require a separate application.

Sub 8. Landscaping and Buffering. The project shall provide buffering of uses from one
another to minimize adverse impacts and shall create attractive public spaces consistent
with the character of the surrounding environment, neighborhood and area.

Sub 9. Infrastructure. The development proposed for the PUD shall include sufficient 
infrastructure, including but not limited to vehicular and pedestrian access, mass transit 
connections, parking, traffic circulation, fire access, water, sewer and other utilities. 

6. The PUD provides adequate community benefits;

7. Adequate public facilities and services are or will be available to serve the intended land
uses;



8. The proposed PUD shall not create vehicular or pedestrian circulation hazards or cause
parking, trash or service delivery congestion; and

9. The proposed PUD meets all applicable Town regulations and standards unless a PUD is
proposing a variation to such standards.

17.3.4.H.7. Required Improvements for Adjacent Public Areas 
a. All new development on lots within the Village Center shall be required to construct

improvements that enhance and improve the adjacent open space, town plaza areas
and common area, as applicable.

b. The required improvements shall extend thirty (30) feet from the building
dripline and/or encompass the area of disturbance, whichever is greater.

c. Open space areas shall be enhanced as determined by the review authority by
additional landscape plantings, appropriate revegetation and/or the creation of
new town plaza areas and/or trails and other improvements as envisioned in the
Comprehensive Plan.

d. Town plaza areas shall be improved with new or repaired paver systems and
landscaping as determined by the Town, having as a goal the enhancement and
improvement of town plaza areas consistent with the Design Regulations.

e. Unless otherwise determined by the Town to be unnecessary or unwanted,
snowmelt systems shall be required to be installed by the developer and operated
and maintained by the subsequent lot owner(s) for all new or improved town
plaza areas unless such areas are landscaped with planting beds or other
landscaping that does not necessitate snow melting.

f. Design and construction specifications shall be reviewed and approved by
applicable Town departments consistent with this CDC and applicable industry
construction standards.

g. Adjacent plaza area improvements shall be maintained by the development’s
owners’ association. Any such maintenance responsibilities shall be specifically
set forth in the development agreement as well as the governing documents of the
owners’ association.

h. The developer shall obtain adjacent property owner permission when the adjacent
areas to be improved and maintained are owned by a third party, non-Town
entity.

G. STAFF CONCERNS
The list below is intended to capture outstanding unresolved issues prior to finalizing the PUD
legal documents.

• Is the PUD amendment replacing and superseding the prior PUD agreement?
• Questions of ownership and maintenance of snowmelt boilers, parking area, stormwater,

sewer running through the building to be resolved.
• Encroachments – all to be identified
• Use of town land – all uses to be identified
• Finalize form of deed restriction for employee units
• Utilities – owner of the 89 lot agrees to the gas substation?
• Construction staging and mitigation – assure insurance, consent and indemnification of

the Westermere, Shirana and the town for crane location and swing.  Assurance that the
developer will maintain the alternative See Forever pedestrian route (like snow removal)
will be captured in the construction management agreement. Also assure when town



property is in use during construction, the developer is responsible for maintaining those 
areas during construction. 

• Long term rental request of condominiums and lodge units introduced with this submittal.
Long term rental is in conflict with the short-term rental restrictions otherwise placed
minimally with the lodge units as part of this hotel development. Staff has less concern
regarding a short-term rental restriction on the free market condominium units.

• Draft more of the necessary legal agreements so that both parties understand the terms
of the PUD better and that the terms are understood and predictable.

• Consider the request to all for a parking payment in lieu of up to five parking spaces at a
fee of $100,000 a piece that would not reduce public parking or deed restricted parking.

SECTION 8. STAFF RECOMMENDED MOTION 
Some findings and conditions are outlined below, but staff reserves the right to clarify, modify 
and change the findings and conditions at the continued hearing, once we receive more 
information from the applicant.  All future findings and conditions would be incorporated into the 
development agreement. Highlighted findings and conditions are those that are unresolved. 

Proposed Motion 
I move to [approve/continue/deny] the first reading of an ordinance regarding the fourth Major 
PUD amendment for Lot 109R with improvements shown on OS-3BR-2 to the March 16, 2023 
regular Town Council. 

Findings: 
1. Rezoning the property to the PUD Zone District
2. The 4th PUD amendment will supersede and replace the 2010 PUD agreement
3. Providing a flagship hotel, specifically a fivestar operator and a luxury brand hotel.
4. Providing at least 50 efficiency lodge units (hotel rooms) that will be maintained in one

condominium ownership and disallowed from further condominiumization.
5. The provision of hot beds, commercial area, workforce housing consistent with CDC

Section 17.4.12.G.2
6. Consistent with the Village Center Subarea Goals specifically the provision of spa and

restaurant and pedestrian circulation & Mixed Use Center Goals in the Comprehensive
Plan

7. The application provides adequate Public Benefits
8. Public benefits, public improvements, variations and specific approvals are as recited in

the tables found in the staff memo except for the following:
a. Long term rental
b. Boilers to be owned and maintained by the town

9. The length of validity for the 4th PUD amendment is a three year period.
10. The applications are consistent with the criteria and standards set forth in the CDC

specifically the PUD criteria for decision, the comprehensive plan project standards, the
PUD general standards and the density transfer and rezone general standards, unless
otherwise asked to be varied by the PUD.

11. Village Center Open Space if rezoned, does not require replacement open space
pursuant to CDC Section 17.3.10

12. The applicant agrees to conform to CDC Section 17.3.4.H.7.a-g Required Improvements
for Adjacent Public Areas specific to the areas on the developer’s property that will have
public easements.

-



13. Housing Deed restricted housing is being provided onsite consisting of 2 employee
apartments and 18 employee dormitories with associated parking and a total of 14,455
square feet of area. The  employee apartments and dormitories cannot be rezoned or
diminished at a future date with the following conditions that will be integrated into the
development agreement:

a. The 1997/99 deed restriction shall apply with the following modifications and
conditions:

i. The deed restriction cannot be lost in foreclosure
ii. The units cannot be individually condominiumized
iii. The deed restriction will not sunset in 50 years
iv. The apartments will be condominiumized as one unit for the purposes of

the condominium association and ownership.
v. That one employee condominium unit be required to remain in the same

ownership as the hotel (the 50 hotel units/efficiency lodge) units.
vi. There is no reduction in the number of units or committed floor area of

14,455 square feet except the floor area can vary between final design
and building permit by a delta of 3%.

14. Parking requirements are being met except for the variation for a parking payment in lieu
written into the development agreement.

15. Town Council incorporate the DRB’s recommended conditions of approval as part of this
motion. To the extent there are duplicate conditions, duplications need not be repeated
in the approvals.

16. Approval and execution of the final PUD amendment constitutes a vested property right
and site specific development plan for a period of 3 years.

17. The applicants have affirmed this is not a phased development.
18. Public Improvements, Public Improvements Agreement and Public Improvements

Guarantee will be addressed in the Development Agreement, an associated cost exhibit,
and terms consistent with CDC Section 17  17.4.13.L. Public Improvements Policy and
reflect the representations made in the applicant application and staff memo of record.
Identified public improvements that are not considered public benefits are the following:

a. See tables 12, 13, and 14 for relevant identified public improvements
b. Additional Public Improvements may be required as determined by Town Staff

based on final designs submitted at the time of building permit application
19. Incorporate the major subdivision review and rezone review into the final PUD plan.
20. Encroachments and use of town property are approved as shown on exhibit x (to be

provided at a later date)

And the Following Conditions: 
1. Public parking.  To amend the development agreement to recognize the town execute a

public parking use and easement agreement. The developer can collect public parking
revenues. The rates must be consistent with town established parking rates like at the
Heritage Parking Garage. The town does not wish to own these parking units.

2. Wayfinding plan be implemented to direct patrons and visitors through the area once
constructed consistent with town wayfinding standards.

3. Ability to remove landscaping should Shirana or Westermere need access form the
plaza for maintenance of their buildings

4. Applicants request that should a relocated trash facility location be identified that the
trash facility relocation be processed as a PUD amendment but a staff level review.

5. Amend the zoning map to reflect the PUD zoning and other zoning as identified with the
major subdivision application

6. Bruin waste will be uninterrupted that services trash removal from the village center.



7. MV Blvd will always have one lane of traffic open except for the standard period lane
closures issued and approved by the town public works.

8. The deed restricted housing must be constructed concurrently with the free market units.
The free market units can be issued Certificate of Occupancies so long as the deed
restricted units are concurrently issued a certificate of occupancy.

9. Plaza Use limitations will apply to the PUD found at section 17.3.4.H.4. except as
approved to be varied for the ski locker location only.

10. Staff will evaluate any new encroachments with a building permit submittal and will have
the ability to elevate the encroachments to the Town Council review as a PUD
amendment, one step review by Town Council with a public notice requirement.

11. Construction Mitigation.
a. The applicant must demonstrate they have consent, insurance and

indemnification from the town, Westermere and Shirana as applicable.
b. A construction mitigation and communications plan will be required to mitigate

construction impacts in this location.
c. Details related to management and maintenance of the construction area

including town property and the see forever walkway to be finalized.
12. REMP fees are payable at building permit.
13. The Mitigation fee is payable at building permit.
14. Show public improvements in greater detail in plan and profile e.g. sidewalks, stairs.
15. All Public Improvements to be accepted to the Town shall be constructed by the

Developer at its expense pursuant to plans and specifications approved by the Town
Engineer, and the Developer shall provide financial guarantee to secure the construction
and completion of such improvements based on engineering cost estimates to be
approved by the Town Engineer. The procedures for providing and releasing security,
inspection and acceptance of public dedications, and construction warranties shall be
addressed in the Development Agreement and/or a supplement thereto to be executed
prior to issuance of a building permit when final plans and specifications and cost
estimates are complete. The town will accept improvements but will require the
developer to construction, operate and maintain such improvements.

16. All representations of the Applicant, whether within the submittal or at the DRB or Town
Council hearing, are conditions of this approval.

17. The Town and Developer shall enter into a Development Agreement, as approved by the
Town Attorney.



Staff exhibit. Overview of the Major PUD Application to date. 
Subject to change 

MAJOR PUD AMENDMENTS PROPOSED BY CATEGORY 
A. Density and Use
B. Parking
C. Design Review, Variations and Specific Approvals
D. CDC Variations
E. Restated public benefits
F. Major Subdivision and Subdivision Improvements/Public Improvements

A. DENSITY
Table 1. Approved Density pursuant to the 2010 PUD
Type of Zoning 
Designation 
Unit 

Total Zoning 
Designation 
Units 

Person 
Equivalent per 
Unit Type 

Total Person Equivalents 

Efficiency 
Lodge 

66 .5  33 

Lodge 38 .75  28.5 
Condominiums 20 3  60 
Employee 
Apartments 

1  3  3 

Commercial 20,164 sq ft 0 0 
TOTAL 124.5 

Table 2. Revised Density 1.19.2023 
Type of Zoning 
Designation 
Unit 

Total Zoning 
Designation 
Units 

Person 
Equivalent per 
Unit Type 

Total Person Equivalents 

Efficiency 
Lodge 

50 .5 25 

Lodge 31 .75 23.25 
Condominiums 20 3 60 
Employee 
Apartments 

2 3 6 

Employee 
Dormitory 

18 1 18 

Commercial 26,468 sq ft 0 
TOTAL  132.25 

*Commercial space will be memorialized in square footage on the final condominium map

Table 3. The applicants will be placing the following density into the density bank: 
Zoning 
Designations 

Person Equivalents Total Number of 
zoning designation 
type of units to be 
placed into the 
density bank 

Total Person 
equivalents 

Efficiency Lodge .5 16 8 
Lodge .75 7 5.25 

ATTACHMENT 1



Total units and 
person equivalents 

n/a 23 13.25 

The applicants are requesting the town create the employee housing density needed for the 
applicant to provide an additional employee apartment and 18 employee dormitories.  The town 
will utilize the remaining town density certificate #27, a portion of which is committed to the 
161CR Four Seasons Hotel Project, with a small amount of density to be created by the Town 
Council, called “bonus density” which does not count against our density limitations.  

Table 4. Requested Additional Employee Density 
Zoning 
Designations 

Person Equivalents Total Number of 
zoning designation 
types to be created 

Total Person 
equivalents 

Employee apartment 3 1 3 
Employee dormitory 1 18 18 
Total person 
equivalents 

21 

Table 5. Town Density Certificate #27, considering the Four Seasons Commitment 
Zoning Designation Person Equivalent Number of unit 

types 
Total Person 
Equivalents 

Employee 
Condominium 

3 13 39 

Employee 
Condominium 
rezoned to Employee 
Apartment for 161CR 
Four Seasons 

3 -9 -27

Employee 
Condominum to be 
rezoned to employee 
dormitory 

1 -12 -12

TOTAL (density 
certificate would be 
retired and voided) 

n/a 0 0 

The town would then create the remaining employee apartment and employee dormitory density 
as bonus density 

Table 6. Bonus Density Table to be created 
Zoning Designation Person Equivalent Number of unit 

types 
Total Person 
Equivalents 

Employee Dormitory 1 6 6 
Employee Apartment 3 1 3 
TOTAL n/a 7 9 



B. PARKING

Table 7. Parking Requirements 
Parking Requirement 

per type 
Number of 
Units 

Required Provided 

Commercial 
Space 

1 per 1,000* 26,468 sq 
ft 

27 27 

Condo 1 per unit 20 20 20 
Efficiency 
Lodge 

.5 per unit 50 25 25 

Lodge .5 per unit 31 15.5 16 
Public Parking  (48 prior PUD) 22 22 22 
Employee 
Dormitory 

1 per unit 18 18** 18 

Employee 
Apartment 

1 per unit 2 2 2 

HOA 
Maintenance 
Vehicles 

1-5 spaces 1 1-5 1 

Total 130.5 131 

*The original PUD only required 1 parking space per 1,000 square feet of commercial space
and did not calculate commercial parking per intensity of use which otherwise is one (1) parking
space per 500 square feet of high intensity commercial use (e.g. restaurant versus an office).
The applicant requests that the parking requirement only recognize one (1) parking space per
1,000 square feet of commercial space consistent with the original development agreement.
**The DRB established dormitory parking at 1 space per dormitory unit at their May 31, 2022
meeting.
Parking Overview. A requested variation is to consider as part of the development agreement
the potential for a reduction of five parking spaces and in exchange a payment of $100,000 for
each reduction if needed.  Town staff is supportive of this if it becomes necessary due to
building engineering requirements so long as town public parking spaces and parking for
employees is not affected.

C. DESIGN REVIEW
DESIGN REVIEW BOARD REVIEW 
The DRB provided approval of the initial design review with conditions at their regular meeting on 
May 31, 2022   Conditions of the initial approval have either been met or re-incorporated into 
these proposed conditions in varying forms. The DRB approved the final design with conditions 
on December 1, 2022. 
Table 8. LAND USE TABLE – as approved by the design review board with final design review 
CDC Provision Requirement per the 

original PUD 
agreement 

Proposed pursuant to 
the PUD amendment 

Maximum Building Height*  88’ 9” 88’ 9” 
Average Building Height* 65’ 2.9” 62.35’ 
Maximum Lot Coverage 100% 98% 
General Easement 
Encroachments 

n/a n/a 



Roof Pitch 
Primary ¼:12 
Secondary ¼:12 

Exterior Material 
Stucco Primary Material 0% 
Stone 25% minimum 40% 
Windows/Doors 40% maximum 31%* 

Parking (Requirement per type) (131 total spots shown 
on arch set) 

Commercial Space (1 per 1,000**) 27 27 

Condo (1 per unit) 22 20 

Efficiency Lodge (.5 per unit) 31 25 

Lodge (.5 per unit) 9 16 

Public Parking (48) 48 22 

Employee Dormitory Determined by DRB 
on May 31, 2022 1 
space per dormitory 
unit 

18 

Employee Apartment (1 per unit) 2 2 

HOA Maintenance Vehicles (1-5 
spaces) 

1-5 1 

Unassigned 0 0 

Total 92 131 

*Additive of windows and glass screens
**The original PUD only required 1 parking space per 1,000 square feet of commercial space
and did not calculate commercial parking per intensity of use which otherwise is one (1) parking
space per 500 square feet of high intensity commercial use (e.g. restaurant versus an office).
The applicants request that the parking requirement only recognize one (1) parking space per
1,000 square feet of commercial space consistent with the original development agreement.
Design Variations:

1. Roof Form
2. Wall material – not meeting the required 25% stucco
3. Glazing – uninterrupted areas of glass that exceed 16 s.f.
4. Decks and Balconies – long continuous bands
5. Commercial, Ground Level and Plaza Area Design Regulations –

a. Color Selection
b. To allow for ski locker private use on a Primary Pedestrian Route

6. Parking Area Design Standards – Aisle Width
7. Road and Driveway standards – driveway width

Lighting – Lighting revisions will be approved by staff and two DRB members per the
conditions of approval by DRB, there could be some variation approved but the applicant
is working with staff to finalize those plans

DRB Specific Approval: 
1. Materials – TPO membrane roof, metal fascia and soffit
2. Solar roof tiles in the Village Center



3. Road and Driveway Standards – (2) Curb cuts
4. Landscape Lighting
5. Road Right of Way Encroachment – light fixtures ,

soil nails under the Mountain Village Blvd right of way

And with the following conditions: 

Staff comments as they relate to any revisions that have been received since final DRB review 
are indicated by italics 
1. Prior to Town Council Review of the PUD Amendment, the applicant shall provide a shoring

plan, either temporary or permanent as well as plan for any construction staging on town
property, to be better described as part of the final PUD amendment application.

The applicant has provided an exhibit that outlines use of Town Property for construction 
staging and has further clarified construction mitigation plans. They will continue to work with 
Town staff to get an approved construction mitigation plan prior to building permit. The narrative 
better explains the shoring plan, and the applicant states that any needed soil nails for 
stabilization will be installed from within the property lines and without the necessity of 
excavating any of Mountain Village Boulevard. Soil nails could be cut once the hotel is built if 
ever necessary. It should be noted that the crane swing is proposed to swing over Westermere, 
Shirana and Town property – approval by all three entities inclusive of any required insurance 
and indemnification will be a requirement prior to building permit. 
2. Prior to Town Council Review of the PUD Amendment, the applicant shall verify the public

access via the porte cochere to the plaza through the building and identify the legal
instrument that will recognize the public access.

The applicant has indicated that a perpetual public easement is to be created, the timeline for 
the recordation of such easement needs to be clarified. 
3. Prior to building permit the applicant shall provide an enlarged detail of storefront areas to

clarify how the steel louver detail is used in these areas.
A detail of the louver has been provided, however this is the major architectural detail of the 
storefronts facing the plaza. Staff will continue to work with the applicant to get more detail to 
better understand this element of the structure prior to issuance of building permit 
4. Prior to building permit the applicant shall revise the parking plan to indicate that the staff

recommendation of providing 10% EV installed, 15% EV Ready and 50%EV Capable
parking spaces is being met.

Notes on revised parking plans indicate that EV Parking requirements will be met 
5. Prior to building permit the applicant shall provide a product specification for glass railings

that is specific to avoiding bird/glass impacts.
The applicant has given an example of a bird glass specification, but indicates final product 
specification will be based on availability at time of construction. Staff will review the 
specification prior to building permit. 
6. Prior to building permit the applicant shall provide additional details regarding proposed

solar panels, including the method of mounting and any/all materials associated with the
panels for staff review.

This will be reviewed by staff prior to building permit as it relates to reflectivity as well as any 
height/visual concerns per the mounting hardware 
7. Prior to building permit, the applicant shall provide a revised door schedule that indicates all

exterior door type locations as well as door design, dimensions and materiality for staff and
one DRB to review.

Door locations, dimensions and materiality have been provided. Door design has not been 
presented and is an essential element of how this project meets plaza design standards. 
Revisions will be reviewed by staff prior to building permit. 



8. Prior to building permit, the applicant shall provide a drainage study with stormwater run-off 
calculations and/or update the original study as applicable.  

This needs to be provided prior to building permit 
9. Prior to building permit, the applicant shall provide a current geotechnical report with final 

DRB review consistent with the Major PUD application requirements.  
A study dated 8.04.22 was provided prior to final DRB review. This condition was included in the 
DRB motion in error. 
10. Prior to building permit the applicant shall revise the landscaping plans to reduce the area of 

planting beds, creating at least one open plaza space capable of having small special 
events and allowing for better access to the plazas for maintenance and EMS services with 
a 13’ 8” minimum path. The applicant will either remove the proposed rain garden or provide 
detail to the satisfaction of staff that eliminates concern over water rights issues. The 
applicant shall also revise specified plaza furniture to be moveable in nature. Firepits shall 
be designed such that they can be utilized a s planting beds in summer months. Irrigation 
calculations are required for building permit. 

Revisions to the landscaping have been made that address some of this condition. Further 
revisions need to be made in order to be approvable by staff 
11. Prior to building permit the applicant shall revise trash building plans to amend the shape of 

the trash enclosure building while preserving the area needed for town use and necessary 
turn radius and opening up sight lines. Plan should also provide a parking space for 
maintenance of the trash enclosure area and/or boilers for staff review.  

The trash building siting has been revised to accommodate necessary site lines. Parking for 
maintenance is shown on some plans, but not all plans. These plans need to be brought into 
alignment to show the required space on all relevant sheets 
12. Prior to building permit the applicant shall provide details of engineered anchor points for 

sun-shades and/or bistro lighting over the plaza areas for special events.  
Notes on drawings indicate engineered anchor points will be provided. Details of such will need 
to be provided for staff review prior to building permit 
13. Prior to building permit the applicant shall revise the Town trash building location/orientation 

to eliminate the site line impediment to Mountain Village Blvd. and to show venting for the 
boilers. 

Revisions show boiler venting and the location has been revised to avoid site line impediments 
14. Prior to building permit the applicant shall continue to work with the Town, utility providers 

and possibly other developments to develop final locations for transformer/s, switch box and 
gas substation and identify easements that would be necessary to accommodate utility 
infrastructure. The applicant should also indicate the plan for disposition of abandoned 
utilities.  

In order to provide the requested maintenance parking space to the south of the relocated Town 
trash facility, the electrical infrastructure has been further revised in the current set. The 
applicant now requests that a switchgear be located in the general easement (GE) of lot 89-
1BCDR to the east of Sunny Ridge Place. Two transformers for the 109R project as well as one 
relocated transformer for the Shirana are requested to be placed to the north of the Town trash 
facility on Town owned OS-3BR-1. It should be noted that the use of Town property for utility 
infrastructure requires the approval by Town Council. The applicant is showing a gas regulator 
station in the general easement (GE) across Mountain Village Boulevard on Lot 89-2B. Previous 
to this location, the gas regulator station has been shown in various other locations that have all 
been problematic. The CDC does allow for the use of the GE for the installation of utilities, 
however the larger dimensions required by a gas substation make this use very visually 
prominent. At a minimum, staff has concerns for the owner of Lot 89-2B and their view corridor. 
Abandoned utilities are noted to be removed per the most recent utility plan. 
 



15. Prior to building permit the applicant will obtain an approved CMP from Town staff.  
This was discussed in Condition 1 
16. Prior to building permit, an improvements agreement shall be entered into between the 

applicant and the town for all landscaping improvements.  
17. Prior to building permit, a maintenance agreement for landscaping and plaza maintenance 

will be entered into between the applicant and the Town.  
Conditions 16 &17 are required per the CDC for this type of development 
18. A trash compactor is required and needs to be dimensionally shown on the plan set in order 

to reduce number of pick-ups.  
Drawings have been revised to specify a trash compactor 
19. Prior to certificate of occupancy, the surface of Mountain Village Blvd. adjacent to the project 

will be re-paved to the satisfaction of the Town.  
This is a required public improvement due to anticipated damage to the existing surface from 
the installation of utilities as well as general construction impacts 
20. Prior to certificate of occupancy the required improvements to the Westermere façade will 

be completed to the satisfaction of the Town consistent with the original development 
agreement  

The applicant agrees to this timeline 
21. Additional agreements and easements will be identified in the Town Council memo prior to a 

final approval.  
22. Prior to recordation of the condominium documents or as soon as practical, staff will 

designate a new Primary Pedestrian Route through this project and update the relevant 
Appendix 3-1, along with the Appendix 8-1 Village Center Emergency Access Routes in the 
CDC accordingly.  

This is considered a standard condition of approval for a project in the Village Center for the 
continuation of the existing Primary Pedestrian Route 
23. Consistent with town building codes, Unenclosed accessory structures attached to buildings 

with habitable spaces and projections, such as decks, shall be constructed as either non-
combustible, heavy timber or exterior grade ignition resistant materials such as those listed 
as WUIC (Wildland Urban Interface Code) approved products.  

24. A monumented land survey of the footers will be provided prior to pouring concrete to 
determine there are no additional encroachments into the setbacks or across property lines.  

25. A monumented land survey shall be prepared by a Colorado public land surveyor to 
establish the maximum building height and the maximum average building height.  

26. Prior to the Building Division conducting the required framing inspection, a four-foot (4’) by 
eight-foot (8’) materials board will be erected on site consistent with the review authority 
approval to show:  

a. The stone, setting pattern and any grouting with the minimum size of four feet (4’) by 
four feet (4’);  

b. b.Wood that is stained in the approved color(s);  
c. c.Any approved metal exterior material;  
d. d.Roofing material(s); and Any other approved exterior materials  

27. It is incumbent upon an owner to understand whether above grade utilities and town 
infrastructure (fire hydrants, electric utility boxes) whether placed in the right of way or 
general easement, are placed in an area that may encumber access to their lot. Relocation 
of such above grade infrastructure appurtenances will occur at the owner’s sole expense 
and in coordination with the appropriate entity (fire department, SMPA, Town of Mountain 
Village) so that the relocated position is satisfactory.  

Conditions 23-27 are standard DRB conditions of approval 
28. A Major Subdivision application must be approved by Town Council prior to issuance of a 

building permit and concurrent with final PUD approval.  



This just clarifies that the design review is contingent on the approval of the subdivision  
29. Improvements to OS-3BR-2, town owned land, are subject to final Town Council approval 

through the PUD amendment process. Should Town Council make amendment to proposed 
improvements on OS-3BR-2, this could necessitate revisions to design consistent with town 
processes. 

The approved design depends on certain allowances from the Town for encroachment on Town 
owned properties, the denial of any of these encroachments could have design implications. 
Staff requested of the applicant an exhibit that demonstrates all temporary and permanent 
encroachments on Town property, the construction mitigation plan addresses some temporary 
encroachments, but an exhibit of permanent encroachments ahs not been provided by the 
applicant. Staff has identified some encroachments from various pages within the drawing set, 
but would like clarification from the applicant that no other encraochments are being requested: 

• Awning at Porte Cochere (Road Right of Way) on North side 
• Awnings at retail storefronts on south Plaza side 
• Area well on west side of building  
• Cantilevered Deck (egress) on the east side of building 
• Light fixtures on columns appear to be above grade encroachments of both OSP and 

RROW all the way around building 
• Underground Parking, Back-of-house area and mechanical room 
• Soil Nails under Mountain Village Blvd. (indicated as temporary)  

30. Prior to building permit the applicant will provide a revised lighting plan for staff and 2 DRB 
members to review per the discussions of this meeting. 

The applicant is actively working on these revisions with direction from staff and DRB members 
31. Prior to building permit the applicant will provide an address monument design for staff review. 
If requested without CDC variations, staff will review. If any design variations are requested this 
would go to DRB for review as a separate application. 
 
D. CDC Variations 
Newly identified or requested variations are highlighted below.  
Table 9. CDC Variations 
Number Variation Requests 
1 A request for Town Council to create bonus density or MV density in the density bank to be 

transferred to the property for employee apartment or employee dormitory use, as needed. 
2 A request to allow for a future modification of the employee housing condominium unit 

(ownership unit that includes the 2 employee apartments and 18 employee dormitories 
along with ancillary uses) only requires the consent of the employee housing condominium 
unit owner.  All other town regulations apply. Recognizing that no decrease in the number of 
units or square footages (except for the 3% variation in square footage) is otherwise allowed 
and would trigger a major PUD amendment. See PUD regulations. 

3 A request for easements for building overhangs and encroachments and emergency egress 
from employee housing unit (subject to demonstration of such easement areas and 
encroachments) 

4 Request a PUD amendment but staff level review, a class 1 application, in the event that the 
trash enclosure could be relocated 

5 Reposition the 89 Lot access easement (this is a private easement not with the town) 
6 Conference Center to be offered to the public at market rate rather than comparable to the 

Conference Center. One conference room is divisible into two rooms) 
7 Garage Drive Aisle reduced from 22 feet to 18 feet approved by the fire marshal per CDC 

17.5.8.C.3 
8 A request to reduce up to five parking spaces, with a payment of $100,000 for each parking 

space if needed, as the design plans evolve to construction drawings 

I 

I 



9 A rest to allow for long term rental (more than 6 months), unit types undefined and no detail 
provided 

 10 Design Variations 
 • Roof Form per CDC 17.5.6.C. 
 • Wall material (no stucco proposed) per CDC 17.5.6.E. 
 • Glazing – uninterrupted areas of glass that exceed 16 square feet per CDC 

17.5.6.G.5 
 • Decks and Balconies – long continuous bands per CDC 17.5.6.I. 
 • Commercial, Ground Level and Plaza Area Design Regulations –  

o Color Selection  
o To allow for ski locker private use on a Primary Pedestrian Route 

per CDC 17.5.15 
 •  
 • Exterior Lighting, Design variations TBD  
 • Parking Area Design Standards – aisle width 
 • Road and Driveway Standards – driveway width 
9a. Specific Approvals  
 • Materials- TPO membrane roof, metal fascia and soffit 
 • Solar panels in the Village Center 
 • Road and Driveway Standards – 2 curb cuts 
 • road right of way encroachment – light fixtures 
 • Soil Nails under Mountain Village Boulevard 

 
E. RESTATED PUBLIC BENEFITS 
Table 10. Public Benefits  
Item Value 
Onsite deed restricted housing of 2 employee 
apartments and 18 employee dormitories and 
14,455 square feet 

$9,950,250 estimated value (kept in one 
ownership unit) 

Mitigation Payment $996,288 ($250,000 can be used for the 
trash enclosure costs) 

22 Public Parking Spaces $2,200,000 
50 dedicated hotel rooms (kept in one ownership unit) 
Hotel Covenant   Hotel Covenant 
Furniture Package  
Hotel Operator Requirements  
5 star luxury hotel operator n/a 
Trash Enclosure $1,200,000 – not including the boiler room 

improvement  
Public Restroom   $50,000-$70,000 annually for maintenance 
Village Pond Improvements $250,000  
Public Restroom $250,000 and no less than 381 square feet 
Conference Room Space – use for public at 
market rates 

n/a 

Public Access from Port Cochere to See 
Forever Plaza through the building 
(easement) 

$75,000 

 Westermere Façade/Breezeway 
Improvements* 

$75,000 

24 hour valet for commercial uses** n/a 

I 

I I 

I __J 
I 



Shuttle Service to the Montrose airport for 
hotel for guests 

n/a 

Various easements (See forever and town 
access to see forever) 

n/a 

Waive HOA dues for public parking and 
public restroom (if deeded)** 

TBD 

Ongoing Plaza Maintenance Costs $200,000 
Maintenance Costs for the provision of town 
parking 

TBD 

TOTAL   
*Westermere estimate of improvements dropped from $250,000 to $75,000 
**24 hour valet is no longer offered but during business hours 
***After talking internally the town prefers a public parking use agreement/easement to be 
drafted with second reading.  The hotel can own and maintain the public parking area and 
collect revenues for public parking that remain consistent with town established public parking 
rates specifically the Heritage Parking Garage rates. 
 
Table 11. Provided Amenities of note but not necessarily written into the development 
agreement as public benefits – not legally binding 
Sustainabiltiy Fund committed to be spent 
locally (A Six Senses requirement) 

$200,000-$350,000* 

Silver LEED Certified (a Six Senses 
requirement) 

$2,460,000 

Hotel Amenities open to the public 
(conference center is noted above in public 
benefits) 

n/a 

Hotel amenities open 365 days a year**  
TOTAL   

*the applicant noted this would be an annual contribution after profits are realized 
** the architectural plan set on page G-001 notes the restaurants will be “open all year.” The 
applicants in the supplement dated 1.9.23 noted this is not a commitment. 
 
EV capabilities provided in town parking spaces is a requirement of the CDC as established by 
the DRB as a condition of approval on December 1, 2022. 
 
F. MAJOR SUBDIVISION AND PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS  
The applicant also submitted a major subdivision and rezoning application to essential trade 
property areas between town owned Village Center open space (OS 3BR 2) and 109R.  The 
proposed replat results in town Village Center Open space (OS-3BR-2) increasing by about 180 
square feet, which was previously represented to be 360 square feet.    
 
The major subdivision will be discussed concurrent with the second reading of the PUD, 
although consideration of rezoning portions requested is by ordinance and running concurrent 
with the 1st reading of an ordinance memo. That memo is being provided separately. 
 
PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS 
There are three categories of public improvements which means improvements to town owned 
property that are designed, paid for, maintained and improved by the applicant. These fall into 
the following categories: 
 

-

I I 

I 



• Those required consistent with the subdivision regulations and triggered by a major 
subdivision along with those improvement that are required to adjacent public areas on 
lots within the Village Center (CDC Sections 17.3.4.H.7). 

• Those elected by the applicant. 
• Those described as public benefits pursuant to the existing 2010 PUD Agreement. 

 
All improvements made by the applicant on town property must conform with the regulations 
and standards in the CDC and require an agreement and financial guarantee. Values reflected 
are provided by the applicant and need to be verified and revised prior to the next public 
hearing.  
 
Table 12. Public Improvements that are considered public benefits pursuant to the 2010 PUD 
agreement 
Item  Value 
Plaza Improvements (See Forever walkway 
and Shirana area)  

 $1,500,000 

Trash Enclosure rebuild on OS-3BR-2 
including all surface improvements including 
snowmelt and a portion of sidewalk and 
resurfacing of OS-3BR-2 

$2,100,000 

Snowmelting and Improving the fire lane $150,000 
Village Pond Improvements – payment $250,000 
 TOTAL   

 
        

Table 13. Staff recommended Public Improvements pursuant to the major subdivision 
Item Value 
Sidewalk, lighting and a snowmelted sidewalk 
Along MV Blvd   

 $600,000 

Sidewalk , lighting and a snowmelted 
sidewalk from Shirana to MV Blvd 

 $180,000 – this should be part of trash 
enclosure above 

OS-3BR-2 Snowmelt  $1,800,000 This should be areas not already 
described 

Utility relocations/installations as approved by 
Town Council 

$2,500,000 

Repaving Mountain Village Blvd TBD 
TOTAL $  

 
Table 14. Elective Public Improvements.  
These are improvements initiated by Tiara Telluride, not the town 
Item Value 
Stairway Access for 89 Lots on Town owned 
OS-3-BR2 (proposed to be relocated and 
used for public, not just 89 lot, access and 
109R building egress) 

 TBD 

TOTAL   
 
More clarity can be provided to better understand how these calculations are being made. Staff 
highlighted some areas of concern above. 
 

I I 

I 

I 
I 



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-__ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, 
COLORADO, CONDITIONALLY APPROVING A MAJOR PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

AMENDMENT FOR LOT 109R AND PORTIONS OF VILLAGE CENTER OPEN SPACE TO 
BE CONVEYED TO THE DEVELOPER 

WHEREAS, Tiara Telluride, LLC (“Developer”) is the owner of certain real property described as 
Lot 109R, Town of Mountain Village, Colorado, according to the plat recorded as Reception No. 416994 
(“Lot 109R”) and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Mountain Village (“Town”) is the owner of certain real property adjacent 
to Lot 109R described as open space parcel OS-3BR-2, according to the plat recorded as Reception No. 
416994 (the “Town Property”); and 

WHEREAS, the Developer has submitted an application to replat Lot 109R and the Town Property 
(the “Major Subdivision Application”) for the purpose of a land exchange where the Town would convey 
portions of the Town Property described in Exhibit A to become part of Lot 109R (the “109R Adjustment 
Parcels”) and the Developer would convey portions of the current Lot 109R also described in Exhibit A to 
become part of the Town Property (the “Open Space Adjustment Parcels”) (Lot 109R and the 109R 
Adjustment Parcels as combined may be referred to herein as the “Property,” and the Town Property and 
the Open Space Adjustment Parcels combined may be referred to herein as the “Adjusted Town Property”); 
and 

WHEREAS, the purpose of this Ordinance is to act on the Developer’s application for a Major 
Planned Unit Development (“PUD”) Plan for the Property, and the Town Council will simultaneously be 
considering a separate ordinance concerning the required rezoning of the Open Space Adjustment Parcels 
to bring them into the same zoning designation as the Town Property (the “Rezoning Ordinance”); and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council will consider acting on the Major Subdivision Application by 
resolution to coincide with second reading of this Ordinance; and  

WHEREAS, the Town previously approved a PUD Plan for Lot 109R by Resolution 2010-1208-
31 (the “2010 PUD”) and, in connection therewith, the Town and Developer’s predecessor-owner of Lot 
109R entered into a Development Agreement dated March 18, 2011, which was recorded as Reception No. 
416997 (the “2011 Development Agreement”); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance 2015-07, the Town approved a First Amendment to the 2011 
Development Agreement extending vested rights relating to the 2010 PUD until December 8, 2020; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance 2020-16, the Town approved a Second Amendment to the 2011 
Development Agreement extending vested rights relating to the 2010 PUD until December 8, 2022; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance 2022-10, the Town approved a Third Amendment to the 2011 
Development Agreement extending vested rights relating to the 2010 PUD until September 8, 20231; and 

1 Ordinance 2022-10 has been challenged in pending litigation. See Scythian Ltd, et al. v. Town of Mountain Village, 
et al., Case No. 2022 CV 30045, San Miguel County District Court. If Ordinance 2022-10 is found by the court to be 
invalid, such a finding will not invalidate or otherwise affect the approval of this Ordinance. This Ordinance and the 
Amended and Restated Development Agreement will supersede the Third Amendment to the 2010 PUD and related 

ATTACHMENT 2



WHEREAS, the Developer has applied to the Town for approval of a Major Amendment to the 
2010 PUD to include the 109R Adjustment Parcels and to make adjustments to density, height, design, and 
other matters for the development of a mixed-use project consisting of hotel rooms, employee housing, 
public amenities including restaurants and a spa, along with commercial and retail space, underground 
parking garage, outdoor landscaped areas, plazas, and related improvements to be operated by a five-stary 
luxury brand hotel operator (the “Project”) as more particularly described in the application, which consists 
of the materials submitted to the Town and itemized on Exhibit B, plus all statements, representations, and 
additional documents of the Developer and its representatives (the “Major PUD Amendment Application”) 
at the public hearings before the Design Review Board (“DRB”) and Town Council; and 

WHEREAS, the DRB held public hearings regarding the Major PUD Amendment Application on 
May 5, 2022 and May 31, 2022, and voted 3-1 to issue a recommendation of approval to the Town Council 
concerning the Application, subject to further consideration by the DRB for final design review and for its 
recommendation regarding the related Major Subdivision Application; and    

WHEREAS, the Town Council considered this Ordinance on first reading at its regular meetings 
on June 16, 2022 and August 18, 2022, and consented to including the 109R Adjustment Parcels in the 
Developer’s Major PUD Amendment Application and Major Subdivision Application, but voted to 
continue the matter to November 17, 2022 so as to allow the Developer time to submit the Major 
Subdivision Application and final design review materials; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council again considered this Ordinance on first reading at its regular 
meeting on November 17, 2022, but voted to continue the matter to January 19, 2023 so as to allow the 
DRB to conduct a further public meeting regarding final design review and the Major Subdivision 
Application before the Town Council would make a decision as to the Major PUD Amendment Application; 
and 

WHEREAS, following a DRB meeting held on December 1, 2022, the DRB recommended to the 
Town Council approval of the Major PUD Amendment Application and the Major Subdivision Application, 
subject to conditions; and 

 WHEREAS, the Town Council has considered the Major PUD Amendment Application, the 
DRB’s recommendations, and testimony and comments from the Developer, Town staff, and members of 
the public at a public meeting on  January 19, 2023 and at a duly noticed public hearing on 
______________, 2023; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council has considered the criteria set forth in Section 17.4.12 of the 
Town’s Community Development Code (“CDC”) and finds that each of the following has been satisfied or 
will be satisfied upon compliance with the conditions of this Ordinance set forth below and in the Amended 
and Restated Development Agreement: 

1.  The proposed PUD is in general conformity with the policies, principles and standards set forth 
in the Comprehensive Plan; 

2. The proposed PUD is consistent with the underlying zone district and zoning designations on 
the site or to be applied to the site unless the PUD is proposing a variation to such standards; 

Third Amendment to the 2011 Development Agreement, thus rendering the approval of the third extension of vested 
rights moot. 



3. The development proposed for the PUD represents a creative approach to the development, use 
of land and related facilities to produce a better development than would otherwise be possible and 
will provide amenities for residents of the PUD and the public in general; 

4. The proposed PUD is consistent with and furthers the PUD purposes and intent; 

5. The PUD meets the PUD general standards; 

6. The PUD provides adequate community benefits; 

7. Adequate public facilities and services are or will be available to serve the intended land uses; 

8. The proposed PUD shall not create vehicular or pedestrian circulation hazards or cause parking, 
trash or service delivery congestion; and 

9. The proposed PUD meets all applicable Town regulations and standards unless a PUD is 
proposing a variation to such standards. 

WHEREAS, the Town Council now desires to approve the Major PUD Amendment Application, 
subject to the terms and conditions set forth below. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, COLORADO, as follows: 

Section 1. Recitals.  The above recitals are hereby incorporated as findings of the Town Council in support 
of the enactment of this Ordinance.   
 
Section 2. Approvals.  The Town Council hereby approves the Major PUD Amendment Application, 
subject to the conditions set forth below (“Final PUD Approval”). The Town Council also approves the 
Amended and Restated Development Agreement, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit C, which the Mayor 
and Town Clerk are authorized to sign on behalf of the Town. All exhibits to this Ordinance are available 
for inspection at the Town Clerk’s Office. Further, subject to Condition #1 below and Developer’s 
execution of the Amended and Restated Development Agreement, the Town Council authorizes 
conveyance of the Lot 109R Adjustment Parcels to the Developer and agrees to accept the conveyance of 
the Open Space Adjustment Parcels from the Developer. These approvals include the following variations 
from the presumptive standards in the CDC or from the 2010 PUD: 
 
 2.1. Zoning and Density.  The Town Council approves the rezoning of and density for the 
Property as follows: 

Table 1. Current Zoning and Density Under the 2010 PUD.   
Type of Zoning 
Designation Unit 

Total Zoning 
Designation Units 

Person 
Equivalent per 
Unit Type 

Total Person Equivalents 

Efficiency Lodge 66 .5  33 
Lodge 38 .75  28.5 
Condominiums 20 3  60 
Employee 
Apartments 

1  3  3 

Commercial 20,164 sq ft 0 0 
Total   124.5 



 
Table 2. Approved Zoning and Density for the Property. 

Type of Zoning 
Designation Unit 

Total Zoning 
Designation Units 

Person 
Equivalent per 
Unit Type 

Total Person Equivalents 

Efficiency Lodge 50 .5 25 
Lodge 31 .75 23.25 
Condominiums 20 3 60 
Employee 
Apartments 

2 3 6 

Employee 
Dormitory 

18 1 18 

Commercial 26,468 sq ft*   0 
Total    132.25 

* Commercial space will be memorialized in square footage on the final condominium map to be approved 
and recorded following construction as addressed in the separate resolution for the Major Subdivision 
Application. 
  

a. Rezone and Density Transfers.  To create the zoning and density in Table 2 above, the 
Developer will place the following density into the Town’s Density Bank: 

 
Table 3. Approved Density Bank Transfers. 

Zoning Designations Person Equivalents Total Number of 
zoning designation 
type of units to be 
placed into the density 
bank 

Total Person 
equivalents 

Efficiency Lodge .5 16 8 
Lodge .75 7 5.25 
Total Units and 
Person Equivalents 

N/A 23 13.25 

 
b. Employee Housing Density.  At the request of the Developer, the Town will create the 

employee housing density needed for the Developer to provide an additional Employee 
Apartment and 18 Employee Dormitories. The Town will utilize the remainder of Town 
Density Certificate #27, a portion of which is already committed to the 161C-R Four 
Seasons project, with a small amount of density to be created by the Town called “Bonus 
Density,” which will not count against the Town’s density limitations. 

Table 4. Approved Additional Employee Density. 
Zoning Designations Person Equivalents Total Number of 

zoning designation 
types to be created 

Total Person 
equivalents 

Employee Apartment 3 1 3 
Employee Dormitory 1 18 18 
Total Person 
Equivalents 

  21 

 
 
 



Table 5. Approved Changes to Density Certificate #27. 
Zoning Designation Person Equivalent Number of unit types Total Person 

Equivalents 
Employee 
Condominium 

3 13 39 

Employee 
Condominium Rezoned 
to Employee Apartment 
for 161C-RR Four 
Seasons 

3 -9 -27 

Employee 
Condominum Rezoned 
to Employee Dormitory 

1 -12 -12 

Total (Density 
Certificate #27 would 
be retired and voided) 

N/A 0 0 

 
Table 6. Approved Bonus Density. 

Zoning Designation Person Equivalent Number of unit types Total Person 
Equivalents 

Employee Dormitory 1 6 6 
Employee Apartment 3 1 3 
Total N/A 7 9 

 
c. Limited Modification of Employee Units.  Notwithstanding the provisions of CDC Section 

17.4.12(O)(2), the type, mix, or configuration of individual Employee Apartments and 
Employee Dormitories, only to the extent that such changes result in increases in density 
used at the Project or in changes to use designations, may be initiated by the owner of fee 
title to the Employee Housing Unit (defined in section 3.9(b) below), without any 
requirement that such change be initiated or joined by owners of fee title to at least 67% of 
the real property within the PUD or an individual or entity having the written permission 
of owners of fee title to at least 67% of the real property within the PUD, provided the 
Employee Housing Unit continues to be used for Employee Apartment, Employee 
Dormitory, and Employee Amenities (an “Employee Housing Unit PUD Amendment”). 
An Employee Housing Unit PUD Amendment cannot otherwise reduce the number of 
allocated parking spaces for deed restricted housing, as outlined below, and all other 
regulations still apply. An Employee Housing Unit PUD Amendment will be reviewed by 
the Town’s planning division as a Class 1 Application, consistent with CDC Section 
17.4.3(K)(1). Any proposed decrease in the number of employee units or changes in square 
footage will be reviewed as a Class 4 Application, consistent with CDC Section 
17.4.3(K)(3). 

   
 2.2. Parking.  The Town Council approves the parking requirements for the Property as 
follows: 
 
Table 7. Approved Parking for the Property. 

Parking Requirement 
per type 

Number of 
Units 

Required Provided 

Commercial 
Space 

1 per 1,000*  26,468 sq ft 27 27 



Condo 1 per unit 20 20 20 
Efficiency 
Lodge 

.5 per unit 50 25 25 

Lodge .5 per unit 31 15.5 16 
Public Parking (48 per 2010 

PUD) 
22 22 22 

Employee 
Dormitory 

1 per unit 18 18** 18 

Employee 
Apartment 

1 per unit 2 2 2 

HOA 
Maintenance 
Vehicles 

1-5 spaces 1 1-5 1 

Total   130.5 131 
*The 2010 PUD only required one (1) parking space per 1,000 square feet of commercial space and did not 
calculate commercial parking per intensity of use, which otherwise is one (1) parking space per 500 square 
feet of high intensity commercial use (e.g., restaurant versus an office). At the Developer’s request, the 
Town recognizes this parking requirement of only one (1) parking space per 1,000 square feet of 
commercial space, consistent with the 2011 Development Agreement. 
**The DRB established dormitory parking at one (1) space per Employee Dormitory at its May 31, 2022 
meeting. 
 

a. Reduction in Total Parking Spaces.  In exchange for a payment of $100,000 for each space, 
the Developer may remove up to five (5) parking spaces at the Property from the total in 
Table 7 above; provided, however, that the spaces allocated for Public Parking, Employee 
Dormitory, and Employee Apartment are not affected. Any such payment-in-lieu must be 
made to the Town prior to building permit. 

 
 2.3. Design Variations.  The Town Council approves variations to the CDC’s Design 
Regulations for the Property as follows: 

Table 8. Final Design Variations Approved by DRB. 
CDC Provision Requirement per 2010 PUD Approved Amendment 

Maximum Building Height*  88’ 9”  88’ 9” 
Average Building Height* 65’ 2.9”  62.35’ 
Maximum Lot Coverage 100% 98% 
General Easement 
Encroachments 

N/A N/A 

Roof Pitch   
Primary 

 
¼:12 

Secondary 
 

¼:12  
Exterior Material   

Stucco Primary Material 0% 
Stone 25% minimum  40% 
Windows/Doors 40% maximum 31%* 

Parking (requirement per type)  (131 total spots shown on 
architectural plan set) 

Commercial Space (1 per 1,000**) 27 27 



Condo (1 per unit) 22 20 

Efficiency Lodge (.5 per unit) 31 25 

Lodge (.5 per unit) 9 16 

Public Parking 48 22 

Employee Dormitory  Determined by DRB on May 
31, 2022 1 space per 
dormitory unit 

18 

Employee Apartment (1 per unit) 2 2 

HOA Maintenance Vehicles (1-5 
spaces) 

1-5 1 

Unassigned 0 0 

Total 92 131 

*Additive of windows and glass screens. 
** The 2010 PUD only required one (1) parking space per 1,000 square feet of commercial space and did 
not calculate commercial parking per intensity of use, which otherwise is one (1) parking space per 500 
square feet of high intensity commercial use (e.g., restaurant versus an office). At the Developer’s 
request, the Town recognizes this parking requirement of only one (1) parking space per 1,000 square feet 
of commercial space, consistent with the 2011 Development Agreement. 
 

Design Variations: 
a. Roof form 
b. Wall material – not meeting the required 25% stucco 
c. Glazing – uninterrupted areas of glass that exceed 16 sq ft 
d. Decks and balconies – long continuous bands 
e. Commercial, ground level, and plaza areas – color selection; ski locker private use on a 

Primary Pedestrian Route 
f. Parking area – aisle width 
g. Road and driveway – driveway width 
 
DRB Specific Approvals: 
h. Materials – TPO membrane roof; metal fascia and soffit 
i. Solar roof tiles in the Village Center 
j. Road and driveway – curb cuts 
k. Landscape lighting ROW encroachment – light fixtures 

 
 2.4 CDC Variations.  The Town Council approves variations to the CDC’s general 
requirements as follows: 
 

a. Encroachments.  The Town shall grant to the Developer easements for certain building 
overhangs and encroachments as well as emergency access for the Employee Housing Unit 
as provided by the Amended and Restated Development Agreement. 

b. Trash Enclosure.  In the event that the Developer is able to relocate the trash enclosure 
from the location shown in the Major PUD Amendment Application, the Developer shall 
submit new plans for the trash enclosure as a as a Class 1 Application, consistent with Code 
section 17.4.3(K)(1). 



c. Conference Center.  The Developer agrees that the conference center proposed as part of 
the Project will be offered to the public at market rate. 

d. Garage Drive Aisle.  The garage drive aisle is reduced from 22 feet to 18 feet, subject to 
approval by the fire marshal per Code section 17.5.8(C)(3). 

 
Section 3. Conditions.  The approval of the Major PUD Amendment Application is subject to the following 
terms and conditions: 
 

3.1.   The Town Council must separately approve the related Major Subdivision Application and 
Rezoning Ordinance, which respectively concern the re-subdivision of Lot 109R and replat of the Town 
Property to create the 109R Adjustment Parcels and the Open Space Adjustment Parcels (“Property 
Replat”). If the amended subdivision plats are not approved within 90 days after second reading of this 
Ordinance, this Ordinance shall become null and void. 

 
3.2. All conditions of approval of the Major Subdivision Application as set forth in Resolution 

2023-__ (“Subdivision Approval”) and as set forth on the Property Replat and in the DRB’s final design 
review on December 1, 2022 are incorporated as conditions of this Final PUD Approval. 

 
3.3. The land swap involving the 109R Adjustment Parcels and Open Space Adjustment Parcels 

must be completed as provided by the Amended and Restated Development Agreement.  
 
3.3. The Town and Developer shall enter into the Amended and Restated Development 

Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit C.   
 
3.4. Public Benefits.  The Developer agrees to provide the following as “Public Benefits,” as 

that term is defined by the CDC: 
 
Table 9. Approved Public Benefits. 
2010 PUD 2023 Major PUD Amendment 
40 dedicated hotel rooms 50 dedicated hotel rooms held in common ownership 

as a single condominium unit, which cannot be further 
subdivided or condominiumized 

Hotel operator requirements Hotel operator requirements – letter of intent with Six 
Senses 

Furniture package Furniture package 
A mitigation payment of $996,288 A mitigation payment of $996,288 ($250,000 of 

which may be used for trash enclosure costs) 
Up to $250,000 of the mitigation payment can 
be used for the trash facility (relocation or 
construction) 

Existing trash facility to be replaced by the Developer 
for estimated total cost of $_________, which 
includes Town consent that the Developer rebuild the 
trash building and include a boiler room for snowmelt 

60% ($597,773) of the mitigation payment to 
be used for employee housing 

The remaining $597,773 of the mitigation payment to 
be used for employee housing 

Hotel covenant Hotel covenant  
On the 2nd anniversary of a Certificate of 
Occupancy, the hotel operator will provide 
actual full time equivalent employee 
information. The owner shall pay $4,018.52 
per employee in excess of the 90 full time 
equivalent employees estimated by the owner. 

On the 2nd anniversary of a Certificate of Occupancy, 
the operator will provide actual full time equivalent 
employee information. The owner shall pay $4,018.52 
per employee in excess of the 90 full time equivalent 
employees estimated by the owner. 



One (1) Employee Apartment Two (2) Employee Apartments and 18 Employee 
Dormitories, each comprised of individual sleeping 
rooms accommodating three (3) people with common 
amenities, such as a shared kitchen, recreational 
facilities, and a laundry, within a minimum 
commitment of 14,455 square feet of employee 
housing. The Developer’s estimated cost is 
$9,950,250.  

Public restroom Public restroom of no less than 381 square feet, 
construction of which is estimated to cost $150,000. 
Maintenance costs, estimated to be $50,000-70,000 
annually, are the owner’s responsibility. 

Plaza improvements $250,000 contribution to the Town for improvements 
to the Village Pond Plaza. The existing easement for 
use and access will be terminated. 

Emergency access to Plaza Area  
 

Emergency access to Plaza Area  
 

The Project’s Association responsible for 
removing and/or relocating snow from the 
south side of upper Mountain Village Blvd. 

Installation of two (2) new sidewalks improved with 
snow melt systems: (a) Shirana to Mountain Village 
Blvd.; and (b) from where the 161C-R sidewalk ends 
continuous along Mountain Village Blvd. to the 
entrance to OS-3BR-2 (109R back of house and Town 
short term parking area)  

See Forever Walkway. A pedestrian access 
easement will be drafted that connects See 
Forever through Lot 109R to the Village 
Center 

See Forever Walkway. A pedestrian access easement 
will be drafted that connects See Forever through Lot 
109R to the Village Center. 

48 public parking spaces in the parking garage 22 public parking spaces in the parking garage, which 
the Developer will own but grant to the Town an 
easement agreement. The Developer may charge fees 
for use of public parking spaces consistent with 
Town-established rates such as those at the Heritage 
Parking Garage. 

Westermere breezeway improvements Westermere breezeway improvements and 
Westermere path improvements consistent with the 
Developer’s proposed development plan and subject 
to relevant provisions of the Amended and Restated 
Development Agreement, estimated to cost 
$_________* 

Conference room space rentable by the public Conference room space rentable by the public 
20,164 square feet of commercial density 26,468 square feet of commercial density 
 Public access via the port cochere through the 

building to the See Forever walkway plaza, which is 
estimated to cost $75,000 and will be assured via an 
easement agreement 

24-hour valet service in exchange for tandem 
parking 

Valet parking provided for commercial uses. Shuttle 
service between Montrose Airport and the hotel for 
guests. 

*If Town plaza area is improved as part of the Westermere improvements, then this is also considered a 
Public Improvement that qualifies as a Public Benefit. 



 
3.5. Public Amenities.  The Developer agrees to provide the following public amenities: 

 
Table 10. Approved Public Amenities. 

Public Amenity Value 
Sustainability Fund committed to be spent locally 
(a Six Senses requirement) 

$200,000-$350,000 

Silver LEED Certified (a Six Senses requirement) $2,460,000 
Hotel amenities open to the public (conference 
center is noted above in Public Benefits) 

 

Hotel amenities open 365 days a year  
Total   

 
3.6. Public Improvements.  The Developer agrees to provide the following “Public 

Improvements,” as that term is defined by the CDC: 

Table 11. Approved Public Improvements. 
Item  Value 
Plaza Improvements (See Forever walkway and 
Shirana area) 

 $1,500,000 

 Trash Enclosure rebuild on OS-3BR-2 $550,000 
Snowmelting and Improving the fire lane $200,000 
Village Pond Improvements – payment $250,000 
 Total   

 
3.7. All Public Improvements to be conveyed or dedicated to the Town shall be constructed by 

the Developer at its expense pursuant to plans and specifications approved by the Town Engineer, and the 
Developer shall provide a letter of credit or other security, in a form subject to approval by the Town 
Attorney, to secure the construction and completion of such improvements based on engineering cost 
estimates to be approved by the Town Engineer. The procedures for providing and releasing security, 
inspection and acceptance of conveyance or public dedications, and construction warranties for the Public 
Improvements shall be addressed in the Amended and Restated Development Agreement and/or a 
supplement thereto to be executed prior to issuance of a building permit. 

 
3.8. The housing mitigation requirements for the Project are being satisfied by the construction 

of 2 Employee Apartments and 18 Employee Dormitories, as shown on the final plans in the Major PUD 
Amendment Application. A final housing mitigation based upon the construction drawings will be 
submitted with the building permit application to verify compliance with the housing mitigation 
requirements pursuant to the housing mitigation ordinance in effect as of the date of approval of this 
Ordinance.  

 
3.9. The 1997 Employee Housing Restriction outlined in Chapter 16.01 of the Code shall apply 

to the Employee Housing Unit with the following modifications:  
 

a. The deed restriction cannot be lost in foreclosure (lender subordination may be required). 
b. The 2 Employee Apartments and 18 Employee Dormitories shall be condominiumized as 

a single condominium unit (the “Employee Housing Unit”) and cannot be rezoned or 
further diminished at without approval by the Town Council. 

c. The deed restriction will not sunset in 50 years. 



d. There will be no reduction in the number of dwelling units or committed floor area of 
14,445 square feet, except that the floor area may vary between final design and building 
permit by 3%. 

 
3.10. A deed restriction in substantially the same form as Exhibit __ shall be recorded in the San 

Miguel County Clerk and Recorder contemporaneously with the recordation of the condominium map for 
the Project, and any prior lienholder must agree to subordinate to this deed restriction. In the event of any 
conflict between Exhibit __ and the recorded deed restrictions, the recorded version shall control. 

 
3.11. The Employee Housing Unit must be constructed concurrently with the free-market 

portions of the Property.  
 
3.12. The 50 Efficiency Lodge Units constructed as hotel rooms on the Property shall be 

condominiumized as a single condominium unit (the “Hotel Rooms Unit”) and cannot be further 
condominiumized. 

 
3.13. The Employee Housing Unit and the Hotel Rooms Unit shall be owned by the same person 

or entity. 
 
3.14. The Developer shall provide the Town with written confirmation of the five-star operator’s 

commitment to operate and manage the hotel prior to building permit. 
 
3.15. In the event that a five-star operator does not continue to operate and manage the hotel 

constructed on the Property, the Developer shall be required to process a Class 4 Application to amend this 
Final PUD Approval to allow for an operator with less than five stars. 

 
3.16. Construction Mitigation.  The Developer shall demonstrate it has consent from all nearby 

property owners or their representatives or associates for any direct impacts during construction, including 
any properties that will be used for construction access, staging, or storage or which will be underneath the 
span of the construction crane such as the Town, Shirana, and Westermere. The Developer shall indemnify 
all such parties against any damage to such property and shall provide proof of adequate insurance coverage 
protecting such owners. A construction mitigation and communications plan must be submitted to Town 
staff for approval in order to mitigate construction impacts in the Project area. Specifically, details 
concerning the management and maintenance of the construction area including Town property and the See 
Forever walkway must be finalized prior to submittal of a building permit application. During construction, 
Bruin waste services to the Village Center will be uninterrupted. Mountain Village Blvd. must always have 
at least one (1) lane of traffic open, except for the standard periodic lane closures that are issued and 
approved by the Town’s public works department. 

 
3.17. Shirana or Westermere shall have the right and ability to remove landscaping installed or 

maintained by the Developer or its successors on the Property or on the Adjusted Town Property (if 
applicable) to the extent that such landscaping interferes with access from the plaza for maintenance to their 
buildings. 

 
3.18. Upon submittal of a building permit application, Town staff will evaluate any new 

encroachments and will have the ability to elevate such encroachments to the Town Council for a one-step 
review as a PUD amendment, with a public notice requirement. 

 
3.19.  Conditions of Building Permit.  Prior to building permit, the Developer shall: 
 



a. Provide an enlarged detail of storefront areas to clarify how the steel louver detail is used 
in these areas. 

b. Revise the parking plan to indicate that Town staff’s recommendation of providing 10% 
EV installed, 15% EV Ready, and 50% EV Capable parking spaces is being met. 

c. Provide a product specification for glass railings that is specific to avoiding bird/glass 
impacts. 

d. Provide additional details regarding proposed solar panels, including the method of 
mounting and any/all materials associated with the panels for Town staff review. 

e. Provide a revised door schedule that indicates all exterior door type locations as well as 
door design, dimensions, and materiality for staff and one DRB member to review. 

f. Provide a drainage study with stormwater run-off calculations and/or update the original 
study as applicable. 

g. Provide a current geotechnical report consistent with the major PUD application 
requirements. 

h. Revise the landscaping plans to reduce the area of planting beds, creating at least one open 
plaza space capable of having small special events and allowing for better access to the 
plazas for maintenance and EMS services with a 13’ 8” minimum path. The Developer 
shall also revise specified plaza furniture to be moveable in nature. Firepits shall be 
designed such that they can be utilized as planting beds in summer months. Irrigation 
calculations are required for building permit. 

i. Revise trash building plans to amend the shape of the trash enclosure building while 
preserving the area needed for Town use and necessary turn radius and opening up sight 
lines. Such plan should also provide a parking space for maintenance of the trash enclosure 
area and/or boilers for staff review. 

j. Provide details of engineered anchor points for sunshades and/or bistro lighting over the 
plaza areas for special events. 

k. Revise the Town trash building location/orientation to eliminate the site line impediment 
to Mountain Village Blvd. and to show venting for the boilers. 

l. Continue to work with the Town, utility providers, and possibly other developments to 
develop final locations for transformers, switch box, and gas substation and identify 
easements that would be necessary to accommodate utility infrastructure. The Developer 
should also indicate the plan for disposition of abandoned utilities. 

m. Obtain an approved CMP from Town staff. 
n. Enter into an agreement with the Town for landscaping and plaza maintenance. 
o. Show dimensions of the required trash compactor on the plan set in order to reduce the 

number of pick-ups. 
p. Provide a revised lighting plan for Town staff and two DRB members to review. 
q. Provide an address monument design for Town staff review. 
r. Pay applicable REMP fees. 
s. Pay required mitigation fee. 
t. Make any payment-in-lieu required for reduction of total number of parking spaces. 
 

 3.20. Conditions of Certificate of Occupancy.  Prior to certificate of occupancy, the Developer 
shall: 
 

a. Repave the surface of Mountain Village Blvd. adjacent to the Project to the satisfaction of 
the Town. 

b. Complete the required improvements to the Westermere façade consistent with the 
Amended and Restated Development Agreement and to the satisfaction of the Town. 

c. Coordinate a civic wayfinding program with Town staff. 



d. Enter into any necessary easement or encroachment agreements with the Town, as 
determined by the Town Attorney. 

 
 3.21. As soon as practicable and prior to the recordation of the condominium documents, Town 
staff will designate a new Primary Pedestrian Route through this project and update the relevant Appendix 
3-1, along with the Appendix 8-1 Village Center Emergency Access Routes in the CDC accordingly. 
 
 3.22. Consistent with Town building codes, unenclosed accessory structures attached to 
buildings with habitable spaces and projections, such as decks, shall be constructed as either non-
combustible, heavy timber, or exterior grade ignition resistant materials such as those listed as WUIC 
(Wildland Urban Interface Code) approved products. 
 
 3.23. A monumented land survey of the footers will be provided prior to pouring concrete to 
determine there are no additional encroachments into the setbacks or across Property lines. 
 
 3.24. A monumented land survey shall be prepared by a Colorado public land surveyor to 
establish the maximum building height and the maximum average building height. 
 
 3.25. Prior to the Town’s building division conducting the required framing inspection, a four-
foot (4’) by eight-foot (8’) materials board will be erected on site consistent with this Final PUD Approval 
to show: 
 

a. The stone, setting pattern, and any grouting with the minimum size of four feet (4’) by four 
feet (4’). 

b. Wood that is stained in the approved color(s). 
c. Any approved metal exterior material. 
d. Roofing material(s) and any other approved exterior materials. 
 

 3.26. It is incumbent upon the Developer to understand whether above-grade utilities and Town 
infrastructure (e.g., fire hydrants and electric utility boxes), whether placed in the right of way or general 
easement, are placed in an area that may encumber access to the Property. Any relocation of such above-
grade infrastructure appurtenances will occur at the Developer’s sole expense and in coordination with the 
appropriate entity (e.g., fire department, SMPA, and/or the Town) so that the relocated position is 
satisfactory and in compliance with applicable regulations. 
 
 3.27. Improvements to the Adjustment Parcels are subject to the Town Council’s final approval. 
Should the Town Council make amendments to the proposed improvements on the Adjustment Parcels, the 
Developer may be required to revise design plans consistent with Town processes. 
 
 3.28. All representations of the Developer, whether within the Major PUD Amendment 
Application submittal materials or at the DRB or Town Council public hearings, as amended, are conditions 
of this Final PUD Approval. 
 
 3.29. [Conditions of the DRB’s final approval from December 1, 2022 that are not explicitly 
stated herein.] 
 
  3.30. [Additional conditions to be added based on DRB and staff recommendations as further 
refined by Town Council.] 



Section 4. Severability.  If any portion of this Ordinance is found to be void or ineffective, it shall be 
deemed severed from this Ordinance and the remaining provisions shall remain valid and in full force and 
effect. 

Section 5. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective on ____________, 2023 (“Effective 
Date”) and shall be recorded in the official records of the Town kept for that purpose and shall be 
authenticated by the signatures of the Mayor and the Town Clerk.  

Section 6. Public Hearing.  A public hearing on this Ordinance was held on the ___ day of __________, 
2023 in the Town Council Chambers, Town Hall, 455 Mountain Village Blvd., Mountain Village, Colorado 
81435.  

Section 7. Vested Rights.  This Final PUD Approval constitutes a vested property right and site-specific 
development plan that expires three (3) years from the Effective Date of this Ordinance (“Approval Period”) 
pursuant to Code section 17.4.17.E.5. Additional details concerning the scope of the vested rights granted 
by this Ordinance are set forth in the Amended and Restated Development Agreement. 

Section 8. Recordation.  This Ordinance shall be recorded with the San Miguel County Clerk and Recorder 
contemporaneously with the recordation of the Property Replat and the Amended and Restated 
Development Agreement. 

Section 9. Publication. The Town Clerk or Deputy Town Clerk shall post and publish notice of this 
Ordinance as required by Article V, Section 5.9 of the Charter. 

INTRODUCED, READ, AND REFERRED to public hearing before the Town Council of the Town 
of Mountain Village, Colorado this 19th day of January, 2023. 
 
TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE: 

TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, COLORADO, 
A HOME-RULE MUNICIPALITY 
 
 
By:   
 Laila Benitez, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 

 
Susan Johnston, Town Clerk 
 
HEARD AND FINALLY ADOPTED by the Town Council of the Town of Mountain Village, 
Colorado this ___ day of __________, 20223. 
 
TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE: 

TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, COLORADO, 
A HOME-RULE MUNICIPALITY 
 
 
By:   
 Laila Benitez, Mayor 



 
ATTEST: 
 
 

 
Susan Johnston, Town Clerk 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 

 
David McConaughy, Town Attorney 
 
  



I, Susan Johnston, the duly qualified and acting Town Clerk of the Town of Mountain Village, Colorado 
(“Town") do hereby certify that: 
 

1. The attached copy of Ordinance No. 2023-__ (“Ordinance") is a true, correct, and complete copy thereof. 
 

2. The Ordinance was introduced, read by title, approved on first reading and referred to public hearing by 
the Town Council the Town (“Council”) at a regular meeting held at Town Hall, 455 Mountain Village 
Blvd., Mountain Village, Colorado, on January 19, 2023, by the affirmative vote of a quorum of the 
Town Council as follows: 
 

Council Member Name “Yes” “No” Absent Abstain 
Laila Benitez, Mayor     
Dan Caton, Mayor Pro-Tem     
Marti Prohaska     
Harvey Mogenson     
Patrick Berry     
Peter Duprey     
Jack Gilbride     

 
3. After the Council’s approval of the first reading of the Ordinance, notice of the public hearing, containing 

the date, time and location of the public hearing and a description of the subject matter of the proposed 
Ordinance was posted and published in the Telluride Daily Planet, a newspaper of general circulation in 
the Town, on ____________, 202__ in accordance with Section 5.2(d) of the Town of Mountain Village 
Home Rule Charter. 

 
4. A public hearing on the Ordinance was held by the Town Council at a regular meeting of the Town 

Council held at Town Hall, 455 Mountain Village Blvd., Mountain Village, Colorado, on ____________, 
2023. At the public hearing, the Ordinance was considered, read by title, and approved without 
amendment by the Town Council, by the affirmative vote of a quorum of the Town Council as follows: 
 

Council Member Name “Yes” “No” Absent Abstain 
Laila Benitez, Mayor     
Dan Caton, Mayor Pro-Tem     
Marti Prohaska     
Harvey Mogenson     
Patrick Berry     
Peter Duprey     
Jack Gilbride     

 
5. The Ordinance has been signed by the Mayor, sealed with the Town seal, attested by me as Town Clerk, 

and duly numbered and recorded in the official records of the Town. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the Town this  ___ day of 
________________, 2023. 
 
 
 

 
Susan Johnston, Town Clerk 
(SEAL) 



 
 
 

Exhibit A 
 

[Legal Descriptions of Adjustment Parcels] 
 

Exhibit B 
 

[List of Major PUD Amendment Application Materials] 
 

Exhibit C 
 

[Amended and Restated Development Agreement] 



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-__ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, 
COLORADO, CONDITIONALLY APPROVING A MAJOR PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

AMENDMENT FOR LOT 109R AND PORTIONS OF VILLAGE CENTER OPEN SPACE TO 
BE CONVEYED TO THE DEVELOPER 

 
WHEREAS, Tiara Telluride, LLC (“Developer”) is the owner of certain real property described as 

Lot 109R, Town of Mountain Village, Colorado, according to the plat recorded as Reception No. 416994 
(“Lot 109R”) and 

 WHEREAS, the Town of Mountain Village (“Town”) is the owner of certain real property adjacent 
to Lot 109R described as open space parcel OS-3BR-2, according to the plat recorded as Reception No. 
416994 (the “Town Property”); and 

 WHEREAS, the Developer has submitted an application to replat Lot 109R and the Town Property 
(the “Major Subdivision Application”) for the purpose of a land exchange where the Town would convey 
portions of the Town Property described in Exhibit A to become part of Lot 109R (the “109R Adjustment 
Parcels”) and the Developer would convey portions of the current Lot 109R also described in Exhibit A to 
become part of the Town Property (the “Open Space Adjustment Parcels”) (Lot 109R and the 109R 
Adjustment Parcels as combined may be referred to herein as the “Property,” and the Town Property and 
the Open Space Adjustment Parcels combined may be referred to herein as the “Adjusted Town Property”); 
and 

WHEREAS, the purpose of this Ordinance is to act on the Developer’s application for a Major 
Planned Unit Development (“PUD”) Plan for the Property, and the Town Council will simultaneously be 
considering a separate ordinance concerning the required rezoning of the Open Space Adjustment Parcels 
to bring them into the same zoning designation as the Town Property (the “Rezoning Ordinance”); and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council will consider acting on the Major Subdivision Application by 
resolution to coincide with second reading of this Ordinance; and  

 WHEREAS, the Town previously approved a PUD Plan for Lot 109R by Resolution 2010-1208-
31 (the “2010 PUD”) and, in connection therewith, the Town and Developer’s predecessor-owner of Lot 
109R entered into a Development Agreement dated March 18, 2011, which was recorded as Reception No. 
416997 (the “2011 Development Agreement”); and 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance 2015-07, the Town approved a First Amendment to the 2011 
Development Agreement extending vested rights relating to the 2010 PUD until December 8, 2020; and 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance 2020-16, the Town approved a Second Amendment to the 2011 
Development Agreement extending vested rights relating to the 2010 PUD until December 8, 2022; and 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance 2022-10, the Town approved a Third Amendment to the 2011 
Development Agreement extending vested rights relating to the 2010 PUD until September 8, 20231; and 

1 Ordinance 2022-10 has been challenged in pending litigation. See Scythian Ltd, et al. v. Town of Mountain Village, 
et al., Case No. 2022 CV 30045, San Miguel County District Court. If Ordinance 2022-10 is found by the court to be 
invalid, such a finding will not invalidate or otherwise affect the approval of this Ordinance. This Ordinance and the 
Amended and Restated Development Agreement will supersede the Third Amendment to the 2010 PUD and related 



WHEREAS, the Developer has applied to the Town for approval of a Major Amendment to the 
2010 PUD to include the 109R Adjustment Parcels and to make adjustments to density, height, design, and 
other matters for the development of a mixed-use project consisting of hotel rooms, employee housing, 
public amenities including restaurants and a spa, along with commercial and retail space, underground 
parking garage, outdoor landscaped areas, plazas, and related improvements to be operated by a five-stary 
luxury brand hotel operator (the “Project”) as more particularly described in the application, which consists 
of the materials submitted to the Town and itemized on Exhibit B, plus all statements, representations, and 
additional documents of the Developer and its representatives (the “Major PUD Amendment Application”) 
at the public hearings before the Design Review Board (“DRB”) and Town Council; and 

WHEREAS, the DRB held public hearings regarding the Major PUD Amendment Application on 
May 5, 2022 and May 31, 2022, and voted 3-1 to issue a recommendation of approval to the Town Council 
concerning the Application, subject to further consideration by the DRB for final design review and for its 
recommendation regarding the related Major Subdivision Application; and    

WHEREAS, the Town Council considered this Ordinance on first reading at its regular meetings 
on June 16, 2022 and August 18, 2022, and consented to including the 109R Adjustment Parcels in the 
Developer’s Major PUD Amendment Application and Major Subdivision Application, but voted to 
continue the matter to November 17, 2022 so as to allow the Developer time to submit the Major 
Subdivision Application and final design review materials; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council again considered this Ordinance on first reading at its regular 
meeting on November 17, 2022, but voted to continue the matter to January 19, 2023 so as to allow the 
DRB to conduct a further public meeting regarding final design review and the Major Subdivision 
Application before the Town Council would make a decision as to the Major PUD Amendment Application; 
and 

WHEREAS, following a DRB meeting held on December 1, 2022, the DRB recommended to the 
Town Council approval of the Major PUD Amendment Application and the Major Subdivision Application, 
subject to conditions; and 

 WHEREAS, the Town Council has considered the Major PUD Amendment Application, the 
DRB’s recommendations, and testimony and comments from the Developer, Town staff, and members of 
the public at a public meeting on  January 19, 2023 and at a duly noticed public hearing on 
______________, 2023; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council has considered the criteria set forth in Section 17.4.12 of the 
Town’s Community Development Code (“CDC”) and finds that each of the following has been satisfied or 
will be satisfied upon compliance with the conditions of this Ordinance set forth below and in the Amended 
and Restated Development Agreement: 

1.  The proposed PUD is in general conformity with the policies, principles and standards set forth 
in the Comprehensive Plan; 

2. The proposed PUD is consistent with the underlying zone district and zoning designations on 
the site or to be applied to the site unless the PUD is proposing a variation to such standards; 

Third Amendment to the 2011 Development Agreement, thus rendering the approval of the third extension of vested 
rights moot. 



3. The development proposed for the PUD represents a creative approach to the development, use 
of land and related facilities to produce a better development than would otherwise be possible and 
will provide amenities for residents of the PUD and the public in general; 

4. The proposed PUD is consistent with and furthers the PUD purposes and intent; 

5. The PUD meets the PUD general standards; 

6. The PUD provides adequate community benefits; 

7. Adequate public facilities and services are or will be available to serve the intended land uses; 

8. The proposed PUD shall not create vehicular or pedestrian circulation hazards or cause parking, 
trash or service delivery congestion; and 

9. The proposed PUD meets all applicable Town regulations and standards unless a PUD is 
proposing a variation to such standards. 

WHEREAS, the Town Council now desires to approve the Major PUD Amendment Application, 
subject to the terms and conditions set forth below. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, COLORADO, as follows: 

Section 1. Recitals.  The above recitals are hereby incorporated as findings of the Town Council in support 
of the enactment of this Ordinance.   
 
Section 2. Approvals.  The Town Council hereby approves the Major PUD Amendment Application, 
subject to the conditions set forth below (“Final PUD Approval”). The Town Council also approves the 
Amended and Restated Development Agreement, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit C, which the Mayor 
and Town Clerk are authorized to sign on behalf of the Town. All exhibits to this Ordinance are available 
for inspection at the Town Clerk’s Office. Further, subject to Condition #1 below and Developer’s 
execution of the Amended and Restated Development Agreement, the Town Council authorizes 
conveyance of the Lot 109R Adjustment Parcels to the Developer and agrees to accept the conveyance of 
the Open Space Adjustment Parcels from the Developer. These approvals include the following variations 
from the presumptive standards in the CDC or from the 2010 PUD: 
 
 2.1. Zoning and Density.  The Town Council approves the rezoning of and density for the 
Property as follows: 

Table 1. Current Zoning and Density Under the 2010 PUD.   
Type of Zoning 
Designation Unit 

Total Zoning 
Designation Units 

Person 
Equivalent per 
Unit Type 

Total Person Equivalents 

Efficiency Lodge 66 .5  33 
Lodge 38 .75  28.5 
Condominiums 20 3  60 
Employee 
Apartments 

1  3  3 

Commercial 20,164 sq ft 0 0 
Total   124.5 



 
Table 2. Approved Zoning and Density for the Property. 

Type of Zoning 
Designation Unit 

Total Zoning 
Designation Units 

Person 
Equivalent per 
Unit Type 

Total Person Equivalents 

Efficiency Lodge 50 .5 25 
Lodge 31 .75 23.25 
Condominiums 20 3 60 
Employee 
Apartments 

2 3 6 

Employee 
Dormitory 

18 1 18 

Commercial 26,468 sq ft*   0 
Total    132.25 

* Commercial space will be memorialized in square footage on the final condominium map to be approved 
and recorded following construction as addressed in the separate resolution for the Major Subdivision 
Application. 
  

a. Rezone and Density Transfers.  To create the zoning and density in Table 2 above, the 
Developer will place the following density into the Town’s Density Bank: 

 
Table 3. Approved Density Bank Transfers. 

Zoning Designations Person Equivalents Total Number of 
zoning designation 
type of units to be 
placed into the density 
bank 

Total Person 
equivalents 

Efficiency Lodge .5 16 8 
Lodge .75 7 5.25 
Total Units and 
Person Equivalents 

N/A 23 13.25 

 
b. Employee Housing Density.  At the request of the Developer, the Town will create the 

employee housing density needed for the Developer to provide an additional Employee 
Apartment and 18 Employee Dormitories. The Town will utilize the remainder of Town 
Density Certificate #27, a portion of which is already committed to the 161C-R Four 
Seasons project, with a small amount of density to be created by the Town called “Bonus 
Density,” which will not count against the Town’s density limitations. 

Table 4. Approved Additional Employee Density. 
Zoning Designations Person Equivalents Total Number of 

zoning designation 
types to be created 

Total Person 
equivalents 

Employee Apartment 3 1 3 
Employee Dormitory 1 18 18 
Total Person 
Equivalents 

  21 

 
 
 



Table 5. Approved Changes to Density Certificate #27. 
Zoning Designation Person Equivalent Number of unit types Total Person 

Equivalents 
Employee 
Condominium 

3 13 39 

Employee 
Condominium Rezoned 
to Employee Apartment 
for 161C-RR Four 
Seasons 

3 -9 -27 

Employee 
Condominum Rezoned 
to Employee Dormitory 

1 -12 -12 

Total (Density 
Certificate #27 would 
be retired and voided) 

N/A 0 0 

 
Table 6. Approved Bonus Density. 

Zoning Designation Person Equivalent Number of unit types Total Person 
Equivalents 

Employee Dormitory 1 6 6 
Employee Apartment 3 1 3 
Total N/A 7 9 

 
c. Limited Modification of Employee Units.  Notwithstanding the provisions of CDC Section 

17.4.12(O)(2), the type, mix, or configuration of individual Employee Apartments and 
Employee Dormitories, only to the extent that such changes result in increases in density 
used at the Project or in changes to use designations, may be initiated by the owner of fee 
title to the Employee Housing Unit (defined in section 3.9(b) below), without any 
requirement that such change be initiated or joined by owners of fee title to at least 67% of 
the real property within the PUD or an individual or entity having the written permission 
of owners of fee title to at least 67% of the real property within the PUD, provided the 
Employee Housing Unit continues to be used for Employee Apartment, Employee 
Dormitory, and Employee Amenities (an “Employee Housing Unit PUD Amendment”). 
An Employee Housing Unit PUD Amendment cannot otherwise reduce the number of 
allocated parking spaces for deed restricted housing, as outlined below, and all other 
regulations still apply. An Employee Housing Unit PUD Amendment will be reviewed by 
the Town’s planning division as a Class 1 Application, consistent with CDC Section 
17.4.3(K)(1). Any proposed decrease in the number of employee units or changes in square 
footage will be reviewed as a Class 4 Application, consistent with CDC Section 
17.4.3(K)(3). 

   
 2.2. Parking.  The Town Council approves the parking requirements for the Property as 
follows: 
 
Table 7. Approved Parking for the Property. 

Parking Requirement 
per type 

Number of 
Units 

Required Provided 

Commercial 
Space 

1 per 1,000*  26,468 sq ft 27 27 



Condo 1 per unit 20 20 20 
Efficiency 
Lodge 

.5 per unit 50 25 25 

Lodge .5 per unit 31 15.5 16 
Public Parking (48 per 2010 

PUD) 
22 22 22 

Employee 
Dormitory 

1 per unit 18 18** 18 

Employee 
Apartment 

1 per unit 2 2 2 

HOA 
Maintenance 
Vehicles 

1-5 spaces 1 1-5 1 

Total   130.5 131 
*The 2010 PUD only required one (1) parking space per 1,000 square feet of commercial space and did not 
calculate commercial parking per intensity of use, which otherwise is one (1) parking space per 500 square 
feet of high intensity commercial use (e.g., restaurant versus an office). At the Developer’s request, the 
Town recognizes this parking requirement of only one (1) parking space per 1,000 square feet of 
commercial space, consistent with the 2011 Development Agreement. 
**The DRB established dormitory parking at one (1) space per Employee Dormitory at its May 31, 2022 
meeting. 
 

a. Reduction in Total Parking Spaces.  In exchange for a payment of $100,000 for each space, 
the Developer may remove up to five (5) parking spaces at the Property from the total in 
Table 7 above; provided, however, that the spaces allocated for Public Parking, Employee 
Dormitory, and Employee Apartment are not affected. Any such payment-in-lieu must be 
made to the Town prior to building permit. 

 
 2.3. Design Variations.  The Town Council approves variations to the CDC’s Design 
Regulations for the Property as follows: 

Table 8. Final Design Variations Approved by DRB. 
CDC Provision Requirement per 2010 PUD Approved Amendment 

Maximum Building Height*  88’ 9”  88’ 9” 
Average Building Height* 65’ 2.9”  62.35’ 
Maximum Lot Coverage 100% 98% 
General Easement 
Encroachments 

N/A N/A 

Roof Pitch   
Primary 

 
¼:12 

Secondary 
 

¼:12  
Exterior Material   

Stucco Primary Material 0% 
Stone 25% minimum  40% 
Windows/Doors 40% maximum 31%* 

Parking (requirement per type)  (131 total spots shown on 
architectural plan set) 

Commercial Space (1 per 1,000**) 27 27 



Condo (1 per unit) 22 20 

Efficiency Lodge (.5 per unit) 31 25 

Lodge (.5 per unit) 9 16 

Public Parking 48 22 

Employee Dormitory  Determined by DRB on May 
31, 2022 1 space per 
dormitory unit 

18 

Employee Apartment (1 per unit) 2 2 

HOA Maintenance Vehicles (1-5 
spaces) 

1-5 1 

Unassigned 0 0 

Total 92 131 

*Additive of windows and glass screens. 
** The 2010 PUD only required one (1) parking space per 1,000 square feet of commercial space and did 
not calculate commercial parking per intensity of use, which otherwise is one (1) parking space per 500 
square feet of high intensity commercial use (e.g., restaurant versus an office). At the Developer’s 
request, the Town recognizes this parking requirement of only one (1) parking space per 1,000 square feet 
of commercial space, consistent with the 2011 Development Agreement. 
 

Design Variations: 
a. Roof form 
b. Wall material – not meeting the required 25% stucco 
c. Glazing – uninterrupted areas of glass that exceed 16 sq ft 
d. Decks and balconies – long continuous bands 
e. Commercial, ground level, and plaza areas – color selection; ski locker private use on a 

Primary Pedestrian Route 
f. Parking area – aisle width 
g. Road and driveway – driveway width 
 
DRB Specific Approvals: 
h. Materials – TPO membrane roof; metal fascia and soffit 
i. Solar roof tiles in the Village Center 
j. Road and driveway – curb cuts 
k. Landscape lighting ROW encroachment – light fixtures 

 
 2.4 CDC Variations.  The Town Council approves variations to the CDC’s general 
requirements as follows: 
 

a. Encroachments.  The Town shall grant to the Developer easements for certain building 
overhangs and encroachments as well as emergency access for the Employee Housing Unit 
as provided by the Amended and Restated Development Agreement. 

b. Trash Enclosure.  In the event that the Developer is able to relocate the trash enclosure 
from the location shown in the Major PUD Amendment Application, the Developer shall 
submit new plans for the trash enclosure as a as a Class 1 Application, consistent with Code 
section 17.4.3(K)(1). 



c. Conference Center.  The Developer agrees that the conference center proposed as part of 
the Project will be offered to the public at market rate. 

d. Garage Drive Aisle.  The garage drive aisle is reduced from 22 feet to 18 feet, subject to 
approval by the fire marshal per Code section 17.5.8(C)(3). 

 
Section 3. Conditions.  The approval of the Major PUD Amendment Application is subject to the following 
terms and conditions: 
 

3.1.   The Town Council must separately approve the related Major Subdivision Application and 
Rezoning Ordinance, which respectively concern the re-subdivision of Lot 109R and replat of the Town 
Property to create the 109R Adjustment Parcels and the Open Space Adjustment Parcels (“Property 
Replat”). If the amended subdivision plats are not approved within 90 days after second reading of this 
Ordinance, this Ordinance shall become null and void. 

 
3.2. All conditions of approval of the Major Subdivision Application as set forth in Resolution 

2023-__ (“Subdivision Approval”) and as set forth on the Property Replat and in the DRB’s final design 
review on December 1, 2022 are incorporated as conditions of this Final PUD Approval. 

 
3.3. The land swap involving the 109R Adjustment Parcels and Open Space Adjustment Parcels 

must be completed as provided by the Amended and Restated Development Agreement.  
 
3.3. The Town and Developer shall enter into the Amended and Restated Development 

Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit C.   
 
3.4. Public Benefits.  The Developer agrees to provide the following as “Public Benefits,” as 

that term is defined by the CDC: 
 
Table 9. Approved Public Benefits. 
2010 PUD 2023 Major PUD Amendment 
40 dedicated hotel rooms 50 dedicated hotel rooms held in common ownership 

as a single condominium unit, which cannot be further 
subdivided or condominiumized 

Hotel operator requirements Hotel operator requirements – letter of intent with Six 
Senses 

Furniture package Furniture package 
A mitigation payment of $996,288 A mitigation payment of $996,288 ($250,000 of 

which may be used for trash enclosure costs) 
Up to $250,000 of the mitigation payment can 
be used for the trash facility (relocation or 
construction) 

Existing trash facility to be replaced by the Developer 
for estimated total cost of $_________, which 
includes Town consent that the Developer rebuild the 
trash building and include a boiler room for snowmelt 

60% ($597,773) of the mitigation payment to 
be used for employee housing 

The remaining $597,773 of the mitigation payment to 
be used for employee housing 

Hotel covenant Hotel covenant  
On the 2nd anniversary of a Certificate of 
Occupancy, the hotel operator will provide 
actual full time equivalent employee 
information. The owner shall pay $4,018.52 
per employee in excess of the 90 full time 
equivalent employees estimated by the owner. 

On the 2nd anniversary of a Certificate of Occupancy, 
the operator will provide actual full time equivalent 
employee information. The owner shall pay $4,018.52 
per employee in excess of the 90 full time equivalent 
employees estimated by the owner. 



One (1) Employee Apartment Two (2) Employee Apartments and 18 Employee 
Dormitories, each comprised of individual sleeping 
rooms accommodating three (3) people with common 
amenities, such as a shared kitchen, recreational 
facilities, and a laundry, within a minimum 
commitment of 14,455 square feet of employee 
housing. The Developer’s estimated cost is 
$9,950,250.  

Public restroom Public restroom of no less than 381 square feet, 
construction of which is estimated to cost $150,000. 
Maintenance costs, estimated to be $50,000-70,000 
annually, are the owner’s responsibility. 

Plaza improvements $250,000 contribution to the Town for improvements 
to the Village Pond Plaza. The existing easement for 
use and access will be terminated. 

Emergency access to Plaza Area  
 

Emergency access to Plaza Area  
 

The Project’s Association responsible for 
removing and/or relocating snow from the 
south side of upper Mountain Village Blvd. 

Installation of two (2) new sidewalks improved with 
snow melt systems: (a) Shirana to Mountain Village 
Blvd.; and (b) from where the 161C-R sidewalk ends 
continuous along Mountain Village Blvd. to the 
entrance to OS-3BR-2 (109R back of house and Town 
short term parking area)  

See Forever Walkway. A pedestrian access 
easement will be drafted that connects See 
Forever through Lot 109R to the Village 
Center 

See Forever Walkway. A pedestrian access easement 
will be drafted that connects See Forever through Lot 
109R to the Village Center. 

48 public parking spaces in the parking garage 22 public parking spaces in the parking garage, which 
the Developer will own but grant to the Town an 
easement agreement. The Developer may charge fees 
for use of public parking spaces consistent with 
Town-established rates such as those at the Heritage 
Parking Garage. 

Westermere breezeway improvements Westermere breezeway improvements and 
Westermere path improvements consistent with the 
Developer’s proposed development plan and subject 
to relevant provisions of the Amended and Restated 
Development Agreement, estimated to cost 
$_________* 

Conference room space rentable by the public Conference room space rentable by the public 
20,164 square feet of commercial density 26,468 square feet of commercial density 
 Public access via the port cochere through the 

building to the See Forever walkway plaza, which is 
estimated to cost $75,000 and will be assured via an 
easement agreement 

24-hour valet service in exchange for tandem 
parking 

Valet parking provided for commercial uses. Shuttle 
service between Montrose Airport and the hotel for 
guests. 

*If Town plaza area is improved as part of the Westermere improvements, then this is also considered a 
Public Improvement that qualifies as a Public Benefit. 



 
3.5. Public Amenities.  The Developer agrees to provide the following public amenities: 

 
Table 10. Approved Public Amenities. 

Public Amenity Value 
Sustainability Fund committed to be spent locally 
(a Six Senses requirement) 

$200,000-$350,000 

Silver LEED Certified (a Six Senses requirement) $2,460,000 
Hotel amenities open to the public (conference 
center is noted above in Public Benefits) 

 

Hotel amenities open 365 days a year  
Total   

 
3.6. Public Improvements.  The Developer agrees to provide the following “Public 

Improvements,” as that term is defined by the CDC: 

Table 11. Approved Public Improvements. 
Item  Value 
Plaza Improvements (See Forever walkway and 
Shirana area) 

 $1,500,000 

 Trash Enclosure rebuild on OS-3BR-2 $550,000 
Snowmelting and Improving the fire lane $200,000 
Village Pond Improvements – payment $250,000 
 Total   

 
3.7. All Public Improvements to be conveyed or dedicated to the Town shall be constructed by 

the Developer at its expense pursuant to plans and specifications approved by the Town Engineer, and the 
Developer shall provide a letter of credit or other security, in a form subject to approval by the Town 
Attorney, to secure the construction and completion of such improvements based on engineering cost 
estimates to be approved by the Town Engineer. The procedures for providing and releasing security, 
inspection and acceptance of conveyance or public dedications, and construction warranties for the Public 
Improvements shall be addressed in the Amended and Restated Development Agreement and/or a 
supplement thereto to be executed prior to issuance of a building permit. 

 
3.8. The housing mitigation requirements for the Project are being satisfied by the construction 

of 2 Employee Apartments and 18 Employee Dormitories, as shown on the final plans in the Major PUD 
Amendment Application. A final housing mitigation based upon the construction drawings will be 
submitted with the building permit application to verify compliance with the housing mitigation 
requirements pursuant to the housing mitigation ordinance in effect as of the date of approval of this 
Ordinance.  

 
3.9. The 1997 Employee Housing Restriction outlined in Chapter 16.01 of the Code shall apply 

to the Employee Housing Unit with the following modifications:  
 

a. The deed restriction cannot be lost in foreclosure (lender subordination may be required). 
b. The 2 Employee Apartments and 18 Employee Dormitories shall be condominiumized as 

a single condominium unit (the “Employee Housing Unit”) and cannot be rezoned or 
further diminished at without approval by the Town Council. 

c. The deed restriction will not sunset in 50 years. 



d. There will be no reduction in the number of dwelling units or committed floor area of 
14,445 square feet, except that the floor area may vary between final design and building 
permit by 3%. 

 
3.10. A deed restriction in substantially the same form as Exhibit __ shall be recorded in the San 

Miguel County Clerk and Recorder contemporaneously with the recordation of the condominium map for 
the Project, and any prior lienholder must agree to subordinate to this deed restriction. In the event of any 
conflict between Exhibit __ and the recorded deed restrictions, the recorded version shall control. 

 
3.11. The Employee Housing Unit must be constructed concurrently with the free-market 

portions of the Property.  
 
3.12. The 50 Efficiency Lodge Units constructed as hotel rooms on the Property shall be 

condominiumized as a single condominium unit (the “Hotel Rooms Unit”) and cannot be further 
condominiumized. 

 
3.13. The Employee Housing Unit and the Hotel Rooms Unit shall be owned by the same person 

or entity. 
 
3.14. The Developer shall provide the Town with written confirmation of the five-star operator’s 

commitment to operate and manage the hotel prior to building permit. 
 
3.15. In the event that a five-star operator does not continue to operate and manage the hotel 

constructed on the Property, the Developer shall be required to process a Class 4 Application to amend this 
Final PUD Approval to allow for an operator with less than five stars. 

 
3.16. Construction Mitigation.  The Developer shall demonstrate it has consent from all nearby 

property owners or their representatives or associates for any direct impacts during construction, including 
any properties that will be used for construction access, staging, or storage or which will be underneath the 
span of the construction crane such as the Town, Shirana, and Westermere. The Developer shall indemnify 
all such parties against any damage to such property and shall provide proof of adequate insurance coverage 
protecting such owners. A construction mitigation and communications plan must be submitted to Town 
staff for approval in order to mitigate construction impacts in the Project area. Specifically, details 
concerning the management and maintenance of the construction area including Town property and the See 
Forever walkway must be finalized prior to submittal of a building permit application. During construction, 
Bruin waste services to the Village Center will be uninterrupted. Mountain Village Blvd. must always have 
at least one (1) lane of traffic open, except for the standard periodic lane closures that are issued and 
approved by the Town’s public works department. 

 
3.17. Shirana or Westermere shall have the right and ability to remove landscaping installed or 

maintained by the Developer or its successors on the Property or on the Adjusted Town Property (if 
applicable) to the extent that such landscaping interferes with access from the plaza for maintenance to their 
buildings. 

 
3.18. Upon submittal of a building permit application, Town staff will evaluate any new 

encroachments and will have the ability to elevate such encroachments to the Town Council for a one-step 
review as a PUD amendment, with a public notice requirement. 

 
3.19.  Conditions of Building Permit.  Prior to building permit, the Developer shall: 
 



a. Provide an enlarged detail of storefront areas to clarify how the steel louver detail is used 
in these areas. 

b. Revise the parking plan to indicate that Town staff’s recommendation of providing 10% 
EV installed, 15% EV Ready, and 50% EV Capable parking spaces is being met. 

c. Provide a product specification for glass railings that is specific to avoiding bird/glass 
impacts. 

d. Provide additional details regarding proposed solar panels, including the method of 
mounting and any/all materials associated with the panels for Town staff review. 

e. Provide a revised door schedule that indicates all exterior door type locations as well as 
door design, dimensions, and materiality for staff and one DRB member to review. 

f. Provide a drainage study with stormwater run-off calculations and/or update the original 
study as applicable. 

g. Provide a current geotechnical report consistent with the major PUD application 
requirements. 

h. Revise the landscaping plans to reduce the area of planting beds, creating at least one open 
plaza space capable of having small special events and allowing for better access to the 
plazas for maintenance and EMS services with a 13’ 8” minimum path. The Developer 
shall also revise specified plaza furniture to be moveable in nature. Firepits shall be 
designed such that they can be utilized as planting beds in summer months. Irrigation 
calculations are required for building permit. 

i. Revise trash building plans to amend the shape of the trash enclosure building while 
preserving the area needed for Town use and necessary turn radius and opening up sight 
lines. Such plan should also provide a parking space for maintenance of the trash enclosure 
area and/or boilers for staff review. 

j. Provide details of engineered anchor points for sunshades and/or bistro lighting over the 
plaza areas for special events. 

k. Revise the Town trash building location/orientation to eliminate the site line impediment 
to Mountain Village Blvd. and to show venting for the boilers. 

l. Continue to work with the Town, utility providers, and possibly other developments to 
develop final locations for transformers, switch box, and gas substation and identify 
easements that would be necessary to accommodate utility infrastructure. The Developer 
should also indicate the plan for disposition of abandoned utilities. 

m. Obtain an approved CMP from Town staff. 
n. Enter into an agreement with the Town for landscaping and plaza maintenance. 
o. Show dimensions of the required trash compactor on the plan set in order to reduce the 

number of pick-ups. 
p. Provide a revised lighting plan for Town staff and two DRB members to review. 
q. Provide an address monument design for Town staff review. 
r. Pay applicable REMP fees. 
s. Pay required mitigation fee. 
t. Make any payment-in-lieu required for reduction of total number of parking spaces. 
 

 3.20. Conditions of Certificate of Occupancy.  Prior to certificate of occupancy, the Developer 
shall: 
 

a. Repave the surface of Mountain Village Blvd. adjacent to the Project to the satisfaction of 
the Town. 

b. Complete the required improvements to the Westermere façade consistent with the 
Amended and Restated Development Agreement and to the satisfaction of the Town. 

c. Coordinate a civic wayfinding program with Town staff. 



d. Enter into any necessary easement or encroachment agreements with the Town, as 
determined by the Town Attorney. 

 
 3.21. As soon as practicable and prior to the recordation of the condominium documents, Town 
staff will designate a new Primary Pedestrian Route through this project and update the relevant Appendix 
3-1, along with the Appendix 8-1 Village Center Emergency Access Routes in the CDC accordingly. 
 
 3.22. Consistent with Town building codes, unenclosed accessory structures attached to 
buildings with habitable spaces and projections, such as decks, shall be constructed as either non-
combustible, heavy timber, or exterior grade ignition resistant materials such as those listed as WUIC 
(Wildland Urban Interface Code) approved products. 
 
 3.23. A monumented land survey of the footers will be provided prior to pouring concrete to 
determine there are no additional encroachments into the setbacks or across Property lines. 
 
 3.24. A monumented land survey shall be prepared by a Colorado public land surveyor to 
establish the maximum building height and the maximum average building height. 
 
 3.25. Prior to the Town’s building division conducting the required framing inspection, a four-
foot (4’) by eight-foot (8’) materials board will be erected on site consistent with this Final PUD Approval 
to show: 
 

a. The stone, setting pattern, and any grouting with the minimum size of four feet (4’) by four 
feet (4’). 

b. Wood that is stained in the approved color(s). 
c. Any approved metal exterior material. 
d. Roofing material(s) and any other approved exterior materials. 
 

 3.26. It is incumbent upon the Developer to understand whether above-grade utilities and Town 
infrastructure (e.g., fire hydrants and electric utility boxes), whether placed in the right of way or general 
easement, are placed in an area that may encumber access to the Property. Any relocation of such above-
grade infrastructure appurtenances will occur at the Developer’s sole expense and in coordination with the 
appropriate entity (e.g., fire department, SMPA, and/or the Town) so that the relocated position is 
satisfactory and in compliance with applicable regulations. 
 
 3.27. Improvements to the Adjustment Parcels are subject to the Town Council’s final approval. 
Should the Town Council make amendments to the proposed improvements on the Adjustment Parcels, the 
Developer may be required to revise design plans consistent with Town processes. 
 
 3.28. All representations of the Developer, whether within the Major PUD Amendment 
Application submittal materials or at the DRB or Town Council public hearings, as amended, are conditions 
of this Final PUD Approval. 
 
 3.29. [Conditions of the DRB’s final approval from December 1, 2022 that are not explicitly 
stated herein.] 
 
  3.30. [Additional conditions to be added based on DRB and staff recommendations as further 
refined by Town Council.] 



Section 4. Severability.  If any portion of this Ordinance is found to be void or ineffective, it shall be 
deemed severed from this Ordinance and the remaining provisions shall remain valid and in full force and 
effect. 

Section 5. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective on ____________, 2023 (“Effective 
Date”) and shall be recorded in the official records of the Town kept for that purpose and shall be 
authenticated by the signatures of the Mayor and the Town Clerk.  

Section 6. Public Hearing.  A public hearing on this Ordinance was held on the ___ day of __________, 
2023 in the Town Council Chambers, Town Hall, 455 Mountain Village Blvd., Mountain Village, Colorado 
81435.  

Section 7. Vested Rights.  This Final PUD Approval constitutes a vested property right and site-specific 
development plan that expires three (3) years from the Effective Date of this Ordinance (“Approval Period”) 
pursuant to Code section 17.4.17.E.5. Additional details concerning the scope of the vested rights granted 
by this Ordinance are set forth in the Amended and Restated Development Agreement. 

Section 8. Recordation.  This Ordinance shall be recorded with the San Miguel County Clerk and Recorder 
contemporaneously with the recordation of the Property Replat and the Amended and Restated 
Development Agreement. 

Section 9. Publication. The Town Clerk or Deputy Town Clerk shall post and publish notice of this 
Ordinance as required by Article V, Section 5.9 of the Charter. 

INTRODUCED, READ, AND REFERRED to public hearing before the Town Council of the Town 
of Mountain Village, Colorado this 19th day of January, 2023. 
 
TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE: 

TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, COLORADO, 
A HOME-RULE MUNICIPALITY 
 
 
By:   
 Laila Benitez, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 

 
Susan Johnston, Town Clerk 
 
HEARD AND FINALLY ADOPTED by the Town Council of the Town of Mountain Village, 
Colorado this ___ day of __________, 20223. 
 
TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE: 

TOWN OF MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, COLORADO, 
A HOME-RULE MUNICIPALITY 
 
 
By:   
 Laila Benitez, Mayor 



 
ATTEST: 
 
 

 
Susan Johnston, Town Clerk 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 

 
David McConaughy, Town Attorney 
 
  



I, Susan Johnston, the duly qualified and acting Town Clerk of the Town of Mountain Village, Colorado 
(“Town") do hereby certify that: 
 

1. The attached copy of Ordinance No. 2023-__ (“Ordinance") is a true, correct, and complete copy thereof. 
 

2. The Ordinance was introduced, read by title, approved on first reading and referred to public hearing by 
the Town Council the Town (“Council”) at a regular meeting held at Town Hall, 455 Mountain Village 
Blvd., Mountain Village, Colorado, on January 19, 2023, by the affirmative vote of a quorum of the 
Town Council as follows: 
 

Council Member Name “Yes” “No” Absent Abstain 
Laila Benitez, Mayor     
Dan Caton, Mayor Pro-Tem     
Marti Prohaska     
Harvey Mogenson     
Patrick Berry     
Peter Duprey     
Jack Gilbride     

 
3. After the Council’s approval of the first reading of the Ordinance, notice of the public hearing, containing 

the date, time and location of the public hearing and a description of the subject matter of the proposed 
Ordinance was posted and published in the Telluride Daily Planet, a newspaper of general circulation in 
the Town, on ____________, 202__ in accordance with Section 5.2(d) of the Town of Mountain Village 
Home Rule Charter. 

 
4. A public hearing on the Ordinance was held by the Town Council at a regular meeting of the Town 

Council held at Town Hall, 455 Mountain Village Blvd., Mountain Village, Colorado, on ____________, 
2023. At the public hearing, the Ordinance was considered, read by title, and approved without 
amendment by the Town Council, by the affirmative vote of a quorum of the Town Council as follows: 
 

Council Member Name “Yes” “No” Absent Abstain 
Laila Benitez, Mayor     
Dan Caton, Mayor Pro-Tem     
Marti Prohaska     
Harvey Mogenson     
Patrick Berry     
Peter Duprey     
Jack Gilbride     

 
5. The Ordinance has been signed by the Mayor, sealed with the Town seal, attested by me as Town Clerk, 

and duly numbered and recorded in the official records of the Town. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the Town this  ___ day of 
________________, 2023. 
 
 
 

 
Susan Johnston, Town Clerk 
(SEAL) 



 
 
 

Exhibit A 
 

[Legal Descriptions of Adjustment Parcels] 
 

Exhibit B 
 

[List of Major PUD Amendment Application Materials] 
 

Exhibit C 
 

[Amended and Restated Development Agreement] 



1 
65545004;9 

TIARA TELLURIDE LLC 
December 19th, 2022 

PROJECT SUMMARY 

Tiara Telluride, LLC, a Colorado limited liability company (“Tiara”) has submitted a Major PUD 
Amendment Application with respect to Lot 109R, Town of Mountain Village, San Miguel 
County, Colorado.  Tiara has made a considerable effort to thoughtfully and creatively design a 
forward-thinking project that will provide considerable community and public benefits. The 
project includes an industry leading five-star hotel, premium condominium units, best in class food 
and beverage outlets, a one-of-a-kind spa, and unique and exciting retail boutiques ("Project"). 
The hotel and related amenities will be scheduled to operate 365 days per year, improving the 
Town’s tourism economy to create a more vibrant, sustainable, year-round community, consistent 
with the Mountain Village Comprehensive Plan (the “Comprehensive Plan”). Additionally, the 
project will include deed restricted employee apartments and dormitories providing year-round 
housing opportunities for over 50 employees of the Project.  

Lot 109R is currently subject to a PUD approved in 2010 that envisioned a hotel and condominium 
project constructed on Lot 109R. Tiara intends to develop a project that meets the intentions of the 
approved PUD, but also works to surpass the original goals of the 2010 PUD and generally 
conform to the current Mountain Village CDC by developing a premier, cutting-edge and more 
updated sustainable project, with significantly more community and public benefits then intended 
under the 2010 PUD 

Tiara has always intended that this project is in general conformance with the Town's 
Comprehensive Plan in accordance with CDC Section 17.4.12.G.2. To that end, the following table 
identifies the specific areas in which this project conforms with the Town's Comprehensive Plan.  

Table 1 General Conformance 

Items Noted as supporting General Conformance with the Comprehensive Plan for 
Mountain Village Center
The Project reinforces Village Center’s role as the center of tourist accommodations and activity 
by providing: 

• A flagship hotel, specifically a five-star operator and an ultra-luxury brand hotel
• Hotbeds in the form of at least 50 efficiency lodge units (hotel rooms) that will be

maintained in one condominium ownership and disallowed from further
condominiumization

ATTACHMENT 3



 

2 
65545004;9 

• Supplementing and improving direct, year-round, at-grade pedestrian connection for 
hotbed projects in Mountain Village Center through the installation of sidewalks 
along Mountain Village Boulevard, a pedestrian stairway connecting Mountain 
Village Boulevard to the east with the Plaza Area, connecting Mountain Village 
Boulevard at the project porte cochere with the Plaza Area through pedestrian access 
areas within the project, improving the connection between the Shirana and Mountain 
Village Boulevard to the west through the addition of a pedestrian stairway, 
incorporating into the Project a new pedestrian walkway running under the Mountain 
Village Boulevard bridge to the north to the Plaza Area, contributing funds toward 
the redevelopment of the portion of the Plaza Area adjacent to the pond, and 
improvements to the Westermere breezeway.  All additional sidewalk and Plaza Area 
improvements will be snowmelted.   

• Providing appropriate dark-sky lighting. 
• Commercial area, workforce housing  
• Conformance with the Mountain Village Center Subarea Plan: 

o Project reinforces Village Center’s role as the center of tourist 
accommodations, activity and conferencing in addition to locally-serving 
commercial, cultural, recreational and civic spaces in order to maintain year-
round vibrancy 

o Consistent with the Village Center Subarea Goals specifically the provision 
of spa and restaurant and pedestrian circulation & Mixed Use Center Goals 
in the Comprehensive Plan 

• The Final Amended PUD plan is in general conformance with the Future Land Use 
Plan (Map). 

• Conforming to Public Benefits found in the Comprehensive Plan 

 
 

Tiara recognizes the significance of this site to the Town, as it serves as one of the last available 
lots to be developed in the Village Town Center. Because of the importance of this project to the 
Town, Tiara has worked with intention to creatively engineer a project that fits the unique layout 
of Lot 109R, while providing a design that will serve as a welcome addition to the Town's beautiful 
skyline.  

Tiara has worked diligently to develop the design of the project with a focus on creating a timeless 
building that conforms to the natural elements and unique environment of Mountain Village. The 
design also reflects the comments received during preliminary design session meetings with the 
Town and throughout the months following those initial meetings.  



 

3 
65545004;9 

Tiara also continues to work with the five-star flagship operator, Six Senses, on their specific 
design and construction requirements to satisfy their operational needs and amenity requirements. 
Much like the comprehensive plan requires, the flagship hotel is focused on amenities that serve 
not just the hotel, but the public and community as well.  

The siting of the hotel has a focus on integration of the plaza and its surroundings by creating an 
activated indoor/outdoor environment. As comments are addressed, the focus of updating the 
town’s existing courtyard plaza with new and upgraded landscaping has been a crucial focus. The 
site is immediately adjacent and overlaps this key connection from See Forever Village to the 
Mountain Village Center via the pedestrian accessway. 

The comprehensive plan to preserve existing corridors has been maintained. The proposed plan 
has kept this circulation by creating a void through the buildings mass at the pedestrian plaza level 
so that the hotel flanks each side of the pedestrian accessway. This void also creates the opportunity 
for an accessway easement under the building that maintains the existing circulation. The design 
integrates the existing corridor connection for pedestrian and bicycle access neatly tucked under 
the roadway without any impediment. Once through the existing tunnel, pedestrians arrive on the 
other side under the hotel structure safely covered from any weather and have immediate and direct 
access to the public amenities. 

Once in the plaza, the pedestrian access is a continuous open circulation of varying options for the 
path an individual is taking. Furthermore, the addition of a public stairway has been proposed off 
the plaza that allows pedestrians to circulate up to Mountain Village Blvd. or down from the 
adjacent surroundings. The town’s plaza upgrades proposed include snow melt which not only 
maintains public safety and improves snow removal, but also allows 365-day access to the spa and 
retail spaces directly off the plaza or for public events.  

PUBLIC AND COMMUNITY BENEFITS 

In this submittal Tiara has included the addition of tables to better communicate the public and 
community benefits Tiara is proposing for this project. 

Table 2 Public Benefits. These both support general conformance and are 
considered Public Benefits pursuant to the Comprehensive Plan 

Public Benefit Value 

#1.Hot Beds $1,000,000 to $1,500,000 annual 
lodging tax** 

#19. Provide Necessary Easements to and from sites***   



 

4 
65545004;9 

a.  Providing an Easement, as may be necessary, and 
granting easement from See Forever Village to Village 
Center.  Pedestrian Access occurs under the existing tunnel 
from See Forever Village to the Village Center. The 
existing corridor connection has been maintained by 
carving a void from the buildings mass which allows 
pedestrians to circulate from the tunnel to the Village 
Center under the protection of cover. 

Costs included in Community 
Benefits' Plaza improvements 

b.  Providing Easement and constructing stairway access 
from Mountain Village Blvd via Porte Cochere to Plaza in 
the Village Center.  Public access is improved when 
circulating from Mountain Village Blvd to the Plaza via the 
covered Porte Cochere down the stair or via the lobby 
elevator. 

$75,000*** 

TOTAL VALUE $1,275,000  

 

Table 3 Community Benefits 

Community Benefit Value 

Provide 22 Spots for Town Parking $2,200,000 

Provide 20 Spots to Employee Parking $2,000,000  

Provide 18 Employee Dorms and 2 Employee Apartments housing over 
50 employees (14,455 sq ft) 

$7,950,250**** 

Pedestrian Access Stairs from Access Tract 89B to Village Center, Corten 
steel staircase, grated, to allow snow to pass 

$150,000**** 

Plaza Improvements between lot 109 R and Shirana; heated natural stone 
paver and landscaped 

$1,500,000**** 

Plaza Improvements between Plaza and Westermere Façade, new heated 
pavers, new lighting, stucco building finish (see attached rendering) 

$250,000**** 

 
** Once Constructed this is an Annual Value to the town based on Six Senses 

***Dependent on approval of subdivsion application 

****Construction Cost estimations provided by General Contractor 



 

5 
65545004;9 

Plaza Improvements to Village Pond Area Designated in Original PUD 
(payment to Town), 

$250,000**** 

Emergency Access Lane & Fire Utilities, heated drive, landscaped $200,000**** 

Sidewalk along Mountain Village Blvd from Lot 161 CR Stairs to Porte 
Cochere, heated walkway, lighted, landscaped 

$750,000**** 

Sidewalk along Mountain Village Blvd from Porte Cochere to Entrance at 
Level G2, heated walkway, lighted, landscaped 

$250,000**** 

Snow Melt System for all Roads, Plazas, and Sidewalks with Boiler Cost, 
developer to include engineering plans prior to permit 

$1,500,000**** 

Construction of a Public Restroom (381 sq ft), high design, build in the 
same interior design scheme as the hotel 

$150,000**** 

Operation & Maintenance of Public Restroom $50,000-$70,000 
annually***** 

New Trash Facility Building Structure for Town Use  (Not utilized by 
Hotel Building Management) Updated exterior finishes include  stone, 
wood, craftsman style garage doors for trash collection, and weathered 
steel. 

$800,000**** 

New concrete snowmelted sidewalks flanking the edge of the building to 
the plaza stair. New snowmelted concrete sidewalk connecting the 
existing sidewalk at Mountain Village Boulevard to the Shirana.  

$200,000**** 

Waiving HOA fees due for the Public Restroom and Parking spaces TBD 

Mitigation Fee $996,288  

EV capabilities provided in Town Parking Spaces (10% EV Installed, 15% 
EV Ready, 50% EV Capable) 

$375,000****** 

Sustainability Fund committed to be spent locally $200,000 - $350,000 
annually******* 

LEED Certified $2,460,000******** 

Payments per Employee in excess of 90 full time equivalent employees 
beginning on Second Anniversary 

TBD 

Conference Facility NA 



 

6 
65545004;9 

Commercial Spaces and uses contemplated therefore (Additional Spa and 
Restaurant Spaces  

NA 

TOTAL VALUE $22,401,538  

****Construction cost estimations provided by General Contractors 

*****Once constructed, cost provided by Six Senses 

******Estimated cost provided by Solar Consultant 

*******Once Constructed this is based on a % of annual revenue while Six Senses is the Hotel Operator 

********Based on % of construction costs as per our LEED certification consultant 
 

The boilers for supplying the proposed community benefit of snow melted sidewalks in addition 
to the snow melt plaza area are yet to be finalized. The intended location is in the trash facility, 
however this is subject to be placed underground in the event an alternative location is identified 
for the trash facility . The plaza stair is an additional community benefit Tiara has incorporated. 

The design team has generated preliminary analysis capturing the size and piping needs for the 
proposed boiler so that the final location can be determined. 

In response to the comprehensive plan, Tiara has incorporated a stair connecting Mountain Village 
Boulevard to the plaza. The stair is an additional public benefit as it completes the continuity of a 
continuous corridor from Mountain Village Boulevard to See Forever Village. 

SUSTAINABILITY 

The five-star flagship hotel operator requires a level of excellence exceeding expectations of even 
the most discerning customer. Sustainable design is at the forefront of our focus and a LEED Silver 
building is one of the many items that is being incorporated to meet the sustainability standards.  

A complete-building energy analysis will be used to optimize envelope, HVAC, lighting, pool/spa 
systems, snowmelt, and renewable energy strategies, which will all be evaluated under metrics 
such as energy costs, energy/demand reduction, carbon impacts, and greenhouse gas reduction. 
This iterative, holistic analysis will help the team determine the ideal fenestration and glazing 
performance targets with respect to the other building systems and design elements. 

CIRCULATION AND UTILITIES 

A traffic study has been completed and incorporated into the design.   

The design team continues to work with the public utility companies. The engineering currently 
incorporated reflects the invert heights for utility lines that run through the garage floor slab of 
level G2. An easement for the below slab plumbing lines will be granted for the utility company 
access to the stormwater or sanitary lines as/if required. In compliance with application 
requirements, the utilities will be finalized prior to final submittal.  



 

7 
65545004;9 

The project Civil Engineer has been working with SMPA and the Town public works director in 
identifying all the movement of existing utilities and the proposed plan takes that into account the 
general approvals of all parties involved in this discussion. 

The design team is also comprised of a back of house consultant specializing in the flagship 
operational requirements. The back of house at the garage level G2 has direct access from a service 
elevator for the floors above so there is limited, if any, back of house cross over between the garage 
and back of house operations. All trash collection is directly into the back of house space. Trash 
collection will occur concealed within the delivery bay by a trash truck backing into the bay and 
picking up trash. Any trash storage as/if needed will be handled via a well-ventilated storage room. 
The back of house of the hotel will have a trash compactor  

The trash produced by the hotel and related building operations will be self-contained and as such 
there is no additional requirement to offload trash at the existing adjacent public trash facility.  

ACCESS 

Underground Garage Access 

The best point of ingress/egress to an underground parking garage was determined to be between 
the Town’s existing Trash Enclosure and the hotel. There is additional access for the separated 
valet only parking upper garage floors. The separation of garages is in response to the site, 
topography, and addition of a mezzanine employee housing level which made a connection to the 
lowest level unfeasible. 

Access off Mountain Village Boulevard through the Shirana parking lot would add a large number 
of vehicle trips through the Shirana parking lot which must be avoided. Tiara also designed the 
access to avoid any conflicts with the loading bay or trash removal access for the Town’s New 
Trash Enclosure.  

The current access that exists today was considered, but it is steeper than Mountain Village 
regulations allow. The access point off of the boulevard is proposed to be shifted to the south to 
capture a reasonable grade to leave room for the Town’s New Trash Enclosure.  

Loading Dock and Trash Removal Access for the Project 

The Lot 109R property footprint does not lend itself to having access to large truck deliveries (WB-
50) to a delivery bay from Mountain Village Boulevard due to the way that it sits on the inside of 
the curve of the Boulevard. Backing into a loading dock off the Boulevard anywhere on that curve 
results in limited sight distance and was deemed to be unsafe, therefore the delivery bay was 
designed to be accessed from the town parking lot tract OS-3BR-1. This lot access is shared with 
the existing Shirana building which has access to a parking garage off of tract OS-3BR-1.  



 

8 
65545004;9 

The Town has given permission to Lot 109R for hotel ingress/egress into the lowest level parking 
garage, trash collection (within the interior delivery bay), and delivery truck access. The truck 
access would be clockwise off the Lot 109R parking garage (nose pointing south). Once the truck 
is clear of the garage ramp, it can back into the loading dock without interfering with the garage 
ramp or Shirana Ramp access. 

Having the truck pointing north was analyzed, however the truck would have to pull into the garage 
ramp ingress lane and is therefore not desirable. The goal was to keep out of vehicular paths which 
is why the truck needs to point south – the safer approach is to back in while pointing south. 

It is expected that there will be several deliveries per day but it is also expected (and it will be 
planned such) that those deliveries will be done with small trucks and not the WB-50 that the 
loading dock is being designed for. In response to town comments, Tiara has modified the WB50 
truck delivery bay so that it is completely concealed. 

It is assumed that traffic out of the Shirana garage would be left turn, only. Access out of the 
Westermere garage would also be left turn, only.   

The traffic report provided noted a slight shift to the trash enclosure should be incorporated to 
improve sight lines. This has been incorporated into the civil and architectural drawings. 

The Town’s Trash Removal Access for the Town’s Trash Enclosure 

The Town’s existing Trash Enclosure proposed to be accessed off the garage ramp and also in a 
clockwise manner.  The Town’s rear loading trash truck can pull up alongside the Trash Enclosure 
and leave room for the delivery truck to pull in and back up into the loading dock. The two vehicles 
can both be there at the same time while leaving room for Shirana to exit their parking garage and 
turn to the south.     

Although there is room for the two vehicles to be in the loading dock at the same time, it is unlikely 
that this will occur. Bruin Waste has confirmed that they will work their schedule with the delivery 
schedule and had no immediate concerns about the proposed circulation.  

The design provided has incorporated the traffic report’s final assessment. 

LANDSCAPING 

The building mass has integrated more pronounced steps in the balconies which allows additional 
landscaping and potted plants. The upgraded design of the plaza has established additional void 
areas requested by the town for the maintenance vehicular circulation. Tiara will continue to work 
with the town on the design of the plaza.  

The upgrades to the plaza design as proposed are a public and community benefit. Tiara is 
installing heated snow melt benches, new pavers, and upgraded landscaping throughout to create 



 

9 
65545004;9 

an inviting  park-like setting. The finishes are in compliance with the CDC requirements for stone 
and metal (weathered steel). The landscape finishes are seamless with the hotel finishes tying the 
pedestrian accessway of the developer's Property to See Forever Village. 

 

BUILDING MASSING 

The building massing is comprised of public spaces at the plaza floor level which include a spa, 
market, retail spaces, and public restrooms. At the main level, interior spaces include a 
restaurant/lobby bar, flagship amenity space, office space, porte cochere and parking garage.  

There is an intermediate level which provides approximately 14,455 sf of employee housing. The 
horizontal element of this wing nestles the housing neatly in the intermediate level and provides 
façade re-leaf with punched window openings that are surrounded with weathered steel horizontal 
louvered portals. The flagship’s design requirements include incorporating employee amenity 
space that is private and specifically for the employees of the hotel. The amenity space includes a 
gym, library, kitchen, game room, laundry, and cinema.  

The second and third floors are comprised of the hotel rooms and suites and stack directly on top 
of the employee housing which anchors the mass as building design moves upward.  

The balconies provide some visual relief in addition to shading the exterior glazing of the hotel 
rooms. The fourth floor contains the lodge and efficiency lodge units which allows the architecture 
to start to recede inward and exterior space is captured with private balconies. The mass at each 
end and interior courtyard has been cut away receding the building into itself and providing 
additional outdoor balcony spaces which partially open to the sky. 

Tiara has placed a considerable emphasis on community input and has committed its time to 
numerous public hearings and private meetings before preparing this final submittal. These 
hearings and meetings included, but are not limited to: (a) a public workshop during Tiara's due 
diligence period prior to its acquisition of Lot 109R (September 2021); (b) meeting with Town 
staff, including Town Manager after Lot 109R was acquired by Tiara (October 2021); (c) a second 
public workshop (December 2021); (d) ongoing zoom and phone conferences with Town staff 
(December 2021 to present); (e) private meetings with Shirana HOA President, Westermere HOA 
President, and other adjacent property owners regarding the project; (f) Initial DRB Hearing (April 
2022); (g) Second DRB Hearing (continued from initial DRB Hearing, May 2022); (h) First Town 
Council Hearing (June 2022); (i) Phone conferences with Fire Marshall; (j) Site visits with San 
Miguel Power and Black Hills Gas;  (k) an informal community meeting (August 16, 2022); (l) 
Town Council Meeting (August 18, 2022); and (m) Final DRB Hearing (December 1, 2022) 



 

10 
65545004;9 

Tiara has had the benefit of presenting this project to the Town Council on June 16, 2022 and 
August 18, 2022. The Town Council presented several areas that they would like to see addressed 
in this submittal.   In response to the comments of Town Council, Tiara has made substantive 
changes to the project as requested:    

 

1. Maximum Height & Average Height 

 Based on Town Council direction Tiara has now brought the Maximum Height of the 
new design to that allowed by the 2010 PUD and has brought the Average Height 
below the approved Average Height in 2010 PUD. Tiara is no longer requesting a 
variance in the Maximum Height or Average Height for this project.  

 

2. Density 

 Tiara is reducing the total density of the project from that previously requested in the 
Application, 134.5 total units of density, to 132.25 units of density.  This represents a 
total increase from the density allowed under the PUD Approval of 7.75 units of 
density, however the purpose of this increase is only due to the creation of additional 
Employee Dorms and Employee Apartments. Without additional employee housing, 
the density of the project would be 111.25, a reduction of 13.25 from the currently 
approved 124.5.  

In order to accommodate some of the Employee Apartments and/or Employee Dorms 
proposed for the Project, Tiara is proposing to transfer to the density bank any unused 
lodge and efficiency lodge density and requesting that the town create new density for 
employee housing. 

 

 

Approved Density/Commercial SF 
 # Units Density Per Total Density 
Efficiency Lodge 
Units 

66 .5 33 

Lodge Units 38 .75 28.5 
Unrestricted 
Condominium 
Units 

20 3 60 

Employee 
Apartment  

1 3 3 

Commercial SF 20,164   
 Total Density  124.5 

 

D 

D 



 

11 
65545004;9 

Proposed Density/Commercial SF 
 # Units Density Per Total Density 
Efficiency Lodge 
Units (allocated as 
Hotel Rooms) 

50 .5 25 

Lodge Units 31 .75 23.25 
Unrestricted 
Condominium 
Units 

20 3 60 

Employee 
Apartment  

2 
 

3 6 

Employee Dorm 18 1 18 
Commercial SF 26,468   
 Total Density  132.25 

3. Changes to Employee Housing Unit 

 Previously in Tiara’s Application it proposed that the type, mix or configuration of 
individual Employee Apartments and Employee Dorms, including changes that result 
in increases or decreases in density used at the Project or in changes to use 
designations, would be reviewed and approved by the planning division as a Class 1 
Application.  Tiara has removed this proposal from the revised Application and 
instead contemplates that any such PUD amendment will be reviewed and approved 
in accordance with the CDC as class 4 development application that could be initiated 
by the owner of fee title to the Employee Housing Unit, without any requirement that 
such change be initiated or joined by owners of fee title to at least 67% of the real 
property within the PUD, provided the Employee Housing Unit continues to be used 
for Employee Apartment, Employee Dorm, and Employee Amenities (an “Employee 
Housing Unit PUD Amendment”). 

 

4. Town Parking 

 Tiara recognizes the importance of public parking to Town Council and the 
community.  Existing onsite as of the date of this summary are 22 surface parking 
spaces, including one handicapped space, one delivery space, and two medical spaces. 
The increased size and density of the Employee Housing Unit requires significantly 
more parking than was previously discussed and contemplated.  With that in mind, 
Tiara proposes to reduce the total number of parking spaces conveyed to the Town to 
22 spaces, a number equal to that of the existing 22 spaces currently located on Lot 
109R to serve Town residents, businesses, customers, and guests.  Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, not more than 5 such parking spaces may be eliminated with the approval 
of the Director of Community Development upon payment of a mitigation fee of 
$100,000 per parking space. Tiara also proposes to incorporate some of those parking 
spaces with electrical vehicle charging capability. Tiara will provide shuttle 

D 

D 



 

12 
65545004;9 

transportation to the airport and other entry points for both staff and guests in order 
to significantly reduce the utilization of personal vehicles to access the hotel.   

Parking will meet the town requested amounts of 10% EV installed; 15% EV ready 
and 50% EV capable.  

 

 

 

Use 
Designation 

Required 
Number of 

Parking Spaces 
per Unit 

Number of 
Units 

(Commercial 
sf) 

Total 
Parking 

Required 

Total 
Parking 

Available 
Onsite as 

of 
Narrative 
Submittal 

Date 

Total 
Parking 
Provided 

Efficiency 
Lodge Units 

0.5 per unit 50 25  25 

Lodge Units 0.5 per unit 31 16  16 
Unrestricted 
Condominium 
Units 

1 per unit 20 20  20 

Employee 
Apartment  

1 per unit 2 2  2 

Employee 
Dorm 

1 per unit per 
5.31.2022 DRB 
recommendation 

18 18  18 

Commercial 
SF 

1 space per 
1,000 sq. ft.* 

26,468 sq.ft. 27  27 

HOA 
Maintenance 
Vehicles 

1-5  1  1 

Town Parking 
Spaces 

  48 22 22 

Total 
Parking 
Spaces 

  157  131 



 

13 
65545004;9 

 

5. Public and Community Benefits 

 As laid out in this summary, Tiara has significantly reduced the number and magnitude 
of the variances and amendments to the PUD requested, as Shown in Exhibit A and 
has added additional public and community benefits as outlined in Tables 2 and 3. 

 

6. Mitigation Payment 

 Tiara will not be asking for a consolidation of the Mitigation Payment and Building 
Permit or for a reduction in the Mitigation Payment or Building Permit fees.  Tiara 
will pay the original committed amount of $996,288 and will also still meet two of the 
three stated purposes of the mitigation payment by building employee housing and 
building a new trash facility in addition to making the payment. 

Tiara proposes to incorporate into the Project employee housing substantially 
increased and enhanced from that contemplated in the PUD Approval, increasing the 
total housed from one employee to 56 employees, incorporating extensive and diverse 
entertainment and kitchen amenities, and expanding employee parking within the 
Project, all at an estimated cost and value of $9,950,250. 

The Development Agreement also requires $250,000 of the Mitigation Payment to be 
applied to the relocation of the trash facility.  However, Tiara proposes, at its sole cost 
and expense, to replace the existing Trash Facility with an enhanced facility with 
improved capacity and efficiencies at an estimated cost of $800,000.  

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Town can provide an alternative location for the 
trash facility then related amendments to the PUD and Development Agreement would 
be made  through the minor revision process per CDC Section 17.4.7 provided the 
criteria set forth in such section are satisfied and subject to the Criteria (II.L)e) 
Clarification without the requirement for a major PUD amendment 

 

7. Traffic Study 

 After the initial Town Council Hearing a traffic study was ordered from a consultant, 
LSC Consulting and has been provided to Town Council.  

 

D 

D 

D 



 

14 
65545004;9 

8. Town Owned Lands- Re-subdivision 

 Town Council asked questions regarding the parcels to be conveyed to and from the 
Town pursuant to the proposals outlined in the Application.  Based on the 2010 PUD 
Approval, the lots within the boundaries of the plan were replatted by the 2011 Replat 
into Lot 109R, owned by the original developer, and OS-3-BR-2, owned by the Town.  
Note 12 of the 2011 Replat states: 

Lot 109R has been configured so that the boundary lines of Lot 109R will 
coincide with the structural components of the proposed building in the 
Project. 

In order to both accommodate Tiara’s proposed more rounded design of the Project 
and remain true to the intent stated in Note 12 of the 2011 Replat, Tiara has proposed 
certain boundary adjustments between Lot 109R and OS-3-BR-2.  Tiara desires to 
clarify that the parcels to be conveyed to the Town are currently immediately adjacent 
to OS-3-BR-2 and would be added and incorporated into that parcel—they do not 
represent far flung pieces of square footage not useful to the Town.  Further, the 
approval by Town Council of the proposed boundary line adjustments and the related 
conveyances between Tiara and the Town would, after offsetting the areas to be 
conveyed to Tiara and added to Lot 109R against those to be conveyed to the Town, 
result in a total net addition to OS-3-BR-2 of  approximately 360 square feet (i.e. the 
Town would get 360 more square feet than it is giving).  The proposed replat provides 
the best description of the re-subdivision. 

Through this re-subdivision, the additional interior space of the project, provides 
additional space to the plaza. The additional exterior space on the east side of the 
project, provides easier access for the stairway lead up to Mountain Village 
Boulevard. The remaining space provides for an even green space that increases 
access and appearance. 

It is Tiara's intent to meet the Town requirements as stated in the 2011 Replat in order 
to maximize the size of the Town's open space and maintain a zero lot line. Tiara's 
only intent in requesting a re-subdivision is to work with the town to increase green 
space and meet the intent of the 2011 Replat.  

 

 

9. Easements 

 Town Council’s concerns regarding grants to Tiara of public lands may also have 
been intended to reference certain easements contemplated in the Application.  Tiara 
desires to clarify that, to implement the approvals set forth in the 2010 PUD Approval, 

D 

D 



 

15 
65545004;9 

the 2011 Replat was recorded together with various “Lot 109 Project Easements” 
listed in the 2011 Replat for Permanent Underground Structures, Vehicular Access, 
Mountain Village Boulevard, Utilities, and Plaza Usage.  These easements are 
perpetual and run with title to Lot 109R. The Application would maintain in full force 
and effect Tiara’s existing rights under the perpetual Lot 109R Project Easements; 
provided however, that Tiara proposes to modify the easement areas based on the 
reconfiguration of Lot 109R and OS-3-BR-2 as described above.  In addition, Tiara 
proposes to amend the Permanent Structure Easement and to add to the existing 
authorized below-grade uses those elements of the Project Improvements located 
below-grade, including back of house space serving the hotel and other uses within 
the Project, parking spaces, parking garage, and deliveries and snow melt and 
drainage improvements. This underground usage is essential to allow the project to 
meet the community needs. 

Tiara further notes that the PUD Approval and the 2010 Development Agreement 
require the owner of Lot 109R to grant to the Town various easements for utilities, 
conference room facilities, public rest rooms, and pedestrian access in the 
condominium documents for the Project when they are recorded and the exact location 
of the easement areas are identified as part of the condominium mapping process.  
These same easements will be granted by Tiara to the Town when the Project, as it is 
proposed to be amended, is condominiumized.  

The updated chart of Easements is attached as Exhibit B hereto.  

Summary 

 Tiara Has taken Town Council's direction and comments to heart and improved the 
design for the Project to address all its major concerns.  Tiara is confident that the 
new design would truly benefit the Town, the village center and the community at large 
and set a high standard for the development and operation of other area properties.  
Tiara requests that the Town Council approve the Project and the designs as modified 
subsequent to the June 16th Town Council meeting and allow Tiara to proceed towards 
the next phase of Council's review. Tiara is committed to continuing to work with the 
town and community on traffic flow and further revisions to the trash management 
facility, and will accept any other matters that Town Council finds necessary to ensure 
the mutual success of this project. 

 

Tiara requests that the Town Council approve this project, with conditions, to allow 
this plan to move forward.   

 

D 



 

16 
65545004;9 

 
EXHIBIT A 

Table 4 Proposed Amendments to the Existing PUD 

2010 PUD 
Resolution 

2011 PUD 
Development 
Agreement 

Original PUD Amendment Proposal 

Public Benefits and Community Benefits 

Pg. 5, A Def. O, W, 
Sec. 7.2.1.A, 
10, Ex. B 

40 dedicated hotel rooms;   

 

50 dedicated hotel rooms 
(*II.A, D) 

 

Pg. 5, D Sec. 7.2.1.E Declaration of Covenants and 
Restrictions (Hotel Operator and Hotel 
Amenities, Facilities and Services 
Covenant) recorded in Reception No. 
416997 (the “Hotel Covenant”) 

Hotel Covenant will be 
modified consistent with 
changes proposed in the 
Application and based on 
comments of the Hotel 
Operator prior to second 
reading (*II.D) 

   A shuttle service between 
Montrose and the hotel on 
Lot 109R will be available to 
guests (*II.M.5) 

Pg. 6, E Sec. 7.2.2, 
10, Ex. B 

Up to $250,000 of mitigation payment 
can be used to relocate the existing 
trash facility serving the Town 

Existing trash facility to be 
replaced at applicant 
estimated cost of $800,000 
(further addressed below) 
(*II.L) 

  60% ($597,773) of the mitigation 
payment to be used for employee 
housing. 

On-site employee housing 
increased from one employee 
to 56 employees with shared 
kitchen and recreational 
facilities and a laundry, and 
parking (applicant estimated 
cost $7,950,250 with a 
cumulative sale value of 



 

17 
65545004;9 

approximately $20,000,000 if 
sold individually and not 
subjected to employee 
housing restrictions) (further 
addressed below) (*II.A and 
C) 

Pg. 6, F Sec. 7.2.4 Employee housing unit: One (1) 
employee apartment 

Employee Housing Unit: 2 
employee apartments and 18 
employee dormitories, each 
comprised of individual 
sleeping rooms 
accommodating three people 
with common amenities such 
as a shared kitchen and 
recreational facilities and a 
laundry for a total of 14,455 
square feet of area within the 
hotel project dedicated to 
employee housing and 
associated amenity spaces 
(*II.A and C) 

  1 parking space** 

**Final PUD Plan for Mountain 
Village Hotel Issued November 18, 
2010, Project Number 08131.100, 
Cover Sheet/Index and Sheet Index & 
Project Information, as included in the 
Mountain Village Hotel Supplemental 
Information, Issue Date: November 
18, 2010, pages 153 and 154 

20 parking spaces (*II.M.1.b 
and c) 

Pg. 6, H Sec. 7.2.6, 
10, Ex. B 

Plaza Improvements to OS-3-BR-2 in 
shaded areas: 

Plaza improvements to OS-3-
BR-2 bifurcated: 

1. Applicant will install 
Plaza Improvements 
in shaded area 
indicated below. 



 

18 
65545004;9 

 

 

2. With respect to Plaza 
Improvements  to the 
south of the 
Westermere project 
and adjacent to the 
pond near the Village 
Center, in view of the 
proposed 
redevelopment of the 
area by the owner of 
Lot 161CR, rather 
than Applicant 
improving that area it 
proposes to deposit 
with the Town 
$250,000 toward the 
cost of improvements 
to be applied at the 
appropriate time for 
the making of such 
improvements by the 
Town or owner of Lot 
161 CR 

(*II.P) 

Pg. 6, I Sec. 7.2.7, 
8.1 

48 public parking spaces in the project 
parking garage with the public parking 
area located at the top level of the 

22 public parking spaces in 
the project parking garage 
with the public parking area 
located on level G2 of the 



 

19 
65545004;9 

parking structure above the Project's 
parking 

parking structure (*II.M.1.a 
and c) Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, not more than 5 
such parking spaces may be 
eliminated with the approval 
of the Director of Community 
Development upon payment 
of a mitigation fee of 
$100,000 per parking space. 

   EV capabilities to be 
provided to Town parking 
spaces: 10% EV installed, 
15% EV ready, 50% EV 
capable 

Pg. 7, J Sec. 8.2,10, 
Ex. B   

Conference room space rentable by 
the public in conformance with the 
following: 

Conference room space 
rentable by the public to be 
provided with some 
modifications: (*II.O) 

  2 conference rooms designed to be 
broken into 4 smaller rooms 

1 conference room designed 
to be broken into 2 to 4 
smaller rooms 

  Conference rooms to be offered to the 
public for market rent at rates 
comparable to those charged for the 
Telluride Conference Center 

Conference rooms be offered 
for market rent at rates 
comparable to those charged 
for facilities of a comparable 
quality, location, and views 

Pg. 8, (2) Sec. 8.3 Unique lock-off combinations allowed Request removed 

Pg. 7, (L) Sec. 8.5 Snow removal from south side of 
upper Mountain Village Boulevard 

Installation of snow melted 
sidewalks along south side of 
Mountain Village Blvd – see 
below (*II.N) 

Table 2 Def. W, 
Table 2 

20,164 square feet of commercial 
space 

26,468 square feet of 
commercial space 

  21 parking spaces*** 27 parking spaces (*II.M.c) 



 

20 
65545004;9 

***Final PUD Plan for Mountain 
Village Hotel Issued November 18, 
2010, Project Number 08131.100, 
Cover Sheet/Index and Sheet Index & 
Project Information, as included in the 
Mountain Village Hotel Supplemental 
Information, Issue Date: November 
18, 2010, pages 153 and 154 

   Valet parking serving 
commercial uses (*II.M.4) 

   Installation of two new 
sidewalks improved with 
snow melt systems: (1) 
Shirana to Mountain Village 
Blvd (2) From where the four 
seasons sidewalk ends 
continuous along Mountain 
Village Blvd to the entrance 
to OS-3BR-2 (109R back of 
house and town short term 
parking area) (*II.N) 

   Improve pedestrian access 
from the stairs on the west 
side of the Shirana to 
Mountain Village Boulevard 
to the west by installing a 
sidewalk (*II.J.3) 

   Easements being granted for 
See Forever Walkway 
(easement to be granted as 
part of Project condominium 
documents as addressed 
below) (*II.J.2.b) 

   Construction of stairway 
access from Mountain 
Village Blvd via porte 



 

21 
65545004;9 

cochere within Project to 
Plaza in the Village Center 
(easement to be granted as 
part of Project condominium 
documents as addressed 
below) 

   Improvements to OS-3-BR-2 
to provide access by 
emergency vehicles from 
Mountain Village Boulevard 
to the Plaza (*II.K) 

   Existing trash facility serving 
Town to be replaced with 
new building structure for 
Town use (Lot 109R will be 
separately served) and access 
drive will be snow-melted 
(II.L) 

Density 

Table 2 Sec. 4.2 Total density: 124.5 Proposed density: 132.25 
(*II.A) 

  60 efficiency lodge units (40 to be 
owned, operated and dedicated for use 
as hotel rooms) for a density of 33 

50 efficiency lodge units (all 
to be owned, operated and 
dedicated for use as hotel 
rooms) for a density of 25 
(see below for bonus density 
request) 

  38 lodge units for a density of 28.5 31 lodge units for a density of 
23.25 

  20 unrestricted condominium units for 
a density of 60 

No change  

  1 employee apartment for a density of 
3 

2 employee apartments for a 
density of 6 



 

22 
65545004;9 

   18 employee dorms for a 
density of 18 

   Unused density for other uses 
will be transferred to the 
Town density bank 

Subdivision, Parcel Exchange/Reconfiguration, Easements 

Pg. 9, 
Resolution 

Sec. 2 and 3 The Town included 21,562.2 square 
feet of town property to create the 
resulting Lot 109R containing a total 
of 35,928 square feet.  The Town 
accepted replacement property 
specifically Lot 644 in the meadows in 
consideration for the replatted 
property and original PUD agreement. 

A replat request to adjust 
boundaries between Lot 
109R and OS-3-BR-2, 
Village Center Active Open 
Spaced owned by the Town 
of Mountain Village. Village 
Center Open space when 
reconfigured would increase 
by 360 square feet with 
modified boundaries. (*II.E) 

Pg. 9, 1 Sec. 3.1, 3.3, 
8.6 

Easements granted by Town to Owner 
recorded concurrently with Replat: 

Amend easement parcels as 
necessary to reflect boundary 
line adjustment.  In addition: 
(*II.F) 

  Permanent Underground Structures 
(Rec. 417001) 

Amend easement parcel to 
expand below-grade portion 
of OS-3-BR-2 where 
employee parking is located 
(*II.G) 

  Plaza Usage (Rec. 41700) Modify easement to allow 
overhangs and above-grade 
encroachments shown on 
plans for the Project and 
emergency egress from 
employee housing unit.  
(*II.H and J.1) 

   In the event OS-3-BR-2 is 
not treated under the IBC as a 
street, alley or public way for 
purposes of calculating fire 



 

23 
65545004;9 

separation distance for the 
Project, Applicant requests an 
administrative modification 
to the IBC to, nevertheless, 
allow fire separation distance 
to be calculated to an 
imaginary line halfway 
between Lot 109R and any 
building on the opposite side 
of OS-3-BR-2.  In the event 
covenants regarding OS-3-
BR-2 are required to achieve 
that end, Applicant requests 
the imposition of such 
covenants. (*II.I) 

  Easements granted by Town to Owner 
for shoring, excavation and grading at 
building permit issuance 

No change 

Pg. 9, 1 Sec. 8.7 Easements to be granted by Owner to 
Town with recordation of Project 
condominium documents: 

Conference room access 

Public restrooms 

Town parking spaces 

Pedestrian breezeways 

No change to existing 
easements to be granted.  
New/additional easements to 
be granted with recordation 
of Project condominium 
documents as descried below: 

   See Forever Walkway. An 
Owner Granted Public 
Easement will be granted (as 
easements, licenses, or leases 
as necessary and suitable) to 
Town with recordation of 
Project condominium 
documents that connects See 
Forever walkway through Lot 
109R (proposed to be 
replatted as Lot 109R2) to the 



 

24 
65545004;9 

Village Center. The pathway 
is recognized onsite.   

   Easement for stairway access 
from Mountain Village Blvd 
via Port Cochere to Plaza in 
the Village Center 

  Over Tract 89-A there exist 2 
pedestrian access easements: 

(1) Warranty Deed recorded 
March 2, 1987 in Book 434, 
Pages 474-478; 

(2) Pedestrian Access Easement 
Agreement recorded October 
12, 2007 under Reception No. 
397446 

Reposition of access 
easement to reflect final 
location of related pedestrian 
access improvements 
(*II.J.2.a) 

Variations 

Pg. 1, 1 6.1.1 Variation/waiver to LUO Section 2-
416 to allow Lot 109 and 110, 
Building Footprint Lots, to expand by 
more than 25% 

N/A. Lot 109R is not a 
Building Footprint Lot under 
the CDC 

Pg. 1, 3 
and 5 

6.1.3 Variation/waiver to LUO Section 4-
308-2 (sic.) [4-311-2.] to allow for 
permitted uses (parking, pedestrian 
paths, etc. as shown in plans) in 
Active Open Space as shown on the 
Final PUD Plans to be approved 
pursuant to the PUD process and not 
the special use permit process. 

N/A.  OS-3-BR-2 is now 
zoned Full use, Ski Resort 
Active Open Space under 
CDC Section 17.3.2.B.c. 

Pg. 1, 4 6.1.4 Variation/waiver to LUO Section 4-
308-2(f) to allow for conference and 
meeting space on the plaza level. 

N/A. Conference facility 
moved to 6th floor.  Plaza 
level use limitations set forth 
in CDC Section 17.2.4.H.4 
don’t apply (*II.O) 



 

25 
65545004;9 

Pg. 1, 6 6.1.5 Variation/waiver to LUO Section 2-
466 to allow for the proposed lock-off 
unit configuration as shown in the 
Final PUD Plans. 

N/A.  Request for unique 
lock-off combinations 
removed. 

Pg. 1, 7 6.1.6 Variation/waiver to LUO Section 4-
609-5 to extend the PUD vesting 
period from three (3) to five (5) years. 

N/A.  Applicant proposes to 
create a vested property right 
in PUD as amended for 
standard 3-year vesting 
period (*II.S) 

Pg. 2, 8 6.1.7 Variation/waiver to LUO Section 9-13 
through 9-16 (TMV Design 
Regulations) to allow for the “festoon” 
lights over the plaza area. 

N/A 

   In order to accommodate the 
additional employee 
apartment and the 18 
employee dorms, Applicant 
requests the Town create 21 
units of bonus density for 
such purposes or that such 
density be transferred from 
the Town density bank 
(*II.A) 

   The type, mix or 
configuration of the areas 
within the Employee Housing 
Unit, including changes that 
result in increases or 
decreases in density or in 
changes to use designations 
may be initiated by the owner 
of fee title to the Employee 
Housing Unit without any 
requirement that such change 
be initiated or joined by 
owners of fee title to at least 
67% of the real property 



 

26 
65545004;9 

within the PUD or an 
individual or entity having 
the written permission of 
same, provided the Employee 
Housing Unit continues to be 
used for Employee 
Apartment, Employee Dorm, 
and Employee Amenities and 
the other portions of the PUD 
are not adversely affected. 
(*II.C) 

   Lodge units will not be 
required to contain a 
mezzanine as contemplated 
in CDC Section 17.8.1 
(*II.D) 

   All commercial space to be 
parked at 1.00 per 1,000 sf in 
accordance with existing 
PUD and LUO Section 7-301 

   Wall material (no stucco 
proposed) per CDC Section 
17.5.6.E 

   Glazing – uninterrupted areas 
of glass that exceed 16 square 
feet per CDC Section 
17.5.6.G.5 

   Decks and Balconies – long 
continuous bands per CDC 
Section 17.5.6.I 

   Garage Drive Aisle reduced 
from 22 feet to 18 feet 
approved by the fire marshal 
per CDC Section 17.5.8.C.3 
(*II.M.3) 



 

27 
65545004;9 

Specific Approvals 

Pg. 2, 1 6.2.1 Specific approval from Town Council 
to allow residential occupancy on the 
plaza level for an Employee Housing 
Apartment (LUO Section 4-308-4) 

Employee apartment and 
employee dorms moved to 
mezzanine.  Plaza level use 
limitations set forth in CDC 
Section 17.2.4.H.4 don’t 
apply 

Pg. 2, 2 6.2.2 Specific approval from the DRB to 
allow tandem parking to be included 
as required parking (Design 
Regulations Section 7-306-2) 

N/A.  Tandem parking 
eliminated. (*II.M.2) 

Pg. 2, 3 6.2.3 Specific approval from the DRB to 
allow modification of the tile roofing 
material, not design (Design 
Regulations Section 8-211-5) 

N/A 

Pg. 2, 4 6.2.4 Specific approval from the DRB to 
allow for 2:12 roof pitch (Design 
Regulations Section 8-202) 

N/A 

   Conditional use approval per 
CDC Section 17.3.3 Use 
Schedule to expand below-
grade portion of OS-3-BR-2 
where employee parking is 
located (see above).  (*II.G) 

   Either add to the authorized 
uses permitted under the 
Permanent Structure 
Easement or to provide for 
the grant by the Town of a 
new easement in substantially 
the same form as the 
Permanent Structure 
Easement, to install, extend, 
operate, use, repair and 
maintain those elements of 



 

28 
65545004;9 

 

Table 5 Proposed CDC Variances*  
 

1 
 

Density for employee housing 
 2 

 
Application rule for employee housing 

3 
 

Parking (including flexibility to remove up 
to 5 parking spaces with payment to Town 
of $100,000 per lost parking space) 

4 
 

Design Variations 
  a Exterior Walls 
  b Glazing 
  c Decks & Balconies 
  d Parking Regulations 
 e Lighting, including Landscape Lighting 
 f Road and Driveway Standards 
 g Solar Roof Tiles in the Village Center 
 h Roof Form 

 

* See design variance sheet.  

  

the Project Improvements 
located above-grade 



 

29 
65545004;9 

 

EXHIBIT B 

Lot 109R Easements Existing and Proposed 

(12.18.2022) 

Ex
1 

Recording 
Informatio

n 

Document 
Title 

Parties Property Easement Proposal 

23, 
27 

3.2.1987 
B434 P475 

Warranty 
Deed 

The Telluride Company Tract 89-A, Telluride 
Mountain Village, Filing 

No.1, according to the 
replat of future Lot 89 

and Tract OS-3, 
Telluride Mountain 
Village Filing No. 1 

In deed for Tract 89-A The Telluride Company 
reserved a non-exclusive pedestrian access 
easement on, over and across Lot 89-A for the 
benefit of all persons in the Mountain Village 
Planned Unit Development, San Miguel County 
(“Mountain Village”).  Runs for the benefit of 
Mountain Village.  The Telluride Company 
reserved the right to limit the rights of 
beneficiaries of the easement or abolish it. 
 
By virtue of the 2011 Replat (defined below), 
Note 11, this easement was supplemented and 
amended such that, “[c]onsistent with the terms 
of Section 8.6 of the Development Agreement 
[defined below] . . . Company [the owner of Lot 
109R] is obligated to grant and convey 
certain . . . easements (“Owner Granted Public 
Easements”) for the use and benefit of the 
Town following construction of the Project, 
which will be addressed in the condominium 
documents for the Project to be recorded in the 
manner required by the Development 
Agreement.” 

Pedestrian access 
improvements will 
be located 
immediately adjacent 
to the southeast of 
Lot 109R2 on what 
will be Tract OS-
3BR-2R, Town Open 
Space.  Easement to 
be relocated 
accordingly or 
terminated and 
released.   
 
Project 
Condominium 
Documents will also 
provide necessary 
and suitable 
easements, licenses 
or leases for the 
benefit of the Town 
and general public 
for pedestrian access 
between the porte 
cochere at Mountain 
Village Boulevard 
and to the Plaza 
Area. 

 
1 Title exception number references are to Title Report issued by Fidelity National Title Insurance Company, Title Report No.:150-F17796-22, dated effective October 5, 2022 



 

30 
65545004;9 

   Original Location 

 

Proposed Location (shaded area) 

 

20 10.12.2007 
397446 

 
 

Pedestrian 
Access 

Easement 
Agreement 

 
See also 2011 

Replat 

Stonegate Mountain Village 
Partners, LLC (“Grantor”) and 

John E. and Alice L. Butler Trust 
(“Grantee”) 

“Initial Easement 
Area” over Tract 89-A.  
Upon receipt of Town 
approvals to develop a 
hotel and condominium 
project, after which a 
replat was anticipated 
deleting Lots 89A, 109 
and 110 and modifying 
Tract OS3-BR and 
creating new [Lot 109R] 
and Tract OS-3BR-2, the 
easement would be over 
the “Final Easement 
Area” shown in gray 
below, provided that 
such areas made subject 
to modification 
throughout the TMV 
approvals and agreed 
upon by Grantor and 
Grantee and finally final 
location to be determined 
from an as-built. 

Pedestrian access easement for the benefit of 
Lots 89-1B, 891-C, 89B, 89D-1, 892A, 893B, 
89-3C and 89-3D, Town of Mountain Village 
per plat recorded in Plat Book 1 at Page 693 to 
maintain Grantee’s pedestrian access from 
Grantee’s Property to the Mountain Village 
Core 
 
The 2011 Replat shows the location of the Final 
Easement Area and notes “(Location to be 
Amended pursuant to Section 1.1 of the 
Easement Agreement recorded at Reception No. 
397446.)  

Pedestrian access 
improvements will 
be located 
immediately adjacent 
to the southeast of 
Lot 109R2 on what 
will be Tract OS-
3BR-2R, Town Open 
Space.  Easement to 
be relocated 
accordingly or 
terminated and 
released.  
 
Project 
Condominium 
Documents will also 
provide necessary 
and suitable 
easements, licenses 
or leases for the 
benefit of the Town 
and general public 
for pedestrian access 
between the porte 
cochere at Mountain 

Tract OS-3BR-2Cl (created) 



 

31 
65545004;9 

Village Boulevard 
and to the Plaza 
Area. 

   Initial Easement Area(shown in black); Final Easement Area 
(shown in gray) 

 

Proposed Location (shaded area) 

 

27, 
31,  

3.18.2011 
Plat Book 1 

Pages 
4455-4457; 

416994 

Plat for Lot 
109R and 
Tract OS-

3BR-2, Town 
of Mountain 
Village (the 

“2011 
Replat”) 

 Lot 109R Note 9 includes an acknowledgement by 
Company and Town that certain easements 
relating to the development of the Project (“Lot 
109R Project Easements”) are executed and 
recorded simultaneously with the Plat as 
follows (which are separately addressed in this 
table below): 

Easement Recording 
Date 

Reception 
No. 

Underground 
Structures 

3.18.2011 417001 

Vehicular 
Access 

3.18.2011 417002 

Mt. Village 
Blvd 

3.18.2011 417003 

Utilities 3.18.2011 417004 
Plaza Usage 3.18.2011 417000 

 
 

Lot 109R Project 
Easements to be 
amended as proposed 
in this table below. 

     Note 11 states: Consistent with the terms and 
conditions of Section 8.7 of the Development 

Addressed separately 
in this table below. 

Tract OS-38R-2C 1 (created) 



 

32 
65545004;9 

Agreement, Company and Town recognize that 
Company is obligated to grant and convey 
certain other easements (“Owner Granted 
Public Easements”) for the use and benefit of 
the Town following construction of the Project, 
which will be addressed in the condominium 
documents for the Project to be recorded in the 
manner required by the Development 
Agreement.   

     The Owner Granted Public Easements includes 
(sic.), without limitation, a right of Pedestrian 
Access through breezeways being constructed 
on the Project, which right and easement 
supplements and amends the reservations for 
public pedestrian access over Tract 89-A as 
noted in Deed recorded in Book 434, Pages 
475-478. 

Project as 
reconfigured no 
longer includes 
breezeways.  Project 
Condominium 
Documents will 
provide necessary 
and suitable 
easements, licenses 
or leases for the 
benefit of the Town 
and general public 
for pedestrian access 
between the porte 
cochere at Mountain 
Village Boulevard 
and to the Plaza Area 
instead. 

27, 
32 

3.18.2011 
416997 

 
Amendmen
t recorded 
8.5.2015 at 

438754  
And 

12.21.2020 
at 467310  

Development 
Agreement 
Lot 109R, 
Town of 
Mountain 
Village 

Planned Unit 
Development 

(the 
“Developme

nt 
Agreement”) 

 

Town of Mountain Village and MV 
Colorado Development Partners 

Lot 109R Section 8.6.  The Town agrees to grant and 
convey necessary easements to the Owner 
(“Lot 109R Project Easements”) to enable 
Owner to develop, construct, operate, use, 
repair and maintain the Project in accordance 
with the Town Approvals. The easements shall, 
at a minimum, provide for the following: 

1. Plaza Usage 
2. Permanent Underground Structures 
3. Vehicular Access 
4. Mt Village Blvd 
5. Utilities 
Each of these easements were recorded in 2011 
and are addressed separately in this table below. 
 

Addressed separately 
in this table below. 



 

33 
65545004;9 

See also 2011 
Replat Note 

11 

See also 2011 Replat Note 9 addressed above. 

     Section 8.6 also lists certain Lot 109R Project 
Easements to be granted with the building 
permit for the Project: 

1. Section 8.6; Grant of Easements by Town to 
Owner Temporary shoring, grading and 
excavation 

2. Vehicular and pedestrian access to 
undertake authorized uses 

Timing moved up 
and grant to be added 
to Easement 
Agreement 
(Permanent 
Structures) by First 
Amendment to same 
to be recorded with 
the Lot 109R2 
Replat.  Easement 
Agreement 
(Permanent 
Structures) also 
addressed separately 
in this table below. 

     Section 8.7.  Owner agrees to grant and convey 
to the Town certain necessary and suitable 
easements, licenses or leases for the benefit of 
the Town and general public (“Owner Granted 
Public Easements”). The Owner Granted 
Public Easements shall, at a minimum, provide 
for the following: 
1. Interim Utility License for certain existing 

public utilities (“Existing Public 
Utilities”) that may exist in Lot 109R 

License was recorded in 2011 and is addressed 
separately in this table below. 

 
See also 2011 Replat Note 10 which also 
addresses the granting of the License 
Agreement (Utilities) for the Existing Public 
Utilities 

Addressed separately 
in this table below 

     Section 8.7 also lists certain Owner Granted 
Public Easements to be granted (as easements, 
licenses or leases as necessary and suitable) 
with the recordation of Project Condominium 
Documents:  
1. Permanent Utilities 
2. Conference Room Access 

Remain to be granted 
and/or other rights to 
use created in/in 
connection with 
recordation of 
Project 
Condominium 



 

34 
65545004;9 

3. Public Rest Room Access 
4. Town Parking Spaces Access 
5. Pedestrian Access through breezeways 
 
See also 2011 Replat Note 11 set forth in this 
table above. 

Documents with 
Town staff approval 
of form of same. 
 
Conference room 
space rentable by the 
public to be provided 
with some 
modifications:  
1 conference room 
designed to be 
broken into 2 to 4 
smaller rooms 
Conference rooms be 
offered for market 
rent at rates 
comparable to those 
charged for facilities 
of a comparable 
quality, location, and 
views 
 
Project as 
reconfigured no 
longer includes 
breezeways.  Project 
Condominium 
Documents will 
provide necessary 
and suitable 
easements, licenses 
or leases for the 
benefit of the Town 
and general public 
for pedestrian access 
between the porte 
cochere at Mountain 
Village Boulevard 
and to the Plaza Area 
instead. 

     In addition, Owner Granted Public Easements 
to be granted (as easements, licenses or leases 

 



 

35 
65545004;9 

as necessary and suitable) with the recordation 
of Project Condominium Documents will 
include a pedestrian access easement that 
connects the See Forever walkway through Lot 
109R (to be replatted as Lot 109R2) to the 
Village Center. The pathway is recognized 
onsite.   

34 3.18.2011 
416999 

License 
Agreement 
(Utilities) 

 
See also 2011 
Replat Note 

10 and 
Development 
Agreement 
Section 8.6 

MV Colorado Development 
Partners. LLC (Licensor) and the 

Town of Mountain Village 
(Licensee) 

License Area depicted on 
Exhibit A to License 
Agreement (Utilities) 

Acknowledges that (a) certain Existing Public 
Utilities may exist within portions of the 
License Area, (b) some or all such Existing 
Public Utilities could be relocated and/or 
abandoned with the construction of the Project, 
(c) Replacement Public Utilities will be 
constructed by Licensor in connection with the 
Project, (d) the parties will execute any 
replacement easements as necessary to enable 
the use, operation, maintenance, repair and 
replacement of the Replacement Public 
Utilities, and (e) until such time as the 
construction of the Project commences as 
evidenced by a building permit, the Town will 
have the right per this License Agreement to 
use, repair, maintain and otherwise operate the 
Existing Public Utilities.  License automatically 
expires when Licensor obtains a building 
permit, subject to the obligation of Licensor to 
grant Replacement Public Utilities Easements. 
 
See also Note 10 on 2011 Replat and Section 
8.6 of Development Agreement. 

Amended to address 
utilities and other 
related 
improvements 
including stormwater 
and drainage 
facilities, water, 
sewer, telephone, 
internet, electrical, 
gas, cable television 
utility that serve 
third-party private 
property owners 
located within 
portions of the 
License Area or 
other portions of the 
Licensee Property 
impacted by the 
Project.   
 
Exhibit A depicting 
License Area to be 
amended to reflect 
configuration of the 
Lot109R2 and OS-
3BR-2R.   
 
See proposed First 
Amendment to and 
Partial Termination 
and Relinquishment 
of License 
Agreement (Utilities) 
 



 

36 
65545004;9 

Form of amendment 
to be developed and 
finalized with Town 
staff approval. 
 

   License Area (current) 

 

License Area (proposed) 

 
35 3.18.2011 

417000 
Easement 

Agreement 
(Plaza Usage) 

 
See also 2011 
Replat Note 9 

and 
Development 
Agreement 
Section 8.6 

MV Colorado Development 
Partners. LLC (“Grantee”) and the 

Town of Mountain Village 
(“Grantor”) 

Easement Area depicted 
on Exhibit B to 

Easement Agreement 
(Plaza Usage) 

Easement for (“Authorized Uses”): Installation, 
operation, use repair, maintenance, and upgrade 
of: 
a. Snowmelt system and related components.   
b. Plaza lighting and fixtures. 
c. Landscaping and hardscaping.  
d. Signage. 
e. Pedestrian access. 
f. Drainage systems and improvements. 

2. Vehicular and pedestrian access and the use 
of equipment necessary to maintain, repair, 
replace, upgrade, etc: 

a.  Elements of the Project for which such 
access is reasonably necessary. 

b. Facilities, structures, improvements etc 
associated with the Authorized Uses. 

Authorized Uses to 
be revised to allow 
lighting attached to 
the exterior of the 
building comprising 
the Project; delete 
authorization for 
installation of 
artwork; and allow 
other Project 
Improvements 
projecting on the or 
over the Easement 
Area, including, but 
not limited to, 
awnings, signs, and 
hardscaping. 

~1 ~ 



 

37 
65545004;9 

3. Authorized Uses deemed to include slope 
easement by which Grantor agrees not to 
disturb Grantor Property burdened by 
Easement Area in a manner that will alter, 
compromise, etc lateral support or other 
structural integrity of Project Improvements. 

 
See also Note 9 on 2011 Replat and Section 8.6 
of Development Agreement. 

  
Exhibits A & B 
depicting Easement 
Area to be amended 
to reflect 
configuration of the 
Lot109R2 and OS-
3BR-2R.   
 
Other clean-up 
changes to 
boilerplate. 
 
See proposed First 
Amendment to and 
Partial Termination 
and Relinquishment 
of Easement 
Agreement (Plaza 
Uses) 
 
Form of amendment 
to be developed and 
finalized with Town 
staff approval. 

   Easement Area (current) Easement Area (proposed) 



 

38 
65545004;9 

  
36 3.18.2011 

417001 
Easement 

Agreement 
(Permanent 
Structures) 

 
See also 2011 
Replat Note 9 

and 
Development 
Agreement 
Section 8.6 

MV Colorado Development 
Partners. LLC (“Grantee”) and the 

Town of Mountain Village 
(“Grantor”) 

Easement Area depicted 
on Exhibit B to 

Easement Agreement 
(Permanent Structures) 

Easement for (“Authorized Uses”): 
1. Installation, operation, use repair, 

maintenance, and upgrade of: 
a. Those elements of Project Improvements 

located below grade (inclusive of, without 
limitation, footers, walls, foundations, 
columns, supports and other like 
components). 

b. Those elements of the Project 
Improvements located below grade 
(inclusive of, without limitation, 
commercial space, residential space, 
storage space, parking garages, parking 
spaces, snowmelt systems, HVAC 
systems, mechanical systems, phone 
systems, boilers, exhaust systems, lights, 
elevators, stairs, ramps, drains, pipes, 
utilities and other like components). 

Authorized Uses to 
be revised to allow 
layback, 
underground support 
members and devices 
such as but not 
limited to excavation 
shoring walls, soil 
nails, nail screws and 
tieback systems, 
tower crane 
foundation systems,   
and expand utility 
and system-related 
uses allowed. 
 
Exhibit A & B 
depicting Easement 
Area to be amended 

'f, 
C, 

?. 
le. z 

\ .. \ 
\ ' 
. .l ~ \ 
COUNTRY \ 

CLUB i, 

.!..,RIVE \ 



 

39 
65545004;9 

2. Vehicular and pedestrian access to and 
from the Project. 

3. Vehicular and pedestrian access and the 
use of equipment necessary to maintain, 
repair, replace, upgrade, facilities, 
structures, improvements etc associated 
with the Authorized Uses. 

4. Authorized Uses deemed to include slope 
easement by which Grantor agrees not to 
disturb Grantor Property burdened by 
Easement Area in a manner that will alter, 
compromise, etc lateral support or other 
structural integrity of Project Improvements. 

 
See also Note 9 on 2011 Replat and Section 8.6 
of Development Agreement. 
 

to reflect 
configuration of the 
Lot109R2 and OS-
3BR-2R.  
 
Other clean-up 
changes to 
boilerplate. 
 
See First Amendment 
to and Partial 
Termination and 
Relinquishment of 
Easement Agreement 
(Permanent 
Structures) 
 
Form of amendment 
to be developed and 
finalized with Town 
staff approval. 

   Easement Area (current) Easement Area (proposed) 



 

40 
65545004;9 

  
37 3.18.2011 

417002 
Easement 

Agreement 
(Vehicular 

Access) 
 

See also 2011 
Replat Note 9 

and 
Development 
Agreement 
Section 8.6 

MV Colorado Development 
Partners. LLC (“Grantee”) and the 

Town of Mountain Village 
(“Grantor”) 

Easement Area depicted 
on Exhibit B to 

Easement Agreement 
(Vehicular Access) 

Easement for (“Authorized Uses”): 
1. Installation, operation, use repair, 

maintenance, and upgrade of driveways for 
vehicular access and sidewalks for 
pedestrian access (inclusive of, without 
limitation, snowmelt, lighting, landscaping, 
irrigation, hardscaping, signage, pavement, 
utilities, and other like components).   

2. Vehicular and pedestrian access and the 
use of equipment necessary to maintain, 
repair, replace, upgrade, facilities, 
structures, improvements etc associated 
with the Authorized Uses. 

 
See also Note 9 on 2011 Replat and Section 8.6 
of Development Agreement. 

Authorized Uses to 
remain the same but 
Exhibit B depicting 
Easement Area to be 
amended to reflect 
configuration of the 
Lot109R2 and OS-
3BR-2R.   
 
Other clean-up 
changes to 
boilerplate. 
 
See First Amendment 
to and Partial 
Termination and 

EASEIIENT AGREEMENT {PEAIIANENT STRUCTURES) 
(HCUft)ll 40,oo,1J.utUICIDS!I~-___) 



 

41 
65545004;9 

Relinquishment of 
Easement Agreement 
(Vehicular Access) 
 
Form of amendment 
to be developed and 
finalized with Town 
staff approval. 
 

   Easement Area (current)

 

Easement Area (proposed) 

 

38 3.18.2011 
417003 

Easement 
Agreement 
(Mountain 

Village 
Boulevard 

Work) 
 

MV Colorado Development 
Partners. LLC (“Grantee”) and the 

Town of Mountain Village 
(“Grantor”) 

Easement Area depicted 
on Exhibit B to 

Easement Agreement 
(Mountain Village 
Boulevard Work) 

Easement for (“Authorized Uses”): 
1. To plant, install, repair and maintain 

landscaping. 
2. Vehicular and pedestrian access and the 

use of equipment necessary to maintain, 
repair, replace, upgrade, facilities, 

Tiara acknowledges 
the Town has 
indicated easements 
are no longer 
appropriate for 
permanent 
improvements in a 

; -·-
~ ,......__ 

EASEIIENT AGIIEEIIENT (VBIICUU.R ACCIESS) 
(a~N ◄IJml:l~I. ~· (j!(l1r"~1't(HI _____) 



 

42 
65545004;9 

See also 2011 
Replat Note 9 

and 
Development 
Agreement 
Section 8.6 

structures, improvements etc associated 
with the Authorized Uses. 
 

See also Note 9 on 2011 Replat and Section 8.6 
of Development Agreement. 

right-of-way but a 
Road Right of Way 
Agreement should be 
used instead.  Tiara 
proposes to terminate 
the existing 2011 
Easement 
Agreement 
(Mountain Village 
Boulevard Work) 
and replace it with 
the Town’s license 
form for such 
purposes. 
 
Authorized Uses to 
include those 
authorized under the 
Easement 
Agreement 
(Mountain Village 
Boulevard Work) 
revised to allow 
layback, 
underground support 
members and devices 
such as but not 
limited to excavation 
shoring walls, soil 
nails, nail screws and 
tieback systems, 
tower crane 
foundation systems,   
and expand utility 
and system-related 
uses allowed. 
 
Exhibit A & B 
depicting Easement 
Area to be amended 
to reflect 
configuration of the 



 

43 
65545004;9 

Lot109R2 and OS-
3BR-2R.  
 
Other clean-up 
changes to 
boilerplate. 
 
See First Amendment 
to and Partial 
Termination and 
Relinquishment of 
Easement Agreement 
(Mountain Village 
Boulevard Work) 
 
Form of amendment 
to be developed and 
finalized with Town 
staff approval. 

   Easement Area (current) Easement Area (proposed) 



 

44 
65545004;9 

 

 
39 3.18.2011 

417004 
Easement 

Agreement 
(Utilities) 

 
See also 2011 
Replat Note 9 

and 
Development 
Agreement 
Section 8.6 

MV Colorado Development 
Partners, LLC (“Grantee”) and the 

Town of Mountain Village 
(“Grantor”) 

Easement Area depicted 
on Exhibit B to 

Easement Agreement 
(Utilities) 

Easement for (“Authorized Uses”):  
1. To install, extend, operate, repair and 

maintain and upgrade the Utilities, which 
Utilities are intended to be located below 
ground, but it is recognized that some 
components related to the Utilities, such as 
vaults and similar structures, will be located 
above ground. 

2. To undertake clearing and grading 
associated with the Utilities. 

3. Vehicular and pedestrian access and the use 
of equipment necessary for installation, 
repair, replacement and maintenance of the 
Utilities. 

Authorized Uses to 
remain the same but 
Exhibit B depicting 
Easement Area to be 
amended to reflect 
configuration of the 
Lot109R2 and OS-
3BR-2R.   
 
Other clean-up 
changes to 
boilerplate. 
 
See First Amendment 
to and Partial 

,,.,,.·· ..... •· 

/ 

I 

~/ 

!!l!ll 



 

45 
65545004;9 

“Utilities” includes, but is not limited to, 
stormwater and drainage facilities, water, sewer, 
telephone, internet, electrical, gas, cable 
television utility serving the Project or relocated 
in connection with the construction of the 
Project within the Easement Area. 
 
See also Note 9 on 2011 Replat and Section 8.6 
of Development Agreement. 

Termination and 
Relinquishment of 
Easement Agreement 
(Utilities) 
 
Form of amendment 
to be developed and 
finalized with Town 
staff approval. 
 

   Easement Area (current) 

 

Easement Area (proposed) 

 
       
       

 

 

 

 



VAULT MANAGEMENT 
TIARA TELLURIDE LLC 
December 19, 2022 

PROJECT SUMMARY 

Tiara Telluride, LLC, a Colorado limited liability company (“Tiara”) has submitted a Major PUD 
Amendment Application with respect to Lot 109R, Town of Mountain Village, San Miguel 
County, Colorado. Tiara has made a considerable effort to thoughtfully and creatively design a 
forward-thinking project that will provide considerable community and public benefits. The 
project includes an industry-leading five-star hotel, premium condominium units, best in class food 
and beverage outlets, a one-of-a-kind spa, and unique and exciting retail boutiques. The hotel and 
related amenities will be scheduled to operate year-round. Additionally, the project will include 
employee apartments and dormitories providing housing opportunities for over 50 employees, 
addressing a significant need for the continued growth of the Town. 

After the meeting with the DRB and Town Council we “went back to the drawing board” and spent 
time carving from the façade to lower heights. We are submitting a revision that has responded 
to these comments and incorporated a design in compliance with the current and approved PUD. 
This has removed any need to request a variance for the max or average heights. It also allowed 
us to further develop the architecture so that we could integrate design aesthetics desired. This 
was presented in the final DRB hearing. 

In addition to revised landscaping, we also noted the comments we received at the Final DRB 
referencing the lighting and photometrics. In this submittal, you’ll notice we have removed the 
gas light fixtures and variance request. Lighting has been adjusted including substituted path 
light fixtures and compliance with CDC for allowed Kelvin temperature.  

Lot 109R is currently subject to a PUD approved in 2010 that envisioned a hotel and condominium 
project constructed on Lot 109R. Tiara intends to develop a project that meets the intentions of the 
approved PUD, but also works to surpass the original goals of the 2010 PUD by developing a 
premier, cutting-edge and sustainable project, with significantly more community and public 
benefits then intended under the 2010 PUD. 

In response to DRB comments building heights have been addressed and reduced in conformance 
with the approved PUD. The building mass has been carved away resulting in a net rentable  
loss, but with a result we feel is an improvement to the architecture and responds to the 
Community Development Code. 

The comments received for the plaza side of the building have been addressed by further 
development of the building steps and incorporating columns to anchor the building. The fifth 
floor steps and allows large balconies for outdoor spaces as the building mass reduces as it 
continues upwards. The roof lines have been pulled in opening some of these balconies to the sky 
and carving out views. 

ATTACHMENT 4



Tiara recognizes the significance of this site to the Town, as it serves as one of the last available 
lots to be developed in the Village Town Center. Because of the importance of this project to the 
Town, Tiara has worked with intention to creatively engineer a project that fits the unique layout 
of Lot 109R, while providing a design that will serve as a welcome addition to the Town's beautiful 
skyline. 

Tiara has worked diligently to develop the design of the project with a focus on creating a timeless 
building that conforms to the natural elements and unique environment of Mountain Village. The 
design also reflects the comments received during preliminary design session meetings with the 
Town and throughout the months following those initial meetings. 

Tiara also continues to work with the five-star flagship operator on their specific design and 
construction requirements to satisfy their operational needs and amenity requirements. Much like 
the comprehensive plan requires, the flagship hotel is focused on amenities that serve not just the 
hotel, but the public and community as well. 

The siting of the hotel focused integration of the plaza and its surroundings by creating an 
activated indoor/outdoor environment. As comments are addressed, the focus of updating the 
town’s existing courtyard plaza with new and upgraded landscaping has been a crucial focus. The 
site is immediately adjacent and overlaps this key connection from See Forever Village to the 
Mountain Village plaza center via the pedestrian accessway. In this submittal, we incorporated 
Final DRB comments to further adjust and tweak the landscaping. 

The adjustments to the proposed plan maintains the void we created through the buildings mass 
at the pedestrian plaza level but pinch some of the landscaping to increase the pedestrian 
accessway. This void also creates the opportunity for an accessway easement under the building 
that maintains the existing circulation. The design integrates the existing corridor connection for 
pedestrian and bicycle access neatly tucked under the roadway without any impediment. Once 
through the existing tunnel, pedestrians arrive on the other side under the hotel structure safely 
covered from any weather and have immediate and direct access to the public amenities. 

Once in the plaza, the pedestrian access is a continuous open circulation of varying options for the 
path an individual is taking. Furthermore, the addition of a public stairway has been proposed off 
the plaza that allows pedestrians to circulate up to Mountain Village Blvd. or down from the 
adjacent surroundings. The town’s plaza upgrades proposed include snow melt which not only 
maintains public safety and improves snow removal, but also allows 365-day access to the spa and 
retail spaces directly off the plaza or for public events. Anchors will be incorporated into the final 
building to allow connection for cover or festive lights. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2 



BUILDING MASSING 
 

The building massing is comprised of public spaces at the plaza floor level which includes a spa, 
market, and retail spaces. At the main level, interior spaces include a restaurant/lobby bar, flagship 
amenity space, office space, Porte Cochere and parking garage. 

There is an intermediate level that provides 14,455 sf of employee housing. The horizontal 
element of this wing nestles the housing neatly in the intermediate level and provides façade re- 
leaf with punched window openings that are surrounded by weathered steel horizontal louvered 
portals. The flagship’s design requirements include incorporating employee amenity space that is 
private and specifically for the employees of the hotel. The amenity space includes a gym, 
library, kitchen, game room, laundry, and cinema. 

The second and third floors are comprised of the hotel rooms and suites and stack directly on top 
of the employee housing which anchors the mass as the eye is carried upward. 

The balconies provide some visual relief in addition to shading the exterior glazing of the hotel 
rooms. The fourth floor contains the lodge and efficiency lodge units which allow the architecture 
to start to recede inward and exterior space is captured with private balconies. The mass at each 
end and interior courtyard has been cut away receding the building into itself and providing 
additional outdoor balcony spaces which partially open to the sky. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3 



BUILDING MASSING/HEIGHT 

The building’s mass and shape has developed throughout the design process. Due to the unique curvature form of the 
buildings mass, we addressed height concerns raised by the town through a deconstruction of the building. This 
deconstruction gave us opportunity to address additional town comments regarding the general feel of the base of the 
building’s mass at the plaza level as well as the roof lines. 

By pronouncing the stepped levels and jogging floor heights we were able to integrate sloped rooflines which creates a 
more dynamic and interesting façade. The diagrams attached reflect what we have subtracted in red. 

 

AXON PLAN 
r···i Subtracted Mass 

Roof 

Levell 

Level6 

Levels 



PUBLIC BENEFITS 
 

In this submittal Tiara has included the addition of tables to better communicate the public and 
community benefits Tiara is proposing for this project. Please see sheets G-001 and G-002. 

The boilers for supplying the proposed public benefit of snow melted sidewalks in addition to the 
snow melt plaza area are yet to be finalized. We are proposing the boilers for town snowmelt are 
located in the new trash building. 

The design team has generated preliminary analysis capturing the size and piping needs for the 
proposed boiler so that final location can be determined. Exhibit A 

In response to the comprehensive plan, Tiara has incorporated a stair connecting Mountain 
Village Boulevard to the plaza. The stair is an additional public benefit as it finishes the 
continuity of a continuous corridor from Mountain Village Boulevard to See Forever Village. 

 
 

SUSTAINABILITY 
 

The five-star flagship hotel operator requires a level of excellence exceeding expectations of even 
the most discerning customer. Sustainable design is at the forefront of our focus and a LEED Silver 
building is one of the many items that is being incorporated to meet the sustainability standards. 

A complete-building energy analysis will be used to optimize envelope, HVAC, lighting, pool/spa 
systems, snowmelt, and renewable energy strategies, which will all be evaluated under metrics 
such as energy costs, energy/demand reduction, carbon impacts, and greenhouse gas reduction. 
This iterative, holistic analysis will help the team determine the ideal fenestration and glazing 
performance targets with respect to the other building systems and design elements. 

 
 

CIRCULATION AND UTILITIES 
 

A traffic study has been provided and is included as Exhibit F. The report concluded the new 
trash building complies with circulation requirements and the hotels deliveries as well as vehicular 
access to the parking garage will not impede Mountain Village Boulevard. 

The design team continues to work with the public utility companies. The engineering currently 
incorporated reflects the invert heights for utility lines that run through the garage floor slab of 
level G2. An easement for the below slab plumbing lines will be granted for the utility company 
access to the stormwater or sanitary lines as/if required. 

 
 
 
 

4 



 

NEW TRASH FACILITY & SNOW MELT 
 

In this submittal we have included the addition of diagrams to better communicate the public 
benefits we are proposing for the Project. An added benefit to the community is shown in the 
diagrams delineating a new trash facility and the incorporation of new snowmelt for Lot OS- 
3BR- 2. 

The addition of snowmelt requires engineering to incorporate boilers which has not been finalized. 
There are two potential locations we have proposed, the first is within the new trash facility. This 
would be a separate boiler room with a separate entrance from the trash storage and collection area. 
The design of the new trash building re-orients the dumpsters so they are perpendicular to the rear 
loading trash truck for improved circulation and access. 

A traffic study is provided as Exhibit F for the current proposed design housing the boilers(for the 
snowmelt only) within the new trash building as proposed at Lot OS-3BR-2. 

The engineering team has generated preliminary analysis capturing the size and piping needs for 
the proposed boiler so that final location can be determined. We continue to work with the town to 
resolve the final location and program for the trash room. An engineering letter has been provided 
as an attachment with the preliminary assessment. Exhibit A. 

Overhead sectional garage doors are incorporated within the wood and stone building. The 
sectional doors were added in response to previous comments which allows quick access to the 
dumpsters without impeding vehicular circulation. 
 

REFER TO SEPARATE ATTACHMENT FOR CDC VARIANCE REQUESTS 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7 



17.4.16 CDC VARIANCE REQUESTS 

17.5.6.E.4 EXTERIOR WALL MATERIALS 

The primary exterior wall finish in the Village Center shall be stucco with a minimum use of 
twenty-five percent (25%) stone and a maximum of twenty percent (20%) wood as an exterior 
wall material. 

No stucco is incorporated into the design as required per code. 

17.5.6.G.5 GLAZING 

The proposed design includes spans in excess of 16 SF. The uninterrupted glazing is a key 
component to this project and to any five star Flagship hotel. Overall glazing has been 
maintained at 40% or less. 

17.5.6.I.1 DECKS AND BALCONIES shall be designed to enhance the overall architecture of 
the building by creating variety and detail on exterior elevations. Combinations of covered 
decks, projecting balconies and bay windows shall be used. 

We are requesting removal of the requirement to incorporate bay windows as this requirement 
negatively impacts the architecture. The balconies may require a variance if deemed long and 
continuous bands. 

17.5.8.C.3 PARKING REGULATIONS 

Aisle Width. The driveway and aisle width for either surface lots or parking garages shall be 
twenty-two feet (22'). 

We are requesting approval of a reduction of this requirement to 18’ as needed for circulation. 
Fire Marshal approval has been provided. 

17.5.12.C. PROHIBITED LIGHTING – LANDSCAPE LIGHTING 

While the photometric plan includes tree-mounted gobo projectors and landscape bollards, these 
fixtures are intended to provide minimum illuminance along the walking path for safety and 
egress purposes. For this reason, the project is requesting a variance for the prohibited landscape 
lighting. 

ATTACHMENT 5



 
 

17.5.12.D. PROHIBITED LIGHTING – UP-LIGHTING 
 

While the photometric plan does include up-lighting as accent lighting within the entryway 
canopy (this is interior to the Porte Cochere vehicular access), this up-lighting will not contribute 
to any form of light pollution, as the canopy above it will stop the light from reaching the sky. 
For this reason, the project Design is requesting a variance for the prohibited up- lighting. 

 
It is of note that the above variance requests are submitted under the belief that the submitted 
design complies with the Lighting Regulations Purpose and Intent of the Community 
Development Code, Title 17 of Town of Mountain Village Municipal Code, amended August 20, 
2020. Per Section 17.5.12, LIGHTING REGULATIONS, this design intends to: 
“Minimize the unintended and undesirable side effects of residential exterior lighting while 
encouraging the intended and desirable safety and aesthetic purposes of such lighting” 

• “Allow illumination that provides the minimum and safe amount of lighting that is 
needed for the lot on which the light sources are located” 

• “Protect the privacy of neighboring residents by controlling the intensity of the light 
source” 

• “Enhance and transform architectural and structural facades as well as outdoor spaces” 
 

17.5.12.F. LIGHTING DESIGN REGULATIONS 
 
2. REQUIRED EXTERIOR LIGHTING TYPE 

 
We are requesting a variance specific application of fixture for specific fixtures where LPW 
efficacy is just below indicated requirements, but are on-board LED. (Not screw-base fixtures.) 

 
7. LEVELS OF ILLUMINATION 

 
Pedestrian walkways and stairs are via primary lighting source and are via primary lighting source. 
Although these exceed 2 FC max we are requesting a variance as this is applicable to safety.



WINDOW TAG

DOOR TAG

NORTH ARROW
REVISION CLOUD AND TAG

GRID LINE

VERTICAL ELEVATION 
REFERENCE

TR
UE

 
NO

RT
H

EXTERIOR ELEVATION 
REFERENCE

INTERIOR ELEVATION 
REFERENCE

CENTERLINE

1

INTERIOR PARTITION TYPE 

X###

1 Ref

1

Re
f

1

Re
f

1 Ref

Name
Elevation

X#x

230

##

X-#### #
#

#

#/X

#/X

#
X-###

#
X-###

#
X-###

#

X-###

WALL SECTION 
REFERENCE

BUILDING SECTION 
REFERENCE

DETAIL CALLOUT

DETAIL SECTION 
REFERENCE

23 VIEW NAME
1/8" = 1'-0"

VIEW NUMBER

VIEW NAME

VIEW SCALE

X-###
#

XX#

XX#

XX#

XXX#

?X# KEYNOTE REFERENCE

FLOOR FINISH TAG

WALL FINISH TAG

SPECIALTY EQUIPMENT TAG

CASEWORK TAG

ARCHITECT

VAULT DESIGN, LLC
520 W FIR WAY
LOUISVILLE CO 80027

CIVIL ENGINEER

UPCOMPAHGRE 
ENGINEERING, LLC
P.O.BOX 3945
TELLURIDE, CO 81435

LANDSCAPE

ARCHITECT

MARPA LANDSCAPE 
ARCHITECTURE
1539 PEARL ST
BOULDER, CO 80302

OWNER

TIARA TELLURIDE
450 S OLD DIXIE HWY 
JUPITER, FL 33458

PROJECT TEAM

STRUCTURAL

ENGINEER

ANCHOR ENGINEERING
2535 17TH ST
DENVER, CO 80211

MECHANICAL/PLUMBING 

ENGINEER

MCGRATH INCORPORATED
5353 W DARTHMOUTH AVE
SUITE 506
DENVER, CO 80227

LIGHTING DESIGNER

G2J DESIGN NEW 
YORK
2287 JOHNSON AVE 
SUTE #15 H
RIVERDALE, NY 
10463

ELECTRICAL ENGINEER

AE DESIGN
1900 WAZEE ST, #205
DENVER, CO 80202

INTERIORS

ROSE INK WORKSHOP
5 WHITE ST, 4B
NEW YORK, NY 10013

DRAWING SYMBOLS

VICINITY MAP

SCOPE OF WORK

THE PROPOSED CONCEPT DESIGN IS COMPRISED OF HOTEL WITH EMPLOYEE 
HOUSING, APARTMENTS, AND CONDOS. THE COMMERCIAL SPACE INCLUDES 
RETAIL SPACES, RESTAURANTS, BAR, SPA, WEDDING VENUE, MEETING SPACE, 
AND POOL DECK.

SHEET INDEX

PROJECT INFORMATION

Mountain Village Blvd

Moun
tain

 Villa
ge 

Blvd

Co
un

try
 C

lub
 D

r

PROJECT LOCATION

PROJECT LOCATION

MOUNTAIN VILLAGE, CO

ZONING AND DESIGNATION:

ZONE DISTRICT - VILLAGE CENTER

LOT 109R2 - MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT

LOT 109R2 TELLURIDE MOUNTAIN VILLAGE ACCORDING TO 
THE REPLAT OF LOTS 73-76R, 109, 110, TRACT 89-A AND 
TRACT OS-3BR-1 RECORDED MARCH 18, 2011 IN PLAT BOOK 1 
AT PAGE 4455, COUNTY OF SAN MIGUEL, STATE OF 
COLORADO

PROPOSED PUD AREA:

0.821 ACRES - 35,771 SQ. FT.

LOT COVERAGE COVERAGE:

(INCLUSIVE OF COVERED WALKWAYS, PATIOS & DECKS)

35,085 SF /35,771 SF x 100 = 98%

BUILDING AREA:

173,603 SF TOTAL CONDITIONED

68,121 SF PARKING & MECHANICAL - TEMPERED

241,724 SF COMBINED CONDITIONED + TEMPERED

BUILDING HEIGHTS:

MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT: 88' - 9"
AVERAGE BUILDING HEIGHT: 63.61'

*ADDITIONAL HEIGHT INFORMATION CAN BE FOUND ON
SHEETS A-1.11, A-1.12. A-2.02, A-2.03, A-2.04, & A-2.05

PER MOUNTAIN VILLAGE CDC SECTION 1601:

GRND SNOW LOAD: 130 lbs. MIN (standard plus elevation per 
SEAC Guide)
WIND SPEED: 90 MPH (3 sec wind gust)
WIND EXPOSURE: C
CLIMATE ZONE: 6B
SEIMSMIC DESIGN: CLASS C
FROST LINE DEPT: 48”
TERMITES: SLIGHT TO MODERATE

BUILDING ENVELOPE

ARCHITECTURAL CONSULTING 
& FORENSICS, PLLC
4739 N LUNE AVE
CHICAGO, IL 60630

LEED & ENERGY 

MODELER

INTERTEK
1795 DOGWOOD ST., 
SUITE 200
LOUISVILLE, CO 80027

SEAL

NOTICE: DUTY OF COOPERATION

RELEASE OF THESE DOCUMENTS CONTEMPLATES 
FURTHER COOPERATION AMONG THE OWNER, HIS/HER 
CONTRACTOR, AND THE ARCHITECT. DESIGN AND 
CONSTRUCTION ARE COMPLEX. ALTHOUGH THE ARCHITECT 
AND HIS/HER CONSULTANTS HAVE PERFORMED THEIR 
SERVICES WITH DUE CARE AND DILIGENCE, THEY CANNOT 
GUARANTEE PERFECTION. COMMUNICATION IS IMPERFECT 
AND EVERY CONTINGENCY CANNOT BE ANTICIPATED. ANY 
ERRORS, OMISSIONS, OR DISCREPANCY DISCOVERED BY 
THE USE OF THESE DOCUMENTS SHALL BE REPORTED 
IMMEDIATELY TO THE ARCHITECT. FAILURE TO NOTIFY THE 
ARCHITECT COMPOUNDS MISUNDERSTANDING AND 
INCREASES CONSTRUCTION COSTS. A FAILURE TO 
COOPERATE BY SIMPLE NOTICE TO THE ARCHITECT SHALL 
RELIEVE THE ARCHITECT FROM RESPONSIBILITY FOR ALL 
CONSEQUENCES ARRIVING OUT OF SUCH CHANGES. 

THE DESIGNS AND PLANS ARE COPYRIGHT AND ARE NOT TO 
BE USED OR REPRODUCED WHOLLY OR IN PART WITHOUT 
THE WRITTEN PERMISSION OF VAULT DESIGN ARCHITECTS. 
THE DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS ARE INSTRUMENTS 
OF SERVICE AND SHALL REMAIN THE PROPERTY OF THE 
ARCHITECT WHETHER THE PROJECT FOR WHICH THEY ARE 
MADE IS EXECUTED OR NOT. © VAULT ARCHITECTS.

DO NOT SCALE FROM DRAWING. VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS 
ON SITE.

JOB NO.

VAULT DESIGN, LLC
520 W FIR WAY
LOUISVILLE, CO 80027

LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL

05.19.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 

08.08.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 

DRB SUBMITTAL 10.21.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL

12.16.2022

1/9
/20

23
 5:

04
:20

 P
M

G-000

Project Number

COVER SHEET

L
O

T
 1

0
9
R

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L
A

G
E

, 
C

O

SI
X 

SE
NS

ES
 H

OT
EL

SHEET
NUMBER SHEET NAME

DRB SUBMITTAL #1
04.24.2022

SPECIAL HEARING
SUBMITTAL
05.19.2022

TOWN COUNCIL
SUBMITTAL #1

06.07.2022

TOWN COUNCIL
SUBMITTAL
08.08.2022

FINAL DRB
SUBMITTAL
10.21.2022

TOWN COUNCIL
SUBMITTAL

12.16.202/01.09.20232
01 GENERAL

G-000 COVER SHEET X X X X X X
G-001 PUBLIC BENEFITS DIAGRAM X X X
G-002 PUBLIC BENEFITS DIAGRAM X X
G-003 UNIT PLANS X

02-CIVIL
C2.1 SITE GRADING WITH GARAGE ACCESS PROFILE X X X X X X
C2.3 TURNING TEMPLATE EXHIBIT X X X X
C2.4 SNOWMELT DIAGRAM X X X
C3 UTILITY PLAN X X X X

C3.1 UTILITY & STORM DRAIN PLAN X X
C4 CONSTRUCTION MITIGATION PLAN X X
C5 CONSTRUCTION MITIGATION PLAN X X
C6 AREA OF POTENTIAL WORK IN TOWN RIGHT-OF-WAY X

SHEET
NUMBER SHEET NAME

DRB SUBMITTAL #1
04.24.2022

SPECIAL HEARING
SUBMITTAL
05.19.2022

TOWN COUNCIL
SUBMITTAL #1

06.07.2022

TOWN COUNCIL
SUBMITTAL
08.08.2022

FINAL DRB
SUBMITTAL
10.21.2022

TOWN COUNCIL
SUBMITTAL

12.16.202/01.09.20232
A-1.05 FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL 2 - OVERALL X X X X X X
A-1.06 FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL 3 - OVERALL X X X X X X
A-1.07 FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL 4 - OVERALL X X X X X X
A-1.08 FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL 5 - OVERALL X X X X X X
A-1.09 FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL 6 - OVERALL X X X X X X
A-1.10 FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL 7 - OVERALL X X X X X X
A-1.11 OVERALL ROOF & MAX HEIGHT PLAN X X X X X X
A-1.12 AVERAGE HEIGHT PLAN X X X X X X
A-2.00 EXTERIOR MATERIAL ELEVATIONS X X
A-2.01 EXTERIOR MATERIAL ELEVATIONS X X
A-2.02 NORTH & EAST ELEVATIONS X X X X X X
A-2.03 SOUTHEAST & WEST ELEVATIONS X X X X X X
A-2.04 3D MAX HEIGHT WITH EXISTING TOPO X X X X X X
A-2.05 3D MAX HEIGHT WITH PROPOSED TOPO X X X X X X
A-2.10 GARAGE UTILITY DIAGRAM X X X X X
A-2.21 EXTERIOR ELEVATION·SNOW MELT STUDY X X X X X X
A-2.22 EXTERIOR ELEVATION·SNOW MELT STUDY X X X X X X
A-2.23 TYPICAL DETAILS, WINDOW LEGEND AND DOOR

SCHEDULE
X X X X X X

A-2.24 TYPICAL DETAILS X
A-3.00 BUILDING SECTION X X X X X
A-111 TRASH ENCLOSURE FLOOR PLANS & ELEVATIONS X X X

08-ELECTRICAL
E.100 LIGHTING SITE PLAN X X
E.101 PHOTOMETRIC SITE PLAN X X
E.102 POOL DECK & BALCONY PHOTOMETRIC X X
E.200 PHOTOMETRIC SCHEDULES X X
E.201 PHOTOMETRIC CUTSHEETS X X
E.202 PHOTOMETRIC CUTSHEETS X

SEALSEALSEALSEALSEALSEALSEAL

A
S

T

T
E

OF OC LOR

A
D

O

L
IC

E

N
SED ARCH

IT

E
C

T

KATSIA

LORD

401827

NOT F
OR C

ONSTRUCTIO
N

SEALSEALSEALSEALSEALSEALSEAL

A
S

T

T
E

OF OC LOR

A
D

O

L
IC

E

N
SED ARCH

IT

E
C

T

KATSIA

LORD

401827

NOT F
OR C

ONSTRUCTIO
N

03-LANDSCAPE
L0.02 EXISTING TREE PLAN & REPORT X X
L1.01 PLAZA LANDSCAPE PLAN X X
L1.02 PLAZA LANDSCAPE MATERIALS X X
L1.03 LANDSCAPE FLOORS 2-5 X X
L1.04 LANDSCAPE FLOORS 6-7 X X
L2.01 PLAZA LANDSCAPE GRADING PLAN X X
L2.02 SNOWMELT DIAGRAM X X
L2.03 PLAZA IRRIGATION PLAN X X
L2.04 PLAZA OUTDOOR LIGHTING DIAGRAM X
L2.05 OUTDOOR LIGHTING DIAGRAM FLOORS 6-7 X
L4.01 PLAZA PLANTING PLAN X X

05-ARCHITECTURAL
A-0.00 ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN X X X X X X
A-0.P1 PERSPECTIVE RENDERINGS X X X X X X
A-0.P2 PERSPECTIVE RENDERINGS X X X
A-0.P3 PERSPECTIVE RENDERINGS X X X
A-0.P4 PERSPECTIVE RENDERINGS X X
A-0.P5 PERSPECTIVE RENDERINGS X X
A-1.01 FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL G2 - OVERALL X X X X X X
A-1.02 FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL G1 PLAZA - OVERALL X X X X X X
A-1.03 FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL 1/G1A PARKING - OVERALL X X X X X X
A-1.04 FLOOR PLAN - LEVEL 1 MEZZANINE - OVERALL X X X X X X

ATTACHMENT 6A

◊ 
( 

/ 

~ 
,_, 

-
-

~ 

) 

---

\ 

1~ 

-~I 

~-

~ VAULT DESIGN GROUP 

Uncompahgre 
Engineering, LLC 



MOUNTAIN VILLAGE BLVD.

M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L
A

G
E

 B
L
V

D
.

5'

5
'

DN

M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L
A

G
E

 B
L
V

D
.

5'

5
'

DN

MOUNTAIN VILLAGE BLVD.

M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L
A

G
E

 B
L
V

D
.

5'

M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L
A

G
E

 B
L
V

D
.

5
'

5
'

5
'

PLAZA LEVEL & MVB

ACCESS TO PLAZA FROM MVB

A
C

C
E

S
S

 T
O

 P
L

A
Z

A
 F

R
O

M
 M

V
B

GARDEN SCAPE PLAZA

RETAIL

COMMERCIAL SPACES

OPEN ALL YEAR

PUBLIC

RESTROOM

MARKET

COMMERCIAL SPACES

OPEN ALL YEAR

SPA

COMMERCIAL SPACES

OPEN ALL YEAR

- ACCESS FROM STREET (MVB) TO PLAZA
- COMMERCIAL SPACES OPEN ALL YEAR
- PUBLIC FACILITIES

NEW
 S

NO
W

M
ELT

LEVEL 6

- TWO (2) RESTAURANTS, OPEN ALL YEAR
- PUBLIC FACILITIES
- CONFERENCE/ MEETING VENUE SPACE
- OUTDOOR BALCONIES

RESTAURANT

OPEN ALL YEAR

RESTAURANT

OPEN ALL YEAR

MEETING

& VENUE

PUBLIC

FACILITIES

MEZZANINE

EMPLOYEE HOUSING UNITS

- 20 EMPLOYEE HOUSING UNITS
- EMPLOYEE RETENTION INSENTIVE SPACE

       -  SEPARATE AND PRIVATE ENTRIES
        - MEDIA RM, LAUNDRY RM, BALCONIES,

KITCHEN/LIVING AREA, LIBRARY, 
          GAMEROOM, AND GYM

EMPLOYEE HOUSING UNITS

REC SPACES

REC SPACES

REC SPACES

REC SPACES

LOT OS-3BR-2 OFF MTN VILLAGE BLVD

- NEW REFUSE FACILITY REBUILT OFFSITE

REFUSE FACILITY REBUILT 

OR OFFSITE

NEW & NEW GARDEN 

SEAL

NOTICE: DUTY OF COOPERATION

RELEASE OF THESE DOCUMENTS CONTEMPLATES 
FURTHER COOPERATION AMONG THE OWNER, HIS/HER 
CONTRACTOR, AND THE ARCHITECT. DESIGN AND 
CONSTRUCTION ARE COMPLEX. ALTHOUGH THE ARCHITECT 
AND HIS/HER CONSULTANTS HAVE PERFORMED THEIR 
SERVICES WITH DUE CARE AND DILIGENCE, THEY CANNOT 
GUARANTEE PERFECTION. COMMUNICATION IS IMPERFECT 
AND EVERY CONTINGENCY CANNOT BE ANTICIPATED. ANY 
ERRORS, OMISSIONS, OR DISCREPANCY DISCOVERED BY 
THE USE OF THESE DOCUMENTS SHALL BE REPORTED 
IMMEDIATELY TO THE ARCHITECT. FAILURE TO NOTIFY THE 
ARCHITECT COMPOUNDS MISUNDERSTANDING AND 
INCREASES CONSTRUCTION COSTS. A FAILURE TO 
COOPERATE BY SIMPLE NOTICE TO THE ARCHITECT SHALL 
RELIEVE THE ARCHITECT FROM RESPONSIBILITY FOR ALL 
CONSEQUENCES ARRIVING OUT OF SUCH CHANGES. 

THE DESIGNS AND PLANS ARE COPYRIGHT AND ARE NOT TO 
BE USED OR REPRODUCED WHOLLY OR IN PART WITHOUT 
THE WRITTEN PERMISSION OF VAULT DESIGN ARCHITECTS. 
THE DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS ARE INSTRUMENTS 
OF SERVICE AND SHALL REMAIN THE PROPERTY OF THE 
ARCHITECT WHETHER THE PROJECT FOR WHICH THEY ARE 
MADE IS EXECUTED OR NOT. © VAULT ARCHITECTS.

DO NOT SCALE FROM DRAWING. VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS 
ON SITE.

JOB NO.

VAULT DESIGN, LLC
520 W FIR WAY
LOUISVILLE, CO 80027

LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL

05.19.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 

08.08.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 

DRB SUBMITTAL 10.21.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL

12.16.2022

12
/13

/20
22

 5:
14

:28
 P

M

G-001

Project Number

PUBLIC BENEFITS
DIAGRAM

L
O

T
 1

0
9
R

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L
A

G
E

, 
C

O

SI
X 

SE
NS

ES
 H

OT
EL

1/32" = 1'-0"4 PEDESTRIAN MOVEMENT & COMMERCE - PUBLIC BENEFITS
1/32" = 1'-0"3. LEVEL 6 PUBLIC SPACES - PUBLIC BENEFITS

1/32" = 1'-0"1 EMPLOYEE HOUSING - PUBLIC BENIFITS 64'32'16'0
1/32" = 1'

PROJECT
NORTH

TRUE
NORTH

1/32" = 1'-0"2 TRASH ENCLOSURE DIAGRAM

SEALSEALSEALSEALSEALSEAL

A
S

T

T
E

OF OC LOR

A
D

O

L
IC

E

N
SED ARCH

IT

E
C

T

KATSIA

LORD

401827

NOT F
OR C

ONSTRUCTIO
N

.... 

. 
'-.._/ 

\ 

/ 

• . 
I . . 
I 

. . I 
. 

. 
I . . 

I 
' I 

' ' I 

I 
I 
I 

I 

I 

\ . . 

'·. 
' 

. 

-, 

/ 
I 

I . 
I 

I I 
I I 
I ' 
I I 
I I 

' I 
I I 
I I 

' 
/ . 

\ 
• . 
\ . 

\ 

\ . 
\ 

) . 

;c- ----d ._-_ . 

.. . 
\ . . 

I I 

/,------------------

.. ----------·----, I _.,..-- . 
/" • I ,.-·· ____________ \______________ j ----- -----------------------------

\ 

I 

'--./ 

• . 
I 
• . 
I 

. . 
. 

I 

/ . . 
I . 

i . . 
I . . 

I . 

I . . 
I 

/ 1 I I 

• I 

\ 11 

I 
\ I I 
• l1 i /I ,/ . // i I 1 l1 

II 
: II 

I I 
I 

• • 
I 
• . 
I . . 
I .... • 

' I 
I 

I 

I 

I 

··, . . 
\ . . 

\ . . 

I 

\ 

. 
/ ,• 

/ . 
/ . 

) / 

_,,,.,..--

' ' ' I I 

I 

/----------------

I . 

r· 
/! 

l 
/ . 

\ ' .. / 

" • • 

'\ 

' ' 
I. 

°'o/ -------------. ·-...., 
\ 

' .. /"•-
-:- V I . . . 
I . . 

I . . 
I . . 

I . 
' I . 

• 
I 

. 
-......./ 

\ 
• 
' I 
' . 
I . 

/ . 
I 

' . 
' ·, 

. . / 
I 

/ . 
~1 ··-

r . 
I . . 

I 
' ' I 

' • 
I 
' • 
I 
' i ! 
• 
' I I 

: I 

! 11 

! I 
I 1• 
• I 

' \I 
I i1 . ,/ 
• \I I 1·, 
, Ii 
' II I I I 
' '1\ ' ,, 
\ \I 
• ii 
' I I ',, ,, 
' \1 \ ·, 

..... . ·,._.J . . 
\ 
' . 
\ 
• . 
\ . 

\ . . 
\ . . 

\ 

' ) 
/ 

I I 

/ 1 

I I 

I 

11 
I I 

\ 

, __ ,f--------------------

' • 
I . 
' I 
' ' I 
' • 
I 
• . 

'---\ 
' • 
\ . . 
\ . . 

\ . . 
\ . 

\ 

\ . 

-.',,. ";/~ ,, 
' . '\. i., 

IV ' 
' I ' . ' 

'· I I,-, ·,1 

\ 
I 

I I 
I I 
I ' 
I I 

I 

\ 
' ' 
' I 
I 
I 
I 

==-r- VAULT DESIGN GROUP 

Uncompahgre 
Engineering, LLC 

AE DESIGN 1L 
lnlt'Rrat•d Ll111tln1 and EIKtrical So lution, 

: 'IOO Wo>cT51.<..,l-zo5 D,,,,=,CO~ Jlll1'16.JO,l,4 
_,,,,,_"'"'-,,_ PnoJ"-1 f 



M
O

U
N
T
A
IN

 V
ILLA

G
E
 B

LV
D

.

M
O

U
N
TAIN

 V
IL

LA
G

E B
LVD

.

5'

5'

5'

M
O

U
N
T
A
IN

 V
ILLA

G
E
 B

LV
D

.

M
O

U
N
TAIN

 V
IL

LA
G

E B
LVD

.

5'

5'

5'

M
O

U
N
T
A
IN

 V
ILLA

G
E
 B

LV
D

.

M
O

U
N
TAIN

 V
IL

LA
G

E B
LVD

.

5'

5'

5'

PLAZA LEVEL & MVB

- NEW SNOW MELT SIDEWALKS
- NEW SNOW MELT DRIVEWAY

PORTE COCHERE DROP OFF/PICK 
UP ONE WAY TRAFFIC 

FUTURE HEATED 
SIDEWALK BY TMV

N
E
W

 S
N

O
W

M
E
L
T
 S

ID
E
W

A
L
K

S

N
E
W

 S
N

O
W

M
E
L
T
 

S
ID

E
W

A
L
K

S

NEW SIDEWALKS

N
E
W

 S
ID

E
W

A
LK

 A
T S

H
IR

A
N
A

ENTRANCE
EXIT

P
13

P
14

P
15

P
16

P
17

P
18 P
19

P
21

P
22

P
20

G2 - PARKING

P
12

P
11

P
10

P
9

P
8

P
7

P
6

P
5

P
4

P
3

P
2

P
1

PUBLIC PARKING

P
U
B
LIC

 P
A
R
K
IN

G

- TWENTY TWO (22) DEDICATED TOWN PARKING SPACES

E
M

P
L
O

Y
E
E
 P

A
R

K
IN

G

E
1          E

2          E
3           E

4         E
5        E

6              E7          E8         E9           E10       E11       E12          E13        

E
14        E

15       E
16          E

17        E
18       E

19          E
20

LINE OF WALL ABOVE

BOH
BOH

BOH

BOH

BOH

BOH

BOH TRUCK 

DELIVERY

/TRASH 

PICKUP

E
M

P
L
O

Y
E
E
 P

A
R

K
IN

G

PEDESTRIAN PLAZA ABOVE

PEDESTRIAN 

ACCESSWAY ABOVE

GAT
ED

 AC
CES

S

ENTRANCE
EXIT

P
13

P
14

P
15

P
16

P
17

P
18 P
19

P
21

P
22

P
20

G2 - PARKING

P
12

P
11

P
10

P
9

P
8

P
7

P
6

P
5

P
4

P
3

P
2

P
1

PUBLIC PARKING

P
U
B
LIC

 P
A
R
K
IN

G

- 11 EV CAPABLE
- 4 EV READY
- 3 EV INSTALLED 

E
M

P
L
O

Y
E
E
 P

A
R

K
IN

G

E
1          E

2          E
3           E

4         E
5        E

6              E7          E8         E9           E10       E11       E12          E13        

E
14        E

15       E
16          E

17        E
18       E

19          E
20

LINE OF WALL ABOVE

BOH
BOH

BOH

BOH

BOH

BOH

BOH TRUCK 

DELIVERY

/TRASH 

PICKUP

E
M

P
L
O

Y
E
E
 P

A
R

K
IN

G

PEDESTRIAN PLAZA ABOVE

PEDESTRIAN 
ACCESSWAY 
ABOVE

GAT
ED

 AC
CES

S

SEAL

NOTICE: DUTY OF COOPERATION

RELEASE OF THESE DOCUMENTS CONTEMPLATES 
FURTHER COOPERATION AMONG THE OWNER, HIS/HER 
CONTRACTOR, AND THE ARCHITECT. DESIGN AND 
CONSTRUCTION ARE COMPLEX. ALTHOUGH THE ARCHITECT 
AND HIS/HER CONSULTANTS HAVE PERFORMED THEIR 
SERVICES WITH DUE CARE AND DILIGENCE, THEY CANNOT 
GUARANTEE PERFECTION. COMMUNICATION IS IMPERFECT 
AND EVERY CONTINGENCY CANNOT BE ANTICIPATED. ANY 
ERRORS, OMISSIONS, OR DISCREPANCY DISCOVERED BY 
THE USE OF THESE DOCUMENTS SHALL BE REPORTED 
IMMEDIATELY TO THE ARCHITECT. FAILURE TO NOTIFY THE 
ARCHITECT COMPOUNDS MISUNDERSTANDING AND 
INCREASES CONSTRUCTION COSTS. A FAILURE TO 
COOPERATE BY SIMPLE NOTICE TO THE ARCHITECT SHALL 
RELIEVE THE ARCHITECT FROM RESPONSIBILITY FOR ALL 
CONSEQUENCES ARRIVING OUT OF SUCH CHANGES. 

THE DESIGNS AND PLANS ARE COPYRIGHT AND ARE NOT TO 
BE USED OR REPRODUCED WHOLLY OR IN PART WITHOUT 
THE WRITTEN PERMISSION OF VAULT DESIGN ARCHITECTS. 
THE DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS ARE INSTRUMENTS 
OF SERVICE AND SHALL REMAIN THE PROPERTY OF THE 
ARCHITECT WHETHER THE PROJECT FOR WHICH THEY ARE 
MADE IS EXECUTED OR NOT. © VAULT ARCHITECTS.

DO NOT SCALE FROM DRAWING. VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS 
ON SITE.

JOB NO.

VAULT DESIGN, LLC
520 W FIR WAY
LOUISVILLE, CO 80027

LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL

05.19.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 

08.08.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 

DRB SUBMITTAL 10.21.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL

12.16.2022

12
/16

/20
22

 10
:41

:28
 A

M

G-002

Project Number

PUBLIC BENEFITS
DIAGRAM

L
O

T
 1

0
9
R

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L
A

G
E

, 
C

O

SI
X 

SE
NS

ES
 H

OT
EL

1/32" = 1'-0"1 PUBLIC SNOWMELT DIAGRAM
64'32'16'0

1/32" = 1'
TRUE
NORTH

1/32" = 1'-0"2 DEDICATED TOWN PARKING - PUBLIC BENEFITS

1/32" = 1'-0"3 DEDICATED EV TOWN PARKING - PUBLIC BENEFITS

SEALSEALSEALSEALSEALSEAL

A
S

T

T
E

OF OC LOR

A
D

O

L
IC

E

N
SED ARCH

IT

E
C

T

KATSIA

LORD

401827

NOT F
OR C

ONSTRUCTIO
N

��

��

��

MAINT
PKNG

, < ·, 
f- '> '' . \ ·., _/ 

I • /, ·, -, . . .·, /. 
·. ·v '·./·· 
\ 
' ' \ . 

' \ 

. . 
I . . 

I . . 
I . . 

. . 
\ . 

• 
\ . 
• 
I 

. . 
I 

I 

. 
• 
I . . '!. 
. 

I 

. 
/ 

/ 

/ 

/' 
/ 

I 
• . 

I 
' • 

I . 
• 
I . 
' I 
' ' I 
' ' I 

_/ 
_/· 

_/· 

,/· 

/' 

----------

·. / > 
·. <- -.·-·• . 

II ~ ~ '"'\ ·. ~ . -~ • \ . • V 
~-----:- ;•- ~ ✓f;P< 

_/· 

-:;,_ - - --- -- i 

_/ 
/. 

/ 

/ 
I I 

~~-
.-, 

• 

<'' 
.:, 

- ·· ...-.-:r;,_-~ __ ...-~.....,~ ·~ .-.• --,- -

I - · 
~ . --' . .\ ..,,,--

/' 
\ / 
~ /. 
I 

I 

\ / 

. 

I .· 
' / 
'y,' 

I 
. . 

l .. .__ 

·--.. 

'· ·, ··,. . 
I 

I 

' ·, I 

'·· 

··,.. · ........ I 

'· 

.... 

'· ·,. ·,. ·, I 
. . 

·, ·., ·, I 
. . 

I 

'· " . ·. ( 

"· y ·, ' / ·., 
··<. ·-, . ·,. .\ ·, ·, . . ·,. ·,. 

·, ·, ------' ' ----·. .,.--· ' .· . / 
·v·· 

' ' 

I '· : ·,._ I 

' ' . '· 
' . ' ·, 

'· ·, 

'· '· ·,. . I 
·,. ·, I ·,. ·, . ·, ·. _/ 

'• . 
' '·· i 

'·. "·· 1· 
"· '! .\ ' / ·, 

··<. ··,. ·, ·, . . ·, \ . . ·,. ·,. 
·, ·, ------' ' -----.. ,1---, . . / 

·'-:'.· 

' \ 

' ·, 
' . ' ' ' ' ' 

I 
• . 

I • ' I . 
' I 

' ' 
I 
' ' I 

' 
I 
' ' 
I 
' ' 
I 
' ' I 

I . 
' 

---
.. - '-. .. --. 

I . 

I I 

_( / 

,f,;i, 

---··, .. 
'·. '·. '· ·,. ·, 

'·. 
" 

I 

I 

I . 
I 

" ./ ·. ( v· . ' ' / .\ 
\( ··,. ·, ·, . . 

. . I 

·, ·, 

. . 

. . 

, 

·,. .\ 
·, ·, ------' ' ------·. .,.-' -· . / 

·v·· 

' ' '· 
' 

' 

' 

' 

' ' 

' /· 

. 
' 

. ' .,,.(· ·., 

' 

_.-- \ \ . ' 

. 
' 

\ ·. . ' . 
\ . . 
\ . . 
I . . 

__ .1----

==-r- VAULT DESIGN GROUP 

Uncompahgre 
Engineering, LLC 

• MARPA 

AE DESIGN •L 
lnt•1rat•d Ll111tln1 and EIKtrical So lution, 
•'IOO Wo>c<t5'.<t,:t~5 D,,,,=,CO~ Jllll'lli.JO,j.j 
.__,,,.,.,..,_~ ""'I"'• 



KI
TC

HE
NE

TT
E

CL
O

BATH

EFFICIENCY LODGE
DIAGRAMMATIC ONLY 
DESIGN TBD

LODGE DIAGRAMMATIC ONLY 
DESIGN TBD

EMPLOYEE DORM
DIAGRAMMATIC 
ONLY
DESIGN TBD

EMPLOYEE APT.
DIAGRAMMATIC ONLY 
DESIGN TBD

BATH KITCHEN

BATH

TW
IN

 LO
FT

 B
ED

W
/ S

TO
RA

GE

TWIN LOFT BED
W/ STORAGE

BEDROOM LIVING/DINING

MOVEABLE 
DIVIDER

NOTE:

THESE PLANS ARE DIAGRAMATIC 
ONLY FOR POTENTIAL DESIGN 
YET TO BE DETERMINED

1/7
/20

23
 9:

51
:42

 A
M

G003
DIAGRAMMATIC
UNIT PLANS

SEAL

NOTICE: DUTY OF COOPERATION

RELEASE OF THESE DOCUMENTS CONTEMPLATES 
FURTHER COOPERATION AMONG THE OWNER, HIS/HER 
CONTRACTOR, AND THE ARCHITECT. DESIGN AND 
CONSTRUCTION ARE COMPLEX. ALTHOUGH THE ARCHITECT 
AND HIS/HER CONSULTANTS HAVE PERFORMED THEIR 
SERVICES WITH DUE CARE AND DILIGENCE, THEY CANNOT 
GUARANTEE PERFECTION. COMMUNICATION IS IMPERFECT 
AND EVERY CONTINGENCY CANNOT BE ANTICIPATED. ANY 
ERRORS, OMISSIONS, OR DISCREPANCY DISCOVERED BY 
THE USE OF THESE DOCUMENTS SHALL BE REPORTED 
IMMEDIATELY TO THE ARCHITECT. FAILURE TO NOTIFY THE 
ARCHITECT COMPOUNDS MISUNDERSTANDING AND 
INCREASES CONSTRUCTION COSTS. A FAILURE TO 
COOPERATE BY SIMPLE NOTICE TO THE ARCHITECT SHALL 
RELIEVE THE ARCHITECT FROM RESPONSIBILITY FOR ALL 
CONSEQUENCES ARRIVING OUT OF SUCH CHANGES. 

THE DESIGNS AND PLANS ARE COPYRIGHT AND ARE NOT TO 
BE USED OR REPRODUCED WHOLLY OR IN PART WITHOUT 
THE WRITTEN PERMISSION OF VAULT DESIGN ARCHITECTS. 
THE DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS ARE INSTRUMENTS 
OF SERVICE AND SHALL REMAIN THE PROPERTY OF THE 
ARCHITECT WHETHER THE PROJECT FOR WHICH THEY ARE 
MADE IS EXECUTED OR NOT. © VAULT ARCHITECTS.

DO NOT SCALE FROM DRAWING. VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS 
ON SITE.

JOB NO.

VAULT DESIGN, LLC
520 W FIR WAY
LOUISVILLE, CO 80027

LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL

05.19.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 

08.08.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 

DRB SUBMITTAL 10.21.2022

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL SUBMITTAL

12.16.2022

Project Number

L
O

T
 1

0
9
R

 M
O

U
N

T
A

IN
 V

IL
L
A

G
E

, 
C

O

SI
X 

SE
NS

ES
 H

OT
EL

SEALSEALSEALSEALSEALSEAL

A
S

T

T
E

OF OC LOR

A
D

O

L
IC

E

N
SED ARCH

IT

E
C

T

KATSIA

LORD

401827

NOT F
OR C

ONSTRUCTIO
N

==-r- VAULT DESIGN GROUP 

~ "-

Uncompah En . gre 
gmeering, LLC 

• [:1_6_RPA 
.,.,am·.<t,n 

~;. . .,~.~SIGN •L 
•'IOO w n1 and EIKt .-..;,= 51.,..,

1 
-zo5 D,,,, rical So lutions 

·"'"'-"- =,C09ml Jlll1'11i.JO,l,4 
PnoJ"-1 • 

~c 
C] 

Ir · "J' . 11 

E C 

1111 

i 

I 

I I . ti, ·. J 



\ 

~ 
,f 
' 
\ 

I 

I 
I 

I 

@) 

I 

® @>_~ 
~~~ 

_/2 / ~ 

® 
~ Qtl 

~ 
@ 

/ 

/ 

EXISTING TREE REPORT 

/, 

)) 
I 

/ 

/ 

1 
EXISTING TREE PLAN 0 20 40 

Scale: 111 = 20'-0" 

TREE PROTECTION BARRIER NOTES 

1) Tree protection fencing sha ll be a minimum of 41 high orange polyethylene laminar safety netting, or equivalent. 

ID 

E01 
E02 
E03 
Eo4 
E0S 
E06 

·, 
\._ 

\,_ 

' 

60 FT 

COMMON NAME 

Colorado Spruce: 
Colorado Spruce 
Ouaking Aspen 
Ouaking Aspen 
Quaking Aspen 
Quaking Aspen 

\,,\ 

'\ 

, .. 

2) Tree: protection barrier posts shall be made of durable met.ii et-posts"), or equivalent, and shall be: installed at a minimum depth of 2' below grade . 

BOTANICAL NAME 

Pice:it pungens 
Pice;,i pungens 
Populus lremuloides 
Papulus tremuloide-s 
Papulus tremuloid~ 
Populus tremuloide:s 

'·-
',,.\ __ 

\"··, 
'\• .. , .. 

4) Existing trees with root zones in close proximity to new construction shall be protected to the maximum possible extent to avoid soil com~ction1 given the proximity of construction. 

5) Tree protection barrier to be approved by Landscape Architect prior to construction. 

6) Trees marked to be removed are to be approved by Landscape Architect prior to removal. 

7) No ,oots 2" or la,ge, in diamete, shall be cut . 

8) Lower branches on eve19reens selected fo r prese1Vatioiv'transplantin5 need to be lift pruned 01 1 limbed-up 11 to ,educe fuel load and "fire ladder" potential. 

AVERAGE 
HEIGHT 

HEIGHT FIRST 
SPREAD BRANCH 

10'0" 1 5'0" 3'6" 

10'011 15 '0" 3'6" 

5'0" 1 5'0" 7'0" 
510" 15'0" 7'0 " 

5'0" 1 5'0" 7'0 " 

s·o0 1510~ 7'0" 

0 E,d,tiog T,.. to b< R<movd 

© E.i,ti"l T,« to P,otect<d 

DBH NO. OF 
CONDITION SIGNIFICANCE STEMS 

4" NotSe:1 Not Se:1 
4' NotSll!:I Not St:t 
4" Not Set Not Se:t 
4" Not Se:1 Not Set 
4" Not Set Not Se:1 

4" NatS~ Not Se:t 

0 

© 

P,otectlon B1mit-1, s« 2/L0.02 

ACTION 

Retain 
Rt::tain 
Re:taln 
Retain 
Retain 
Re:tc1in 

TREE FENCING SHALL 
B[ A MINIMUM or 
4' HIGH ORANGE 
POL YETIO\..EN[ 
LAMINAR SAF'tTY 
NETTING 

POSTS SETTING TO 
2' IN GROUND MAD[ 
or DURABLE METAL 
"T" OR EQUIVALENT 

SEE SECTION 

DATE ASSESSED NOTES 

rCA.N0PY DRIP LINE 

PR0TEC'TIVE FENCING 
0\JRJNG CONSTRUCTION 

AERATION BEFORE. 
DURING ANO AFTER 
CONSTRUCTION 

--,IL- PROTECTED Roof ZONE WITHIN THE -----,IL.
~I CANOPY DRIP UNE- ACTU.A.l fE£DER ROOTS I 

EiC ![NO WELL BEYOND DRIP UN:E 

SECTION 

PLAN 

FE.MCE l0CA TION A 1 
DRIP LINE OR 15" 
fROM TRUNK, 
v.HICrlEVER IS CREA TER 
AND SHA.LL ENCLOSE 
TREE 

2 
TREE PROTECTION BARRIER 

N.T.S 

=-r VAULT DESIGN GROUP 

VAl.lT DESIGN, LLC 
520WFIRWAY 
LOU!SVUE, CO 80027 

~ 
Unco mpahgte 

Engineering, LLC 

MARPA 
~ CJ'chlectu'e 't cor5U\.Cllon 

AE DESIGN 1L 
IM"l•••-.d U1t1m11 - Ei.ctric.a l S..lll<l<IM 
1'IODW......,1.1.-0'N'l ~ .Wawa.l: l .m L'/6,JUJ• 

!<j .. ~1«1 • 

~ w 
I-
0 0 

u 
I w 

(.!) 

CJ) 0:: :5 
w ~....I 

-> 
CJ) I- z 

0 -z ....I~ 

w z 
:::, 

CJ) 0 
::!: 

>< -CJ) 

!'l!llM. Dl!DQf !.~ IUIT!Q!! 
REl.£ASE Of TfESE OOCUt.lENTS C<:WTEMFU.TES 
fl.f!™EJI. COOl'ER,\Tl(J,I oW0HG TtE OMER, NISHEH 
CONTflACroA, AND l'HE AACli!TfCT DESlGNA.NO 
CONSTRU::TION ARE COIi.PW(. ,11,TltCIJGI 11-E MCWITEC'T 
MO HJSIIER CONSULTAAl'l'S H.Wf: PEIIF-ORIJED MR 
SERYICES WITH OOE CAAEAAO Dl.lGEM:f. n£Y CNIHOT 
GUARAN~E ~TO!. COM"4JN!CATION !$ Ml'ERffCT 
Nl:J EVERY C(N,ITNGENCY CAflPCT ~ MTICPATED. /!Nr 
ERRORS. WS.SIONS, OR lllSCl!S'II.NCY Dl!itO'.'ERED 11V 
1W: IJSE Of Tt£6E OC(;\l,tBHij" 5>IAU. BE Rff'IJRTED 
IMMEOJATEl't'TOTHEAAC>ilTI:ct f:UURE TOMOTFYTHE 
AACI-ITECT COMPOUND& /,IISIJNJERSWIONO ~ 
IIICRE>.ScS cc»ISTRU:TICN COSTS AFo\lLIJRE TO 
COOPERATE eYSIMf'U MJ1JCE TO nt! AA011TE:CTStw.1. 
REl.EV'E THEAAOIITfCT ~"°"' RESPDNSIBI.ITY FOR AU 
CCIN$E:Ot.£N:£SAA,WING OUT~ !il.JCH atANG£.S. 

TIE DES&6A.'Vf'l).NSAIII: GCf'\'RIGHT Alf.lAAE ~TO 
BE USEll OR REPffOllUC£ll \.\KIU.Y MIN P'MT\\ffl()\J'! 
Tr€ WRITTEN PERMLSSION Of YM.l.T DESIGN A.RCHrrECTS, 
THE DAAWINGS MO SPEClflCATIOHS AAf. ltiSTRLMENTS 
Of SERVICE MD SHAU. REJ.WN' 11-E PROl'EIITT Of THE 
ARCHTECT Wl'£ffiER THE PROJECT FDR 'Ml~ THE'I' HIE 
MAlll!" 15 EllfCtJTED OK NOT. CIVIJ.Jlf AACHillC~. 

00 N01 SCALf FR'.lM llRAWING. \ISl!f't' ALL 1]1,jfNSIONS 

""'"' 
LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL 
05.19.2022 

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 
COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022 
LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 
08.08.2022 

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 
ORB SUBMITTAL 10.21 .2022 

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 
COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

12.16.2022 

SEAL 

I JOB NO. 

Existing Tree P lan 
& Report 

L0.02 



SIX SENSES 

lot 109R 

LOW BOULDER SITTING AND PLANTINGS 

BOULDER GARDEN WITH , -----------/---------------------------\'<\-----: 
HARDSCAPE PAVING 3 

CARVED ROCK BENCHES 
FLAGSTONE BORDER 

PLANTED BERM 

PLANTED BERM 

STEPPING STONES, TYP 

LEGEND 

□ HARDSCAPE 1 * ~ EXISTING TREES 

□ HARDSCAPE 2 

Cl FIRE PIT 

1 

• 

.- ~'* 
.1/* ~ 

LANDSCAPE PLAN 
Scale: 111 = 201•0'1 

LOT 108 
Shirana Bw1ding 

0 20 

Q HARDSCAPE 3 

PROPERTY LINE 

0 ROCK SLAB Q FLAGSTONE (Q) BOULDER o00 STEPPING STONE 

□ CRUSHED ROCK PLANTER - • CARVED STONE BENCH 

40 

STONE HARDSCAPE 3, TYP 

<) 

~ 
~ '--.il--~""'l"cr---------2'9'.-----------:,~ -----'--------------: 

© ~--\---~""""- ------2'~- ~ ---------;~ l----,,~lk----------: 

'-----'---,_,.-_'----'..:,-------7 2'-c-________ SITTING AREA WrTH CARVED BOULDER FIRE TABLE, FUELED BY 
- NATURAL GAS 

LOT6BR 
Palmyra Building 

60 FT 
NOTE 

LOT 69R1 
Westermere 
Building 

PUBLIC PROPERTY PLAZA TO RETAIN 13'-8" MIN DRIVEABLE CIRCULATION 
PRIVATE PROPERTY PLAZA TO RETAIN 1 O' MIN DRIVEABLE CIRCULATION 

'--------#'"-,----------",rr-,=,rr------OPEN PLAZA FOR FLEXIBLE SPACE AND MOVEABLE FURNITURE 

t!'fc-""'7'¥'-l:-7,ic_ _____ EVERGREEN TREE FROM APPROVED CDC LIST 

~ "'--------- TERRACED PATIOS ON HILL, WITH BOULDER RETAINING AND SEATING 

~lPf~,,_ _________ STEEL STAIRCASE INSTALLED ON EXISTING SLOPE 

~ ~ =------------- BIKE RACKS 

- ---------- EXISTING TREES, TYP 

□ PLANTING BED/MULCH □ NATIVE SEED PROPOSED DECIDUOUS TREE PROPOSED EVERGREEN TREE 

=-r VAULT DESIGN GFIOUP 

VAl.l.T DESIGN, LLC 
520WFIRWAY 
LOUlSVIUE, CO 80027 

U ncom pahgre 
Engineering, LLC 

MARPA 
krdso'.Jpe cr~ + con;tn,.ctoo 

AE DESIGN IL 
lnliltl<M...i lllhtll'I M\d El«ltic.al Sc.l11U<>nt. 
190lW......,1,1,...,.,zm Dt,,;i,,,t,WllliCll: IJD!.l'/6.JUl• 

I; "'~1-'<I• 

~ 
w 
I-
0 0 

u 
I w 

(.!) 

(/) 0:: :5 
w ~....I 

-> 
(/) I- z 

0 -z ....I ;:; 

w z 
:::, 

(/) 0 
::!: 

>< -(/) 

!'l!llM.Dl!DQf!.~IUIT!Q!! 
REl.£ASE Of TfESE OOCUt.lENTS C<:WTEMFU.TES 
f\f!THER COOl'ER,\Tl(J,I .wDHG TtE OMER, ~1$'HEII 
COlfTflACTC)'I, AND fHE ~TECT DBIGNAAO 
CONSTRlCllQ<I ARE COl,lPl.EX. ,tl..llD/GH n-E AACWIECT 
MO HJSll£R CONSULTMml lW'f: l'EIIFORMED THi.R 
~ICES'MJl1 DUEOO!f.»fJ DI.IOOICf. nEYt.ANNOr 
/JUARMITU PelffCT(Jj COM"4JNICAJION !5 M!'Ef!ff.CT 
At.O MR\' COtlfNGEHCY C\Nt()l BE NITICPATED. /,Hf 
rnRCf!S. OM'SSKlNS, OR lll$CR&ll.NCY lllSC:O'.'ERED av 
TtE LISE OfTHESf OCCU,IEIHli StlAU.6E l'EPORTED 
IMMEDIATEL't' fOTHE AACtHlECT. FAIi.URE TO NOTFY THE 
~TECT COMPOVlfJS 119JNJER8TNllllNOl,ICO 
IN~ C~TR\.CTI~ COSTS. AF.-.11.URE TO 
COOPER.~TE e't'Sl-tl'\E NOTICE TOTH!AA011TECTSHI\U. 
REl!EV'E THEAAOIITECT 1~ RESPOltSIIII.ITY FOR AU 
CON$E:Ot.£N:£SAA,WING OUT~ SUCH atANG£.!i. 

M DES&6Al()f'LANSAAI: Gef'\'RIGHT Alf.lAAE ~TO 
BE USED o,i. REPffODUC£ll \.\KIU.'t' MIN PMT~ 
Ti£ WRITTEN PERMLSSKlN OF YM.l.T OESIGN AACHrrECTTi. 
THE DAAWINGS MO SPEClflCAT~ AAf. lHSTRU.ENTS 
Of SEIMC£ AI-D SHALL REJM~ THE PROl>EIITT Of THE 
AACHTT.CT Wl'£fliER THE PROJECT FDR WHI~ TI-JE'I' HIE 
Wt" 15 EXECUTED OR NOT. CIVIJ.Jlf AACHillCni. 

00 l<01 SCALE. 1R:lM DRAWING. VSUF'f All. DIIIENSICJ,IS 

"""" 
LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL 
05.19.2022 

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 
COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022 
LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 
08.08.2022 

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 
ORB SUBMITTAL 10.21 .2022 

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 
COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

12.16.2022 

SEAL 

I JOB NO. 

Plaza Landscape 
Plan 

L 1.01 



1 
LANDSCAPE MATERIALS 

LEGEND 

□ HARDSCAPE 1 

$-* EXISTING TREES 

□ 
Cl 

HARDSCAPE 2 

FIRE PIT 

0 20 

HARDSCAPE 3 

PROPERTY LINE 

SIX SENSES 

lot 109R 

40 60 FT 

I 

0 ROCK SLAB 

PLANTER 

Q FLAGSTONE (Q) BOULDER 

.--. • CARVED STONE BENCH 

SIX SE"f!Sf.S 
\. 

<> 
tJ 

~ I--~~ ---,;~--- ~~-¼'-- ----:; 
©~ 

LOT6 R 
Palmyra Building 

oDO STEPPING STONE □ PLANTING BED/MULCH 

□ GRAVEUCRUSHED ROCK 

□ NATIVE SEED 

LOT 69R1 
Westermere 
Bw1ding 

HARD SCAPE PAYERS • final pawr typf; and dimmsions to be detqminttl 

PAVER 1, TBD, 
Dimensionally Cut 
Rerungular Stone, 
Running Bond 

PAVER 2, TBD, 
Dimen~ionally Cut 
Stone . Random 
Running Bond 

PAVER 3, TBD , 
Pave:rs with Rough Face . 
Random Bond 

BOULDER FIRE TABLE W/ SEATING BOULDERS 

BOULDER FIRE TABLE W/ LID BECOMES TABLE 

=-r VAULT DESIGN GROUP 

VAl.l.T DESIGN, LLC 
520WFIRWAY 
LOU!SVIUE, CO 80027 

Uncompahgr'e 
Engineering, LLC 

MARPA 
lcn:t;aJpe a ctUctU'l:I ... ccnillu:::;tJon. 

AE DESIGN=L. 
lnlJll••<N Lilhllnt ... n [ !«Irle.II Sohl U<IM 
1'1111W...,,,i.,,cct1'1!n _ , COIWal l ll>J.M,JOH 

"'" ... '* 

....J 
w 
I-
0 0 

u 
I w 

(.!) 

(/) c::: :5 
w ~...J 

~> 
(/) I- z 

0-z ...J ~ 

w z 
:::, 

(/) 0 
::!: 

>< -
(/) 

!t!ll!!i l:: ll'o!D' Qf !,~AAIKI!! 
RELEASE Of Tl-ESE 000.JI.IENTS ~TEMIU.TES 
Fl.lfflfEII COOl'tAAt KJ,I !WONG TtE OMER, HISilll:R 
CONTflACroA, AND T'HE ~ TfCT. D£SIGN-'NO 
CONSTRI.CllON ARE COIIJ'lEX. ,ll,.THOJG-111-E ARCHITECT 
MO 1-!JSIHER CONSULTAN'JS ~ PEA FORMED THEIR 
SER\llCES WITH DUE CAAE>JIO al.lG(NCE. llEY CN'oNOT 
OOAAAJilltE l'EftftCTl:"I. COM"4.JNICATION 15 MPl:RJ't:CT 
At,I) EVERY COWTNGENCV C\HNOT IIE:~TlCflATEO. liNt 
ERRORS,OM'.SSKlNS,ORlllSCl!EPII.NeYDlstMR£DB'< 
TtE USE OF TfiE 0001.NENra 5KAU. BE JEf'Of,TEIJ 
IMMEOlATEl.'l'TOTHEI.R()jlTI:ct Filll.URE TONOTFYTHE 
Ml-lTECT COl,lf'OUND6 I.WJlfJERSTANDM.IND 
NCREASES CQl,jSTRO:TIClf COSTS. A FM URE TO 
COOPERATE BY Sllll'lE r,J"TICE TO TH~ NIOilTECT SIW.l. 
REI.EYE TI-EAROIITECT FMOM 1£$PONSIBI.ITY FO!IAU 
CONS£OU£~a AAANN: OUT fY SUCH C1-WlGE.!i. 

THE OE.:IIGNSA.'l)PI.A~AA!: CCFl'RIGI-IT Al«lAAE NOTTO 
BE USED OR AEPl'IOOLCE!l 'Mt'.M..I.Y Oil IN PMT ~ 
r1I: WRITTEN PERMISSION Of YALU OESIGN AACHITECTS. 
TIE OR.(MNGS MO SPECFIC.-.T~AAE. IHST1lll,£NTS 
Of SE.Rl'!Oa AfD SHALL REJMIN M PROf'ERT'I' OF THE 
ARCl-fl"ECT ~ TllE PRQJl;CT FOIi 'Ml()j THO' ARf 
WADE IS Ell.WJTED (11.NOT, i&I VALJLTMI.CHJTECTS. 

00 NOT SCtd.£ Fft:OM DAAWING. Ye:RIF-'t' ALL 01,jENSICJNS 

''""' 
LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL 
05.19.2022 

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 
COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022 
LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 
08.08.2022 

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 
ORB SUBMITTAL 10.21 .2022 

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 
COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

12.16.2022 

SEAL 

I JOB NO. 

Plaza Landscape 
Materia ls 

L 1.02 



D PAVERS WITH SNOW MELT 

3 
Floor 4 
Scale: 111 = 301-0ft 

□ SPA WITH STONE VE NEER 

PLANTER WITH STONE VENEER- TO HAVE DRI P IRRIGATION 
to be plant«! with annuals or with pt:rnni.alt c:how=n froll'I the appro11ed Mount.in Village plant litt 

2 
Floor 3 
Scale: 111 = 301-011 

Floor 2 0 30 60 90 FT 

1 Scale: 111 = 30•-0 11 

Floor 5 
4 

Scale: 111 = 301-0 11 

=-i- VAULT DESIGN GFIOUP 

VAt.lT DESIGN, LLC 
520WFIRWAY 
LOUISVILLE, CO 80027 

Uncompahgre 
Engineering, LLC 

MARPA 
~ crct,tect.tffl ➔• cawu::tJon 

AE DESIGN IL 
lnlJltl••...ct uanuna and El«lttr..l Sollll lCIM 
1'1111w.....,,.,.,.,.,,_ U.._,COIWIJl llD'l.1'16.JW• 

... ~1 .... 1• 

....J 
UJ 
I-
0 0 

u 
I w 

(.!) 

en 0:: :5 
UJ ~-' 

-> en I- z 
0-z -' ;:; 

UJ z 
::::, 

en 0 
:!: 

>< -en 

!fQI!!; l;:D!,!D' Qf !,~ AAT!IQ!! 
RELEASE Of Tl-ESE 000.JI.IENTS C0Pff9dl'LATES 
Nm+ER COOPEAAt KJ,1 .WONG TtE OWIER, Hl$'HER 
CONTflACroA, AND T'HE AACHTfCT. DESIGNAAO 
C0NSTRU::110N ARE COMPlEX. ,11,.THOJGI 11-E AACHITECT 
MO H!SIH£R CONSULTAN'l'S ~ PEA FORMED THEIR 
SER\'ICES WITH DUE CAAfAI«) at.loo.tE. llEY CN'lNOT 
GUAR/\NlU ~ECTO\. COM\IJNICATION !$ "4f'ERJ't:CT 
AUl EVERY COtlTNGENCY CAHP()T 8£MTICPA11:D. Nll 
rnRORS, OM:~IONS, OR lllSCRS'll,NCY Dlst~D 6Y 
TtE USE Of T~Sf OCCUMEN~ StlAU. IIE REJ'OIITED 
IMMEOl,l,TEL't' TO THE ARCtHJECT. FAlURE TO tr:>TFY THE 
AACHTECT OOMPOVNOS I.ISIJlfJERSTNIOMl>HO 
IIICREASES caism.cncw COSTS A FAA URE TO 
COOF'EAArt BY SMf'lE NOTICE lO TH! M01rfECT SWllL 
AB.EVE lHl:NIOIITECT FFDd RESPONSl•ITY FOR NJ. 
CON$EOl£N:£S AR,WflG out~ !il.Ol OWIG£S. 

TtE DESGNSA.'(>PI.A~AAE CCF'!RIGHTA!f.lAAI: r.QTTO 
BE USED OR REmOOUCEll 'M-DU.Y 0A IN PNI.T wm«l\11 
TIE WRITTEN PERMLSSKlN Of Y!U.l.T DESIGN AAGHITECTS. 
THE DAAWINGS MO SPECIACAT~ ARE INSTRlliENTS 
Of SE.IMCE Al<l 5HALL REWJH TI-£ PROPERTY Of TI\E 
ARCHTECT ~ THE PROJECT FOR 'M-1~ THEY N'IE 
MACE IS EXEt\JlED OR NOT. ~VNJlT AACHITECT!. 

00 NOT SCALE. 1Ft:;)M DRAWING. VEIUF'f ALL DIMENSlCJ.15 

"""" 
LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL 
05.19.2022 

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 
COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022 
LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 
08.08.2022 

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 
ORB SUBMITTAL 10.21 .2022 

LOT 109R PUC AMENDMENT TOWN 
COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

12.16.2022 

SEAL 

JOB NO. 

Landscape Floors 
2-5 

L 1.03 



1 
7th Floor Garden 
Scale: 1 /8" = 1 '-0" 

D CRUSHED ROCK 

D POOL/SPAW/ STONE 

0 8 

~ - ~ --+------------• ------ -------------- PORTABLE VEGETABLE PLANTER BOXES, ABOUT 38" TALL 

-----------------------1a--------,~------------CARVED SLAB BENCH, TYP. + 15-20" TALL 

16 24 FT 

-- CARVED SLAB BENCE 

■ ■ 

MOUNTED/REMOVABLE PARASOL 
W/ SUITABLE WIND RATING 

FIRE PIT 

..---------7 /J.,"'Q'-------------,k-----..----------- PAYERS ON SNOW MELT 

D 

\ 

CRUSHED ROCK 

::---,l------=----------CARVED SLAB BENCH + 1 5-20" TALL 

---------------- BOULDERS, TYP. 

CARVED STONE BENCH TO -----tH----H
LOOK AT VIE\11/, + 18" 

SHADE PARASOL OR ------ff------l----H-lli---+-- --+' 
NON.PERMANENT CABANA 

WITH LOUNGE CHAIRS 

CRUSHED ROCK BEDS AT GRADE -----tt--t------t--it-

STAIRS ---::111:::::::::==::-tl 

PLANTER WITH STEEL VENEER- TO HAVE DRIP IRRIGATION 
to be plant«! with aMuals or with perennials chosen from the appro'led Mountain ViU,ge plant list 

2 
6th Floor Pool Deck 
Scale: 1/8' = 1 '-0" 

0 8 16 24 FT 

1 3'-6° 

q .,, 
M 

._j _ __.j CHEF'S PLANTER BOXES- TO HAVE DRIP IRRIGATION 

PAVERS WITH SNOW MELT 

7 

n 
' 

r-- --+111t-------- OUTDOOR TABLE 

-f~j--------- GRADE CHANGE (UPPER ROCK GARDEN 
+48"). BOULDER RETAINS GRADE 

~------- SHADE PARASOL OR NON-PERMANENT 
CABANA W / LOUNGE CHAIRS AND TABLES 

f-----f--+-"c--r--+-t--J++lf---+ft--lt----+~~------- PATIO OVERHANGE (POOL AND POOL 
COVER EXTEND BELOW) 

-------- BOULDER RETANING AGAINST STAIRS 

-------- PLANTERS (30' TALL) 

--------- CARVED STONE BENCHES 

--------- CRUSHED ROCK 

A A RAMP UP 

=-°f VAULT DESIGN GROUP 

VAl.l.T DESIGN, LLC 
520WFIRWAY 
LOUISVllLE, CO 80027 

Uncompahgr'e 
Engineering, LLC 

MARPA 
~ ac:ltectul:l +-~ 

AE DESIGN=L. 
ln,..,a..a Lilh•lnt ... n [IKI ....... I Sol.u<l<IM 
1'1111W.....,\11cctll'lm _,COIWCII l»J_l'll,_JQl4 

"'~1.,.1• 

....J 
LU 
I-
0 0 

(.) 

I w 
(.!) 

(/) c::: :5 
LU ~ ...I 

~> 
(/) f- z 

0-z ...I ;:; 

LU z 
:::, 

(/) 0 
::!: 

>< -
(/) 

!t!ID!,e;ll!,II)'Qf !,~ llliOOII 
RB.O.SE Ofll-ESE OOCUt.lENTS cc,nEMPLATES 
RJmtER COOl'EIV,,tlQII it.MONG TtE OWN':R, Hl$/IIER 
com:IACTOA, .-.ND l'HE AACHITECT. [)C,.SjGNN«l 
CONSTRl,CTION ARE COIi.Pi.EX ,llTIDJGH Tl-£ ARCHITECT 
MO HISAER CONSULTANTS HJtlE PEA FORMED TIER 
SERVICES WITH OOECAAfAl'l)DLIOOICE. 1l£YC,1,NNQr 
GIJ,/IR/1.NTl:E !UfECTO'!,, COU~HICA.TION IS IM!'ERJ'ECT 
NI) EYERY OOWf'.NGENC'< C\HNOT BE~TICflATl:0. mr 
ERRORS, OMS!iKH:; , OR CISCREPAACY DISC::<NER£D BV 
TIE U~ OF THESE 0001.NENTS 6KALL BE REf'UITTBJ 
IMMEOll,TEl.'I' TO THE Afl()jlTict FAlURE TO NOTFY THE 
Ml-tl'ECT COl,lf'OUND6l.l&.IOOERSTANDINO.IND 
NCREASES C~TROCTICJf COSTS A FAA URE TO 
COOPERATE BY SMl'tE MJ"TICE TO Tlt!N\OilTECT SIW..L 
RELIEYE THEI-JtQIITE<:T FROM AESl'ONSIBLITY FO!I AU 
CON~OU£~a AR~N: OUT f:t' SUCH Q-WIGE!i. 

THE DESIGNSA.'i)PI.A~AAI: CCJ'l'RIGI-IT Alf),IJE ™ll"TO 
BE USED OR AEPl'IOOLCBl 'Mt'.M..I.Y Off IN PMT l',ffi()\JJ 
n-= WRITTEN PERMISSKlN Of Y!IJ . .UDESIGN IIRGHITECTS. 
TME DR.(MNGS "3f:J SPECFIC.-,J~ ARE IHSl1lll,£N'JS 
Of SERl'IOa AfD SHALL REJMIN THE PROPERT'I' OF TIIE 
ARQ-fl'El;T ~ rnE PRQJl;CT FOIi WHl()j THE't ARf 
MADE IS Ell.WJTED (JI. NOf,IGVIJJLT MI.CHJTECTS. 

00 NOT 5CAl.f. FROM DRAWING. ,_,ERIN ALI. DIMENSICtlS 

''""' 
LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL 
05.19.2022 

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 
COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022 
LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 
08.08.2022 

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 
ORB SUBMITTAL 10.21 .2022 

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 
COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

12.16.2022 

SEAL 

I JOB NO. 

Landscape Floors 
6-7 

L 1.04 



--- I , 
,j ~ I 

-- ', @~ 
I 

J 

I 

I 

l 

) 

\ 

951 3 

_., 

1 

\ 
\ 

Ss ~ 
'• 

'\ ,., 
ol' 

* *\,, r-

"' ~ 
"' 

*I '!" 

\ 

LOT 108 
ShiriJniJ Building 

l 

1* ') \ 
/ 

\ 

~ 9525--

i 

I 
LOT 69R1 
Westermere 

Building L_ ___________ _ 

----- ;'I 
"-- / 

, 1,0 --~ '-. * ,t< ....--1 ---- --- { 

LANDSCAPE GRADING AND ELEVATION PLAN 0 20 40 60 FT 

NOTE 
SEE CIVIL ENGINEERING DRAWINGS FOR FINAL GRADING AND DRAINAGE INFORMATOIN 

\ 

"'--

9521 --

\ 
\ 

0 

2 

\ \ ~ 
"' ~ 

~ 

I 

I 

HILL & STAIRCASE GRADING PLAN 
Scale: 111 = 1 o•-0 11 

10 20 30 FT 

~ 

J 

~ " "' ' " ~ ~ \ 
' " 

~ " 

' \ 
\.. 

- - --- ---- \ \ 
qc;,11).:J,-- --c---- GRADING LIMITS 

' \ 
\ 

' 
if~~~:;,'l.~· 1, , ~ ... , 

~~ ' ' c;'J.11 •0 . 
..,'3'=> q \, 

<ii--""<:-,... 

I 

I ,.___ 

LEGEND 

+ooo 

+ooo 

+ooo 

> 

\___ 

PROPOSED BERM HEIGHT (ABOVE GRADE) 

PROPOSED BOULDER HEIGHT (ABOVE GRADE) 

PROPOSED SPOT ELEVATION 

PROPOSED MNOR CONTOUR 

PROPOSED MINOR CONTOUR 

EXISTING MNOR CONTOUR 

EXISTING MINOR CONTOUR 

=-r- VAULT DESIGN GFIOUP 

VAl.lT DESIGN, LLC 
520WFIRWAY 
LOUISVILLE. CO 80027 

~ 
Uncompahgte 

Engineering, LLC 

MARPA 
krdso'.Jp8 CT~ +-~ 

AE DESIGN= L 
lnu,,,., .,. LI1hl1 .. 61\d [ l«lrir.ol Sc>l.ill kint. 

1'1111W.....,1.1, ... ,,zm ~ .Wafi!ll i .ln_N6.JUJ• 
.,~1-'<I• 

...J 
w 
I-
0 0 

u 
I w 

(.!) 

(J) er :5 
w ~-' 

-> 
(J) I- z 

0-z -' ;:; 
w z 

:::, 

(J) 0 
::!: 

X -(J) 

!f!rn!i:li Ill,!!)' !1f !,~AATf2!! 
RELEASE Of ft-ESE OOOJt.lENTii C<:tffEMl'U.TES 
NmlER COOPUIJ,,l lCN .WONG TtE OMER, Hl$'MEJI 
CONTflACTOR, AND fHE ~ TfCT. D€.S!GNAAO 
CONSTRUCllON ARE COIi.Pl.EX. ,11..llD/GH TJ-E AACWIECT 
MO HJ5.ll'ER CONSULTAHTS 1W1E PEAF-ORIJED MR 
SER'.'ICESWITH DUE CAAEA1«JDl.lGENCf. nEYCoJMIOf 
GUAR/\Hfl:E ~T(lt ~\IJNICATION !$ Ml'ERffCT 
NAlEVERVC(N,ITNGENCYC\HP()TBl;MTICPATED./!Nr 
ERROR$, OI.ISSiONS.00 lllSCf!S'll,NCY DISC::<NEIIED 8V 
THE USE Of 11£6E OOOMENts 5HAlL BE REPORTEI) 
IMMEDIATaY TO THE ARCtHT'ECT. FAIi.URE TO tr:>TFY THE 
~T'ECT OOMPOUlfJS 1,JSIJlfJffi8TNIOtNO""°' 
r,iCRE>.scs ca,ISTR\,l;;TI~ COSTS AF"1URE TO 
COOPER.ATE ev St.lf'U NOTICE TO rHE M011rECf SWIil. 
AB.IEY'E lHSAAOll'TKT FR:lM RE&PON51RITY FOR All 
CON$EOU£N:£SARl'WING OUT~ SI.Di OWIG£S. 

M DES&6Al()f'LANSA/II: CCf'\'RIGHT Alf.I.vi: ~TO 
BEUSEDO'-REmODUCEll~YM INPMTIMn()U! 
Tr£ WRITTEN PERMLSSION Of YAIJ.T DESIGN AACHrrECTS. 
THE DRAWINGS MO SPECIFIC.-.TIONS ARE IHSTIU.£NTS 
Of SEIMCla "1CJ SHALL REW.IN THE PROPERTY OF THE 
ARl;Hl"ECT 'M£Tl£R TllE PRO.l:CT FOR '1,1-101 fflE'I NIE 
t.lAlll: IS f..UC\ITEO OIi. NOi'. Q VNJlT AAOillfCTS. 

00 N01 SCALf f R'.lM DRAWING. VSUfV AU DI.IENSIONS 

''""' 
LOT 109R MAJOR PUD AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL 
05.19.2022 

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 
COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022 
LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 
08.08.2022 

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 
ORB SUBMITTAL 10.21 .2022 

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 
COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

12.16.2022 

SEAL 

I JOB NO. 

Plaza Landscape 
Grading Plan 

L2.01 



SIX SENSES 

Lot 109R 

LOT 108 

HEATED SIDEWALK BY TMV 

1 
SNOWMELT PLAN AT PLAZA 

LEGEND 

Scale: 1 11 = 501-011 

0 so 

PUBLIC SNOWMELT: 
approximately 30,427 ,I 

PRIVATE SNOWMELT: 
approximately 29, 721 sf 

100 150 FT 

LOT 69R1 
Weslermere Building 

SNOWMELl 30,427 SF 

\ 

4 

0 

Floor 4 
SNOWMELT: 4,237 SF 

7 

3 
Floor 3 
Scale: : 111 = 301-011 

SNOWMELT: 4,159 SF 
6 

2 
Floor 2 
Scale: 1 " = 3 01-0° 

SNOWMELT: 3,437 SF 5 

30 60 90 FT 

I 

Floor 7 
Scale: 1" = 30',0 11 

SNOWMELT: 3,990 SF 

Floor 6 
SNOWMELT: 6,980 SF 

Floor 5 
Scale: 111 = 301-0 11 

SNOWMELT: 6,918 SF 

=-r VAULT DESIGN GROUP 

VAULT DESIGN, UC 
5-20 W FIR WAY 
LOUISVILLE. CO 80027 

Uncompahgre 
Engineering, LLC 

MARPA 
~ crctitecttre ~ C015UU:;tbl 

AE DESIGN 1L 
lnl..,al9<1 L'l~I .... ,...,d [i«l•lul 5.oM'-• 
,llll.,_\l,_tlD! , _.Ulmi.:D _,}no.Ml\> 

"'~k<I f 

...J 
w .,_ 
0 0 u 
I w 

c.!) 

Cl) a:: :5 
w ~ ..J 

~> 
Cl) 1-z 

0-z ..J ~ 

w z 
::, 

Cl) 0 
:a: 

X -Cl) 

IIQTl;;El OIITT DfCOOl'tMAT!!,'!!i! 
REl~ Of Tt£SE OOOIJMBITT, ~ 
rumlER CODf'EMT!ONN.IONG Tt£ OWIER. ~R 
COHTR/ICTOR.AN> THE oWICIITfC'T oar.N......, 
(:l)ISHIL("flc.,i AA£ (:OMPl.£ll "'-1t!OJGH 11-E' ARCHlfECT 
ANOlll!M,RCQ,j!Ul.TANTS~~DT.telR 
UA\'ICeSWITH OOt CAAf,1,1(101..IOOIQ:, tllf'fCANNCIT 
GUARANTEE P£Rf"ECJOI COMMMCATION 1:5 IMPeRf"ECl 
N«I EVERY COIITtMJENCV CAJ<ll«ll llE NrnCl'ATED. Atff 
EM<IIS. OMISSIOOS. OR ClSCRDW+CY DISCMRED !IY 
T1-£ USE OF Tl-£SE DOCIIMEffl StW.l. !IE flf:PORTED 
IMMED!ATB.Y TO TffE AA DOTECT. FALURE TO HC1TIFY ll!E 
ARCHITECT IXlM'OIJNlS lilSINlE~N,11)1,jGNIIJ 
NCR~ ci,l5TRl,W;~ C0St5 AFAUIRl; TQ 
COOl'EAAlt BT S~E NOTa: TO ~EAAi,-lfTECT SWIU 
RELIEVE THEAAOlffETF~ RESPONse..JFV FOA .W. 
CCflSEOOcNCESAR!WNG OIIT Of SUCHCtWiGES. 

TI-E DESIGNS N.i PIANSAAE C[P'ffllGHT ~ ARE NOT TO 
BE IJSE.CI OR ll(f'ROWClO WIC)U.Y 0A 1'1 f'Nll 'M'THOVT 
M WRJTm, l'ERl,I\SSION Of 'AIA.l CIESIGN'~T!. 
lJ-t:™~C::SWISl't"C.-WIONSA~INS~EfffS 
Of SEfMCE ~ SHALL REMl>.tf !HE PMPEP:TV OF !HE 
ARCHTECT wtE'l'I-IER n-lE JIAO.ECF FOR WI-I~ ntEV Mt£. 
MIQ~ ~ UitCUTI:~ f.l\ ~ .li!VNJl.1" MQtlTtli~. 

DO NOT liCALli FOOf,IIOR,l,Wffli VERFY AU OMENSIQNS 

ON"" 
LOT 109R MAJOR PUC AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL 
05.19.2022 

LOT 109R PUC AMENDMENT TOWN 
COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022 
LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 
08.08.2022 

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 
DRB SUBMITTAL 10.21 .2022 

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 
COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

12.16.2022 

SEAL 

I JOB NO. 

Snowme lt 
Diagram 

L2.02 



CARSON BROOKS VALVE BOXES WITH STAINLESS 
,------STEEL BOLT-DOWN TOP W/ MATCHING LOCKING 

COVER BRAND COVER IN 1" MIN. LITTERS FP 
"g~iff'====~!w,,.--- FINISH GRADE PRIOR TO MULCH 

____ THREADED PVC END CAP & MALE 
ADAPTER 

f----- 4 " LAYER OF DRAIN GRAVEL ABOVE & 

BELOW VALVE BOX EXTENSIONS 

~---- GEOTEXTILE WRAP 

~-------DRIP PIPE END 

NOTES, 
1. TAPE FABRIC TO SIDE OF VALVE BOX• PIPE W/ DUCT TAPE. 

DRIP FLUSH VALVE 
N.TS 

SIX SENSES 

lot 109R 

( 

1 

LOT 108 
Shkana Building 

\ 

\ 
\ 

IRRIGATION PLAN 

1:-!Qli 

\ 

\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 
\ 

\ 

I 

0 20 40 60 FT 

LOT 69R1 
Westermere 
Building 

\ 

/'--- ~ ---- I 
' 

LEGEND 
POINT-SOURCE DRIP 
for xeric perennial plant areas 
and trees ■ 

, ~ o-~ .r. 'O+ 

'°'"h. ~ 
~ , 
• 

12" POP UP SPRAY 
for native seed area 

IRRIGATION NOTES 

1) Irrigation system is designed to operate off of pressure of 80 psi (may var',') at ~ach point 

of conne:clion bdore back flow preve:nter. Contr11cto1 to ve:rify pressure prior to installation 

and notify owntr of any diffaencts . Assumes 1" line minimum. Dnign prtssurt: at heads lo bt 

as note:d in lll"gcmd . 

2) No irrigation work to begin until final 9rade ho,s been approved. 

3) loc-,te all heads 6" min, Away from any wall, w<lilk, or <urb, and 12 ~ min . from any curb 

adjacent to parking stalls. 

4) Bury all mainlines 2 4,. underground to top ol pipt. Bury all laterals 12 ~ underground to 

top of pipe . Drip lint to lay on surface under mulch . 

5) All pipll" undl!"r pavl!"ml!"nt to be: sleeved in 4" minimum (unlcs otherwhe nolll"d} PVC 

d;m 200 e:xtmd 12 "' beyond e:ilch l!"dge of p11ve:ment, sloped to drilin . lnstilll prior to 

paYing. Sleeve wire5, sepo,ratdy in 4'" min . pipe. 

6) All vo,lve wire: is to direct burial 14 '" gauge wire. lnstilll 5 spare wires to l!"ach end of 

main~ne, 

7) Heads will be d iagrammatic . Contractor to stlect and install correct arcs as need for part 

circle hll"ads . Adjust radii and arc as n«cswry for no ovenpray/b11ckwash onto adj.sctnl 

buildings, walls, or fences. 

8) For lnline Drip Tubin9, :;nake pipe throu9h plontin9 area and tree: yoid1, in one run to allow 

for e...sy mainter"1;H1c:t. Space: rows 12" apart When running through ~leeve:$, lraMition r10M 

1/ 2 1
' drip line to 3/4• polyethylene 100 PSI . Do not run inline d,ip tubing in sleeving . 

Routing is dW19ro,mmtic, contractor to o,djust layout to ad,illl"YII" 1 2" line spcicing. 

9} Plan has bl!"en prep,nl!"d using limitll"d on•site observ.stion. Pl.,r, is di.sgr.smm11tic .snd does 

not reffect all equipment, etc. , that could Ix ll!"ncounte:red du,ing construction . All tie 

locations, mo,inline: locations, and late:10,I locations are: approximate and shall require exact 

location by Contractor. 

10) locatll!" all valve bo}(ll!"S a minimum of 3 ' from concrete or asphalt paving wlien mainlinlll" 

runs p;,r;,llel to adj;,cent elements. Final loc;,tions to be appr011ed by Landscape A rchitect. 

11) All cxistin9 trees and notable plant material to receive new i1ri9ation . 

12) Soil moistu,e sensing device to be installed in Wrf drll!"as . 

13) lnsto,II drip emitte~ ,H described below: 

1 Gallon Material 

5 Gallon Material 

Deciduous Trees (1 .S" - 2 . 5" Cal.) 

Deciduous Trets (3" - 4" Cal.) 

Evergreen Trees (6' -1 0 ') 

Evergreen Trees (11' - 14') 

Wot,h t-,,, .. ,r 1t>< lou~ , h~ WAJI 
____ , ___ .,.. __ _ 

R,io Bi,d SW-10 (lGPH) 1 " · 
Rain Bird SW-10 (1GPH) 2 ea. 

Raio Bi,d SW-20 (2GPH) 3 " · 
Raio Bi,d SW-20 (2GPH) 4 " 
Raio Bi,d SW-20 (2GPH) 3 " · 
Raio Bi,d SW-20 (2GPH) 4 " · 

RAIN~BIRD. 

~ ;;-.;-;::::;:::;;:-.::.:_ WR2 Series Wi reless Rain and Ra,l r,/ Free:te Sensor, --· .. ·--

RAIN~BIRD. 
__ ._._ ----._ .. ~ ... -----M""'' -----·-

_ , .. _ ---,-. .. ..,,.. ---· __ ,.,..,, 
-----

---·-· - ,~ --'"'"'" 
__ ..,.., 

Controller system to have rai!Vlrell"ZI!": sl!"nSOf and moislurl!" sl!"nsor. 

Contractor to specify RainBird WR2 or approved alternate. 

Loc.!ltion of irr iglltion controller, backAow p,eventer, and t"p &nd prts$ure rt:dudlon v11lve per mechanic11I t'ngineer 
DIAGRAMATIC HEADS: see note 7 on Irrigation Notes 

DROP GIIADE FOR SOD 
FINISH GRADE / TOP OF MULCH 
OR AREAS TO BE SEEDED 

NOTES, 

ll'-4------ARMOR VALVE BOX WITH 
LOCKING COVER 

, ..,., _ __,,_ _____ 6" PVC CL 200 PIPE 
(LENGTH AS REQUIRED) 

----- BRICK (1 OF 2) 

RESILIENT WEDGE GATE VALVE WITH 2" 
SQUARE OPERATING NUT. LINE SIZE. 

~ ---- PVC MAIN UNE PIPE 

--------------- FlTTING 

1. NOMINAL SIZE OF GATE VALVE TO MATCH NOMINAL MAINLINE SIZE. 
2. INSTALL A -4 ' THICK CONCRETE PAD BELOW VALVE WlTH NO. 4 REBAR 

WHEN USING PUSH ON TYPE VALVES. 

ISOLATION GATE VALVE 
N.TS 

MAINLINE. AND 
WIRING IN THE 
SAME TRENCH 

SECTION VIEW 

NOTES 

,Vv\lNLINE 
PIPE 

D 

LATERAL 
PIPE 

WIRING IN 
CONDUIT 

WIRE W/0 CONDUIT 

TIE A 24,lNCH LOOP IN ALL WIRING AT 
CHANGES OF DIRECTION Of 30"' 0 1!: 
GREATER . UNTIE AFTER ALL 
CONNECTIONS HAVE BEEN MADE. 

All SOLVENT WELD PLASTlC PIPING TO 
~----- BE SNAKED IN Tl!:ENCH A.5 SHOWN. 

l!:UN WIRING BENEATH AND BESIDE 
~-------------MAINLI NE, TAPE ANO BUNDLE AT 

10-FOOT INTEl!:VAL5. 

1) SLEEVE BELOW ALL HARDSCAPE ELEMENTS WITH CLASS 200 PVC TWICE 
THE DIAMETER OF THE PIPE OR WIRE BUNDLE WITHIN. 
2) FOR PIPE AND WIRE BURIAL DEPTHS SEE SPECIFICATIONS. 

PIPE AND WIRE TRENCHING 
N.TS 

12" Rotor Pop-Ups (Adjustable Spray Heads) -4-- spray rotation 

~--------ARMOR STANDARD VALVE BOX, WITH "QC" BRANDED ON TOP 

~--------QUICK COUPLING VALVE WITH LOCKING COVER, KEY & SWIVEL 
HOSE ELL 

I ,---------QUICK COUPLER 

- ----- FINISH GRADE PRIOR TO SOD / SEEDI NG 

- ---------- 1 CU. Fl GRAVEL SUMP 

Ml!lcf---+---------- 24' REBAR STAKE SECURED TO QUICK COUPLER WITH STAINLESS 
STEEL GEAR CLAMPS, OR OTHER APPROVED SUPPORT SYSTEM 

- ----------- PVC NIPPLE 

SIDE VIEW 

PVC ELL & 90° STREET ELL 

12' MIN. NIPPLE 

>---- CLASS 200 PVC MAIN, BURY 2 4' MIN. 

,Gc::====:::icg. ____ TEE OR ELL AND 90° STREET ELL 

TOP VIEW 

NOTES, 
1. COMPACT BACKFILL TO DENSITY OF UNDISTURBED SOIL 

5 
QUICK COUPLER 
NTS 

~ ___ SCH 80 NIPPLE (2 -INCH LENGTH, HIDDEN) 
AND 2 SCH 40 ELL, THREADED 

~--- PVC SCH 80 NIPPLE (TYPICAL, LENGTH AS REQUIRED) 

,----- 30-INCH LINEAR LENGTH OF WIRE, COILED 

~---- DBR 

~--- JUMBO VALVE BOX 

~ -- COVER IN 1" MIN LITTERS SV & STATION# 

TOP OF MULCH 

PVC LATERAL 

~ PVC SCH 40 MALE ADAPTER 

PVC SCH 80 NIPPLE, CLOSE (1 OF 3) 

PVC SCH 80 UNION FOR SERVICING ASSEMBLY 

~----PVC MAINLINE 

~----- 3-INCH MINIMUM DEPTH OF 
3/ 4-INCH WASHED GRAVEL 

~------BRICK (1 OF 4) 

~------ PVC SCH 80 NIPPLE (2-INCH LENGTH, HIDDEN) 
AND PVC SCH 40 ELL 

'-------- SERVICE TEE 

DRIP VALVE DETAIL 
NT S 

=--f vi.ULT DESIGN GROUP 

VAl.lTOESIGN, LLC 
520WFIRWAY 
L0U!SVIUE, CO 80027 

Unco mpahgre 
Engineering, LLC 

MARPA 
krdso'.:.p3 cr~ + COf"6tructlofl 

AE DESIGN= L 
lr>IIIIHU!<I Ufhtll'I .-,,II [loK.llla l Slllull<>M 

1tQDWan,1.1,-.~ a,.,,...., . wawa1: l .ml'11JQl4 
' ! .. ~1..,1• 

~ 
w 
I-
0 0 

u 
I w 

(.!) 

(/) 0:: :5 
w ~-' 

~> 
(/) 5z 
z -' ~ 

w z 
::::l 

(/) 0 
::!: 

X -
(/) 

!!SlI!!.f; IMD' Qf !,~RIII!!;lll 
RB.OS: Of lrESE OOCU'-IENT5 CCWTBMU.ltS 
fl.f[l)l(R, COOPUIJ,Tl(J,I ,wQJfG TtE OMER, Hl$'Hl:H 
CONTflACTI)'l,ANO fHE ~TECT DESIGHl<HD 
CONSTRJXllON ARE COIi.Pl.EX M.llDJGI TrE MC!fTECT 
MO H®"+-ER CONSULOO/lS ~PERFORMED Tl£R 
SEJ!\IICES WITH OOE CAAEAND Dl.lGEM:E. n£Y CN'iHOf 
GUAIIAN~E ~TO!. COM"4JN!CATION !$ Ml'ERJtCT 
Nil EVERY OOtlfNGENCY CAflPCT ~ MTICPATEO. l#r 
rnRORS. OMSSIONS,OR lllSCl!S'II.NCY Dl!it~O IN 
1'tt': USE Of Ti1E6E 0001.1,tBHij" SHALL BE Rff'DRTED 
MMEOlATB.YTOTHEAAC>HTI:ct FiU.URE TONOTF'I THE 
.t.RCHTECT COldPOU"IDS l,ffl.lNJERSTm ONG ~C> 
tcc:RWcS COWSTRU:TICW COSTS AFWRf TO 
COOPERATE eYSIM!'U MJ1JCE TO rH! Al\011TE:CfStw.L 
RB.IEVE 11-IEAl'ICHITECT ""°"' RESPONSlBLIIY FOR AU 
CON$EO\£N'.:ESAAIWING OUT~ !il.JCH atANG£.S. 

TtE DES&6A.'Vf'LmsAIII: GCf'\'RIGHT Alf.lAAE ~TO 
BE USED o,i, REPffOllUCEll ~y MIN P'MT\\ffl()\J'! 
Tr€ WRITTEN PERMISSION Of YAIJ.T DESIGN A.RCHrrECTT; 
THE DIWYINGS MO SPEClflCATIOHS AAf. ltiSTRLMENTS 
Of SERVICE N«l SWJJ.. REJ.WN' Tt£ PROPERTY Of THE 
ARQtTI:CT 'M£TttER nlE PROJECT FOR Wrl01 l:tt£V N'IE 
t.lAIJE IS EXfC\ITEO ~ Nm. G VIJ.JlT AACHmCTS. 

00 N01 SCALE fR'.lM ORAWINO ,,.ER!Pf AU DI.IENSIOHS 

''"'" 
LOT 109R MAJOR PUO AMENDMENT 

SPECIAL HEARING SUBMITTAL 
05.19.2022 

LOT 109R PUO AMENDMENT TOWN 
COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

06.07.2022 
LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 

COUNCIL CONTINUANCE SUBMITTAL 
08.08.2022 

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT FINAL 
ORB SUBMITTAL 10.21 .2022 

LOT 109R PUD AMENDMENT TOWN 
COUNCIL SUBMITTAL 

12.16.2022 

SEAL 

I JOB NO. 

Plaza Irrigation 
Plan 

L2.03 


	January 19, 2023 Town Council Agenda
	Agenda Item 4a December 8 2022 Town Council Meeting Minutes Draft
	Agenda Item 4b January 4, 2023 Special Town Council Meeting Minutes Draft
	Agenda Item 5 Promotional Association Re-Certification Memo
	Agenda Item 6a BAGAR 12-2022
	Agenda Item 6b November 30, 2022 Financials
	Agenda Item 7a 644 Lot Coveyance Ordinance
	Agenda Item 7b Reimbursement Resolution (TMVHA Ilium Acquisition)
	Agenda Item 8 Lot 644 Deed Restriction Memo
	Agenda Item 9 Forestry Program Update Memo
	Agenda Item 10 Lot OSP 18A CUP
	Agenda Item 11 109R Subdivision Replat Continuance Memo
	Agenda Item 12 109R Major PUD Amendment

	Promotional Association Name exactly as it appears on incorporation documents: Mountain Village Promotional Association
	Description of Common Consumption Area Boundaries: Pedestrian areas of Mountain Village Center
	Mailing Address of Promotional Association: 113 Lost Creek Lane Suite A, Mountain Village, CO 81435
	Primary Contact: Anton Benitez
	Primary Contact Phone Number: 970-728-1904
	Primary Contact Email Address: tmvoa@tmvoa.org
	250 for Annual Renewal Fee: On
	Copy of Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws: On
	List of all Directors and Officers of the Promotional Association: On
	List of all the licensed premises in the Promotional Association: On
	List of any changes from the original certification: On
	Detailed map of the Common Consumption Area including: On
	Written detailed description of Security Arrangements with the Common Consumption Area: On
	A list of dates and hours of operation of the Common Consumption Area for upcoming calendar year: On
	Documentation showing possession of the Common Consumption Area: On
	List of Attached Licenses listing the following information State Liquor License number list of any past liquor: On
	Documentation of the reasonable requirements of the neighborhood the desires of the adult inhabitants as: On
	Insurance Certificate of General Liability and Liquor Liability naming the Town of Mountain Village as an: On
	TuesdaysJanuary: 
	WednesdaysJanuary: 
	ThursdaysJanuary: 
	FridaysJanuary: 
	SaturdaysJanuary: 
	SundaysJanuary: 
	TuesdaysFebruary: 
	WednesdaysFebruary: 
	ThursdaysFebruary: 
	FridaysFebruary: 
	SaturdaysFebruary: 
	SundaysFebruary: 
	TuesdaysMarch: 
	WednesdaysMarch: 
	ThursdaysMarch: 
	FridaysMarch: 
	SaturdaysMarch: 
	SundaysMarch: 
	TuesdaysApril: 
	WednesdaysApril: 
	ThursdaysApril: 
	FridaysApril: 
	SaturdaysApril: 
	SundaysApril: 
	TuesdaysMay: 
	WednesdaysMay: 
	ThursdaysMay: 
	FridaysMay: 
	SaturdaysMay: 
	SundaysMay: 
	TuesdaysJune: 
	WednesdaysJune: 
	ThursdaysJune: 
	FridaysJune: 
	SaturdaysJune: 
	SundaysJune: 
	TuesdaysJuly: 
	WednesdaysJuly: 
	ThursdaysJuly: 
	FridaysJuly: 
	SaturdaysJuly: 
	SundaysJuly: 
	TuesdaysAugust: 
	WednesdaysAugust: 
	ThursdaysAugust: 
	FridaysAugust: 
	SaturdaysAugust: 
	SundaysAugust: 
	TuesdaysSeptember: 
	WednesdaysSeptember: 
	ThursdaysSeptember: 
	FridaysSeptember: 
	SaturdaysSeptember: 
	SundaysSeptember: 
	TuesdaysOctober: 
	WednesdaysOctober: 
	ThursdaysOctober: 
	FridaysOctober: 
	SaturdaysOctober: 
	SundaysOctober: 
	TuesdaysNovember: 
	WednesdaysNovember: 
	ThursdaysNovember: 
	FridaysNovember: 
	SaturdaysNovember: 
	SundaysNovember: 
	TuesdaysDecember: 
	WednesdaysDecember: 
	ThursdaysDecember: 
	FridaysDecember: 
	SaturdaysDecember: 
	SundaysDecember: 
	Date: 
	Title: Max Adam Singer, MVPA President
	Jackie Kennefick: 
	Date_2: 


